
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Corporation of the City of Sault Ste. Marie
Council Correspondence

 
November 2, 2022

Pages

1. Sault Ste. Marie Region Conservation Authority 2 - 12

Agenda Package – September 27, 2022•

Notice regarding Proposed 2023 Fee Policy Schedules•

2. Algoma Public Health 13 - 288

Meeting Minutes – May 25, 2022•

Agenda Package – September 28, 2022•

Agenda Package – October 26, 2022•

3. Correspondence 289 - 292

Correspondence from Ontario's Lottery and Gaming

4. Resolutions 293 - 298

City of Kingsville regarding Bill 3, Strong Mayors, Building Homes Act,
2022

•

Township of McGarry regarding Office of the Integrity Commissioner
Recommendation

•

Norfolk County supporting resolution regarding Draven Alert•



September SSMRCA Board Meeting 
Sault Ste. Marie Region Conservation Authority 
Sep 27, 2022 at 4:45 PM EDT to 6:45 PM EDT 

1100 Fifth Line East/Zoom Meeting 
 
 

 

Agenda 
 
I. Call to Order 
 
II. Declaration of Conflict of Interest 
 
III. Adoption of Agenda 
 
IV. Finance & Administration 

A. Adoption of Regular Board Meeting Minutes of July 19, 2022 
B. Health & Safety Meeting Minutes 
C. Accounts Payable 
D. 2023 Fee Schedule 
E. 2023 Preliminary Budget 
 

V. Water & Related Land Management 
A. Application Approvals: Section 28, Ontario Regulation 176/06, Development, 
Interference with Wetlands and Alterations to Shorelines & Watercourses 
B. Operations Update 
 

VI. New Business / Other 
A. Flying Pole Presentation by Kyle Megginson, Universal Pole Dance & 
Fitness 
B. General Manager's Report 
C. Client Service Standards Policy  
D. Records and Information Management Policy 
E. Protection of Privacy Policy 
F. PT Section 16, Tarentorus (MNRF) - North Region - 5th Lease Extension & 
Amending Agreement 

 

 
 

Page 2 of 298



 
VII. Closed Session 
To discuss advice subject to solicitor-client privilege 
 
VIII. Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

For members of the public interested in attending this meeting, please contact the General Manager, 
Corrina Barrett, at cbarrett@ssmrca.ca to make arrangements. Thank you in advance for your 

cooperation. 

Page 3 of 298

mailto:cbarrett@ssmrca.ca


 

 Sault Ste. Marie Region 
Conservation Authority 
 

         

 1100 Fifth Line East  705-946-8530  nature@ssmrca.ca  www.ssmrca.ca 
 Sault Ste. Marie, ON 
 P6A 6J8   

October 13, 2022 

NOTICE 
Public Comment Opportunity 

Proposed 2023 Fee Policy and Schedules 
 

Background 
The Sault Ste. Marie Region Conservation Authority (SSMRCA) charges fees to assist with the 
cost of delivering programs and services that are not adequately covered or may be ineligible 
for provincial grant funding, and that assist in the reduction of the general levy. The fees are an 
estimation of staff time, travel, and materials costs to provide a service. It is essential for the 
SSMRCA to charge a fee reflective of the full costs associated with the service provided. 
 
On January 1, 2023, the Conservation Authorities Act will be amended by repealing 21 (1) (m.1) 
which related to the power of Conservation Authorities to chare fees for services approved by 
the Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry and enacting section 21.2 (1)-(12) “Fees for 
Programs and Services”. Subsection (1) enables the Minister of the Environment, Conservation 
and Parks to determine the classes of programs and services in respect of which a Conservation 
Authority may charge a fee and (2) requires the minister to publish a List in a policy document. 
The Minister published the list through the Policy: Minister’s list of classes of programs and 
services in respect of which conservation authorities may charge a fee (“Minister’s List) on April 
11, 2022. Conservation Authorities may only charge a fee for a program or service that it 
provides if it is included in this List. 
 
Section 21.2 of the Conservation Authorities Act sets out that every Conservation Authority 
shall prepare and adopt both a written fee policy and fee schedules with respect to the fees 
that it charges for the programs and services it provides. Upon enactment of the new Section 
21.2, on January 1, 2023, all Conservation Authorities will be required to have a fee policy and 
fee schedules approved by their Board. 
 
The Fee Policy as discussed, must include the following: 

• The Conservation Authority’s Fee Schedule; 

• The frequency within which the fee policy will be revied by the Authority; 

• The process for carrying out a review of the Policy, including rules for giving not of the 
review and of any changes as a result of the review; and, 

• The circumstances in which a person may request that the Authority reconsider a fee 
that was charged to the person and the procedures applicable to the reconsideration. 

 
 

Page 4 of 298

mailto:nature@ssmrca.ca
http://www.ssmrca.ca/


PROPOSED CHANGES TO POLICY 
• Revised to reflect the new provincial regulatory requirements. 

PROPOSED CHANGES TO FEE SCHEDULES: 

Schedule 1 – Regulation and Permitting Fees 

• Some of the regulation fees were increased by 3% while other fees remained 
unchanged. 

• Larger fee increases as indicated in the schedule were reviewed with the intent of 
covering staff time and expenses. 

 

Schedule 2 – General Service Fees 

• Staff charge out rates have generally increased to cover the costs of increases in salary 
and benefits and associated expenses. 

• Conservation Lands charges are for services such as building or property rentals and are 
considered nonmandatory. 

• Fee increases are considerate of staff time expended for the services 
 

DEADLINE FOR COMMENTS: 
Comments must be submitted in writing to the attention of Corrina Barrett at 
cbarrett@ssmrca.ca or by mail no later than Monday November 14th, 2022 to: 
 
Attention: Corrina Barrett, General Manager 
Sault Ste. Marie Region Conservation Authority 
1100 Fifth Line East 
Sault Ste. Marie, ON P6A 6J8 
 
 

Page 5 of 298

mailto:cbarrett@ssmrca.ca


 

 
 
 
 

 
Fee Policy and Schedules 

For Consultation 
 
 

This manual outlines SSMRCA’s policies for setting  
and charging fees 

 
 

Approved by SSMRCA’s Board of Directors – xxx x, 2022 
 
 

Effective Date: January 1, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Sault Ste. Marie Region Conservation Authority 
Administration Office 
1100 Fifth Line East 
Sault Ste. Marie, ON 

P6A 6J8 
Tel: 705-946-8530 
Fax: 705-946-8533 

Web: https://ssmrca.ca/ 

 

Page 6 of 298

https://ssmrca.ca/


 

 

 

 
  
 
 
 
 

Revision 
Version # 

Date Description of 
Changes 

Adopted by Full 
Authority 
Resolution # 

1.1 2022/10/04 Original Issue:  
For consultation 

 

 

 

1.0 Purpose 

The purpose of the Fee Policy and Schedules is to inform the public and our municipal partners of the 
fees charged for programs and services delivered by the Sault Ste. Marie Region Conservation 
Authority (SSMRCA). 

 

2.0 Legislative Framework 
 
The Conservation Authorities Act (CAA) Section 21.2 allows for conservation authorities to charge fees 
for services. 
 
The CAA Section 21.1 Mandatory programs and services and Ontario Regulation (O. Reg.) 686/21 
Mandatory Programs and Services outline mandatory (Category 1) programs that may be funded by 
municipal apportionment, provincial grants, or self-generated revenue with the user pay principal as 
appropriate. 
 
Section 21.1.1 of the CAA outlines Category 2 Municipal programs and services, “An authority may 
provide, within its area of jurisdiction, municipal programs and services that it agrees to provide on 
behalf of a municipality situated in whole or in part within its area of jurisdiction under a memorandum 
of understanding, or such other agreement as may be entered into with the municipality, in respect of 
the programs and services”.  
 
Section 21.1.2 of the CAA defines Category 3 Other programs and services, “In addition to programs 
and services described in sections 21.1 and 21.1.1, an authority may provide, within its area of 
jurisdiction, any other programs and services that it determines are advisable to further the purposes of 
this Act.” 
 

Category 1 Mandatory Programs and Services include: 

• Administration of Conservation Authorities Act (CAA) Section 28 and 28.1 including technical 
advice and studies; 

• Response to legal, real estate and public inquiries regarding a CAA Section 28 and 28.1 and 
natural hazard inquiries under the Planning Act; 

• Activities requiring a permit made pursuant to section 29 of the CAA; 

Section Fee Policy and Schedule 

Title Corporate Services 

Resolution #  

Approval Date  

Revisions  

Page 7 of 298



• Review and commenting on applications under other legislation noted under the Mandatory 
Programs and Services Regulation (O. Reg. 686/21) and associated inquiries. 

• Access to authority owned or controlled land for recreational activities not requiring direct 
authority or other staff involvement. 
 

Category 2 Municipal programs and services include but are not limited to: 

• Commenting on Planning Act applications for technical and policy matters other than for 
consistency with natural hazard policies, such as related to natural heritage, storm water 
management, or other matters requested by a municipality, county, corporation or individual. 
 

Category 3 Other programs and services include but are not limited to: 

• Extension Services (e.g. technical advice/implementation of erosion control measures, forest 
management/tree planting, wildlife/fisheries habitat management, management of 
forests/recreational land owned by others, technical studies) 

• Recreational activities that are provided on land that is owned or controlled by the authority with 
the direct support or supervision of staff employed by the authority or by another person or 
body, or with facilities or other amenities maintained by the authority, including equipment 
rentals and renting facilities for special events. 

• Community relations to help establish, maintain, or improve relationships between the authority 
and community members. 

• Public education services to improve awareness of issues relating to the conservation, 
restoration, development, and management of natural resources in watersheds in Ontario. 

• The provision of information to the public. 

• The sale of products by the authority. 
 

3.0 Policy Principles 
 
This Fee Policy and associated Schedules have been prepared in conformity with the Conservation 
Authorities Act. The Fee Schedules are based on the user-pay principle. The fees and revenues for 
planning and permitting services are designed to assist with recovering the costs associated with 
administering and delivering the services on a program basis. These fees do not exceed the cost of the 
service. 
 

4.0 Process and Public Notification 
 
The Fee Policy and Schedules has been established by the SSMRCA Board of Directors following 
consultation with local stakeholders and the public. 
 
Consultation includes direct e-mail to key stakeholders (e.g., municipalities) and posting the notice for 
comment for review and/or revisions to the Fee Policy and Schedules on the SSMRCA website for a 
minimum of 30 days. Comments received will be presented to the Board of Directors prior to any 
approval. 
 
 
 

Page 8 of 298



5.0 Implementation 
 
It is the objective of SSMRCA to provide an effective and efficient delivery of services. To achieve this 
objective: 

• Land use proposals will be reviewed in a timely fashion. 

• Comments on applications under the Planning Act will be provided in time for the legislated 
public meeting or hearing. 

• Permit applications under the CAA generally will be processed within timelines outlined in 
Conservation Ontario’s “Annual Reporting on Timelines Template for permissions under 
Section 28 of the Conservation Authorities Act”. These timelines were developed by the Timely 
Review and Approvals Taskforce and received endorsement by the CO Council in December 
2019. 

• Fees will not exceed the costs to deliver the service. 
 
Exemptions to the application of these fees include: 

• Non-profit conservation groups contributing to the protection and restoration of the natural 
environment, such as Ducks Unlimited (DU), Nature Conservancy of Canada (NCC), Ontario 
Federation of Anglers and Hunters (OFAH) for permit applications, Planning Act applications, 
inquiries, and site assessments; 

• SSMRCA municipalities forming part of the permit applications, inquiries, and site assessments 
(excluding exceptional circumstances where considerable staff time is required to conduct 
major technical reviews and enforcement matters). 
 

6.0 Refunds 
 
SSMRCA does not issue refunds for services or products once the application or order is 
submitted and the payment has been processed. Under exceptional circumstances, refund requests 
will be considered and may be approved by the General Manager. If a refund is approved, a 10% 
refund fee will apply. 
 

7.0 Appeal 
 
The fee appeal process will be based on the principles of fairness, opportunity, and notification. The 
only fees that would be considered for an appeal are those found under planning and permitting. 
 
Consideration of appeals will be directed to the General Manager (GM). The appellant must 
submit in writing to the GM the reasons for the appeal request. The GM will review the request, consult 
with staff and the proponent. The appeal will be dismissed, upheld or the fee altered. If the appeal is 
dismissed, the proponent is required to pay the fee amount. If the appeal is upheld, the fee could be 
waived or varied from the original amount. The applicant will be notified of the GM’s decision. 
 
If the applicant is dissatisfied with the decision from the GM an appeal to the SSMRCA Board of 
Directors can be requested. 
 
The appellant must submit in writing to the GM the reasons for the appeal request to the Board of 
Directors. The written request must identify a request to present the appeal before the Board of 
Directors. Once heard, the appeal will be dismissed, upheld or the fee altered. If the appeal is 
dismissed, the proponent is required to pay the fee amount. If the appeal is upheld, the fee could be 

Page 9 of 298



waived or varied from the original amount. Any appeal decision requires a resolution passed by the 
Board of Directors. The appellant will be notified of the Board’s decision. 
 

8.0 Date of Effect 
 
The Fee Policy and Schedules becomes effective as of the date set by the SSMRCA Board of 
Directors. 
 

9.0 Transition 
 
The establishment of this Fee Policy and Schedules supersedes and replaces all previous fee policies 
and/or schedules. The Policy also applies to proposals not previously invoiced, such as draft approved 
plans of subdivision which predated any fee schedule. 
 

9.0 Review Process 
 
This Fee Policy and Schedules will be reviewed annually by SSMRCA staff to monitor effectiveness 
and any changes will be brought forward to the Board of Directors for consideration. Consultation is 
required if changes are applied to the Policy or Schedules (as noted under Process and Public 
Notification) prior to Board approval. Approval of the updated Fee Policy and Schedule will require 
passage of a resolution by the Board of Directors. 
 

10.0     Administration 
 

Review Schedule: Annual Next Review Date:    October 2023 

Related Legislation, 
Regulations and 
Guidelines: 

Conservation Authorities Act Section 21.1 Mandatory programs and 
services  
Ontario Regulation (O. Reg.) 686/21 Mandatory Programs and 
Services 

Related Policies 
and Policy Tools: 

Schedule 1: SSMRCA Regulation and Permitting Fees 
Schedule 2: SSMRCA General Fees 
 

 
 

11.0 Fee Schedules 
 
Schedule 1: SSMRCA Regulation and Permitting Fees 
Schedule 2: SSMRCA General Fees 
 

 

 
  

Page 10 of 298

https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90c27
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90c27
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/210686
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/210686


SCHEDULE 1 – Regulation and Permitting Fees  

FEE TYPE 2022 Fees PROPOSED 
2023 Fee 

NOTES 

Permit Fees 

Small Works $ 256.00 $ 256.00 No change 

Standard Works $ 385.00 $ 385.00 No change 

Large Works $ 635.00 $ 635.00 No change 

Major Works $ 890.00 $ 1024.00 15% increase 

Decks    

under 500 square feet (non-drilled / 
drilled) 

$ 177 / 195 $ 182 / 201 3% increase 

over 500 square feet (non-drilled / 
drilled) 

$ 195 / 258 $ 201 / 256 3% increase up to 
$256 

Other – activities not included under 
Small Works 

$ 89 $ 92 3% increase 

Development Reviews (Additional) 

Residential development 
applications involving a regulated 
activity which requires review of an 
engineering study/design, 
environmental study or other study 

up to $1907/study + 
HST (based on time 
for review) 

up to $1964/study + 
HST (based on time 
for review) 

3% increase 

Commercial/Industrial/Institutional 
developments where storm water 
management or engineering 
evaluations are required 

up to $3,134/study 
+ HST (based on 
time for review) 

up to $3,228/study 
+ HST (based on 
time for review) 

3% increase 

Subdivision Plan Review 

Initial Review Phase $242 (plus 
$118/lot/phase) 

$249 (plus 
$122/lot/phase) 

3% increase 

Development proposals involving 
multiple dwelling units (more than 4 
lots) where storm water 
management or other engineering  
evaluations are required. 

up to $1308/study 
(based on time for 
review) 

up to $1347/study 
(based on time for 
review) 

3% increase 

Other Fees 

Informal Inquiry No Charge No Charge No change 

Formal Inquiry $ 84.00 + HST $ 87.00 + HST 3% increase 

Consultation On-Site Combined below Combined below  

Preliminary Development Technical 
Assessment 
or On Site Consultation 

$ 118 minimum + 
HST 
($70/hr after one 
hour on site) 

$ 122 minimum   + 
HST  
($75/hr after one 
hour on site) 

3% increase + 
update of hourly 
rate 

Permit Revisions 50% surcharge 50% surcharge No change 

Permit Extensions 25% surcharge 25% surcharge No change 

Violations 100% surcharge 100% surcharge No change 
Note: No fees apply to applications for submissions from levying municipalities on municipal initiatives (excluding major 
technical reviews and enforcement matters). 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11 of 298



SCHEDULE 2 – General Service Fees 

FEE TYPE 2022 Fees PROPOSED  
2023 Fees 

NOTES 

Staff Charge-Out Rates 
Note: staff hourly rates are in place for developing costs for proposals and for occasional requests for information or work that 
is beyond our regular services. 

Management /  
Project Management 

$ 80/hour + HST $ 85/hour + HST Increases 
reflective of 
administrative 
costs 

Engineer $ 70/hour + HST $ 75/hour + HST Increases 
reflective of 
administrative 
costs 

Specialists: GIS / Comms / 
Operations / RMI 

$ 54/hour + HST $ 55/hour + HST Increases 
reflective of 
administrative 
costs 

Administration $ 45/hour + HST $ 50/hour + HST Increases 
reflective of 
administrative 
costs 

Conservation Lands 

Sugar Shack Event Space Rental* $ 115 + HST $ 118.50 + HST 3% increase 

Conservation Area Event Agreement $ 230 + HST $ 237.00 + HST 3% increase 

Unique uses requiring additional 
considerations 
(e.g., photography, filming, training) 

Staff charge out 
rate for consultation 
/ site visits. 
Additional fees for 
services on case-
by-case basis. 

Staff charge out 
rate for consultation 
/ site visits. 
Additional fees for 
services on case-
by-case basis. 

No change 

* Note: Reduced fees may be applied for use of the SSMRCA’s Event Space by youth groups, at the discretion of the General 
Manager. 

Administrative Services 

NSF Cheque $ 50 + HST $ 50 + HST No change 

Map Printing Services    

A – Letter size (8.5x11) in colour $ 11.04 + HST $ 11.59 + HST 5% increase 

B – Tabloid (11x17) in colour $ 13.81 + HST $ 14.50 + HST 5% increase 

Photocopying in black & white $ 0.39 + HST $ 0.43 + HST 10% increase 

Custom, photo paper and digital 
images 

The cost will be 
negotiated based 
on the above 
schedule plus the 
requested layers 
and the cost of a 
CD. The map will be 
provided in a PDF 
format. 

The cost will be 
negotiated based 
on the above 
schedule plus the 
requested layers 
and the cost of a 
CD. The map will be 
provided in a PDF 
format. 

No change 

* Map products A and B do not include the orthophotography. 

 
 

Page 12 of 298



BOARD MEMBERS
PRESENT: Sally Hagman - Chair

Lee Mason - 1st Vice-Chair
Deborah Graystone - 2nd Vice-Chair

Ed Pearce
Brent Rankin
Matthew Scott

REGRETS:

1.0 Meeting Called to Order 

a. 

b.

2.0 Adoption of Agenda
Moved: L. Mason

Seconded: D. Graystone

CARRIED

3.0 Delegations / Presentations

Not Applicable

4.0 Adoption of Minutes of Previous Meeting 
Moved: L. Caicco Tett

Seconded: B. Rankin

CARRIED

5.0 Business Arising from Minutes

Land Acknowledgment - Read by S. Hagman 

RESOLUTION
2022-53

THAT the Board of Health agenda dated May 25, 2022 be approved as presented.

RESOLUTION
2022-54

THAT the Board of Health minutes dated April 27, 2022 be approved as presented.

Not applicable.

Musa Onyuna, Micheline Hatfield, Chris Spooney - Acting Director of Health Protection, Tanya Storozuk - Executive 
Assistant, Dr. Emil Prikryl - Public Health and Preventive Medicine Resident, Liliana Bressan - Manager of Effective 
Public Health Practice.

APH MEMBERS
Dr. John Tuinema - Acting Medical Officer of Health & CEO 
Antoniette Tomie - Director of Corporate Services 
Laurie Zeppa - Director of Health Promotion & Prevention 
Leo Vecchio - Manager of Communications
Leslie Dunseath - Manager of Accounting Services
Tania Caputo - Board Secretary

Louise Caicco Tett

Board of Health Meeting 
MINUTES

May 25, 2022 at 5:00 pm
Video/Teleconference 

Declaration of Conflict of Interest - No conflicts declared

Page 13 of 298



6.0 Reports to the Board

a. Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer Reports

i. 

Moved: E. Pearce
Seconded: L. Mason

CARRIED

b. Finance and Audit 

i.

Moved: L. Mason
Seconded: E. Pearce

CARRIED

c. Governance
i.

Moved: D. Graystone
Seconded: L. Caicco Tett

CARRIED

ii. Policy #02-05-060 Meetings and Access to Information
Moved: D. Graystone

Seconded: B. Rankin

CARRIED

A summary of the Financial Statements was provided by L. Dunseath.
RESOLUTION

2021-56
THAT the Board of Health approves the Unaudited Financial Statements for the period ending March 31, 2022,  as 
presented.

THAT the report of the Medical Officer of Health and CEO for May 2022 be accepted as presented.

J. Tuinema summarized the report, highlighting the improved COVID-19 outcomes with the lowest number 
of high-risk cases since the beginning of the omicron wave.  He explained the new case and contact 
management approach focused on high-risk outbreaks and reported on vaccination rates and treatments 
for COVID-19 infection.   The Pandemic Recovery Action Plan is being developed with input from staff and 
stakeholders to routinize our COVID response further and restore and rebuild core public health programs 
and services.  
From the presentation shared with the Board of Health in February 2022, an abstract titled “Walking 
Together: How four guiding principles underpinned meaningful collaboration between local public health 
and Indigenous partners during COVID-19” was written and submitted in partnership with Maamweysing 
North Shore Community Services to the Canadian Public Health Association.
The APH annual reports for 2019, 2020 and 2021 are included in this meeting package and available on the 
APH website.  

MOH Report - May 2022

RESOLUTION
2022-55

Governance Committee Chair Report

Unaudited Financial Statements for the period ending March 31, 2022.

D. Graystone provided a summary of the May 11, 2022, Governance Committee Meeting with discussion 
about an Annual General Meeting for the purpose of reviewing bylaws. Further research will take place 
over the summer and follow-up discussion at the September Governance Committee Meeting before 
returning to the BOH agenda. 

RESOLUTION
2022-57

THAT the Governance Committee Chair Report for May 2022 be accepted as presented.

RESOLUTION
2022-57

THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and approves Policy #02-05-060 Meetings and Access to Information, as 
presented.

Page 14 of 298



iii. Policy #02-05-075 - Election of Chair, Vice-Chair or Committee Members
Moved: L. Caicco Tett

Seconded: M. Scott

CARRIED

7.0 New Business/General Business

a.

b.

c. 

8.0 Correspondence
a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

9.0 Items for Information 

a.

RESOLUTION
2022-58

THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and approves Policy #02-05-075 - Election of Chair, Vice-Chair or 
Committee Members,  as presented.

Algoma Vaccination Council Update
L. Caicco Tett provided a summary report of the work done by the council throughout the pandemic. Clinic sites 
supported were GFL, IFC, East Blind River, Richards Landing, Thessalon and the First Nations of Garden River, 
Batchewana and Thessalon and indirectly Serpent River, Wawa and Elliott Lake. The committee coordinated 
the delivery of over 7500 meals and snacks to the clinics involving 35 local restaurants. Over $80,000 in cash 
and direct sponsor purchase and in-kind contributions was generated and absorbed into the local economy 
through these efforts. 
As of May 2022, more than 97,000 Rapid tests have been delivered to 530 local and area small businesses and 
more than 50,000 to larger employers.
 

Letter to the Minister of Health and Deputy Premier, Ministry of Health from Simcoe Muskoka District Health 
Unit regarding Response to the Opioid Crisis in Simcoe Muskoka and Ontario-wide dated March 16, 2022.

Letter to the Minister of Health and Deputy Premier, Ministry of Health from Windsor-Essex County Health Unit 
regarding Letter of Support – Ontario Regulation 116/20, Work Deployment Measures for Boards of Health 
dated March 30, 2022.
Letter to the Minister of Health and Deputy Premier, Ministry of Health from Grey Bruce Public Health 
regarding Mental Health and the Opioid Crisis dated April 29, 2022.
Letter to the Minister of Health and Deputy Premier, Ministry of Health from Peterborough Public Health 
regarding Extension of Ontario Regulation 116/20, Work Deployment Measures of Boards of Health dated 
May 2, 2022.
Letter to the Minister of Health and Deputy Premier, Ministry of Health from Peterborough Public Health 
regarding Provincial Opioid Crisis Response dated May 2, 2022.

alPHa Information Break / Annual General Meeting

D. Graystone has proposed 15 minute training modules to be implemented at BOH meetings starting in 
September.  

Transitional housing

E. Pearce requested that the BOH consider a presentation by a transitional housing organization. This has been 
deferred for further discussion amongst Board Executive. 

S. Hagman will attend the alPHa AGM and will return with a report from the June meeting.  J. Tuinema will also 
attend. 

Indigenous Engagement Training

Page 15 of 298



10.0

11.0

Moved: D. Graystone
Seconded: L. Mason

CARRIED

12.0

There are no resolutions resulting from the in-camera meeting.

13.0 Announcements / Next Committee Meetings:

Finance & Audit Committee
Wednesday, June 8, 2022 @ 5:00 pm 
Video Conference

Board of Health Meeting
Wednesday, June 22, 2022 @ 5:00 pm

In person meetings may resume in September 2022

14.0 Evaluation
S. Hagman reminded Board members to complete their meeting evaluation.

15.0 Adjournment - 5:55 pm

Moved: D. Graystone
Seconded: M. Scott

THAT the Board of Health meeting adjourns.
CARRIED

Tania Caputo, Secretary

DateDate

THAT the Board of Health go in-camera.

Open Meeting - 5:53 pm

Video Conference/In-person (in-person meeting to be confirmed) 

RESOLUTION
2022-63

S. Hagman, Chair

2022-59

Addendum
An updated meeting agenda was in the addendum.

In-Camera - 5:51 pm

For discussion of labour relations and employee negotiations, matters about identifiable individuals, adoption of in-
camera minutes, security of the property of the board, litigation or potential litigation.

RESOLUTION

June 22, 2022June 22, 2022

Page 16 of 298



September 28, 2022

BOARD OF HEALTH MEETING

Algoma Community Room / Videoconference

www.algomapublichealth.com

Page 17 of 298



11. . Call to OrderCall to Order

22. . Adoption of AgendaAdoption of Agenda

33. . Adoption of MinutesAdoption of Minutes

44. . Delegation/PresentationsDelegation/Presentations

i. Report of MOH CEO - September 2022 36

ii. BOH Resolution - Comprehensive Public
Health Approach

40

iii. - Appendix - Opioid Crisis Advocacy Letter 42

a. Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive
Officer Report

b. Finance and Audit

i. Governance Report - September 2022 60

ii. AGM Briefing Note 62

iii. 02-05-001 - Composition and Accountability of
the Board of Directors

63

iv. 02-05-015 - Conflict of Interest 67

v. 02-05-025 - Board Member Remuneration 70

c. Governance

iv. Strategic Plan and Agency Priorities 44

i. APH Unaudited Financial Statements ending
July 31, 2022

52

66. . Reports to BoardReports to Board

a. Declaration of Conflict of Interest

a. September 28, 2022, Board of Health Meeting
Agenda

5

a. June 22, 2022 Board of Health Meeting Minutes 10

a. Building Relationships with Mennonite
Communities in Algoma - September 2022

13

55. . Business ArisingBusiness Arising

Meeting Book - September 28, 2022, Board of Health MeetingMeeting Book - September 28, 2022, Board of Health Meeting

Table of ContentsTable of Contents

Page 2 of 158

Page 18 of 298



vi. 02-05-035 - Continuing Education for Board
Members

73

vii. 02-05-060 - Meetings and Access to
Information

74

viii. Briefing Note - By law 06-02 Assignment of
CBO

77

77. . New BusinessNew Business

a. Letter to the Minister of Intergovernmental Affairs,
Infrastructure and Communities from the Niagara
Region Board of Health regarding Indoor Air Quality
Improvement dated July 5, 2022

84

b. Letter to the Deputy Premier and Minister of Health,
Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care from Niagara
Region Board of Health regarding Paid Sick Leave in
Ontario dated July 19, 2022.

88

c. Letter of Congratulations to the Deputy Premier and
Minister of Health, Ministry of Health and Long-Term
Care from Algoma Public Health July 28, 2022.

93

d. Letter to the Deputy Premier and Minister of Health,
Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care from Niagara
Region Board of Health regarding Paid Sick Leave
dated September 7, 2022.

94

88. . CorrespondenceCorrespondence

a. News Release COVID-19 Vaccine Bookings to
Open For Children

103

b. News Release Ontario Introduces A Plan to Stay
Open Health System Stability and Recovery

107

c. alPHa Message from the BOH Chair 115

d. Ontario Newsroom - Ontarians Aged 18 Eligible for
Second Booster Shot

116

e. alPHa July 2022 InfoBreak 120

99. . Items for InformationItems for Information

ix. By-Law 06-02 - Ontario Building Code
Appointments

79

a. Letter of Support - Healthy Babies Healthy Children
Funding

81

e. Letter to the Premier of Ontario from Sudbury and
District Public Health regarding Saving Lives Through
Lifejacket and Personal Flotation Device Legislation
dated September 22, 2022.

101

Page 3 of 158

Page 19 of 298



f. Ontario Newsroom - Vaccine Bookings to Open to
Children dated July 21, 2022

128

g. August 2022 InfoBreak 136

h. September 2022 InfoBreak 145

1414. . AnnouncementsAnnouncements

i. Federal Dental Care Program - Northern
Perspectives

156

1010. . AddendumAddendum

1111. . In-CameraIn-Camera

1212. . Open MeetingOpen Meeting

1313. . Resolutions Resulting From In-CameraResolutions Resulting From In-Camera

a. Next Meeting Dates

1515. . AdjournmentAdjournment

Page 4 of 158

Page 20 of 298



BOARD MEMBERS APH MEMBERS
PRESEN Sally Hagman - Chair

Lee Mason - 1st Vice-Chair
Deborah Graystone - 2nd Vice-Chair

Leo Vecchio - Manager of Communications
Micheline Hatfield Leslie Dunseath - Manager of Accounting Services
Musa Onyuna Liliana Bressan - Manager of Effective Public Health Practice
Ed Pearce Kimberly Aslett - Research Policy Advisor
Brent Rankin
Matthew Scott

Tania Caputo - Board Secretary
Tanya Storozuk - Executive Assistant

1.0 Meeting Called to Order S. Hagman

a. 

b.

2.0 Adoption of Agenda S. Hagman
Moved: L. Mason 

3.0 Delegations / Presentations

a.

4.0 Adoption of Minutes of Previous Meeting S. Hagman
Moved: L. Caicco Tett

5.0 Business Arising from Minutes

L. Bressan & 
Reflections by 
M. Freer, CA 
Agnihotri & 
Mennonite 
Leadership 

RESOLUTION

Planting seeds for collaboration: Relationship building with the Mennonite Community in 
Algoma 

THAT the Board of Health minutes dated June 22, 2022 be approved as presented.

Declaration of Conflict of Interest

Board of Health Meeting 
AGENDA

September 28, 2022 at 5:00 pm
Video/Teleconference 

Dr. John Tuinema - Acting Medical Officer of Health & CEO
Antoniette Tomie - Director of Corporate Services
Laurie Zeppa - Director of Programs

Louise Caicco Tett

GUESTS
Mennonite Community Leadership -  Isaak Doerksen - Bishop, Amos Weber - Deacon, Betsy Weber
Melinda Freer - Public Health Nurse, Algoma Public Health (Mennonite/Amish Community Liaison)
Carol-Ann Agnihotri - Nurse Practitioner, North Shore Health Network
Mary Ellen Luukonnen - Interim VP of Clinical Services & Chief Nursing Executive, North Shore Health Network & Co-
Chair for East Algoma Ontario Health Team
Dr. Nicholas Jeeves, Physician and Chief of Staff, North Shore Health Network

Land Acknowledgment 

Emma Pillsworth - Public Health and Preventive Medicine Resident 
Physician (3rd year), currently on a Health Promotion Rotation with 
APH

RESOLUTION
THAT the Board of Health agenda dated September 28, 2022 be approved as presented.

Page 5 of 158

Page 21 of 298



6.0 Reports to the Board

a. Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer Reports J. Tuinema

i. 
Moved: B. Rankin

ii. Comprehensive Public Health Approach for Substance Use Prevention and Harm Reduction
Moved: D. Graystone

iii.

Whereas, long-term solutions to the opioid poisoning crisis must prioritize a comprehensive, multi-
sectoral approach and coordinated action to address the social determinants of health, facilitate 
prevention and education, and deliver harm reduction, treatment and recovery, and enforcement 
interventions;

Whereas, Consumption and Treatment Services (CTS) are important harm reduction interventions; 
preventing overdose-related deaths and connecting people to primary care, treatment, rehabilitation, 
as well as other health and social services to address their needs (e.g., mental health support, food, 
housing);

Therefore be it resolved, that the Board of Health for Algoma Public Health endorse the recommended 
actions (#1-7) from the letter from Simcoe-Muskoka District Health Unit to the Ontario Minister of 
Health (Appendix) , and write a letter to the Ontario Minister of Health urging for commitment to a 
more fulsome, comprehensive public health approach for substance use prevention and harm 
reduction in Ontario;

And further be it resolved, that the Board of Health for Algoma Public Health advocate to the Ontario 
Minister of Health the need for fulltime, sustained funding to support a Coordinator for the Sault Ste. 
Marie and Area Drug Strategy.

Appendix - Opioid Crisis Advocacy Letter 

MOH Report - September 2022
RESOLUTION

Whereas, Algoma’s health system is under-resourced to respond to the escalating burden of opioid-
related morbidity and mortality, due to persistent challenges with recruitment and retention, training, 
and inadequate funding across health and social services;

Whereas, the Sault Ste. Marie and Area Drug Strategy includes several partners who are committed to 
responding to the opioid poisoning crisis, however sustained funding for a dedicated, fulltime 
coordinator to oversee the planning and implementation of a comprehensive strategy is lacking.

Whereas, health and social service agencies across Algoma have identified that addressing the housing 
and homelessness crisis is a top priority in order to decrease harms associated with substance use;

Whereas, several public health agencies and organizations have called to decriminalize personal use 
and possession of substances, including but not limited to, Toronto Public Health, the Association of 
Local Public Health Agencies , and the Canadian Public Health Association;

THAT the report of the Medical Officer of Health and CEO for September 2022 be accepted as 
presented.

Whereas, the opioid poisoning crisis is a complex public health issue that has worsened throughout the 
course of the COVID-19 pandemic;
Whereas, data from the Office of the Chief Coroner shows that Algoma Public Health had the third 
highest rate in the province for opioid-related deaths between April 2021-March 2022;
Whereas, northern Ontario experiences higher rates of poverty and poor health, elevated rates of 
many health-harming behaviours, and inadequate access to high-quality health care and social 
services, compared to southern Ontario;

Whereas, 8 out of 10 Canadians with a substance use disorder say they experience barriers to 
recovery, including stigma;

RESOLUTION

Page 6 of 158

Page 22 of 298



iv.

b. Finance and Audit 
i.

Moved: E. Pearce

c. D. Graystone

i.
Moved: E. Pearce

ii. Briefing Note: Annual General Meeting

iii. Policy 02-05-001 Composition and Accountability of the Board of Directors
Moved: D. Graystone

Seconded: B. Rankin

iv. 02-05-015 Conflict of Interest
Moved: D. Graystone

v. 02-05-025  Board Member Remuneration
Moved: D. Graystone

vi. 02-05-035  Continuing Education for Board Members
Moved: D. Graystone

vii. 02-05-060 Meetings and Access to Information
Moved: D. Graystone

viii Briefing Note - BOH By-Law 06-02 Assignment of CBO

ix. By-Law 06-02 Ontario Building Code Appointments
Moved: D. Graystone

THAT the Board of Health accepts the Governance Committee Meeting Chair Report for September 
2022.

RESOLUTION
THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and approves 02-05-035  Continuing Education for Board 
Members, as presented.

RESOLUTION
2022-57

Governance

Governance Committee Meeting Chair Report - September 2022

RESOLUTION
THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and approves 02-05-015 Conflict of Interest, as presented.

RESOLUTION

THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and approves 02-05-060 Meetings and Access to Information, 
as presented.

THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and approves 02-05-025  Board Member Remuneration, as 
presented.

L. Dunseath

RESOLUTION

Strategic Plan and Agency Priorities

Unaudited Financial Statements for the period ending July 31, 2022.

THAT the Board of Health approves the Unaudited Financial Statements for the period ending July 31, 
2022,  as presented.

RESOLUTION

THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and approves Policy 02-05-001 Composition and 
Accountability of the Board of Directors, as presented.

RESOLUTION

RESOLUTION
THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and approves By-Law 06-02 Ontario Building Code 
Appointments, as presented.

Page 7 of 158

Page 23 of 298



7.0 New Business/General Business S. Hagman

i. Letter of Support - Healthy Babies Healthy Children Funding
Moved: D. Graystone

8.0 Correspondence S. Hagman
a.

b.

c. 

d.

e.

9.0 Items for Information S. Hagman

a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

f.

g.

h.

10.0 S. Hagman

11.0 S. Hagman

12.0 S. Hagman

Resolutions resulting from the in-camera meeting.

13.0 Announcements / Next Committee Meetings: S. Hagman

Finance & Audit Committee
Wednesday, October 12, 2022 @ 5:00 pm
Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

RESOLUTION
THAT, the Board of Health endorse the correspondence from Sudbury & Districts Public Health 
regarding Healthy Babies Healthy Children Funding.

Letter to the Deputy Premier and Minister of Health, Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care from 
Niagara Region Board of Health regarding Paid Sick Leave in Ontario dated July 19, 2022.

Letter of Congratulations to the Deputy Premier and Minister of Health, Ministry of Health and 
Long-Term Care from Algoma Public Health July 28, 2022.

Letter to the Deputy Premier and Minister of Health, Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care from 
Niagara Region Board of Health regarding Paid Sick Leave dated September 7, 2022.

Letter to the Premier of Ontario from Sudbury and District Public Health regarding Saving Lives 
Through Lifejacket and Personal Flotation Device Legislation dated September 22, 2022.

alPHa - Message from Board of Health Chair dated July 6, 2022

Addendum

alPHa Information Break dated August 19, 2022

alPHa Information Break dated September 16, 2022

Federal Dental Care Program - Northern Perspectives

Open Meeting

In-Camera

For discussion of labour relations and employee negotiations, matters about identifiable individuals, 
adoption of in-camera minutes, security of the property of the board, litigation or potential litigation.

Letter to the Minister of Intergovernmental Affairs, Infrastructure and Communities from the 
Niagara Region Board of Health regarding Indoor Air Quality Improvement dated July 5, 2022.

Ontario Newsroom  - Ontarians Aged 18+ Second Booster Shot dated July 13, 2022

alPHa Information Break dated July 19, 2022

Ontario Newsroom  - Vaccine Bookings to Open to Children dated July 21, 2022

Ontario Newsroom - Ontario Introduces Plan to Stay Open

Page 8 of 158

Page 24 of 298



BOH Reconciliation Training

Board of Health Meeting

14.0 Monthly Evaluation S. Hagman

15.0 Adjournment S. Hagman

Moved: M. Hatfield
THAT the Board of Health meeting adjourns.

Wednesday, October 26, 2022 @ 5:00 pm
Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

Wednesday, October 26, 2022 @ 4:30 pm
Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

RESOLUTION

Page 9 of 158

Page 25 of 298



Planting Seeds for Collaboration: 

Relationship Building with the Mennonite Community in Algoma

Liliana Bressan, Manager of Effective Public Health Practice

Melinda Freer, Public Health Nurse

Carol-Ann Agnihotri, Nurse Practitioner, North Shore Health Network

Mennonite Leadership & Community Members 

September 28, 2022

• Photo: Minardi, S. (2021). The Mennonites of Algoma. Northern Ontario Travel.  
Page 13 of 158

Page 26 of 298

https://www.northernontario.travel/algoma-country/the-mennonites-of-algoma-east-of-sault-ste-marie-ontario


• Ontario public health standards

• Our partners: Mennonite community in Algoma and health partners 

• Our work together: Knowledge exchange, home visits, and community clinics

• Our approach: Shared values and aligned actions 

• Next steps

Overview

Page 14 of 158

Page 27 of 298



Ontario Public Health Standards

• Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care. (2018). Health Equity Guideline, 2018. 
• Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care. (2018). Ontario public health standards: Requirements for programs, services, and accountability.

“Opening the doors doesn’t mean equity. It’s so much more.” – NSHN Partner 

Page 15 of 158

Page 28 of 298

https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Health_Equity_Guideline_2018_en.pdf
http://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2018_en.pdf


Mennonite Community in Algoma

• Anabaptist community 

• Orthodox Mennonites 

• Approximately 500+ Mennonites in Algoma 

• Many young families with children

• Relocated from southern to northern Ontario in early 2000s  

• Community lives from Laird to Bruce Mines in Central Algoma 

• Parochial schools – 4 community schools and 1 school within a home  

175,000 self-identified Mennonites in Canada. 
59,000 self-identified Mennonites in Ontario.

[2011 National Household Survey]

• University of Waterloo. (n.d.). Who are the Mennonites? 
Page 16 of 158

Page 29 of 298

https://uwaterloo.ca/grebel/academics/continuing/institute-anabaptist-and-mennonite-studies/who-are-mennonites


Unique Influences to Health Service Access

• Dispersion of community (rural) 

• Transportation 

• Minimal use of technology 

• Lack of primary care providers in Central Algoma 

• Do not subscribe to OHIP coverage, by choice  

• Community pays taxes. 
• High community cohesion, and value placed on being a good neighbour. 
• Natural upstream way of thinking and doing with a desire to stay healthy. 
• Preference to access support within the community. 
• Strong desire to learn, work together, and support the greater good of the community.  

Page 17 of 158

Page 30 of 298



Pandemic Goals and Needs

There was a need to….

• Minimize illness and death through risk communication and strategies for health protection, 
in a culturally appropriate way. 

• Reduce preventable visits to acute care, by providing access to health promotion, protection 
and primary care in the community, with minimal use of health system resources. 

• Bring health system partners together and think outside the box. 

COVID-19 Pandemic Goals: 
• Minimize serious illness and death related to COVID-19. 
• Minimize societal disruption and preserve health care services. 

Page 18 of 158

Page 31 of 298



Who: Health Partners Breaking Down Silos 

• Algoma Public Health 

• North Shore Health Network (NSHN)

o Assessment Centre, Oximetry Program, Local Hospitals  

• Local Physician Offices 

• Midwives of Algoma Practice Group

• Algoma EMS: Paramedics 

• Public Health Agency of Canada (PHAC)

• Canadian Border Services Agency (CBSA)

• Provincial PHN Workgroup: Working together to serve 

• Provincial Private Schools Workgroup 

Page 19 of 158

Page 32 of 298



What: Our Work Together During COVID-19

March 
2020: 

COVID-19 
was 

declared a 
global 

pandemic. 

April 2020: 

PHN & PHI 
visited 1-2 

days/week with 
Mennonites for 

information 
sharing.

December 2020: 
Partners started 
discussions and 
plans for how to 

support the 
community.

January 2021: Cases 
across Central & East 
Algoma and a COVID-
19 death sparked the 

development of 
partnerships for 

information sharing, 
testing, and support. 

January – May 2021: 
Travel testing and 

case follow-up 
identified public 

health and primary 
care needs that could 
be addressed on the 

spot, and protect 
hospital capacity.

Page 20 of 158

Page 33 of 298



What: Our Work Together During COVID-19

March 2021:

Mobile pulse 
oximetry 
program by 
NSHN and 
paramedics 
begins.

June 2021: 

Travelling 
home visits 
start with APH 
and NSHN. 

August 2021: 

Mennonite leadership, 
NSHN, and APH meet to 
discuss opportunities, 
including 2 community-led 
clinic sites driven by 
community needs. 

Fall 2021 - Now: 

Community clinics started with 
APH and NSHN. Home visits 
continue 1 day/week by APH. 

Page 21 of 158

Page 34 of 298



Communication

• Timely communication in a respectful and culturally appropriate way 

• Address misinformation or gaps in information 

• Face-to-face visits 

• Written letters 

• The pony express – local news print 

• Focus groups and tailored communications materials 

o Pertussis 

o Breastfeeding 

o Prenatal Nutrition

o After Birth  

Page 22 of 158

Page 35 of 298



Home Visits

• Started “on the road” in early 2020, with 1-2 visits/week 

• Knowledge exchange with Mennonite leadership, community members, and business owners 

• Home visits (door-to-door) with community members by request and priority 

• Length of visit is based on needs identified 

Some challenges: 

• Winter weather during outdoor visits 

• Lack of privacy 

• Excess travel time reducing efficiency 

From December 2020 – August 2022, 
116 visits were had with Mennonites.

Page 23 of 158

Page 36 of 298



Community Clinics 

• Started in October 2021, monthly to bimonthly

• Two sites – east and west homes provided by community families 

• Administrative support provided by families 

• Private rooms (repurposed bedrooms) and separated spaces 

• Up to 23 clients seen per clinic, with an average of 8-16 visits (individual and family visits) 

Some Benefits: 

• Not impacted by weather, increasing comfort 

• Increased privacy 

• Link to public health and NSHN at same time 

• Reduced travel = more community connection 

From December 2020 to August 2022, 
31 clinics were hosted.

Page 24 of 158

Page 37 of 298



How: Values Nurturing our Relationship

Flexibility, 
Adaptability 

and Creativity
Humility

Cultural 
Sensitivity

Respect

Note: Words and themes were shared by Mennonite leadership and community members, as well as APH and 
NSHN project partners, during discussions about the partnership at a community clinic. 

Page 25 of 158

Page 38 of 298



Respect 

• Shared decision-making 

• Community beliefs, values and context were key to evidence-based practice 

• Timely and transparent communication 

• Actively listened and implemented community recommendations

• Worked to understand the community’s world view and worked within it 

Over time, respect has built a sense of trust. 

• National Collaborating Centre for Methods and Tools. (n.d.). Evidence-informed decision making in public health. Page 26 of 158

Page 39 of 298

https://www.nccmt.ca/tools/eiph


Cultural Sensitivity

• Blended values and beliefs with best practices 

• Integrated an understanding of community faith and way of life 

• Remained calm and gentle natured 

• Worked holistically – removed silos and provided access to public health and primary care in 
one place, in the community 

Photos: 
• Klassen, J. (2016). How the Algoma Mennonites plan to sell way more vegetables. SooToday.
• Minardi, S. (2021). The Mennonites of Algoma. Northern Ontario Travel. 

Page 27 of 158

Page 40 of 298

https://www.sootoday.com/local-news/how-the-algoma-mennonites-plan-to-sell-way-more-vegetables-11-photos-334815
https://www.northernontario.travel/algoma-country/the-mennonites-of-algoma-east-of-sault-ste-marie-ontario


Humility 

• Health partners acknowledged gaps and biases – lack of an equitable approach 

• Community identified needs and ways to contribute to health services (e.g. clinic jar)

• Were transparent in what we knew and did not know

• Willingly received feedback 

• Used an approach that was constantly evolving 

• Acknowledged expertise within the community (e.g. birth supports) 

• Learned and created solutions together

Page 28 of 158

Page 41 of 298



Flexibility, Adaptability and Creativity

• Met the community where they were at 

• Used traditional methods

• Adapted resources to align with community context

• Accepted change and pressures

• Were willing to find new ways

Page 29 of 158

Page 42 of 298



The Fruits of Our Labour Together…. 

• Developed a collaborative, inter-professional partnership working with a culturally diverse 
and otherwise underserved community within Algoma. 

• Exchanged health promotion and protection information and health care services on topics 
of interest identified by the community, and in ways created with the community. 

• Used a proportionate universalism approach, that blended population health strategies with 
targeted strategies, and aligned resources accordingly using an equity lens. 

“People are just so happy.” 
– Mennonite Community Member

Page 30 of 158

Page 43 of 298



The Fruits of Our Labour Together…. 

• Overcame gaps related to transportation and accessing services during COVID-19.

• Prevented and reduced unnecessary visits to the emergency department – a pandemic goal. 

• Provided referral to community resources, programs and specialists – connecting people to 
services that they otherwise would not access – a primary care goal.  

• Improved and protected the health and well-being of Mennonites in Algoma, and worked to 
reduce health inequities – a public health goal. 

• Reduced inequities, as Mennonites had more opportunity for optimal health via access to 
health supports, without disadvantage due to social position or socially determined 
circumstances during the pandemic. 

Page 31 of 158

Page 44 of 298



Sowing Seeds for Health Promotion and Protection

• Chronic Disease Prevention and Wellbeing 

• Food Safety 

• Healthy Environments 

• Healthy Growth and Development

• Immunization

• Infectious and Communicable Disease Prevention and Control

• Safe Water 

• School Health 

• Substance Use and Injury Prevention 

Every public health program has been offered, in some way. 

Page 32 of 158

Page 45 of 298



Reflections on our Partnership 

Page 33 of 158

Page 46 of 298



Shared Next Steps

Three main priorities:

Strengthen relationships and partnerships.

Build capacity for working with Mennonite Communities.

Continue to develop effective and equitable approaches to practice. 

Page 34 of 158

Page 47 of 298



Thank you. Questions?

Page 35 of 158

Page 48 of 298



 
 
  

  

 

Prepared by:   
Dr. John Tuinema and the  
Leadership Team 
 
Presented to:  
Algoma Public Health Board of Health  

 

Report of the  

Medical Officer of Health / CEO 

September 28, 2022 
 

Page 36 of 158

Page 49 of 298



Report of the Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
September 28, 2022 
Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

1 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Program Highlights Pages 3-10 Program Highlights Pages  5 - 11 APH At-a-Glance Page   2 APH At-a-Glance Page   2 - 3 TABLE OF CONTENTS 

  

APH At-a-Glance Page   2 - 3 

Page 37 of 158

Page 50 of 298



Report of the Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
September 28, 2022 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 

2 

 
COVID-19 Pandemic in Algoma: An Update  
 
The COVID-19 pandemic continues, but fortunately, high-risk case counts, hospitalizations, and deaths 
remain low relative to past waves in Algoma. In addition, our wastewater signal is very low, and 
although it only measures one portion of Sault Ste. Marie, it has been a good indicator of COVID 
conditions throughout Algoma.  
 
The much improved status of these indicators of COVID-19 in the community have reduced COVID-19 
response demands on the agency, however, we are mindful of what the fall respiratory season may 
bring and what that may mean for our communities. We have developed a COVID-19 surge plan that is 
in its final stage of development and we remain ever vigilant towards emerging trends, new variants, 
and new opportunities to keep Algoma residents safe. 
 
Immunization efforts also continue and have intensified with the arrival of a new bivalent vaccine and 
expanded eligibility for booster doses for those aged 18 and over, beginning with most at-risk 
populations, at a six month interval from last dose. We continue to work with community partners to 
ensure ample access to vaccination for children and adults across Algoma, in order to protect our 
communities. This is in addition to the demands of ensuring adequate influenza immunization and 
catching up with important routine vaccinations. 
 
COVID-19 Pandemic Recovery 
 
Recovery work has progressed considerably over the summer. The Recovery Taskforce has continued to 
meet regularly to plan for recovery through the use of a Recovery Action Plan to routinize COVID-19 
response, restore core programs, and rebuild public health, all centered in the revitalization of our 
public health teams. This plan, that continues to develop, has been aligned to the strategic plan.  
 
As part of restoring core public health programs, most employees have returned to their core work, with 
few remaining deployed to COVID-19 response efforts. Planning at the program level involves re-
orienting staff, assessing the backlog of programs and services, and planning for priority work with a 
health equity lens. Priority work includes connecting with community partners to bring focus to the 
social determinants of health, which continue to impact the health and wellbeing of our communities. 
COVID-19 has exacerbated mental health and addictions challenges, among other social, economic, and 
health conditions that are key considerations in the work of public health.  Programs are planning to 
work with community partners to influence policies and programs that support health across the 
lifespan, and are in the early stages of revisiting, planning, or restoring evidence-informed initiatives that 
improve community wellbeing as we recover from the pandemic. We are also currently in the process of 
re-examining our public health priorities, which will surface as we work towards updating our 
Community Health Profile. 
 
Return to the Workplace  
 
After significant planning and logistics, all APH employees are now working in-person for at least 50% of 
their time, and APH leadership has been in-person full-time since August.  

APH AT-A-GLANCE 

Page 38 of 158

Page 51 of 298



Report of the Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
September 28, 2022 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 

3 

 
In order to ensure the health and safety of our employees, we have instituted measures along each step 
of the hierarchy of controls. Masks are still required when employees work closely, and policies are in 
place to ensure proper screening is completed and that employees don’t come to work sick. We have 
also reviewed our ventilation to ensure it meets standards and we have made upgrades, such as air filter 
purchases, where necessary.  
 
We will continue to monitor pandemic conditions and adjust our approach to in-office and working 
remote as necessary, based on a set of criteria that prioritizes workplace safety. We will assess and 
modify as needed to optimize in-person work at all APH offices, while ensuring safety and operational 
effectiveness. 
 
Budget 
 
APH staff have been working diligently on preparing a new proposed budget for 2023. In previous years, 
the budget has been brought to the Finance and Audit Committee and then subsequently to the Board 
of Health in November. Changes to legislation mean that this year, the board‘s term will end in mid-
November therefore we plan to bring the budget to the Board in October to have it in place prior to the 
new year. 
 
Revisiting our Strategic Plan  
Our progress in recovery has provided the opportunity to revisit our Strategic Plan for 2021-2025 that 
the Board of Health approved in February of 2020, just before the declaration of the pandemic in March 
2020. The strategic plan is a key tool to support the rebuild of local public health and identification of 
agency priorities as we navigate our way forward.  
 
We are currently in the process of re-invigorating the strategic plans and its three primary directions, 
which still hold relevance and align well to current recovery priorities, objectives, and activities, as well 
as program plans for the next year.  
 

Page 39 of 158

Page 52 of 298



   Board of Health 
   R E S O L U T I O N 

Date: September 28, 2022 Resolution No: 2022- 

Moved: Seconded: 

Subject: Comprehensive Public Health Approach for Substance Use Prevention and Harm Reduction 
 

Whereas, the opioid poisoning crisis is a complex public health issue that has worsened throughout the course 
of the COVID-19 pandemic;1 

 
Whereas, data from the Office of the Chief Coroner shows that Algoma Public Health had the third highest 
rate in the province for opioid-related deaths between April 2021-March 2022;2 

 
Whereas, northern Ontario experiences higher rates of poverty and poor health, elevated rates of many 
health-harming behaviours, and inadequate access to high-quality health care and social services, compared to 
southern Ontario;3 
 
Whereas, Algoma’s health system is under-resourced to respond to the escalating burden of opioid-related 
morbidity and mortality, due to persistent challenges with recruitment and retention, training, and inadequate 
funding across health and social services;4,5 

 
Whereas, 8 out of 10 Canadians with a substance use disorder say they experience barriers to recovery, 
including stigma;6 

 
Whereas, long-term solutions to the opioid poisoning crisis must prioritize a comprehensive, multi-sectoral 
approach and coordinated action to address the social determinants of health, facilitate prevention and 
education, and deliver harm reduction, treatment and recovery, and enforcement interventions;1 

 
Whereas, Consumption and Treatment Services (CTS) are important harm reduction interventions; preventing 
overdose-related deaths and connecting people to primary care, treatment, rehabilitation, as well as other 
health and social services to address their needs (e.g., mental health support, food, housing);7 

 
Whereas, health and social service agencies across Algoma have identified that addressing the housing and 
homelessness crisis is a top priority in order to decrease harms associated with substance use;8 
 
Whereas, several public health agencies and organizations have called to decriminalize personal use and 
possession of substances, including but not limited to, Toronto Public Health, the Association of Local Public 
Health Agencies , and the Canadian Public Health Association;1,9 
 
Whereas, the Sault Ste. Marie and Area Drug Strategy includes several partners who are committed to 
responding to the opioid poisoning crisis, however sustained funding for a dedicated, fulltime coordinator to 
oversee the planning and implementation of a comprehensive strategy is lacking. 

 
Page 40 of 158

Page 53 of 298



 
 
 
 
 
Therefore be it resolved, that the Board of Health for Algoma Public Health endorse the recommended actions 
(#1-7) from the letter from Simcoe-Muskoka District Health Unit to the Ontario Minister of Health (Appendix) , 
and write a letter to the Ontario Minister of Health urging for commitment to a more fulsome, comprehensive 
public health approach for substance use prevention and harm reduction in Ontario; 
 
And further be it resolved, that the Board of Health for Algoma Public Health advocate to the Ontario Minister 
of Health the need for fulltime, sustained funding to support a Coordinator for the Sault Ste. Marie and Area 
Drug Strategy. 
 
References 
1 Association of Local Public Health Agencies. alpha Resolution A22-4: Priorities for provincial action on the drug/opioid poisoning 

crisis in Ontario. 2022. https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/9DD68D5D-CEFD-443B-B2B5-
E76AE0CC6FCB/A22-4_Drug_Poisoning_Crisis.pdf   

2 Office of Chief Coroner (OCC) - Data effective Jul 2022. This data includes both confirmed and probable opioid-related deaths, 
preliminary and subject to change. For internal use only. 

3 Health Quality Ontario. Northern Ontario health equity strategy. 2018. https://www.hqontario.ca/Portals/0/documents/health-
quality/health-equity-strategy-report-en.pdf  

4 Northern Ontario Public Health Units. Opioid Crisis in Northern Ontario. [Internal document] July 2021. 
5 Armstrong, Kenneth. Opioid crisis: Day treatment program could restart ‘immediately’ if funded. SooToday 2022 31 August. 

https://www.sootoday.com/local-news/opioid-crisis-day-treatment-program-could-restart-immediately-if-funded-5760784  
6 Canadian Centre on Substance Use and Addiction. Overcoming stigma through language: A primer.  2019. 

https://www.ccsa.ca/sites/default/files/2019-09/CCSA-Language-and-Stigma-in-Substance-Use-Addiction-Guide-2019-en.pdf 
7 Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit. Letter to Minister Elliott Re: Response to the opioid crisis in Muskoka and Ontario wide. 

[Internal Board correspondence] 16 March 2022.  
8 Algoma Public Health. Stakeholder interviews re: local opioid response. [Internal program data] 2019. 
9 Canadian Public Health Association. Decriminalization of personal use of psychoactive substances. 2017. 

https://www.cpha.ca/decriminalization-personal-use-psychoactive-substances  
 
 
 

CARRIED: Chair's Signature 

 

   

 
Louise Caicco Tett 

 
Micheline Hatfield 

 
Musa Onyuna 

 
Brent Rankin 

Deborah Graystone Lee Mason Ed Pearce Matthew Scott 

Sally Hagman    

 

Page 41 of 158

Page 54 of 298

https://www.hqontario.ca/Portals/0/documents/health-quality/health-equity-strategy-report-en.pdf
https://www.hqontario.ca/Portals/0/documents/health-quality/health-equity-strategy-report-en.pdf
https://www.sootoday.com/local-news/opioid-crisis-day-treatment-program-could-restart-immediately-if-funded-5760784
https://www.ccsa.ca/sites/default/files/2019-09/CCSA-Language-and-Stigma-in-Substance-Use-Addiction-Guide-2019-en.pdf
https://www.cpha.ca/decriminalization-personal-use-psychoactive-substances


 

 

March 16, 2022 
 
The Honourable Christine Elliott  
Minister of Health         
House of Commons 
Ottawa, ON K1A 0A6 
 
Dear Minister Elliott:  
 
Re: Response to the Opioid Crisis in Simcoe Muskoka and Ontario-wide 
 
On March 16, 2022, the Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit (SMDHU) Board of Health endorsed a set 
of provincial recommendations to help address the ongoing and escalating opioid crisis experienced 
within Simcoe Muskoka and province-wide. Despite regional activities in response to the opioid crisis, 
there remains an urgent need for heightened provincial attention and action to promptly and 
adequately address the extensive burden of opioid-related deaths being experienced by those who use 
substances.  
 
In the 19 months of available data since the start of the pandemic (March 2020 to September 2021) 
there have been 245 opioid-related deaths in Simcoe Muskoka. This is nearly 70% higher than the 145 
opioid-related deaths in the 19 months prior to the start of the pandemic (August 2018 to February 
2020), when our communities were already struggling in the face of this crisis. The first nine months of 
2021 saw an opioid-related death rate more than 33% higher than the first nine months of 2020, 
suggesting the situation has not yet stabilized.  
 
As such, the SMDHU Board of Health urges your government to take the following actions: 
 

1. Create a multisectoral task force to guide the development of a robust provincial opioid 
response plan that will ensure necessary resourcing, policy change, and health and social system 
coordination.  

2. Expand access to evidence informed harm reduction programs and practices including lifting the 
provincial cap of 21 Consumption and Treatment Service (CTS) Sites, funding Urgent Public 
Health Needs Sites (UPHNS) and scaling up safer opioid supply options.  

3. Explore revisions to the current CTS model to address the growing trends of opioid poisoning 
amongst those who are using inhalation methods. 

4. Expand access to opioid agonist therapy for opioid use disorder through a range of settings (e.g. 
mobile outreach, primary care, emergency departments), and a variety of medication options. 

5. Provide a long-term financial commitment to create more affordable and supportive housing for 
people in need, including people with substance use disorders. 

6. Address the structural stigma and harms that discriminate against people who use drugs, 
through provincial support and advocacy to the Federal government to decriminalize personal 
use and possession of substances and ensure increased investments in health and social services 
at all levels. 

Page 42 of 158

Page 55 of 298



7. Increase investments in evidence-informed substance use prevention and mental health 
promotion initiatives, that provide foundational support for the health, safety and well-being of 
individuals, families, and neighbourhoods, beginning from early childhood. 

8. Fund a fulltime position of a Drug Strategy Coordinator/Lead for the Simcoe Muskoka Opioid 
Strategy. 

 
The SMDHU Board of Health has endorsed these recommendations based on the well-demonstrated 
need for a coordinated, multi-sectoral approach that addresses the social determinants of health and 
recognizes the value of harm reduction strategies alongside substance use disorder treatment 
strategies, as part of the larger opioid crisis response. Evidence has shown that harm reduction 
strategies can prevent overdoses, save lives, and connect people with treatment and social services. 
Further, there is an urgent need to change the current Canadian drug policy to allow a public health 
response to substance use, through decriminalization of personal use and possession paired with 
avenues towards health and social services, as our Board called for in 2018. These recommendations 
collectively promote effective public health and safety measures to address the social and health harms 
associated with substance use. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
ORIGINAL Signed By: 
 
Anita Dubeau 
Board of Health Chair 
Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit 
 
cc: Associate Minister of Mental Health and Addictions 

Attorney General of Ontario 
Chief Medical Officer of Health  
Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
Ontario Health 
Ontario Boards of Health 
Members of Parliament in Simcoe Muskoka 
Members of Provincial Parliament in Simcoe Muskoka 
Mayors and Municipal Councils in Simcoe Muskoka 

Page 43 of 158

Page 56 of 298



Algoma Public Health’s Strategic Plan & Agency Priorities

Dr. John Tuinema, Acting Medical Officer of Health
September 28, 2022 

Page 44 of 158

Page 57 of 298



Ontario Public Health Standards

• Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care. (2018). Ontario public health standards: Requirements for programs, services, and accountability. Page 45 of 158

Page 58 of 298

http://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2018_en.pdf


Strategic Plan: Current Status

• The current strategic plan was approved by the BOH in early 
2020

• COVID-19 put a lot of core public health program work on hold
• Launching and implementing the strategic plan took a 

backseat to pandemic response and immunization 
• We need to revisit the strategic plan to provide direction as we 

recover and rebuild
• The timing and process need to be right

Page 46 of 158

Page 59 of 298



• Gathered feedback from the 
leadership team

• The strategy directions remain 
strongly aligned with our work 
and agency goals in recovery

Page 47 of 158

Page 60 of 298



Strategic Plan & Recovery

Page 48 of 158

Page 61 of 298



Where to from here?

• Need a firm understanding of 
community and agency priorities

• The Community Health Profile will 
be prioritized with significant input 
from programs

Page 49 of 158

Page 62 of 298



Page 50 of 158

Page 63 of 298



Next Steps

• Updating the Community Health Profile for 2023 will set us up well for the next 
strategic plan

• Throughout the process of updating the CHP, we will be setting interim priorities 
based on information and data as it is pulled together

• COVID will still be a reality and priority as we continue to work to protect 
community health, but efforts must focus on minimizing internal disruption and 
addressing the many other public health challenges being faced by our community  

Page 51 of 158

Page 64 of 298



Algoma Public Health
(Unaudited) Financial Statements

Index Page

  Statement of Operations 1

  Statement of Revenues - Public Health 2

  Statement of Expenses - Public Health 3

  Notes to the Financial Statements 4-6

  Statement of Financial Position 7

July 31, 2022

Page 52 of 158

Page 65 of 298



Algoma Public Health
Statement of Operations 
July 2022
(Unaudited)

Actual Budget Variance Annual Variance % YTD Actual/
YTD YTD Act. to Bgt. Budget Act. to Bgt. YTD Budget
2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022

Public Health Programs (Calendar)
Revenue
Municipal Levy - Public Health 3,141,912$         3,141,912$       (0)$  4,189,216$     0% 100%
Provincial Grants - Cost Shared Funding 5,079,729 5,108,758 (29,029)           8,773,425 -1% 99%
Provincial Grants - Public Health 100% Prov. Funded 2,415,448 2,465,872 (50,424)           4,259,650 -2% 98%
Provincial Grants - Mitigation Funding 583,763 605,381 (21,618)           1,037,800 -4% 96%
Fees, other grants and recovery of expenditures 200,326 203,314 (2,988)             379,075 -1% 99%
Total Public Health Revenue 11,421,178$       11,525,237$     (104,059)$      18,639,166$   -1% 99%

Expenditures
Public Health Cost Shared 9,137,656$         9,780,605$       642,949$        16,648,021$   -7% 93%
Public Health 100% Prov. Funded Programs 1,082,083 1,142,578 60,495            1,991,145 -5% 95%
Total Public Health Programs Expenditures 10,219,738$       10,923,182$     703,444$        18,639,166$   -6% 94%

Total Rev. over Exp. Public Health 1,201,440$         602,055$          599,384$        1$  

Healthy Babies Healthy Children (Fiscal)
Provincial Grants and Recoveries 356,011$            356,004            (7) 1,068,011 0% 100%
Expenditures 372,519              357,470            15,048            1,068,011 4% 104%
Excess of Rev. over Exp. (16,508)               (1,467) (15,041)           0 

Public Health Programs (Fiscal)
Provincial Grants and Recoveries 1,113,214$         1,116,978 3,763              2,176,700       0% 100%
Expenditures 329,088              455,739            (126,650)        2,176,700       -28% 72%
Excess of Rev. over Fiscal Funded 784,126              661,239            122,887          - 

Community Health Programs (Non Public Health)
Calendar Programs
Revenue
Provincial Grants - Community Health -$  -$  -$  -$  
Municipal, Federal, and Other Funding 0 0 - 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
Total Community Health Revenue -$  -$  -$  -$  #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Expenditures
Child Benefits Ontario Works 0 - - - #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
Algoma CADAP programs 0 0 - - #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
Total Calendar Community Health Programs -$  -$  -$  -$  #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Total Rev. over Exp. Calendar Community Health -$  -$  -$  -$  

Fiscal Programs
Revenue
Provincial Grants - Community Health 136,310$            104,051$          32,259$          320,308$        31% 131%
Municipal, Federal, and Other Funding 47,684 47,684 - 114,447 0% 100%
Other Bill for Service Programs 0 0 - - #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
Total Community Health Revenue 183,994$            151,735$          32,259$          434,755$        21% 121%

Expenditures
Brighter Futures for Children 27,132 38,149 11,017            114,447 -29% 71%

Infant Development 22,330 0 (22,330)           0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Preschool Speech and Languages 640 53,655 53,015            58,155 -99% 1%

Nurse Practitioner 53,288 53,384 97 162,153 0% 100%
Stay on Your Feet 20,667 33,333 12,667            100,000 -38% 62%
Rent Supplements CMH 32,258 0 (32,258)           0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
Bill for Service Programs 0 0 - (0) #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Misc Fiscal - - - - #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
Total Fiscal Community Health Programs 156,313$            178,522$          22,208$          434,755$        -12% 88%

Total Rev. over Exp. Fiscal Community Health 27,680$              (26,787)$           54,467$          (0)$  

Explanations will be provided for variances of 15% and $15,000 occurring in the first 6 months
and variances of 10% and $10,000 occurring in the final 6 months

1

Page 53 of 158

Page 66 of 298



Algoma Public Health
Revenue Statement
For Seven Months Ending July 31, 2022 Comparison Prior Year:
(Unaudited) Actual Budget Variance Annual Variance % YTD Actual/

YTD YTD Bgt. to Act. Budget Act. to Bgt. Annual Budget YTD Actual YTD BGT
2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2021 2021

Levies Sault Ste Marie 2,213,793 2,213,793 0 2,951,725 0% 75% 2,012,541 2,012,541 0
Levies District 928,119 928,119 0 1,237,491 0% 75% 843,744 843,744 0
Total Levies 3,141,912 3,141,912 0 4,189,216 0% 75% 2,856,285 2,856,285 0

MOH Public Health Funding 5,079,729 5,108,758 (29,029) 8,773,425 -1% 58% 5,079,732 5,079,732 0
MOH Funding Needle Exchange 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
MOH Funding Haines Food Safety 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
MOH Funding Healthy Smiles 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
MOH Funding - Social Determinants of Health 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
MOH Funding Chief Nursing Officer 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
MOH Enhanced Funding Safe Water 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
MOH Funding Infection Control 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
MOH Funding Diabetes 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
Funding Ontario Tobacco Strategy 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
MOH Funding Harm Reduction 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
MOH Funding Vector Borne Disease 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
MOH Funding Small Drinking Water Systems 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
Total Public Health Cost Shared Funding 5,079,729 5,108,758 (29,029) 8,773,425 -1% 58% 5,079,732 5,079,732 0

MOH Funding - MOH / AMOH Top Up 105,845 110,425 (4,580) 189,300 -4% 56% 132,637 88,716 43,921
MOH Funding Northern Ontario Fruits & Veg. 68,486 68,483 3 117,400 0% 58% 68,486 68,483 3
MOH Funding Unorganized 309,400 309,400 0 530,400 0% 58% 309,400 309,400 0
MOH Senior Dental 592,107 630,997 (38,890) 1,114,150 -6% 53% 407,107 407,108 (1)
MOH Funding Indigenous Communities 57,164 57,167 (3) 98,000 0% 58% 57,164 57,162 2
One Time Funding (Pandemic Pay) 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0% 0
OTF COVID-19 Extraordinary Costs 1,282,446 1,289,400 (6,954) 2,210,400 -1% 58% 68,145 68,145 0
Total Public Health 100% Prov. Funded 2,415,448 2,465,872 (50,424) 4,259,650 -2% 57% 1,042,939 999,015 43,925

Total Public Health Mitigation Funding 583,763 605,381 (21,618) 1,037,800 -4% 56% 605,386 605,386 0

Recoveries from Programs (28,676) 23,283 (51,959) 11,625 -223% -247% 6,160 23,330 (17,170)
Program Fees 36,243 30,116 6,127 50,000 20% 72% 72,784 79,323 (6,539)
Land Control Fees 153,595 105,000 48,595 183,000 46% 84% 159,765 75,000 84,765
Program Fees Immunization 11,039 29,162 (18,123) 50,000 -62% 22% 2,162 29,162 (27,000)
HPV Vaccine Program 0 0 0 9,500 #DIV/0! 0% 0 0 0
Influenza Program 0 0 0 23,500 #DIV/0! 0% 0 0 0
Meningococcal C Program 0 0 0 7,000 #DIV/0! 0% 0 0 0
Interest Revenue 19,124 11,669 7,455 20,000 64% 96% 7,885 11,550 (3,665)
Other Revenues 9,000 4,083 4,917 24,450 120% 37% 7,000 10,000 (3,000)
Total Fees and Recoveries 200,326 203,314 (2,988) 379,075 -1% 53% 255,756 228,365 27,391

Total Public Health Revenue Annual 11,421,178 11,525,237 (104,059) 18,639,166 -1% 61% 9,840,098 9,768,783 71,315

Public Health Fiscal April 2022 - March 2023
Needle Exchange Supplies 10,501 10,500 1 31,500 0% 33%

Infection Prevention and Control Hub 744,478 746,667 (2,189) 1,240,000 0% 60%

Practicum 10,000 10,000 0 30,000 0% 33%

School Nurses Initiative 231,000 232,311 (1,311) 522,700 -1% 44%

Fire System Upgrade 29,032 29,300 (268) 87,900 -1% 33%

Smoke Free Ontario Tablets 3,934 3,933 1 11,800 0% 33%

Temporary Retention Incentive for Nurses 63,904 63,900 4 191,700 0% 33%
Upgrade Network Switches 20,365 20,367 (2) 61,100 0% 33%

Total Provincial Grants Fiscal 1,113,214 1,116,978 (3,764) 2,176,700 0% 51% 0 0 0

Variance  2021

2
Page 54 of 158

Page 67 of 298



Algoma Public Health
Expense Statement- Public Health
For Seven Months Ending July 31, 2022
(Unaudited)

Comparison Prior Year:
Actual Budget Variance Annual Variance % YTD Actual/
YTD YTD Act. to Bgt. Budget Act. to Bgt.  Budget YTD Actual YTD BGT
2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2021 2021

.
Salaries & Wages 6,009,875 6,537,843 527,968 11,220,407 -8% 54% 6,079,710$   6,047,208$   ( 32,502 )$   
Benefits 1,466,871 1,527,579 60,708 2,621,584 -4% 56% 1,502,194 1,391,465 (110,729)
Travel 69,835 110,078 40,243 188,705 -37% 37% 74,510 100,864 26,354
Program 592,159 751,625 159,466 1,320,941 -21% 45% 823,238 674,501 (148,737)
Office 29,476 39,317 9,841 67,400 -25% 44% 34,712 33,274 (1,438)
Computer Services 509,509 497,241 (12,268) 852,416 2% 60% 511,237 557,936 46,699
Telecommunications 192,208 191,058 (1,150) 327,528 1% 59% 227,560 216,533 (11,027)
Program Promotion 29,149 49,544 20,394 84,932 -41% 34% 40,321 48,284 7,963
Professional Development 14,447 50,249 35,802 86,141 -71% 17% 15,591 44,042 28,451
Facilities Expenses 755,135 645,395 (109,740) 1,106,391 17% 68% 733,037 610,380 (122,657)
Fees & Insurance 290,996 272,175 (18,821) 332,300 7% 88% 256,511 233,925 (22,586)
Debt Management 266,829 266,829 0 457,421 0% 58% 269,682 268,858 (824)
Recoveries (6,750) (15,750) (9,000) (27,000) -57% 25% (70,113) (58,018) 12,095

10,219,739$   10,923,182$  703,443$         18,639,166$  -6% 55% 10,498,191$    10,169,252$  ( 328,939 )$     

Variance  2021

3

Page 55 of 158

Page 68 of 298



Notes to Financial Statements – July 2022 

Reporting Period 

The July 2022 financial reports include seven months of financial results for Public Health. All 
other non-funded public health programs are reporting four months of results from operations 
year ending March 31, 2023.  

Statement of Operations (see page 1) 

Summary – Public Health and Non Public Health Programs 

APH received the 2022 Amending Agreement from the province identifying the approved 
funding from the province for 2022 for public health.  The Ministry of Health has approved one-
time funding to support approximately 65% of estimated eligible COVID-19 extraordinary costs 
at this time for the 2022 calendar year (currently allocated $2.2M versus our original ask of 
$3.4M). Details regarding further allocations of one time funding to support ongoing response to 
the COVID 19 pandemic will be determined by review of in-year financial reports of detailed 
spending and forecasted needs. Management took the conservative approach and adjusted the 
2022 budget to reflect the change in approved funding.  Approved funding allocations has 
resulted in a reduction to the overall 2022 public health calendar budget of $988K. 

As of July 30, 2022, Public Health calendar programs are reporting a $599K positive variance 
driven by a $703K positive variance in expenditures and a $104K negative variance in 
revenues.   

Public Health Revenue (see page 2) 

Overall, our Public Health revenues are on budget for 2022 (within 1% of budget year to date). 
YTD we have received funding payments totaling $1.3M for our COVID programs versus total 
annual approval of $2.2M. The province has confirmed that one time extraordinary cost 
reimbursement for the COVID 19 programs will continue through 2022, with approval and on-
going funding to be based off of our Annual Service Plan and quarterly submissions to the 
province. Our second quarter submission to the Ministry was submitted on July 31, 2022. 

Mitigation funding from the province will continue for the 2022-2023 fiscal year. 

Fiscal funding has been approved totaling $2.2M for one time projects and initiatives. This 
includes $191,700 to support the Temporary Retention Incentive for Nurses for the 2022-23 
fiscal year. This funding will support the second installment of two bonus payments due to 
eligible nurses which will occur in September 2022.  

No funding has been approved to date for COVID Recovery initiatives ($650K was requested for 
2022). 

The COVID-19: School-Focused Nurses Initiative has been extended to December 31, 2022. 

4

Page 56 of 158

Page 69 of 298



Notes Continued… 

Public Health Expenses (see page 3) 

Salary, Wages & Benefits 
There is a $588K positive variance associated with Salary, Wages & Benefits driven by ongoing 
position vacancies. Recruitment efforts are ongoing.   

Travel 
There is a $40K positive variance associated with Travel expenses.  This is a result of APH 
employees continuing to work virtually as opposed to travelling throughout the district or 
attending meetings outside of the district. We expect to start to see this gap close as staff begin 
travelling throughout the district again in the summer months and throughout the remainder of 
the year.    

Programs 
There is a $159K positive variance associated with Programs. This is largely driven by our 
continued focus on COVID 19 programs and recovery which has prevented us from 
concentrating on our regular mandatory programming and getting these programs back to 
operating a regular capacity. We expect to see this gap start to close as regular mandatory 
programming continues to resume. Also contributing to the variance in program expenses is the 
fact that we have not required support from our community partners for COVID immunizations in 
near the capacity we expected to year to date.  

Professional Development 
There is a $36K positive variance for Professional Development.  At this time there has been 
limited spending for professional development, as staff availability is extremely tight and there 
are limited opportunities for professional development at this time. 

Facilities Expense 
There is a $110K negative variance associated with facilities expenses which is driven by 
increased security requirements associated with COVID 19 response and needs year to date. 
Needs for increased security continues to be regularly assessed as we enter into the recovery 
phase of the COVID 19 pandemic. Also noteable that the general rates for security services 
district wide have drastically increased over the course of the pandemic due to lack of 
supply/availability and, in some case, the need for guards to travel in order to attend posts.    

COVID-19 Expenses 

COVID-19 Response 
This program includes case and contact management as well as supporting the information 
phone lines.  July YTD expenses were $1,762K.  The majority of this consists of salaries and 
benefits costs of APH staff that under normal circumstances would be working in their assigned 
public health programs.   

COVID-19 Mass Immunization 
This program includes the planning, support, documentation, and actual needles in arms of the 
various COVID-19 vaccines. July YTD expenses were $833K.     

5

Page 57 of 158

Page 70 of 298



Notes Continued… 

Financial Position - Balance Sheet (see page 7) 

APH’s liquidity position continues to be stable and the bank has been reconciled as of July 31, 
2022.  Cash includes $1.40M in short-term investments.  

Long-term debt of $4.1 million is held by TD Bank @ 1.80% for a 60-month term (amortization 
period of 120 months) and matures on September 1, 2026.  $239k of the loan relates to the 
financing of the Elliot 
Lake office renovations, which occurred in 2015 with the balance, related to the financing of the 
294 Willow Avenue facility located in Sault Ste. Marie.  There are no material accounts 
receivable collection concerns.  

6

Page 58 of 158

Page 71 of 298



(Unaudited)
July December
2022 2021

Assets

Current
Cash & Investments $ 6,582,811 $ 5,969,759
Accounts Receivable 346,721 623,372 
Receivable from Municipalities 164,521 35,481 
Receivable from Province of Ontario

Subtotal Current Assets 7,094,053        6,628,612           

Financial Liabilities:
   Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities 1,083,591 1,838,503
   Payable to Gov't of Ont/Municipalities 432,349 1,414,828
   Deferred Revenue 321,408 550,066
   Employee  Future Benefit Obligations 2,829,539 2,829,539

   Term Loan 4,089,091 4,089,091

Subtotal Current Liabilities 8,755,978 10,722,027         

Net Debt (1,661,925) (4,093,414)

Non-Financial Assets:
   Building 22,934,750 22,934,750
   Furniture & Fixtures 2,026,666 2,026,666
   Leasehold Improvements 1,583,166 1,583,166
   IT 3,252,107 3,252,107
   Automobile 40,113 40,113
   Accumulated Depreciation -11,879,577 -11,879,577

Subtotal Non-Financial Assets 17,957,225 17,957,225

Accumulated Surplus 16,295,299 13,863,810

Algoma Public Health
Statement of Financial Position

Date:  As of July 2022

7

Page 59 of 158

Page 72 of 298



Governance Committee Meeting 
                                          September 13, 2022 

 
Attendees In Person: 
Deborah Graystone - Chair 
Sally Hagman 
Musa Onyuna 
 
Regrets: 
Brent Rankin 
Lee Mason 
 
APHU Members In Person: 
Dr. John Tuinema – Acting Medical Officer of Health and CEO 
Antoinette Tomie – Director of Corporate Services 
Laurie Zeppa – Director of Health Promotion and Prevention 
Tania Caputo – Secretary to the Board of Health 
Tania Storozuk – Executive Assistant 
 
Minutes for Governance Meeting of March 8, 2022 and May 11, 2022 were approved. 
 
A briefing note was present regarding an Annual General meeting for the Board of Health at 
which By-Laws and annual review of organizational accomplishments and goals and strategies 
would be reviewed and discussed.  It was decided to review this topic at the upcoming Board 
Orientation on September 20, 2022. 
 
Policy #02-05-001 - Composition and Accountability of the Board of Directors - There is a small 
difference in one aspect of the HPPA and our policy. After ministry consultation it appears that 
this wording of the regulation has been in place for decades.  The committee decided to leave 
the language as noted as is in the policy. This policy was approved with no amendments.  
 
Policy #02-05-085 was deferred to the November Governance meeting. 
 
Policy #02-05-015 - Conflict of Interest was reviewed and approved with amendments.  
 
Policy #02-05-025 Board Member remuneration was reviewed.  Clarification of reasons for 
payment were discussed.  Remuneration will ensue with clarification of attendance at each 
meeting.  Policy was approved with amendments. 
 
Policy #02-05-035 - Continuing Education for Board Members was reviewed and approved with 
no amendments. 
 

Page 60 of 158

Page 73 of 298



Policy #02-05-060 – Meetings and access to Information; collaboration of Medical Officer of 
Health and Board Chair regarding preparation of agenda were discussed.  Clarification will be 
made at our orientation session. Information of meetings regarding those in regular meetings 
and those in-camera were discussed.  Amendments were made and the policy was approved 
with those amendments. 
 
Policy #02-05-086 – was deferred to November Governance meeting.  
 
By-Law #06-02 Ontario Building Code Appointments was approved with amendments.  
Clarification will ensue regarding Correlation with the Ontario Building Code Act and the 
process regarding information relayed to the Board. 
 
By-Law #15-01 To Provide for the Management of Property was deferred to the November 
Governance meeting.  
 
Risk Management Model 2022-2023 was discussed in-camera and the model was approved in 
open meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61 of 158

Page 74 of 298



Briefing Note for Consideration of Annual General Meeting 
 

Purpose: 
To evaluate the option of holding an Annual General Meeting to make important decisions 
regarding the organization. 
 
Rationale: Current Practice involves no annual general meeting.  
 
Business at Annual General Meeting: 

• reviewing strategic plan and goals 
• elections of directors/officers 
• evaluating the executive director's performance 
• appointing auditors for ensuing year 
• reading of auditors report 
• reviewing and approving the organization's audited financial statements and setting the 

budget 
• evaluating program achievements 
• evaluation board performance 
• setting goals for the upcoming year 
• review/amend/approve by-laws 
• to give the overall status of the organisation by the chair of the board 
• honouring the service of retiring members 
• recognizing the contribution of volunteer associations/person 
• presentation of awards to staff 

 

 

 
 
 

Page 62 of 158

Page 75 of 298

https://www.quickcompany.in/articles/types-of-non-profit-organizations-in-india


Algoma Public Health – Policy and Procedure Manual – Board Policies and Bylaws 
 

APPROVED BY: Board of Health REFERENCE: 02-05-001 

DATE: Original: May 4, 1995 SECTION: Policies 
 Reviewed: Nov 20, 2019 

Revised: May 27, 2020 
Revised: Mar 24, 2021 
Reviewed: Sep 2022 

 
 

SUBJECT: 

 
 

Composition and Accountability 
of the Board of Directors 

 

KNOWLEDGE: 
 

The Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit is the governing body of Algoma Public Health 
and is established by the provincial public health legislation, the Health Protection and Promotion Act, 
RSO 1990, (HPPA) and regulations. 

 
Boards of Health are the governing bodies and policy makers of public health units. Boards of Health 
monitor all operations within their health unit and are accountable to the community and to the Ministry of 
Health. 

 
All Boards of Health have a legislated duty to ensure that the public health programs and services 
required by the HPPA are provided to people who live in the health unit jurisdiction. Public health 
programs and services are intended to prevent the spread of disease and to promote and protect health. 

 
The Ontario Public Health Standards: Requirements for Programs, Services and Accountability or its 
most current revision, published by the Ministry of Health, set out the minimum requirements for 
fundamental public health programs and services for boards of health. 

 
Section 1 of Regulation 559 to the HPPA states that the Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health 
Unit shall have eight municipal members. Section 49 (3) of the HPPA states that the Lieutenant 
Governor in Council may appoint one or more persons as members of a board of health, but the number 
of members so appointed shall be less than the number of municipal members of the Board of Health. 
Therefore the maximum size of the Board may be 15 members (8 municipal members + 7 provincial 
members). 

 
The distribution of board membership for the Board of Health for the District of Algoma Unit is as follows: 

 
 
 

Zero (0) to Seven (7) 
Members: 

appointed by the Lieutenant Governor to represent the Province of Ontario 
(currently 3 provincial members); 

Three (3) Members: appointed by the Council to represent the City of Sault Ste. Marie; 

One (1) Member: appointed by the Municipal Councils representing the Municipality of 
Wawa, Township of White River and Dubreuilville; 

One (1) Member: appointed by the Municipal Councils representing the Town of Blind River 
and the Townships of North Shore and Shedden; 

One (1) Member: appointed by the Municipal Councils representing the Town of Thessalon 
and Municipality of Huron Shores. 

 
 
 

PAGE: 1 of 2 REFERENCE #: 02-05-001 

Page 63 of 158

Page 76 of 298



PAGE: 2 of 2 REFERENCE #: 02-05-001 
 

 

One (1) Member: appointed by the Municipal Councils representing the Town of Bruce 
Mines, Village of Hilton Beach and the Townships of Hilton, Jocelyn, 
Johnson, Laird, Macdonald, Meredith and Aberdeen Additional, Plummer 
Additional, Prince, 
St. Joseph and Tarbutt and Tarbutt Additional; 

One (1) Member: appointed by the Municipal Council representing Elliot Lake. 

Maximum 
membership: 

Fifteen (15) members 

 

The appointment of members of municipal council(s) shall be for the term of the council(s). Council(s) 
may have internal policies that further refine this term of appointment. 

 
Provincial appointees are for a three year term that may be renewed. 

 
It is the accountability of the Chair of the Board of Health to communicate vacancies, resignations or 
changes to the Board when they occur. 

 
Note: The City of Sault Ste. Marie has an internal policy that appointments of members by the municipal 
council representing the City of Sault Ste. Marie are for a two year term but may end sooner with the 
ending of the term of office of the council. 

Page 64 of 158

Page 77 of 298



APPENDIX A 

1 

 

 

 

BOARD MEMBER PROFILE MATRIX 
(15 member Board – 8 Municipal Members and 7 Provincial Members) 

 
SKILL / EXPERIENCE 

 
DESCRIPTION 

NUMBER OF 
DIRECTORS 

REQUIRING SKILL 
Core Skills 
Analytical and Critical 
Thinking 

 The ability to think analytically and critically, to evaluate different options, proposals 
and arguments and make sound independent decisions. 

All 

Inter-personal 
Communications 

 The ability to effectively communicate their ideas, positions, and perspective to their 
peers, as well as understand the ideas, position, and perspective of their peers and 
facilitate resolutions of differences in the common interest. 

All 

Creative and Strategic 
Vision/Planning 

 The ability to envision and define future goals and objectives that provide 
improved benefits for the groups and individuals on whose behalf the organization 
acts. (For example, experience with strategic planning, performance 
measurement, business planning, etc.) 

All 

Understanding of the 
board’s governance role 

 Understanding of the appropriate roles, group processes, protocols and policies that form 
the systems of board governance, including those related to the legal (fiduciary) 
obligations of directors and a requirement to work in the best interests of the APH and 
those it serves. 

 Demonstrated judgment and integrity in an oversight role. 
 Experience serving on a board of directors or governance committee and/or senior level 

experience working with other strategic or policy boards preferred. 
 Determination to act in one’s own independent deliberative judgment with confidence and 

persistence in order to ask appropriate, relevant and necessary questions. 

All 

Financial Literacy  Able to read and have a layman’s understanding of financial statements, 
including budgets, income statements, balance sheets and cash flow projections. 

All 

Community Knowledge  Knowledge of the community (fabric; particular needs) and more broadly, knowledge of 
the needs of the Algoma District at large. 

 

Commitment to Mandate  Demonstrates a strong understanding and commitment to the organization’s mandate, 
including an awareness and commitment to working in the best interests of APH and 
those it serves to protect public health. 

All 

Page 65 of 158

Page 78 of 298



APPENDIX A 

2 

 

 

 
 
 

Specific expertise with the 15 member Board 
(one or more) 

Financial  Expertise and experience (preferably with a designation) in financial accounting and 
reporting and corporate finance. 

 Comprehensive knowledge of internal financial controls, financial operational planning and 
management in an organization that includes expertise in auditing, evaluating and 
analyzing financial statements. 

 Knowledge of best practices in procurement and contract management an advantage. 

1 or more 

Communications / Public 
Relations Practices 

 Expertise and experience (preferably with a designation) with the planning, design, 
implementation and evaluation of strategic communications, and/or stakeholder 
relations initiatives. 

1 or more 

Risk Management  Expertise and experience or consulting in analyzing exposure to risk in the private, 
public or not-for-profit sector and successfully determining appropriate measures to 
manage such exposure. 

1 or more 

Education  Expertise and experience in the education sector, particularly, as it relates to subjects 
of relevance to public health programs and services. 

1 or more 

Legal  Expertise and experience in the law (preferably with a designation), particularly, as it 
relates to subjects of relevance to public health programs and services. 

1 or more 

Health Service Delivery  Expertise and experience in one or more aspects of health service delivery. Knowledge 
and/or experience in aspects of public health service delivery an advantage. 

1 or more 

Human Resources  Expertise and experience in human resources (preferably with a designation) 
particularly in the areas of compensation, labour relations, change management, 
organizational development and leadership. 

1 or more 

Information Management / 
Information Technology 

 Expertise and experience in IT/IM, particularly as it relates to systems and policies for 
data security and protecting privacy. 

1 or more 

 
OTHER REPRESENTATION CONSIDERATIONS 
Other  As much as possible, given the limitations of the current legislated appointment process, the board will aspire 

to support a Board of Health membership that represents the diversity of the communities it serves. 

 

Page 66 of 158

Page 79 of 298



 

PAGE: 1 of 3 REFERENCE #: 02-05-015 
 

Algoma Public Health – Policy and Procedure Manual – Board Policies and Bylaws 
 
APPROVED BY: Board of Health REFERENCE #: 02-05-015 
    
DATE: Original: Jan 18, 1995 SECTION: Policies 
 Revised: Jan 24, 2018   
 Revised: Jun 24, 2020 

Revised: Sep 23, 2020 
Revised: Sep 2022 

SUBJECT:  Conflict of Interest 

    

POLICY: 

Each member of the Board of Health has an obligation to avoid ethical, legal, financial or other conflicts of 
interest and to ensure that their activities and interests do not conflict with their obligations to the Board of 
Health of the Algoma District Health Unit (operating as Algoma Public Health) or its welfare. 

It is the responsibility of the individual to disclose any conflicts of interest to the meeting.  

If there is any doubt as to a perception of conflict, the member shall discuss with the Chair and/or Board of 
Health for direction. 

A Board member should not use information that is not public knowledge, obtained as a result of their 
appointment, for personal benefit. 

No Board member should divulge confidential information obtained as a result of their appointment unless 
legally required to do so. 

A Board member shall remove oneself from the Board of Health if employment at APH is being sought. 

 

The purpose of the Conflict of Interest Policy is to: 

i) Assist individual Board members in determining when their participation in a Board 
decision/discussion has the potential to be used for personal or private benefit, financial or 
otherwise;  
 

ii) Protect the integrity of the Board as a whole and its members by following the conflict of Interest 
Policy and Procedures. 
 

Definitions:  
A conflict of interest situation arises where a member either on their own behalf or while acting for, 
by, with or through another, has any direct or indirect non-pecuniary or pecuniary interest in any 
contract or transaction with the Board or in any contract or transaction that is reasonably likely to 
be affected by a decision of the Board.  Where the Board member or their close relative or friend or 
affiliated entity uses the Board member’s position with APH to advance their personal or financial 
interests. 

Actual conflict of interest: A situation where a Board member has a private or personal interest that is 
sufficiently connected to their duties and responsibilities as a Board member that it influences the exercise 
of these duties and responsibilities. A narrow legal conflict of interest exists when the individual or 
immediate family member stands to gain or lose money personally because of a decision before the 

Page 67 of 158

Page 80 of 298



PAGE: 2 of 3 REFERENCE #: 02-05-015 
 

 

Algoma Public Health Unit – e.g. self or immediate family member being considered for employment or 
contract for services; 
 
Perceived conflict of interest: A situation where reasonably well-informed persons could have a 
reasonable belief that a Board member may have an actual conflict even where that is not the case, in fact. 
When someone looking in from the outside perceives that an individual used their influence to get Algoma 
Public Health Unit to make a decision that favoured someone or a group with whom the Board member has 
affinity – e.g. a contract being awarded to a neighbour, someone they went to school with, or their local 
community 
 
“Pecuniary Interest” includes any matter in which the member has a financial interest or in which the 
financial interests of the member may be affected and save and except for interests which the member 
may have which is an interest in common with electors generally or their honorarium arising from 
membership on the Board or as a user of services of the Board in like manner and subject to the like 
conditions as are applicable to persons who are not members. 
 

Indirect pecuniary interest: A member has an indirect pecuniary interest in any matter in which the 
council or local Board, as the case may be, is concerned, if; 

 (a) the member or their nominee, 

 (i) is a shareholder in, or a director or senior officer of, a corporation that does not offer its securities 
to the public, 

 (ii) has a controlling interest in or is a director or senior officer of, a corporation that offers its securities 
to the public, or 

 (iii) is a member of a body, that has a pecuniary interest in the matter; or 

         (iii)  is one step removed from the individual where there is a financial gain, e.g Director/Officer is an 
officer or executive of a potential supplier or landlord to of a charity where the Algoma Public Health 
Unit is a major donor 

 

  (b)  the member is a partner of a person or is in the employment of a person or body that has a pecuniary 
interest in the matter. 

 

 
 
 
PROCEDURE: 
 

 
1) At the beginning of every Board/Committee meeting, the Chair shall ask and have recorded in the 

minutes whether any Board member has a conflict to declare in respect to any agenda item. 
 

2) If a Board member believes that they have an actual or perceived conflict of interest in a particular 
matter, they shall; 

 
a) disclose the interest and the general nature thereof, prior to any consideration of the matter at the 

meeting. 
 

b)  not take part in the discussion of, or vote on any question in respect of the matter. 
 

c) not attempt in any way to influence the voting or do anything which might be reasonably 
perceived as an attempt to influence other councillors or committee members or the decision 
relating to that matter. 

Page 68 of 158

Page 81 of 298



PAGE: 3 of 3 REFERENCE #: 02-05-015 
 

 

 
d) leave the meeting or the part of the meeting during which the matter is under consideration if the 

meeting is not open to the public. 
 
3) Where the interest of a member has not been disclosed as required by subsection (2) by reason of 

the member’s absence from the meeting referred to therein, the member shall disclose the interest 
and otherwise comply with subsection (2) at the first meeting of the Board attended by the member 
after the meeting referred to in subsection (2).   

 
4) At a meeting at which a member discloses an interest under section (2) or as soon as possible 

afterwards, the member shall file a written statement of the interest and its general nature to the 
Chair of the Board or affected committee. 

 
5) Where a member, either on their own behalf or while acting for, by, with or through another, has any 

pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in any matter that is being considered by the Board, shall not 
use their position in any way to attempt to influence any decision or recommendation that results 
from consideration of the matter. 

 
6) Where a Board or committee member believes that another member has a conflict of interest that 

has not been declared despite any appropriate informal communications, the first member shall 
advise an appropriate person such as the Chair of the Board or affected committee. 

 
7) Where a Board or committee member believes that another Board or committee member has acted 

in or is in an ongoing conflict of interest, they shall advise in writing an appropriate person such as 
Chair of the Board or affected committee. 

 
8) In situations where a Board member declares a perceived conflict of interest, the Board will 

determine by majority vote whether the member(s) participate in the discussion and vote on the item. 
The minutes should reflect the discussion and the Board decision on the matter. Alternately the Board 
member may decide on their own accord to not participate in the discussion and to not vote on the 
agenda item in question. 

 
9) Prior to seeking employment with programs administered by the Board, the member shall provide a 

letter of resignation; however, the member may seek re-appointment if not successful in the job 
competition. 

 
10) Where a conflict of interest is discovered during or after consideration of a matter, it is to be declared to 

the Board at the earliest opportunity and recorded in the minutes. 
 

11) If the Board determines that the involvement of the member declaring the conflict influenced the 
decision on the matter, the Board shall re-examine the matter and may rescind, vary, or confirm its 
decision. Any action taken by the Board shall be recorded in the minutes. 

 
12) Where there has been a failure on the part of a Board member to comply with this policy unless the 

failure is the result of a bona fide error in judgement as determined by the Board; the Board shall 
request that the Chair; 

 
a) Issue a verbal reprimand; or 

 
b) issue a written reprimand; or  

 
c) request that the Board member resign or seek dismissal of the Board member based on 

regulations relevant as to how the Board member was appointed. 
 
 

Page 69 of 158

Page 82 of 298



PAGE: 1 of 2 REFERENCE #: 02-05-25 
 

Algoma Public Health – Policy and Procedure Manual – Board Policies and Bylaws 
 
APPROVED BY: Board of Health REFERENCE #: 02-05-025 
    
DATE: Original: Mar 20, 2002 SECTION: Policies 
 Revised: Nov 25, 2015   
 Revised: Nov 28, 2018 

Revised: Nov 13, 2019 
SUBJECT: Board Member Remuneration/ 

Expenses for Attendance at 
Meetings and Conferences  Reviewed: Sep 22, 2021 

Revised: Sep 2022 
 

 
POLICY: 
 
Remuneration for Attendance at Board of Health and Committee Meetings 
  
1) Board members’ attendance at meetings is verified by the attendance taken at the meeting and 

confirmed by the chair.  Accurate attendance is also recorded in the minutes. 
 

2) Payment of remuneration is issued to Board members as soon as possible after the verification of 
attendance by the chair of the Board/Committee.on a monthly basis. 
 

3) Daily remuneration as approved by the Board of Health and iIn accordance with Part VI of the Health 
and Protection and Promotion Act,(HPPA) Section 49, (4)  “A board of health shall pay remuneration to 
each member of the board of health on a daily basis and all members shall be paid at the same rate. 
R.S.O. 1990, c. H.7, s. 49 (4).” 

 
4) In accordance with the HPPA Section 49 (6) “The rate of the remuneration paid by a board of health to 

a member of standing committee of a municipality within the health unit served by the board of health, 
but where no remuneration is paid to members of such standing committees the rate shall not exceed 
the rate fixed by the Minister and the Minister has power to fix the rate. R.S.0. 1990, c. H.7, s. 49 (6)”   

 
5) In accordance to HPPA Section 49 (11) “Subsections (4) and (5) do not authorize payment of 

remuneration or expenses to a member of a board of health, other than the chair, who is a member of 
the council of a municipality and is paid annual remuneration or expenses, as the case requires, by the 
municipality. R.S.O. 1990, c. H.7, s. 49 (11)” is paid to those Board members who are not a member of 
the council of a municipality, OR are a member of the council of a municipality and are not paid annual 
remuneration by any municipality, 

 
3)6) Adhering to the above mentioned sections of the HPPA, remuneration is paid for the following 

authorized activities: 
a) Attendance at regular and/or special Board of Health meetings, including teleconferenced 

meetings. 
b) Attendance at Standing Board Committee meetings, including teleconferenced meetings. 
c) Attendance at the health unit at the request of the MOH or designate to fulfill duties related to 

the responsibilities of the Chair. 
 

7) The Chair of the Board shall receive extra remuneration as described in this policy for the performance 
of additional duties associated with the position of board chair. 
 

4)8) Payment of remuneration will be identified as to which function is being reimbursed on the payment 
form when provided to the Board member.   

 
 
 

Page 70 of 158

Page 83 of 298



PAGE: 2 of 2 REFERENCE #: 02-05-25 
 
 
Remuneration for Attendance at Board of Health Functions  
 
Remuneration at Board of Health functions applies only to those Board members who normally receive a 
daily meeting rate from the Board of Health.  
 
The categories of official Board of Health functions to which the daily remuneration rate will apply are as 
follows: 

a) Attendance as a voting delegate to any annual or general meeting of alPHa; 
b) Attendance as the official representative of the Board of Health at a local or provincial 

conference, briefing or orientation session, information session, or planning activity, with an 
expectation that a written report will be tabled with the Board. 

 
For example: 

 a briefing session with the Minister of Health or the Public Health Branch on a public health 
issue; 

 attendance at a local workshop, information session or Task Force on a Board-related issue 
such as Long Term Care Reform; 

 an alPHa-sponsored committee, task force, workshop, etc., at which Board attendance is 
specifically requested and which is not recompensed from other sources; 

 others at the discretion of the Chair, subject to ratification by the Board. 
 

c) This rate does not apply to any workshop, seminar, conference, public relations event, APH 
program event or celebration, which is voluntary and does not specifically require official Board 
representation. 

 
The Board member remuneration, as described below will be effective each January. The remuneration 
may be increased each year by resolution and vote of the Board, and the increase will be no greater than 
the % change in the consumer price index for the previous year as determined by Statistics Canada.  
 

Attendance at Board and Committee 
Meetings (in person or electronically) 

$110 meeting 4 hours or less 

Attendance as above (including travel 
time) 

$150 meeting and travel time greater than 
4 hours 

Attendance at Conferences $180 per day 

Additional duties of Board Chair  Apply the appropriate meeting rate 
for any required attendance at the 
request of the MOH 

 
 
Expenses 
 
 
1) Are recognized for attendance at Board of Health meetings and functions for which remuneration would 

apply in accordance with HPPA Section 49 (5) “A board of health shall pay the reasonable and actual 
expenses of each member of the board of health. R.S.0. 1990, c. H.7, s. 49 (3)”. 
 

2) Are not recognized for Board members other than the Chair who are members of the council of a 
municipality and are paid expenses by the municipality in accordance to HPPA Section 49 (11) as 
identified in this policy. . 
 

Page 71 of 158

Page 84 of 298



PAGE: 3 of 2 REFERENCE #: 02-05-25 
 
3) The rate of reimbursement for the use of a personal automobile is the kilometre rate as per the current 

Travel Policy 02-05-20. 
 

4) Travel Expense Claim Form is used to claim: 
a) kilometers travelled for attendance at Board functions (conferences, conventions or workshops). 
b) reasonable and actual expenses incurred respecting transportation (air, car, train, bus),  

accommodation, mealsfood, parking, taxis,  and registration fees. Receipts are required. Refer 
to Travel Policy 02-05-20. 
 

5) Once submitted, Board/MOH Expenses are to be approved as follows: 
a) The Board of Health Chair expenses: will be approved by the Chair of the Finance and Audit 

Committee. 
b) Board member expenses will be approved by the Board of Health Chair or delegate. 
c) MOH and/or CEO expenses will be approved by the Board of Health Chair or delegate. 

 
Eligible expenses are reimbursed for Board members only. 

Page 72 of 158

Page 85 of 298



 

 
PAGE: 1 of 1 REFERENCE #: 02-05-035 

 

Algoma Public Health – Policy and Procedure Manual – Board Policies and Bylaws 
 
APPROVED BY: Board of Health REFERENCE #: 02-05-035 
    
DATE: Original: Jan 20, 2010 SECTION: Policies 
 Revised: May 25, 2016   
 Revised: Nov 28, 2018 

Reviewed: Sep 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Continuing Education for 

Board Members 
 Reviewed: Sep 2022   

 

POLICY: 

Algoma Public Health encourages and supports Board Members to attend and participate in training, 
workshops, seminars, meetings, and conferences related to public health and governance issues. 
 
The Medical Officer of Health / Chief Executive Officer shall bring programs, seminars or conferences 
relevant to the work of the Board to the attention of the Board. Board members may also identify learning 
and development opportunities designed to enhance their competence and knowledge throughout their 
mandate. These may include seminars or workshops sponsored by other community service groups or 
those sponsored by health associations or government departments. 

Board members shall receive approval by the Chair of the Board to attend as a representative of the board 
and to receive financial support for expenses and remuneration. The Chair of the Board shall receive 
approval from First Chair.  If they are not available, then the Second Chair will give approval. The member 
shall submit a brief written report to the Board highlighting the information/knowledge/skills presented. 
 
Board Members, approved by the Board Chair for a professional development activity, shall be reimbursed 
for all expenses incurred as per policy 02-05-025 Board Member Remuneration.  

Page 73 of 158

Page 86 of 298



 

PAGE: 1 of 2 REFERENCE #:    02-05-060 
 

Algoma Public Health – Policy and Procedure Manuals – Board Policies and Bylaws 
 
 
APPROVED BY: Board of Health REFERENCE #: 02-05-060 
    
DATE: Original:  Oct 28, 2015 SECTION: Policies 
 Revised: Mar 28, 2018   
 Reviewed: Jun 24, 2020 

Revised: Sep 2022 
SUBJECT: Meetings and Access to 

Information 
    

PREAMBLE: 
 
As reflected in the Algoma Public Health Strategic Plan the Board of Health strongly supports the principles 
of accountability and transparency.  This policy regarding Meetings and Access to Information instructs the 
Board and informs the public as to: 

i) how meetings of the Board will be held 
ii) how the public can access information from Board meetings 
iii) how information from Board meetings will be disseminated 
iv) the terms under which a meeting or part of a meeting may be closed to the public in accordance 

with Section 239 of the Municipal Act. 

POLICY: 
 
Board of Health meetings are open to the public and the Board will conduct its meetings subject to 
Section 239 of the Municipal Act.  
 
The Chair of the Board of Health in collaboration with the Medical Officer of Health/CEO will prepare an 
agenda for each regular and special Board of Health meeting for distribution to the members of the Board 
of Health. 
The Chair of each Committee in collaboration with the Medical Officer of Health/CEO will prepare an 
agenda for each Committee meeting.  
 
The Medical Officer of Health/CEO or designate will provide briefing notes that outline an issue, 
recommended course of action, alternative courses of action, background and analysis, and financial 
implications on matters for which the Board of Health will be required to make a decision. 
 
At each Board of Health regular meeting, the Medical Officer of Health/Executive Officer or designate may 
provide the following information:  

 Minutes from the previous Board of Health meeting  
 Report of the Medical Officer of Health to address key issues since the last report that may include: 

 Updates on the implementation of public health programs and services  
 Updates on emerging provincial public health issues  
 Updates on community based public health issues or actions 
 Descriptions of new or ongoing corporate initiatives  
 Information on policy and procedure issues  
 Target Indicators  
 Biannual updates on progress related to the Strategic Plan 
 Other information items of relevance to the Board of Health. 

 
Minutes of Board of Health, Finance Committee and Governance Committee meetings will be posted on 
Algoma Public Health’s Website and emailed to each municipal clerk in Algoma Public Health’s catchment 
area with the exception of the in-committee minutes.  
 

Page 74 of 158

Page 87 of 298



PAGE: 2 of 2 REFERENCE #: 02-05-060 
 

 

Copies of Board records in the possession or under the control of the Secretary to the Board may also be 
made available to members of the public and shall be processed in accordance with the General 
Administrative Manual (GAM) policy for information requests. 
 
Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act does not apply to a record of a meeting 
closed under subsection (3.1). 2006, c. 32, Sched. A, s. 103 (3) of the Municipal Act. 
 
In the event that the APH receives a complaint relating to a closed Board of Health meeting, APH will utilize 
the services of the Ombudsman Ontario as the investigator when required in accordance with s.239 of the 
Municipal Act. (reference 03-08). 
 
The Secretary to the Board of Health will ensure that members of the media covering Board meetings have 
access to relevant information. 
 
In accordance with Section 239 of the Municipal Act, which also applies to local boards or committees of 
local boards, a meeting or part of a meeting may be closed to the public if the subject matter being 
considered is: 
 

 the security of the property of the municipality or local board; 
 
 personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local board employees; 

 
 a proposed or pending acquisition or disposition of land by the municipality or local board; 

 
 labour relations or employee negotiations; 
 
 litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals, affecting the 

municipality or local board; 
 

 advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications necessary for that 
purpose; 

 
 a matter in respect of which a Council, board, committee or other body may hold a closed meeting 

under another Act; 
 

 information explicitly supplied in confidence to the municipality or local board by Canada, a province 
or territory or a Crown agency of any of them; 

 
 a trade secret or scientific, technical, commercial, financial or labour relations information, supplied 

in confidence to the municipality or local board, which, if disclosed, could reasonably be expected to 
prejudice significantly the competitive position or interfere significantly with the contractual or other 
negotiations of a person, group of persons, or organization; 

 
 a trade secret or scientific, technical, commercial or financial information that belongs to the 

municipal local board and has monetary value or potential monetary value; or 
 

 a position, plan, procedure, criteria or instruction to be applied to any negotiations carried on or to 
be carried on by or on behalf of the municipality or local board. 2001, c. 25, s. 239 (2); 2017, c. 10, 
Sched. 1, s. 26. 

 
 A meeting is held for the purpose of educating or training the members and at the meeting, no 

member discusses or otherwise deals with any matter in a way that materially advances the 
business or decision-making of the council, local board or committee.   
2006, c. 32, Sched. A, s. 103 (1).  

Page 75 of 158

Page 88 of 298



PAGE: 3 of 2 REFERENCE #: 02-05-060 
 

 

 
 Biannual updates related to the Accountability Agreement Performance 

 
 
 

A meeting shall be closed to the public if the subject matter relates to the consideration of a request under 
the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act if the council, board, commission or 
other body is the head of an institution for the purposes of that Act. 
(1990, c. 25, s. 239 (3)) 
 
Before holding a meeting or part of a meeting that is to be closed to the public, a municipality or local board 
or committee of either of them shall state by resolution, 
 

(a) the fact of the holding of the closed meeting and the general nature of the matter to be 
considered at the closed meeting; or 
 

(b) in the case of education or training sessions, the fact of the holding of the closed meeting, the 
general nature of its subject-matter and that it is to be closed under article 239 subsection 3.1 of 
the Municipal Act. 

 
 
 
 

Page 76 of 158

Page 89 of 298



                                                                                 Briefing Note 

 

Strategic Directions: Improve Health Equity  Collaborate Effectively  Be Accountable  Enhance Employee Engagement 

 

To:  Algoma Public Health Board of Health 
From:  Dr. John Tuinema, Acting Medical Officer of Health    
Date:  Sept 12, 2022 
Re:  Revision to By‐Law 06 ‐02 Ontario Building Code Appointments  

 
 For Information   For Discussion   For a Decision 

 
 
PURPOSE 

 
To include within the Board of Health By – law 06‐02 Assignment Building Code Officer:  

 Appointed inspectors, appointed by the Chief Building Official as per section 3.2 (2) of the Ontario 
Building Code (OBC) Act1 ; and  

 The ability of the Manager of Environmental Health to temporarily assign the Chief Building Official 
(CBO) role to an appointed OBC trained inspector with CBO designation to ensure role continuity.  

BACKGROUND 

Algoma Public Health (APH) is the overseeing body for inspection and enforcement of the Ontario 
Building Code (OBC) Part 8‐ Septic Systems (land control) program in the Algoma District.  

Inclusion of Appointed Inspectors  

As per section 3.1 (2)  of the Ontario Building Code Act1, appointed inspectors are to be included in the 
by‐law.  

Temporary Assignment of a Chief Building Officer  
 
Within By‐Law‐06‐02, as currently written, the CBO role is assigned to the Manager of the 
Environmental Health. It is intended that the Manager of Environmental Health act as the CBO.  
 
However, in the interim of a manager acquiring necessary qualifications or absence of a qualified 
manager, an update to the by‐law is required to permit the manager to temporarily assign the CBO role 
to a OBC trained inspector with CBO designation (Temporary Acting CBO) to ensure role continuity.  
 
An OBC trained staff with CBO qualifications can be assigned to any staff member who has successfully 
completed both the Part 8 OBC On‐Site Sewage Systems  training course and the General Legal Process 
and Powers and Duties course and examinations. 

The Ontario Building Code Act1, 1992, S.O. 1992, c.23 outlines the role of the chief building official as 
follows: 

1(6) It is the role of a chief building official, 
o to establish operational policies for the enforcement of this Act and the building code within the 

applicable jurisdiction; 

Page 77 of 158

Page 90 of 298



Briefing Note  Page 2 of 2 
 

o to co‐ordinate and oversee the enforcement of this Act and the building code within the applicable 
jurisdiction; 

o to exercise powers and perform the other duties assigned to him or her under this Act and the 
building code; and 

o to exercise powers and perform duties in an independent manner and in accordance with the 
standards established by the applicable code of conduct.  2002, c. 9, s. 3; 2017, c. 34, Sched. 2, s. 2 
(2). 

 
In the event the CBO is absent for duty the BOH may appoint a temporary designate in their place as 
per Ontario Building Code Act, 1992, S.O. 1992 c. 23;  

Powers 

3.1 (3) A sewage system inspector appointed under this section in an area of jurisdiction or, if there is 
more than one inspector in the area of jurisdiction, the inspector designated by the board of health, 
planning board or conservation authority has the same powers and duties in relation to sewage systems 
as does the chief building official in respect of buildings.  1997, c. 30, Sched. B, s. 3; 1999, c. 12, Sched. M, 
s. 2 (3). 

Therefore, as written, these roles and powers can be appointed by the Manager of Environmental 
Health to a Temporary Acting CBO (alternate) that possesses the required training and designation.  

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Board of Health revise and approve By – law 06‐02 Assignment Building Code Officer to include: 

 Appointed inspectors, appointed by the Chief Building Official as per section 3.2 (2) of the Ontario 
Building Code (OBC) Act2 ; and  

 The ability of the Manager of Environmental Health to temporarily assign the Chief Building Official 
(CBO) role to an OBC trained inspector with CBO designation to ensure role continuity.  

REFERENCES 

1. Government of Ontario. (2020). Ontario Building Code Act‐ Last Amended.  
 

Page 78 of 158

Page 91 of 298



Algoma Public Health – Policy and Procedure Manual – Board Policies and Bylaws 
 

APPROVED BY: Board of Health BY-LAW #: 06-02 

DATE: Original: Apr 19, 2006 SECTION: Bylaws 
 Revised: Feb 18, 2015   

 Revised: May 23, 2018 SUBJECT: Ontario Building Code Appointments 
 Reviewed: Jun 24, 2020 

Revised: Sep, 2022 
  

 
 

Being a By-law of the Board of Health of Algoma Public Health to appoint a Chief Building Official and 
Inspectors for the purposes of the enforcement of the Ontario Building Code Act respecting sewage systems. 
 

WHEREAS the Building Code Act, S.O. 1992, Chapter 23, provides that a Board of Health appoints a Chief 
Building Official and such Inspectors as are necessary for the purpose of enforcement of the Act; 

 
AND WHEREAS the Board of Health of Algoma Public Health deems it desirable to appoint a Chief 
Building Official and Inspectors for the enforcement of the Building Code Act for the purposes of sewage 
systems, in the jurisdiction of Algoma Public Health; 

 
AND WHEREAS the Building Code Act, S.O. 1992, Chapter 23, Section 7.1. requires the establishment 
and the enforcement of a code of conduct for the Chief Building Officials and Inspectors; 

 
NOW THEREFORE THE BOARD OF HEALTH OF ALGOMA PUBLIC HEALTH HEREBY ENACTS AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 
1. (a)   (The Manager of Environmental Health) shall be appointed as the Chief Building Official 

(CBO)., 
 

(b) In the absence of the CBO, at the manager level, an OBC trained ian Inspector designated by 
the with CBO designation shall be appointed by the Manager of Environmental Health as their 
replacement temporary alternate (Temporary Acting CBO). Any dispute arising during the 
absence of the CBO must can be heard by the Temporary Acting CBO at the earliest return to 
work.. 

 
(c) The CBO or Temporary Acting CBO shall have all the powers and duties as set out in Section 1. 

1(6) of the Act for CBO. 
 

(d) The CBO or Temporary Acting CBO shall meet the qualifications and registration as required in 
Section 3.1.2, Division C, Part 3 of the Ontario Building Code and register annually on the Ministry 
of Housing and Municipal Affairs Quarts website. 

 
2. The Public HealthOBC trained iInspector(s) that meet the qualifications and registration as required 

in Section 3.1.4, Division C, Part 3 of the Ontario Building Code shall be appointed as Inspectors 
for purposes of Part 8 under the Code. 

 
3. The CBO and CBO trained iInspectors shall act in accordance with the policies and 

procedures governing employees at APH including the Code of Conduct. 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PAGE: 1 of 2 BY-LAW #: 06-02 

Page 79 of 158

Page 92 of 298



PAGE: 2 of 2 BY-LAW #: 06-02 
 

READ AND PASSED IN OPEN MEETING THIS 23rd 28th  DAY OF MAY, 2018.SEPTEMBER, 2022. 

I. FrazierS. Hagman, Chair 
 
 
 

S. Saccucci,L. Mason,  1st Vice-Chair 
 
 

Enacted and passed by the Algoma Health Unit Board on this 16th day of April 2006 
Original signed by 
G. Caputo, Chair 
A. Northan, MOH 

 
Revised and passed by the Algoma Public Health Board on this 17th day of March 2010 
Revised and passed by the Algoma Public Health Board on this 18th day of February 2015 
Revised and passed by the Algoma Public Health Board on this 28th day of June 2017 
Revised and passed by the Algoma Public Health Board on this 28th day of September, 2022 

 

Page 80 of 158

Page 93 of 298



 

A healthier future for all. 
101 17th Street East, Owen Sound, Ontario  N4K 0A5           www.publichealthgreybruce.on.ca 

 

519-376-9420 1-800-263-3456 Fax 519-376-0605 
 

 

July 20, 2022 
 
 
Ministry of Children, Community and Social Serives 
Government of Ontario 
438 University Avenue, 7th Floor 
Toronto, ON  M5G 2K8 
 
Dear Honourable Minister:  
 

Re:  Support for a Local Board of Health 
 
On June 24, 2022 at a regular meeting of the Board for the Grey Bruce Health Unit, the Board 
considered the attached letter from Public Health Sudbury & Districts regarding Healthy Babies Health 
Children funding. The following motion was passed: 
 
Motion No:  2022-49 
 
Moved by:  Alan Barfoot  Seconded by:  Luke Charbonneau 
 
“THAT, the Board of Health endorse the correspondence from Sudbury & Districts Public Health 
regarding Healthy Babies Healthy Children Funding.” 

Carried. 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Sue Paterson 
Chair, Board of Health 
Grey Bruce Health Unit 
 
cc: Dr. Kieran Moore, Ontario Chief Medical Officer of Health 
 Honourable Rick Byers, MPP for Bruce-Grey-Owen Sound 
 Honourable Brian Saunderson, MPP for Simcoe-Grey 
 Honourable Lisa Thompson, MPP for Huron-Bruce 
 Warden for Bruce, Warden Janice Jackson 
 Warden for Grey, Warden Selwyn Hicks 

Sanober Diaz, Executive Director of Provincial Council for Maternal and Child Health 
Dr. Jackie Schleifer Taylor, Chair, Governing Council of Provincial Council for Maternal and 
Child Health 

 Loretta Ryan, Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
 Ontario Boards of Health  
 
Encl. 
/mh 

Page 81 of 158

Page 94 of 298



  

 
 
June 21, 2022 
 
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 
 
 
Ministry of Children, Community and Social Services 
Government of Ontario 
438 University Avenue, 7th Floor 
Toronto, ON M5G 2K8 
 
Dear Honourable Minister: 

 
Re:  Healthy Babies Healthy Children Funding 
 
The Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury & Districts remains wholly 
committed to the critical Healthy Babies Healthy Children program, 
however, has longstanding and increasing concerns about the Board’s 
ability to meet clients’ growing needs with current program funding. Please 
be advised that at it’s meeting on June 16, 2022, the Board of Health for 
Public Health Sudbury & Districts carried the following resolution #19-22: 
 

THAT the Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury & Districts 
request the Ministry of Children, Community and Social Services 
(MCCSS) to review base-funding needs for the Healthy Babies 
Healthy Children Program to ensure this essential program is 
sufficiently resourced to meet the current and growing needs of 
children and a healthy start in life. 
 

The Board of Health recognizes that the Healthy Babies Healthy Children 
(HBHC) program provides a critical prevention/early intervention program 
and is designed to ensure that all Ontario families with children (prenatal to 
age six) who are at risk of physical, cognitive, communicative, and/or 
psychosocial problems have access to effective, consistent, early 
intervention services. Since 1997 the province has committed to resourcing 
the Healthy Babies Healthy Children program at 100%. Unfortunately, the 
HBHC budget has not been increased since 2015, resulting in significant 
erosion in capacity due to fixed cost increases such as collective 
agreement commitments and steps on salary grids, travel and 
accommodation costs, and operational and administrative costs.  
 

Page 82 of 158

Page 95 of 298



Letter Re: Healthy Babies Healthy Children Funding 
June 21, 2022 
Page 2 
 
This has been further compounded by the increased intensity of need in our 
communities pre-dating but further exacerbated by the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
The HBHC program has made every effort to mitigate the effects of the funding 
shortfalls over the years and to protect programming. The program, however, is not 
sustainable and significant service reductions will be required without increased to base 
funding.  
 
It remains our priority to ensure that the HBHC program can effectively identify and 
support children and families most in need throughout the Sudbury/Manitoulin District. 
To this effect, we are submitting a revised 2022/23 HBHC program budget based on 
current needs and requesting consideration by the Ministry staff.  
 
The Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury & Districts is respectfully requesting the 
Minister’s commitment to carefully review base-funding needs for the HBHC program to 
ensure this essential program is sufficiently resourced to meet the current and growing 
needs of children and a healthy start in life. 
 
Thank you for your attention to this important public health issue. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Penny Sutcliffe, MD, MHSc, FRCPC 
Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
 
cc: Dr. Kieran Moore, Chief Medical Officer of Health, Ministry of Health 

Loretta Ryan, Executive Director, Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
Ontario Boards of Health  
Dr. Jackie Schleifer Taylor, Chair, Governing Council of Provincial Council for 

Maternal and Child Health 
Sanober Diaz, Executive Director of Provincial Council for Maternal and Child 

Health  
 

 

Page 83 of 158

Page 96 of 298



 PHD 11-2022 
June 14, 2022 

Page 1  
 

 
Subject: A Renewed Call for Paid Sick Leave in Ontario 

Report to: Public Health and Social Services Committee 

Report date: Tuesday, June 14, 2022 
 

Recommendations 

1. That Regional Council RECOMMEND that the Government of Ontario extend the 
currently temporary three paid sick days in the Employment Standards Act, 2000 

(ESA) set to expire July 31, 2022;  
2. That Regional Council RECOMMEND that the Government of Ontario engage in 

consultation with local municipalities, employers, and broader communities 
regarding making permanent the three paid sick days, and increasing the number of 
paid sick days to be in line with recommendations for adequate sick leave policies; 
this consultation should seek to understand the challenges to legislating these sick 
day polices, and identify the supports necessary to enable increasing the number of 
sick days and making them permanent; 

3. That Regional Council RECOMMEND that the Government of Ontario review the 
impacts of the amendments to the Canada Labour Code that provided 10 paid sick 
days for all federal employees across the country; and 

4. That Regional Council DIRECT the Regional Chair to communicate the above 
recommendations to the Premier, relevant Members of provincial Cabinet, Niagara’s 

Members of Provincial Parliament, Niagara’s Members of Parliament, and all Ontario 

Boards of Health.  

Key Facts 

 The purpose of this report is to seek Council’s support for extending beyond July 31, 
2022, the currently temporary paid sick days through the Employment Standards Act  

 Staying home when sick is one of the most effective containment strategies for 
infectious disease, yet a benefit currently more accessible to some workers than 
others.1  

                                            

1 Decent Work & Health Network. Before it’s Too Late: How to close the Paid Sick Day 
Gap During COVID-19 and Beyond. Published August 2020. (Available from: 
https://www.decentworkandhealth.org/beforetoolate) 

Page 84 of 158

Page 97 of 298



 PHD 11-2022 
June 14, 2022 

Page 2  
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
 The gap in access to paid sick days is associated with transmission of infectious 

illnesses at workplaces2 including COVID-19, as many lower paid employees are 
compelled to work while sick and infectious so as to be able to earn the income they 
need to live.  

 In December 2021, Regional Council endorsed the recommendations in Report PHD 
14-2021, expressing support for legislated paid sick days through the Employment 

Standards Act. Similar motions were also passed by Municipalities and Boards of 
Health across Ontario.  

 In December, the Ontario Government extended the temporary three days employer 
paid sick time to expire on July 31, 2022.  

Financial Considerations 

As a corporation, Niagara Region has experienced a total cost of $943,700 (not 
including Payroll Related costs) for time encoded as Paid Infectious Disease 
Emergency Leave for the period of April 19, 2021 to April 18, 2022.  

Analysis 

As stated in Reports PHD 14-2021 and PHD 1-2021, access to employer paid sick 
leave is an important policy measure for the following reasons1: 

 It is one of the most effective containment strategies for infectious disease; 
 Workers without paid sick days are more likely to go to work sick, putting others 

at risk; 
 Parents with paid sick days have been found to be less likely to send sick 

children to school, preventing outbreaks in schools; 
 Workplaces with precarious jobs and lack of paid sick leave have become 

hotspots for COVID-19 infection transmission, and suffered temporary closures 
during outbreaks; 

 Low-wage and racialized workers, who are more likely to be denied paid sick 
days, have faced higher rates of COVID-19 illness. 

                                            

2 Drago R, Miller K. Sick at Work: infected employees in the workplace during H1N1 
pandemic IWPR.org (2010). (Available from: https://iwpr.org/iwpr-general/sick-at-work-
infected-employees-in-the-workplace-during-the-H1N1-pandemic/)  

Page 85 of 158

Page 98 of 298



 PHD 11-2022 
June 14, 2022 

Page 3  
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
The Ontario government’s temporary pandemic-specific paid sick days is set to expire 
July 31, 2022. Since the start of the pandemic there have been many calls on the 
Ontario government to legislate adequate paid sick days. Calls on the government 
include, but are not exclusive to  

 Bill-7 and Bill-8 introduced to the Ontario legislature in 2021; 
 Ontario’s Big City Mayors made up of Mayors from 29 cities across Ontario with 

a population of 100,000 or more; 
 The City of St. Catharines as well as other municipalities across Ontario, 

including both Hamilton and Toronto;  
 The Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa); 
 The Decent Work and Health Network. 

Canada lags behind other nations globally in guaranteeing workers access to adequate 
paid sick days for short-term illness. On December 17, 2021, the federal government 
amended the Canada Labour Code to provide up to 10 days of paid sick leave to all 
federal employees. It was also announced that the federal government will convene the 
provinces and territories in early 2022, to develop a national action plan to legislate paid 
sick leave for all workers across the country. Starting January 1, 2022, British Columbia 
became the first province to expand permanent, employer-paid sick days, with five paid 
sick days for all full-time and part-time workers.  

Paid sick days would form part of a suite of long-term, sustainable changes to our 
society to create a post-pandemic “new normal” where COVID-19 is controlled, ensuring 
the safety of residents and protecting the economy from further disruption from the 
pandemic, as well as lost productivity and absenteeism due to transmission of other 
infections. Moreover, paid sick days would improve health equity, supporting a Healthy 
and Vibrant Community.  

Alternatives Reviewed 

If the temporary paid sick days benefit expires on July 31, 2022, the burden of 
responsibility will fall to an individual to decide between staying home if they are sick, or 
going to work in order to get paid. Evidence indicates this results in spread of infectious 
disease, most pressingly COVID-19, to both customers and co-workers. However, as 
the pandemic continues, there will be substantial economic losses and inequitable 
human impacts due to infectious disease such as influenza, and COVID-19 will continue 
to afflict workplaces further increasing these losses and impacts.  

Page 86 of 158

Page 99 of 298



 PHD 11-2022 
June 14, 2022 

Page 4  
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
Relationship to Council Strategic Priorities 

Paid sick days will help to reduce transmission of COVID-19 and other infectious 
illnesses. Additionally, paid sick days will help to lessen the disproportionate impact 
COVID-19 is having on workers that do not have access to paid sick leave. This healthy 
public policy is linked to Council’s Healthy and Vibrant Community strategic priority, in 

particular, the desire to improve health equity.  

Other Pertinent Reports 

PHD 14-2021 Collaborative Action to Support the Need for Permanent Paid Sick Days 
(https://pub-niagararegion.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=20502) 
 
PHD 01-2021 Collaborative Acton to Prevent COVID-19 Transmission and Improve 
Health Equity by Increasing Access to Paid Sick Days 
(https://pub-niagararegion.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=14323) 

 

________________________________ 
Prepared by: 
Lindsay Garofalo 
Manager  
Chronic Disease and Injury Prevention 
  

_______________________________ 
Recommended by: 
M. Mustafa Hirji, MD, MPH, PCPC 
Medical Officer of Health & 
Commissioner (Acting) 
Public Health and Emergency Services 

________________________________ 
Submitted by: 
Ron Tripp, P.Eng. 
Chief Administrative Officer  

This report was prepared in consultation with Dan Schonewille, Health Promoter, 
Chronic Disease and Injury Prevention and Leanne Mannell, Senior HR Business 
Analyst, Corporate Administration and reviewed by David Lorenzo, Associate Director, 
Chronic Disease and Injury Prevention. 

 

Page 87 of 158

Page 100 of 298

https://pub-niagararegion.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=20502
(https:/pub-niagararegion.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=20502)
https://pub-niagararegion.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=14323
(https:/pub-niagararegion.escribemeetings.com/filestream.ashx?DocumentId=14323)


PHD 13-2022 
July 12, 2022 

Page 1  
 

 

Subject: Impacts of Funding Shortfalls by the Provincial Government on Public 
Health and Emergency Services and Resulting Pressure on the Regional Levy 
for Adequate Service Delivery 

Report to: Public Health & Social Services Committee 

Report date: Tuesday, July 12, 2022 

 

Recommendations 

1. That the Regional Chair BE DIRECTED to write to the Minister of Health, the 
Minister of Children, Youth and Social Services, and the Minister of Finance 
concerning: 
1.1. the growing gap in current provincial funding for Public Health and Emergency 

Medical Services; 
1.2. the need for provincial funding to keep pace with costs, including inflation and 

service changes mandated by the province or in response to changing citizen 
needs; 

1.3. the importance for Public Health and Emergency Medical Services to receive 
stable, predictable funding to prudently budget and plan services; 

1.4. the need for all costs, including necessary indirect allocation expenses, to be 
eligible for reimbursement for 100% provincially-funded programs; and, 

1.5. the necessity for additional opportunities to be made available for Public Health 
to request additional recovery funding in order to ensure preventive health work 
unable to be completed during the COVID-19 pandemic can be completed 
expeditiously before the health of residents suffers further; and 

2. That the Regional Chair’s Correspondence BE CIRCULATED to local Members of 
Provincial Parliament, the Association of Municipalities of Ontario, and Ontario 
Board of Health.  

Key Facts 

 The purpose of this report is to inform Council of the funding challenges currently 
faced by Niagara Region Public Health and Emergency Services (NRPH&ES). 

 Programs that are 100% Provincially funded have not had inflationary adjustments 
for many years.  

Page 88 of 158

Page 101 of 298



PHD 13-2022 
July 12, 2022 

Page 2  
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
 The province makes a number of necessary but “indirect” expenses ineligible for 

reimbursement. These expenses have forced Council to cover these costs through 
the Regional Levy.  

 Over the past five fiscal years, the following 100% Provincially funded programs 
have relied on the Regional Levy to cover shortfalls in funding for inflationary costs 
and indirect allocation expenses: 
o Mental Health: $1,963,156 
o EMS Dispatch: $1,392,790 

 The Healthy Babies Healthy Children and Infant Child Development Service 
programs have continued to reduce positions in order mitigate any reliance on the 
Regional Levy. In 2020, these programs are underfunded by the Province to the 
order of $201,828.  

 With funding increases from the Province below the rate of inflation, NRPH&ES may 
increasingly need to reduce service to residents further, or rely on the Regional Levy 
to ensure 100% Provincially funded programs are able to continue to function. 

 Financial Considerations 

There are no direct costs to Niagara Region associated with the recommendations of 
this report. Successful communication with the Provincial government may lead to 
increased provincial funding and reduced reliance on the Regional Levy. 

Analysis 

On March 21, 2017, PHSSC received MOH 01-2017: Impacts and Mitigating Efforts 

Regarding Freezes of Provincial Funding Envelopes on Public Health. As outlined in 
MOH 01-2017, the Public Health department administers local public health programs 
and services under the Health Protection & Promotion Act, R.S.O. 1990 and the 
attendant regulations and Ontario Public Health Standards. In addition, the department 
administers the Mental Health program and Emergency Medical Services (EMS) 
including EMS dispatch services. 

In Ontario, Public Health is funded through provincial and municipal contributions. Most 
public health programs are cost-shared, though a few are 100% funded by the province. 
In 2019, the Province announced a reduction in the province’s share of funding, 

necessitating that the contribution of municipal governments would increase from 25% 
to 30% in 2020. In addition, several 100%-funded programs were turned into cost-
shared programs, placing a new financial burden on municipal governments.  

Page 89 of 158

Page 102 of 298



PHD 13-2022 
July 12, 2022 

Page 3  
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
This downloading of costs occurred in the context of funding being frozen for Public 
Health in six of the past eight years. Public Health received a 1% increase in base 
budget for 2022, a welcome increase. However, salaries continue to increase through 
collective bargaining and the cost of fuel, materials and supplies continues to increase 
with inflation estimated to be 6.8%1. 

Stable, predictable funding is imperative for the long term successful functioning of any 
organization. This is especially true for Public Health and Emergency Services, where 
the COVID-19 pandemic has added significant pressures through negative impacts on 
the health of the population. Predictable funding year-to-year is necessary to enable 
multi-year planning and thoughtful, prudent budgeting. When funding is announced mid-
year, after Council has already approved the Levy Operating budget, it creates 
avoidable costs and complexities to amend budgets and alter services to account for 
changes in funding. Additionally, moving forward there is catch-up work to be completed 
(e.g. missed grade 7 vaccinations) to ensure the population continues to receive 
necessary health services, and multi-year funding plans from the province would allow a 
careful planning of this work. 

This report focuses on funding shortfalls in Public Health, Mental Health, and 
Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Dispatch programs that receive 100% of their 
funding from the provincial government. Not all expenses are reimbursed by the 
province; notably some indirect allocation expenses including corporate services (e.g. 
human resources, information technology) are not covered by the provincial 
government, requiring subsidization by Region through the Levy.  

The Mental Health program is 100% funded through provincial funds, allocated via 
Ontario Health (OH). OH provides an annual lump sump of $39,500 to cover indirect 
allocations; however, the expenses incurred by the Region greatly exceed this, and the 
Regional levy has needed to cover costs ranging from $340,942 to $462,207 over the 
past five fiscal years. The annual budget submission process to OH has been paused 
over the past three years due to the COVID-19 pandemic, resulting in no further 
increase in the Mental Health budget. This has left the program in deficit. Overall, the 
Regional levy has covered a deficit of $1,963,156 over the past five years. 

                                            

1 Consumer price index portal 
(https://www.statcan.gc.ca/en/subjects-
start/prices_and_price_indexes/consumer_price_indexes) 

Page 90 of 158

Page 103 of 298

https://www.statcan.gc.ca/en/subjects-start/prices_and_price_indexes/consumer_price_indexes


PHD 13-2022 
July 12, 2022 

Page 4  
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
EMS dispatch is funded by the Ministry of Health where indirect allocations related to 
capital financing expenses are not eligible for funding. Other indirect allocations are 
funded for this program. Overall, the program is also underfunded for its operations, 
with a deficit of $1,241,912 over the past five fiscal years and $150,878 of that being 
ineligible expenses for capital financing. Partly, this deficit may reflect a change in 
service demand as there has been a three-fold increase in call volume with no increase 
in funding to increase capacity. This has led to staffing challenges relative to call volume 
and increased costs through additional sick time, WSIB payments, and overtime 
payment for backfill. The current situation is already concerning, and the ability of the 
service to respond to calls may be impacted unless additional funding is available to 
increase the staffing complement in proportion to the call volume. 

Healthy Babies Healthy Children (HBHC) and Infant Child Development Service (ICDS) 
are both Public Health programs funded 100% through the Ministry of Children, Youth 
and Social Services. ICDS has not had a base budget increase to account for inflation 
or population growth since 2001, and in 2010 had its base budget decreased. HBHC 
has not seen a base budget increase since 2008. These two programs have reduced 
staffing costs by $201,828, achieved through gapping from staff layoffs in 2020, to 
mitigate any reliance on the Regional Levy as costs have grown with inflation. The 
staffing reductions have also resulted in a change in service delivery model, partly 
necessitated by the COVID-19 pandemic, with the impacts still to be evaluated.  

Moving forward, as core Public Health work resumes, efforts to catch-up on missed 
programming (e.g. school vaccinations, dental screening) will require additional funds to 
ensure the health needs of the population are met. Requests for additional funding have 
been made to the Ministry of Health; however, they have not been approved. This may 
impact the Regional Levy if further funding is not provided by the Ministry of Health,or 
will require some portion of our residents to lose the benefit of critical health 
interventions (e.g. grade 7 vaccinations).  

Alternatives Reviewed 

A decision could be made not to request further funding from the province. Options to 
ensure a balanced budget without additional provincial funding include: 

1. Use the Regional Levy to cover funding shortfalls. This would put a strain on the 
Levy Operating budget and necessitate an increase in the levy. This is not 
recommended as the provincial government is responsible for adequately funding 

Page 91 of 158

Page 104 of 298



PHD 13-2022 
July 12, 2022 

Page 5  
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
programs it requires the Region to deliver. Such a decision would also be 
inconsistent with Council’s budget guidance.  

2. Reduce costs through staff layoffs and reduced service delivery. This is not 
recommended as Niagara Region Public Health may fail to meet the requirements of 
the Ontario Public Health Standards if this option is chosen. The health of residents 
in the Region will also be negatively impacted by this option through the impacts on 
both Public Health and Emergency Medical Services. 

Relationship to Council Strategic Priorities 

The recommendations from this report reinforce Council’s Strategic Priority to build 
Healthy and Vibrant communities, and support for the community in times of crisis. 
Funding advocacy to the provincial government will ensure that NRPH&ES can 
adequately meet the health needs of the population and continue to provide services of 
the highest level, especially to the most vulnerable in our community.  

Other Pertinent Reports 

MOH 01-2017 Impacts and Mitigating Efforts Regarding Freezes of Provincial Funding 
Envelopes on Public Health 

PHD-C 3-2022 Ministry of Health Funding Adjustments

________________________________ 
Prepared by: 
Dr. Azim Kasmani, MD, FRCPC 
Associate Medical Officer of Health 
Public Health and Emergency Services 

_______________________________ 
Recommended by: 
M.M. Hirji, MD, MPH, FRCPC  
Medical Officer of Health & 
Commissioner (Acting) 
Public Health and Emergency Services

________________________________ 
Submitted by: 
Ron Tripp, P.Eng. 
Chief Administrative Officer  

This report was prepared in consultation with Michael Leckey and Amanda Fyfe, 
Program Financial Specialists. 

Page 92 of 158

Page 105 of 298



 www.algomapublichealth.com 

Blind River 
P.O. Box 194 
9B Lawton Street 
Blind River, ON  P0R 1B0 
Tel: 705-356-2551 
TF:  1 (888) 356-2551 
Fax: 705-356-2494 

Elliot Lake 
ELNOS Building 
302-31 Nova Scotia Walk
Elliot Lake, ON  P5A 1Y9
Tel: 705-848-2314
TF: 1 (877) 748-2314
Fax: 705-848-1911

Sault Ste. Marie 
294 Willow Avenue 
Sault Ste. Marie, ON  P6B 0A9 
Tel: 705-942-4646 
TF: 1 (866) 892-0172 
Fax:  705-759-1534 

Wawa 
18 Ganley Street 
Wawa, ON  P0S 1K0 
Tel: 705-856-7208 
TF: 1 (888) 211-8074 
Fax: 705-856-1752 

July 28, 2022 

Via Email 

Sylvia Jones 
Deputy Premier and Minister of Health 
College Park, 5th Floor 
777 Bay Street Toronto, ON M7A 2J3 

Dear Minister: 

Please accept my congratulations on behalf of the Board of Health for Algoma Public Health on your 
appointment as Minister of Health for the province of Ontario. Thank you also for your tireless work, in 
collaboration with your predecessor, former Minister Elliott, in supporting local Public Health throughout the 
pandemic. 

The Board of Health looks forward to your leadership in ensuring all Ontarians have equal opportunities for 
health. We are keen to engage in ongoing collaboration with the provincial government and municipal 
governments to support policy development that will have positive health and health equity outcomes. 

While we face some unique public health challenges in Northern Ontario, we also have very strong community 
and academic engagement and are optimistic about health in the north. 

Again, on behalf of the Board of Health, I wish you success in this important role, and we look forward to 
supporting you in your mandate. 

Sincerely, 

Sally Hagman 
Chair, Board of Health, District of Algoma Health Unit

cc: Dr. K. Moore, Chief Medical Officer of Health Northern Boards of Health
          Dr. J. Tuinema, Acting Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 

Page 93 of 158

Page 106 of 298



 

A healthier future for all. 
101 17th Street East, Owen Sound, Ontario  N4K 0A5           www.publichealthgreybruce.on.ca 

 

519-376-9420 1-800-263-3456 Fax 519-376-0605 
 

 

September 7, 2022 
 
 
The Honourable Sylvia Jones   The Honourable Monte McNaughton 
Deputy Premier and Minister of Health  Minister of Labour, Immigration, Training 
Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care  and Skills Development 
777 Bay Street, 5th Floor    777 Bay Street, 5th Floor 
Toronto, ON  M7A 2J3    Toronto, ON  M7A 2J3 
 
Dear Ministers Jones and McNaughton:  
 

Re:  Support for a Local Board of Health 
 
On August 26, 2022 at a regular meeting of the Board for the Grey Bruce Health Unit, the Board 
considered the attached letter from the Board of Health for Niagara Region on the matter of employer-
paid sick days in Ontario. The following motion was passed: 
 
Motion No:  2022-65 
 
Moved by:  Alan Barfoot  Seconded by:  Brian O’Leary 
 

“THAT, the Board of Health endorse the correspondence from the Board of Health for 
Niagara Region on the Matter of Employer-Paid Sick Days in Ontario.” 

Carried. 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Sue Paterson 
Chair, Board of Health 
Grey Bruce Health Unit 
 
cc: Dr. Kieran Moore, Ontario Chief Medical Officer of Health 
 Honourable Rick Byers, MPP for Bruce-Grey-Owen Sound 
 Honourable Brian Saunderson, MPP for Simcoe-Grey 
 Honourable Lisa Thompson, MPP for Huron-Bruce 
 Warden for Bruce, Warden Janice Jackson 
 Warden for Grey, Warden Selwyn Hicks 
 Loretta Ryan, Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
 Ontario Boards of Health  
 
Encl. 
/mh 

Page 94 of 158

Page 107 of 298



Page 95 of 158

Page 108 of 298



Page 96 of 158

Page 109 of 298



Page 97 of 158

Page 110 of 298



Page 98 of 158

Page 111 of 298



Page 99 of 158

Page 112 of 298



Page 100 of 158

Page 113 of 298



  

 
 
September 22, 2022 
 
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 
 
The Honourable Doug Ford 
Premier of Ontario 
Legislative Building 
Queen's Park 
Toronto ON M7A 1A1 
 
Dear Premier Ford: 
 
Re: Saving Lives Through Lifejacket and Personal Flotation Device Legislation 
 
At its meeting on September 15, 2022, the Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury 
& Districts carried the following resolution # 25-22: 
 

WHEREAS over the 10-year period 2012 – 2021, 2147 Ontarians had 
emergency visits that resulted from a drowning or submersion injury 
related to watercraft and 208 Ontarians died because of a drowning 
or submersion injury related to watercraft over the last 10 years of 
complete data (2006-2015); locally during the same periods 65 
Sudbury & districts residents had emergency visits that resulted from 
a drowning or submersion injury related to watercraft and 8 died 
because of a drowning or submersion injury related to watercraft; 
and 
 
WHEREAS the Ontario Public Health Standards require boards of 
health to be aware of and use data to influence and inform the 
development of local healthy public policy for preventing injuries; 
and 
 
WHEREAS although there is federal legislation requiring that 
lifejackets or personal flotation devices (PFD) be on board vessels, 
there is no legislation requiring that individuals wear a lifejacket or 
PFD while on a pleasure boat; and 
 
WHEREAS legislation requiring the wearing of lifejackets and PFDs 
has been demonstrated in other jurisdictions to save lives; 

 

Page 101 of 158

Page 114 of 298



Letter to Premier of Ontario 
Re: Saving Lives Through Lifejacket and Personal Flotation Device Legislation 
September 22, 2022 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury & 
Districts strongly advocate for legislation requiring all individuals to wear a 
personal flotation device (PFD) or lifejacket while on a pleasure boat that is 
underway, or while being towed behind a pleasure boat using recreational water 
equipment; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT a copy of this motion be submitted to the Premier of Ontario, 
the Minister of Health, Minister of Transportation, local members of Provincial 
Parliament, the Chief Medical Officer of Health, the Association of Local Public 
Health Agencies (alPHa), and all Ontario Boards of Health. 
 

The Board of Health is pleased to lend its voice to the many others who are calling for this 
common sense solution to saving lives. We would respectfully request the Government of 
Ontario to enact legislation requiring all individuals to wear a personal flotation device 
(PFD) or lifejacket while on a pleasure boat that is underway, or while being towed behind a 
pleasure boat using recreational water equipment. 
 
Thank you for your attention on this important issue. 
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
 
René Lapierre. Chair  
Board of Health 
 
cc: All Ontario Boards of Health 

Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
 Honourable C. Mulroney, Minister of Transportation 
 Honourable S. Jones, Minister of Health  
 Jamie West, Member of Provincial Parliament, Sudbury 
 France Gélinas, Member of Provincial Parliament, Nickel Belt 
 Michael Mantha, Member of Provincial Parliament, Algoma-Manitoulin 
 Viviane Lapointe, Member of Parliament, Sudbury 
 Marc Serré, Member of Parliament, Nickel Belt 
 Carol Hugues, Member of Parliament, Algoma-Manitoulin-Kapuskasing 
 

Page 102 of 158

Page 115 of 298



From: allhealthunits on behalf of Loretta Ryan
To: "All Health Units"
Cc: board@lists.alphaweb.org
Subject: [allhealthunits] News Release: COVID-19 Vaccine Bookings to Open For Children Aged Six Months to Under Five

Years
Date: Thursday, July 21, 2022 10:42:36 AM

This email originated outside of Algoma Public Health. Do not open attachments or click links
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hello,
 
Please see below a news release:
 
Take Care,
 
Loretta
____________________________________________
Loretta Ryan, CAE, RPP
Executive Director
Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa)
480 University Avenue, Suite 300
Toronto, ON  M5G 1V2
Tel: 416-595-0006 ext. 222
Cell: 647-325-9594
loretta@alphaweb.org
www.alphaweb.org
 

 

From: Ontario News <newsroom@ontario.ca> 
Sent: July 21, 2022 10:33 AM
To: Loretta Ryan <loretta@alphaweb.org>
Subject: COVID-19 Vaccine Bookings to Open For Children Aged Six Months to Under Five Years
 

Ontario Logo

  

NEWS RELEASE

COVID-19 Vaccine Bookings to Open For
Children Aged Six Months to Under Five

Page 103 of 158

Page 116 of 298

mailto:allhealthunits-bounces@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org
mailto:AllHealthUnits@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:board@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org
http://www.alphaweb.org/
http://www.alphaweb.org/


Years

COVID-19 Paid Sick Days Extended to March 31,
2023

July 21, 2022
Ministry of Health

 

TORONTO — As of 8:00 a.m. on Thursday, July 28, 2022, parents and
caregivers of children aged six months to under five years will be able to
book appointments for the paediatric COVID-19 vaccine.
Immunocompromised youth aged 12 to 17 will also become eligible to
schedule their second booster dose (fifth dose) if at least six months
have passed since their first booster (fourth dose).

“The approval of a lower dose paediatric Moderna vaccine will give
families the opportunity to provide an additional layer of protection
against COVID-19 for the youngest members of their families,” said
Sylvia Jones, Deputy Premier and Minister of Health. “Getting vaccinated
remains the best defence against COVID-19 and I encourage parents
with questions to reach out to their health care provider, the Provincial
Vaccine Contact Centre or the SickKids COVID-19 Vaccine Consult
Service to make an informed choice for their family.”

Over the next several days, paediatric vaccines are being distributed
across the province and will be available through public health unit
clinics, as well as participating paediatricians, primary care providers and
pharmacies. Starting July 28, appointments will be available through the
COVID-19 vaccination portal and the Provincial Vaccine Contact Centre,
directly through public health units using their own booking system,
participating primary care providers and paediatricians, as well as at
participating pharmacies and Indigenous-led vaccination clinics.

Parents and caregivers with questions are encouraged to speak with
their health care provider or call the Provincial Vaccine Contact Centre at
1-833-943-3900 to speak to a health specialist or visit COVID-19 Vaccine
Consult Service to book a confidential phone appointment with a
SickKids Registered Nurse.

“We know that COVID-19 vaccines are safe and have helped lower the
rate of infection in our communities throughout the pandemic,” said Dr.
Kieran Moore, Chief Medical Officer of Health. “Although most children
who get infected have no symptoms or mild symptoms, some can
become very sick and require hospitalization. The vaccine offered to
children aged six months to under five years is a lower dose that is safe
and effective at protecting this age group from COVID-19. Even if a child
has already had COVID-19, vaccination will help to further improve the

Page 104 of 158

Page 117 of 298

https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryeDJe5ixZPtjiuF6ez553Y5YMW22veVphLpbY106lnvtHIes-2Blq09DmqVCgfNa8wq-2BcUO5EVMBPkBSuEhfYlwHrCYebkL7uMxjTtEdWHC7csdxItw8OYC4MukKQFbz55Z0RyQ5EsyZE70BdCRMRfZZsaoGXi-2F1SL0py9dVS3uYlo5LB9uBQC72hkBVHHmIlKfm8QeIPTKb2HJblr2R1KOWG0ZiEvyjLRlR0EQbgpXTJbIesoyp-2F0txuNKLU6mA1QDPU6VsyPbU8juBB3wPqNuHE-3D5d72_5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUos-2Fdo9ZSNYlb10VuzkoDjO50jJ7j2tHFcQwT8lhargR0IGJLISXrgW5RfdVkDKNxHeENBor8f6d9-2BNkUx6X5rv154RJOxIYbOMQu5v5d3vIYcGmvtBB48OYmsmsOOcAXd6Qi7FkNdgebl3qHeZpJ8ayVu-2FH7lPBh6XW-2Fi5ciuZ5yw-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryRcwuUDnhx7SLvd3DFVycXNt6QFArYZF7gVphmHpzJzqjZqk5XRBoN5PESWcTkjFaQFJ3FfRB2UI3IKL9cqsTMz6VC7jmdXNqFa9nS176mIoi48Z2KIhqFx4FzPSYh4R-2BM2an4VhE7vUTfuTvNHW4AXtV5jUM-2BF0oKp0IKLeFPaRjF20seFoIw5oIL5nKMjtY7o6T-2BHySNOk-2B9GpVNHvxWk6eCJP3L7cpR-2F-2BQ1LuaEqdpxKUDsvLMRlCa-2B-2F255-2BBsMgvn-2BGPKPl-2BGPbnZNbNy4jS-2BFYaEKz07NJ1C7LDGj3oYb6Hy3unNe8CrpX8alUgtilwxgtt4pGrXokT5lsZ0pMjNhlv39WkUKhd9yjyjWgV0CtlK-2BLG0QPU5-2BkAc13YKav5IC1F4QtZtmlEWeDerzA-3D-1mY_5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUosqWKas-2BJAClkYGdl-2F-2BU61qUc-2B7qsHdNuMGpo-2FBBCi-2FCooW-2F-2FwWPj8zSR4zbjCasWkwI18aM4ESO3xInZK4KfUE2WVSwXEWFvupeqUbdEfdLu9jV7a7QbdKZX4aPxCSW975cQIHmvqt9bj7q6IBuvdiCtYfUPCWklEHvJV7-2Fi2d4c-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryRcwuUDnhx7SLvd3DFVycXMn-2FJjgkVrm-2FxcbbFi3xrhKXt0Oj4AAle5agEQyr7-2F-2FpvmaPelIgW1hkMul11cbo9ycpP-2FTbIR3u8UXxBJA7-2BGOMpCMfLzML5jHIhsx-2Bc0s45E-2FTy3CuCsTKdC-2BXryx-2Bd7b-2B1RyYMV-2FQJokn21N5kC3fVsqQ8iM-2FIN90OTM3KxHOCI6yvvSSx6Ru9twEb9vLajvTjbxkXODvS-2BqegpA12r0fFCrKLyEWl9q0h0j8kEAyJ4Up6IubmccQ8-2BtzRwO0vYCAzsk0oEQfB4iCGo3SioAe0L__5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUosh3tmKXHJlxRQQyGhL-2FJSGsU8-2FwbY-2BWkRMpmrISmTqAy-2Bs46i7Pq2o5lAf2EJ5ue4hhDXUSwRRud83nf-2FPE51eqaMMK-2BWIEcpxnHG-2FoEFHtTpss8FDkUvcc0eJpX56rytCzmjwtPDblMyWRA-2Fj1JIJKrNixrFXlayE83-2FtT7UJ0g-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryRfuGY3Lpbd27-2BChODaebe1j51wdD-2B-2BnzSiUbjSL9MydfQzgjsBrBEqhWVAdFbs6zFKS6grt1ZlHOVSkewio7gAryBUQ08au9OcvGOPRE26gPnzMu3mHLt6x0SBivayXKSxHQM4Le-2Bxlals7TbxuPDpsd-2BLgDg5ag-2BNWrI34lbOMQ7pT9Y5nCixtcnTqnkMuRo9FP-2FnrCxiADSnmHbzH4sgV0PrF7dcyFMntaFAxROVCpyccxJ-2FCIXg5FhPObW9sxcefTjB-2BpWEgYY152dvrn-2BV4bgW3pVpMS4FMt-2FZgVwnzinOi_5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUosFBas3pGMkgoU-2BhfBol1463lsKOHcht6OKcU3FC-2BP5PHxlfxf5FFFgEHEo5ZbuqiEKuj9MsKqkY3b8iY0m5a7NhNrn9wuMrDV2-2FL0ODQIg-2BQ62TEGlSSAgkpfZ8ny-2BtjCMsgAC0fLdiL6S12hFh6p8-2BwjbcZY9QQn-2BkhIQlQLg3E-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryRcwuUDnhx7SLvd3DFVycXMdWMn5caaw5CEKlZek39-2BzsTVTij3Z3J4pQDDSO8Aw9oaiMDQ3btNlCFizaFc7jSoSWr5eu-2Fvj4QFAAAEL5YPbB2MTCBFf8-2Fw-2BU-2FQoVGWj29AasxRcXDzIP-2FrLFYUGEsROt72GxzRBnFId1AxYXO6It8TCyo43kEXRXb223un-2BeO8xyqJwg3QTqYWHs6z-2BkfJndY8Cq4mgmg3eWFG1za4OaecYxmA-2BgjpJQ3pZr4zJPVrajOS7O8NDmHTKID7pGsNOaL56zT0hGHjUUYV7t1qpfg0r_5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUosBLR4OgQlRInZp28OzsGQvgdTwEEf1paPALjr-2Brv-2BEL30UZNewonf4wDlbW4ACfx-2F337jxxJSZtzAUt0jjgCcpfFuyHHdKfgxKqFQPcM9nKjjl1pdTPhT-2B58Tg7zTx5aZL8qW2L8mmjGh2WwaKZG-2FAo1xmhn7gbECQOx01Em1-2BzI-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryR0soUHgfza1zWl3S6U1n3fQNqMBHY1BjEEYX1vcG62bMLUVszrwGZtajRpIRv557cgHYT4pIC94iRe35KLrU94eRVyRYGnLDldoGabmiDva6uH0gAol-2FWcIU7Mhls-2Fkn7GE199OUjlFpbHE-2BPHtrkMtfvPDbfjSfwiN9zj-2FqdgKoBkS4frI7IcP0I9ZYVP9e4eqvwEABUa65kWD0uEw8i2o9HgmoEKNNOwOxYzgGBHJzzThT-2FHkNQQoCwJrCgPx-2BRdewXe6v8vGO510jGZU9ELSI4B0LZt1ZILlRDrJvPb3qVlI_5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUoshyWo0cNNLSLvbuUY9vlCPWmtJ67b6gojnUe9YqxWeSGOwPchDD70c12U7rDJxxQDd9-2FvQlCzrIqAl-2FE1mjW8T8tnlnfGZjJdUgjcVZ8Cb0opaBGq6HHWpifC-2FZM4KYg7y1traUaGPyo34IviqBYPgTnfPHrA1HYZ5YrB1tie69w-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryR0soUHgfza1zWl3S6U1n3fQNqMBHY1BjEEYX1vcG62bMLUVszrwGZtajRpIRv557cgHYT4pIC94iRe35KLrU94eRVyRYGnLDldoGabmiDva6uH0gAol-2FWcIU7Mhls-2Fkn7GE199OUjlFpbHE-2BPHtrkMtfvPDbfjSfwiN9zj-2FqdgKoBkS4frI7IcP0I9ZYVP9e4eqvwEABUa65kWD0uEw8i2o9HgmoEKNNOwOxYzgGBHJzzThT-2FHkNQQoCwJrCgPx-2BRdewXe6v8vGO510jGZU9ELSI4B0LZt1ZILlRDrJvPb3qVlI_5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUoshyWo0cNNLSLvbuUY9vlCPWmtJ67b6gojnUe9YqxWeSGOwPchDD70c12U7rDJxxQDd9-2FvQlCzrIqAl-2FE1mjW8T8tnlnfGZjJdUgjcVZ8Cb0opaBGq6HHWpifC-2FZM4KYg7y1traUaGPyo34IviqBYPgTnfPHrA1HYZ5YrB1tie69w-3D


immune response and provide more robust protection. I encourage every
parent and caregiver to consider getting their younger children
vaccinated and protected, especially if they are immunocompromised or
have other serious medical conditions.”

The Ontario government is also ensuring workers do not lose pay if they
miss work due to COVID-19 by extending paid sick days to March 31,
2023.

Eligible workers will continue to receive up to $200 a day for up to three
days if they need to get tested, vaccinated, receive booster shots, self-
isolate, or care for a family member who is ill from COVID-19. The
government will continue to reimburse eligible employers for the paid
leave days.

 

Quick Facts
Children aged six months to under five years old will receive the
paediatric Moderna COVID-19 vaccine which is a slightly modified,
lower dose (half the amount given to children aged six to 11), in a
two-dose series at a recommended interval of eight weeks between
first and second doses.
Parents or caregivers of children aged six months to under five
years will have to provide consent on behalf of the child before or at
the time of the appointment. To receive a vaccine, children must
already be at least six months old.
As of July 19, 2022, Ontario has administered more than 33 million
doses of the COVID-19 vaccine, with more than 93 per cent of
Ontarians aged 12 and over having received at least one dose,
more than 91 per cent having received a second dose and more
than 57 per cent having received a booster.
Certain immunocompromised Ontarians are eligible for a three
dose primary vaccination series and a first booster (fourth dose).
Starting on July 28, immunocompromised individuals aged 12 to 17
will become eligible for their second booster (fifth dose) at a
recommended interval of six months since their first booster (fourth
dose). Immunocompromised individuals aged 18 and older are
already eligible to receive their second booster dose (fifth dose).
If you have questions about vaccine eligibility, please contact the
Provincial Vaccine Contact Centre at 1-833-943-3900 (TTY for
people who are deaf, hearing-impaired or speech-impaired: 1-866-
797-0007), which is open seven days a week from 8 a.m. to 8 p.m.
and capable of providing assistance in more than 300 languages.

 

Page 105 of 158

Page 118 of 298

https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryc2mUCiFqnGLmeDn6zcvaZYWy-2F7jg01QqA4qe4qdGUARdxa7tyUYipURo4MyAtLDIK5eo5jLJnSXstzC-2FSY3fWy5mvuNn6YR13v7CtZjHdDjT9zsvI6dL5vwRFOW3UCvwaPvOp5v3rky2M0rVCLrLo21EkrMjDpcsH-2FFLXf4eeXwg-2F5EWbX7m85uYKOsdzVo-2BfqA2Ud-2FfgNexoSX5vde47EQxFUVEJDTjFDZNpdtUb-2BLTgZucSd2KZNRcLTOLHe9TNUjh5YfIVvCHmc-2BbNT9tKCHF-2Bcq-2B-2FdgtPFRT5B9pOBg9CskjkvS4K3cOE9ph2HFfA-3D-3D0L09_5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUos6H6FXWVOqPCeULP-2FQxpcEAAeQw1QNe0hoAohHlYca-2FGU5oq7UMgANR-2Bs7YWxwWUr2t3ekxWt5pFJn4C0iUQp6qbU-2F7JK0hHvsSK1IbXWkya-2FpdWqqSniiFVIHL-2F3qtokEjXLOMEeqRqMdTAJmBZQ-2BnPHNLCsp62effORg5D-2BRjE-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryULOzom5jAM8cwe1pFUfCb7Fshr6CXNUcthwhQUZ-2BayBUEun3rjvPaZjO-2Btlx1B5V6p0JQwhTofpeG3ElfLqphcinPHRq9dXpndJ9Jvyu-2B-2FUT4xuJtTp4kg5INJNOowylad05-2BsPJ8z10pWtlsv1sUtL1Kmquv1-2Bh5rI70hn9PV6gntNpk9eZnibC0EWyT9vEA5hd-2F6JFGc3IJTUSd60li9jAwKqTcge5usxpMD2J4vI1MetK-2BrHCaHPJMtsGg1tHnQoqS5JQ9exv7HCsWvEj4pgU7nm5rum02LkKJHiqjghna99Fo1Z0lKHd0-2B9Ax0O6zZ-2FVRaw9YANglJgbvfXDNg6NnWrU8INhssmPuvmfqIMwALilwllQmTOisOBDgdJS54qEAAKtTqrMlgu50CRHRR-2BG8OE-2BpeEo-2BL-2Byrtp4q3Guw50faWtSgn33IxSL3a3Xw-3D-3D0qui_5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUosxzPn-2Bz4YnD-2BwMeW5SdA7nQiHgwnibQUQJWwzRJ8XLgLOre1JxVSYz0wIiE8-2BbqvLnsQiU7l0tboH3pgfyVUwjgPYZ6wmOH-2BdIDGwtlkQRWNUHmkqKCWdQvjMgG5Yv8Md3iceOI2ppPzPMJy-2BLolgbZtCOgY4-2FLIeio9-2Fev4IRlg-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryRcwuUDnhx7SLvd3DFVycXNt6QFArYZF7gVphmHpzJzqjZqk5XRBoN5PESWcTkjFaZaECG1CViSGcfaA2LjWb34xRv-2FA20G0vLQd04WD6R0jeGJlhr-2BRqlYYeD5MeUDu0cE9vSRKoLgK7GTwEeky9qwzIgKuUDzz8lxLNKkD2g95e4o-2BzpzaClOKPeQ2v4DAq0RjzkeUoExne3YP9smqdcZtjxJTvzFKNGk2x-2ByoI7O1c1-2BuO1TrCmE2Wqxd5WcqU-2FLsTANyH6HWbJtDOV7OWkbmQ8V4LLzZw2AmaDDAQPNM-2Bp2Bi5hnfXcUfdh32dzb0HHkk-2BOUAghbulPxa-2BxiOsQ-2FN-2BFpd5oipeaIVYMnT-2Fk4ompB61pmHcH9UWzw9Mcj94poEBDtW47eGPAZyGNFFKI-3DKsLE_5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUosg6qSgtappwAxICG-2FNsnAqP4r-2FIu8ICBhHH1QzDfM1uqGwDokudczmabi9qdZHyyD9bi35QBjWv-2FdYZ5gsVI-2FFPN-2B4alpy5ywuR1QuFty8kCe2ZRk6EXcKEMvkPMwckCDWIEOjShyznKDpgTboXci1iqlEuuQrizyNwIMaDcWYcw-3D


Additional Resources
Ontarians Aged 18+ Eligible for Second Booster Shot
COVID-19 vaccines for children and youth
Staying Up to Date with COVID-19 Vaccines: Recommended
Doses
Visit COVID-19 Vaccine Consult Service to book a confidential
phone appointment with a SickKids Registered Nurse
Ontario COVID-19 Worker Income Protection Benefit
For resources in multiple languages to help local communication
efforts in responding to COVID-19, visit Ontario’s COVID-19
communication resources webpage.
Visit Ontario’s website to learn more about how the province
continues to protect the people of Ontario from COVID-19.

 

Media Contacts
Stephen Warner
Minister Jones’ Office
Stephen.Warner@ontario.ca

Anna Miller
Communications Division
media.moh@ontario.ca
416-314-6197

 
We have recently updated Ontario Newsroom Subscription. You may receive additional emails. If
you would like to update your subscription preferences or unsubscribe, click the 'manage your
subscriptions' or 'unsubscribe' links down below.

 

Visit the Newsroom
Manage your subscriptions

Unsubscribe

Page 106 of 158

Page 119 of 298

https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryeDJe5ixZPtjiuF6ez553Y6ChBmTH1sCuETWv4BCR4jpXFiwyL8w-2F8gRL1mZiza7-2BjHFFJGHocW0sx25O1c7hWv8b3qEiOtLFxbj3tAcvH00YwJ5zYesMylAZc1u5G15iJZjHC0S0ZLVYFGSIdtj-2BpsUgqWCjZU5Z1dehlL2sjwn0AVW3eVBHc5thVFyJRJoKJbKyCtGrnMN4I47n1AJXWRsAMEchmU0JqJctWUZnCaIblFDNZi46NVc2fGVo6EbyCH3-2F23z54UC6G6nzwjOKvlM2S3M7TsxDo4EfNftntOORIEEEnIoU25usmqAKWRstoM3L2VJ0cvv5QJyMjejnJmwBgIPDUff6VDyxK0ZUeY0x9pk_5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUosh4BbJ4-2FfyTK7giN-2FaS0rixP8asyom67lkN9onH6A0m6Ixn0wqjQRtNl6UIGiSE0vpg9EfQV1L9rA-2FFGG091yBmNwKOFc5l5zWdOZYS0HzOqbbwPg4fKjWsbj0mdDIESrUSqEt71pK46Kw-2FRIOlbIO9UeR6QK8GXVZEIeAarM2ws-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryRcwuUDnhx7SLvd3DFVycXNpCkpBbJ-2F8bymaIp9RO0GUAKOvnnpOIplBfpUrMUyYt83sx-2FOGwKa-2FGhEDA8a2gJGCcnDCw4PJJ5qRSie9jUrvcMa6KtKdYf8RnOKBkzaPnsdlz4p7aFOCFUpUVK7MfN4PO8135jNTE3bAaRaODu5zSc0ZIkVgCWxYbPnYjZnN58ZgPa-2Fyep1OuXd72ozBzhbkfY-2BxMURzvyMVPSKO8MWUa9V9fRjmtj2HMkaND3MYCPL-2FvSvuSXWc-2BN-2FflGBvZGkqDcJozDgK0nLNskajLQdziCL7Ol65CW1G5dO2qz3Ajw-3D-3DjoUU_5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUosULPF-2FHXnpU4QoONfAoXXg2QG4YEGNWzUNQuHT98ADUrwuwtbkYE2QaxS3-2BM9OhmNLeCd6bMl9ejwBOCSJyShV4n9EnboNcQq-2BUOqINrIdmjWIkKKrjQC1eLE4sHkEaE-2FF3BK9lO3IiBFQM5koYPNPFZFZTqbNSp1yHXKNbs74VE-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryZ5n4Dw8LQRJE-2BZLBuInRSPi9RLvNNCNVUrxsA6syPZiKwrlva-2BrAfNJDuxzCtafduCGGC9g-2FKh4bNOJT7l69fatJm3DgELBimtX1OOR9ZDmu81DsFStUWbZXVB-2BvvLnyWDeVdaTMyF-2Bnw-2FXUroqFaueuksGbK9mM-2FRWVef1ErA6yqd8kT7qpVAPDFb6yrXl2Xfc1h2vEOcwFIemxz4MzLl3uLjEZiF8qgYHdKIgvB6RytVOUT4ZkaR0VS4TEc92V39-2F1NfyvD7kIesxiCDX4XDfMj7wm6SXLb757QIQit-2Fttxt1JfAA8G0TnxE-2BrIpOCNkLRcjborNcHvOx4QfTxiw36Kpd7o-2Bj1tt-2BI-2BknOIx6znYpB22XpzvLgWWU-2Flgr7Q-3D-3Dovya_5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUosN5NmZxB5k7xVqssinHfaECQZQXt33H9eiqgkMFDxu3G8g-2FJiJyMEKvUfE3GQe-2FE3IHu6nmNNI82StMrcP4eFWEVbU3dVpLUQ0R9YNBjMwQr3jX-2FPTx-2FYKMr6Ul229FohLM-2B4svzxWNWW8z0bQaC8zRINM-2FgBSzmRkRbynFsolYg-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryZ5n4Dw8LQRJE-2BZLBuInRSPi9RLvNNCNVUrxsA6syPZiKwrlva-2BrAfNJDuxzCtafduCGGC9g-2FKh4bNOJT7l69fatJm3DgELBimtX1OOR9ZDmu81DsFStUWbZXVB-2BvvLnyWDeVdaTMyF-2Bnw-2FXUroqFaueuksGbK9mM-2FRWVef1ErA6yqd8kT7qpVAPDFb6yrXl2Xfc1h2vEOcwFIemxz4MzLl3uLjEZiF8qgYHdKIgvB6RytVOUT4ZkaR0VS4TEc92V39-2F1NfyvD7kIesxiCDX4XDfMj7wm6SXLb757QIQit-2Fttxt1JfAA8G0TnxE-2BrIpOCNkLRcjborNcHvOx4QfTxiw36Kpd7o-2Bj1tt-2BI-2BknOIx6znYpB22XpzvLgWWU-2Flgr7Q-3D-3Dovya_5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUosN5NmZxB5k7xVqssinHfaECQZQXt33H9eiqgkMFDxu3G8g-2FJiJyMEKvUfE3GQe-2FE3IHu6nmNNI82StMrcP4eFWEVbU3dVpLUQ0R9YNBjMwQr3jX-2FPTx-2FYKMr6Ul229FohLM-2B4svzxWNWW8z0bQaC8zRINM-2FgBSzmRkRbynFsolYg-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryR0soUHgfza1zWl3S6U1n3fQNqMBHY1BjEEYX1vcG62bvp8daIVyv2Q1hLhWd97Eraj7PgYlMQeJn1d-2FH-2BXMaLbHLcciwnDRKMov5o-2BI2VliAlwlbkEdYZPccPhXZlcdLMPkiJ2gRthaR5mh1U4wZNyRqLQJ0zMfeU995jmVrBCdD2tDMt1uErxykwkjq1Xr9WPPl5Clbwdwi0EdWKlgUc-2B2m3qZzvRR08isJ4GvDLsQsxIVLswe4yj8V-2F1tvgOSfZRpRAUt9k1MerLU3DGmECkCXvI0bDtd3xAGoxsYU9sLX90Q_5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUoszopUtV-2Fyz4HFZxEdQPznpsuqN1Oi5betRra4tiIBkkRsNu1IKE-2BSvInxwKwa-2F6ERxjSMjObU-2FtlBZtJl1m45EoI8zr8joKdNc-2Fp2FADtl-2B4XsnSKVoOyEIe9W85KxSHaqgnZPH9XFwZXOwtO2APA-2BbeHYe2en07suALmDqjhPfc-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryc2mUCiFqnGLmeDn6zcvaZYWy-2F7jg01QqA4qe4qdGUARdxa7tyUYipURo4MyAtLDIK5eo5jLJnSXstzC-2FSY3fWxiF0Rl-2F6b3KF9pK5ekh514EWVgsYuEcCE-2B3nYhj1zrBz2SR8Ipw4lPtZT6ZSEofxfSP0KHm7rNLrjMir6IrICqCxx1bWgN0hVn-2F6n0oyUysybWsWKPzPfoJJ7dz8rJtHoFYbyzaTfMLzw9M22pb6wfb3vaqfkiD9aCZnrj06tIkHnSWEZuRAtmr1JI-2BuZvRo8Miub9ICjGcd1tFzAIOi4DRpxGTwvdTmQuRx2lCy0xew-3D-3DvGDZ_5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUosCYM2RRBiCgQrU5I4bNFKGFMiI2uQvPXuiLCPAbhVNqiBXNwnW5bkCS6jF2VfDsc8sp8bQSlfJrWGIyAw2DyS7W-2Bws9Um1XdQyUTRJe1i8qvBZwTynDj6b4OLZtIpe63RkhxhdxtnFeaNMiXwQ9GTtz2H4gNgGOneWL2rE1mbe-2FU-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryc2mUCiFqnGLmeDn6zcvaZb5CxmGKiNyhoBknGKZtRORgzMwuP8cwIZbyFpmFVENLdT0Vyn-2BGts8kfbps7I93F1CChU-2BbmaPrzET9E-2FCySMwVJ7ObZEOokJg3Lxu-2BKig-2Ben7PpqMVWoFJNuQqlbjOjOrfofPTx5iXZyViEzGvPVuNPNa-2F2JxRoAEfl3rOZrI100SjTvIM8-2BiAzRFhjWiVKSJjvanjtQA74AFkFz8T3kcqYjpUlBhwcMtfEIDVmZ-2FIR5Y0cxrgA-2BejOrlrQg8WpOAGBWsrSUZQmTMP9JqeuZbL7XxYp6P2lOgPNW32QWI-2Fw-3D-3DKPfH_5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUoszGiZ0kWoXL3-2FDG4HvNZbBnSXDD74HIw-2FfMzHcvWT6Brkjw8T-2FJjkLCCDNmBvKhpNu9jGyqvkZ6KgJTudKPG1T4xGOTBshQzOrSX-2Ba-2B8lj707RH1QQFfftY4E3dSqar2w6hUbDm9Fa94yVyzjvSEaIvoexWTA60R-2FFEwpQSVC2Ts-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryc2mUCiFqnGLmeDn6zcvaZb5CxmGKiNyhoBknGKZtRORgzMwuP8cwIZbyFpmFVENLdT0Vyn-2BGts8kfbps7I93F1CChU-2BbmaPrzET9E-2FCySMwVJ7ObZEOokJg3Lxu-2BKig-2Ben7PpqMVWoFJNuQqlbjOjOrfofPTx5iXZyViEzGvPVuNPNa-2F2JxRoAEfl3rOZrI100SjTvIM8-2BiAzRFhjWiVKSJjvanjtQA74AFkFz8T3kcqYjpUlBhwcMtfEIDVmZ-2FIR5Y0cxrgA-2BejOrlrQg8WpOAGBWsrSUZQmTMP9JqeuZbL7XxYp6P2lOgPNW32QWI-2Fw-3D-3DKPfH_5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUoszGiZ0kWoXL3-2FDG4HvNZbBnSXDD74HIw-2FfMzHcvWT6Brkjw8T-2FJjkLCCDNmBvKhpNu9jGyqvkZ6KgJTudKPG1T4xGOTBshQzOrSX-2Ba-2B8lj707RH1QQFfftY4E3dSqar2w6hUbDm9Fa94yVyzjvSEaIvoexWTA60R-2FFEwpQSVC2Ts-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryRcwuUDnhx7SLvd3DFVycXNkO2aI8VNFBfl5eT2o-2FFXoprB24erdbkYYi13Kz2ysFRF-2BEUC5RLET-2Fo52yrwD1I-2BJFqKBTfhnFCPKGYFqNuZZjEuH4wQhk6ed1zYS9tHAUjHzBPqC19eB4Vdam-2Bbhxq5wwUO9tfyW8pPA79ZZDAWXgdXljvBDIWLZgd7YJbnL-2BSZBAA7FkTSLGwa0NPgNVFQ3Uwu354sI9ABxda3gtAj2PHwFI8DMSfTt3u9f2rfmpZSSFkwxIvCQzrNmAzyeJkQ-3DqCp8_5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUosHw8KXwpJFxm718zhD1jh9Qcg6JEgHLdjZSmi-2FE8B6vB9sAaTw5lD1DVD-2F8YGZOIoR8rm9u26C3k54thMx2v57o1t6r0Sdou2tcOs6H27CpZWg-2BhOPzdVo4Ebha32ubihNKILF-2BHh1jM3AlwPnlVBhkfzGocFXl9bhC-2BLP9uvxeE-3D
mailto:Stephen.Warner@ontario.ca
mailto:media.moh@ontario.ca
tel:416-314-6197
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryeDJe5ixZPtjiuF6ez553Y4f7Z9rtKqTkooE18RG64E-2BmbJUMF71Tw40qdFjsDHoRDmnPVQZqfcWGGY3DAQ3X3FykFyGnU8lOTy7k2vqNDBf7Pnm-2BTc38eH1Bx7W7X6WK5UTDikSFD2d6Gk6l6CyO5yA-2FkkQXhxOITZSxVb3NOaUjJ41ileRfZyygT-2FnKK21N1WnHyfp-2FlsLWdHin7Jf0fL7xKvRqyo3DiHYYywpLpOnc6eWDyf5i2Yr5hzdxw7CNlHpfwvE-2B-2FU3RI8Xu1oBRTY-3DJ68p_5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUosiUvPio059mMF5UxSeTpW-2FuUVNLYdIFeCG4dVQuhMPlCL2O-2FdVTcGO3zPodd4S80T8MxVTbKRuA7Cti0qkCGcFcl4Pol5umqJKGN0A2x0ENQ-2BsHBRjuYA8iPJWy3J7hPlBnWiIfDd7ztGhXGM75K62MuBrnJrhnA7jGAQMgnbPb8-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryYoX0oUSK4uLOagmuATddFeKLERnlCanJaW3p-2FSagKVtuk7mRevAVA5AzjmDRQ-2FOoqVUO9WHPSxXhm8cpXnGp37rrI5OqHgajeqT-2BdNq0eNgi6gm9QJkiXu8zATTpui0Fug7scan6LHiYqm3czPjQvcbYjysnB0y57pb1L7AWhDW3tAP4d9I4Ae6vAVDuqyiC9JlkdTSVQCLXVK17-2Buqh8uwaTLD1GERL4eohUh69g-2F9FcskQSdE5cBimHpaH1Sn-2BbjQWhv4oxUIMEuR0mRxMlecvSvVi-2BTUR8SQX-2Fsh3vc6uiwVUEetrhs-2FRGpz1sPwdmEs7nxANmAZkPCEBksxB-2Bnx6VbKlCkBexz31mhPwu5QdCFTOGpbgSik0err0fm9YKUjX5VSssoWbWYOrVPDOTU-3D3ttv_5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUosD9-2FRfewantnzCxvPy2NoX-2Bc4GU1eSFgfFzkdQehiGtrSTfY9yoc9YVHsuSpia7OYOvCPuk7PaTWaLpqh2QTqWWdHu0-2BZVjyDIBLKebvgwHWPYZZezXt-2BJlrdi8lZZYPBJZk1pidQT4PiaPHFq2D5jQ7XAff6Obus2m5pr-2Bd2nCc-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryYoX0oUSK4uLOagmuATddFfBOG2pCE0KwTLIOz9d7T005Cz1-2F2hpB-2BtC2q7OzNSFKZrPlWzHD4kcV8w11RvGcxL95RZwpavi8m66TCx-2BHsUIKKeTARxGvlaYVks4ZHd-2BOfycSlYg0J5-2F-2BA6sQExiTkmZz78GQSSNiwOv5iTWYX0oeqPPwo4YuOXa7wAgBBB7q-2FX7HNF7xlGSPzamF73LIz9ujalBXQmOyV8rZcGCpKDq28AQAOUwoOZp7mKPcWFvY0-2B5jRhn9ymJOEcHTXuxmcz27DKaZs-2BQhGkwROOPK75sMleqC3tb5ApNk7E-2BER4-2B-2FOzTs0bRViAK26XqWr-2BMw9fUUrRGaPv8DUMla6D76lhv82ceMZ3-2F2gkK7aBO5xM9HIFPIQSpQju0hC-2FDJlJ0Qu0-3DUNfT_5xcR0FAIJGxIDGU6y-2FCJSbwwsiVHUvappZaV1BRc-2FeefbDTMqsXIV9WaM31kUUosVSDY8bT98upEBxX-2FqTpsBrw-2FOFoqlgpFDCSHO2qOXIoHcW1EqGIRBEelfe73-2BfGcI-2F9k5ha9r6fX8-2FGYAgjIozpcTUVdvb5T925mnhHjwm-2BetxBO4qCdak7LuwC0Wif-2B0rt2xN5SL7JHuftzuimsT1ocwpW2AMMWwSMUR59Q7k0-3D


From: allhealthunits on behalf of Loretta Ryan
To: "All Health Units"
Cc: board@lists.alphaweb.org
Subject: [allhealthunits] News Release: Ontario Introduces A Plan to Stay Open: Health System Stability and Recovery
Date: Thursday, August 18, 2022 10:02:41 AM

This email originated outside of Algoma Public Health. Do not open attachments or click links
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hello,
 
Please see below a news release: Ontario Introduces A Plan to Stay Open: Health System Stability
and Recovery.
 
Take Care,
 
Loretta
____________________________________________
Loretta Ryan, CAE, RPP
Executive Director
Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa)
480 University Avenue, Suite 300
Toronto, ON  M5G 1V2
Tel: 416-595-0006 ext. 222
Cell: 647-325-9594
loretta@alphaweb.org
www.alphaweb.org
 

 

From: Ontario News <newsroom@ontario.ca> 
Sent: August 18, 2022 9:07 AM
To: Loretta Ryan <loretta@alphaweb.org>
Subject: Ontario Introduces A Plan to Stay Open: Health System Stability and Recovery
 

Ontario Logo

  

NEWS RELEASE

Ontario Introduces A Plan to Stay Open:

Page 107 of 158

Page 120 of 298

mailto:allhealthunits-bounces@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org
mailto:AllHealthUnits@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:board@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org
http://www.alphaweb.org/
http://www.alphaweb.org/


Health System Stability and Recovery

Plan hires up to 6,000 additional health care workers,
frees up 2,500 more hospital beds and temporarily
covers cost of examination, application and
registration fees for retired and internationally trained
nurses

August 18, 2022
Ministry of Health

 

TORONTO — The Ontario government introduced its Plan to Stay Open:
Health System Stability and Recovery, a five-point plan to provide the
best care possible to patients and residents while ensuring the resources
and supports are in place to keep the province and economy open. The
plan further bolsters Ontario’s health care workforce, expands innovative
models of care and ensures hospital beds are there for patients when
they need them.

“When we released our first Plan to Stay Open in March 2022, we made
a promise to build an Ontario that is ready for the challenges of tomorrow
because we can no longer accept the status quo,” said Sylvia Jones,
Deputy Premier and Minister of Health. “The second phase of our plan
will provide the support our health system needs to address the urgent
pressures of today while preparing for a potential winter surge so our
province and economy can stay open.”

When fully implemented, this next phase of the Plan to Stay Open will
add up to 6,000 more health care workers. Combined with the initiatives
included in the first phase of the plan that are adding 13,000 more staff,
the two plans together are adding 19,000 more health care workers,
including nurses and personal support workers, to Ontario’s health
workforce. It will also free up over 2,500 hospital beds so that care is
there for those who need it, and expand models of care that provide
better, more appropriate care to avoid unnecessary visits to emergency
departments.

The next phase of Ontario’s Plan to Stay Open also temporarily covers
the costs of examination, application and registration fees for
internationally trained and retired nurses, so they can resume or begin
caring for patients sooner.

Some key highlights of the plan include:

Preserving our Hospital Capacity

Page 108 of 158

Page 121 of 298

https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryeDJe5ixZPtjiuF6ez553Y7Xk7EV7cB3Eg0FkTM7AJcfC2Ev3vbor5W3gvR3GZADts-2BQUhbAynjtXwetJ9kDm3KA6Omulmpf7Wmxo1biD-2BY8X7IYo5Y8eJe4uqI6tR8Zj09Zdm2gpIMW-2BHYoReZTYP66JmkQW2lzjFemP8TlCHCl7yXgFXmewc0UvT4YwJfawDkY-2BkLcAW7hCyrvQCkHajckhr7GKf1cdpEGn8-2F8EBcadFxs-2BIBhQOnZbvxm58jIQ6Od8o1DJK2cRMm-2F-2FuJDkZ4-3DSUv7_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQFykO2MB9TfF633locJkDZ-2FDERa9Dy8BeCoe7qBhGKXX-2FKmtfd-2B1YhzUTRLKxN-2FnfBLew1TZpDaJHGeaXBX-2FaRLqzQwbYtsIwf2e1S4Z3LS05dw3y4NopjacOv0KNHWn-2FyGjIhBiMdvlF3C-2BTSlat2g-3D-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryc2mUCiFqnGLmeDn6zcvaZYVLhjvrWEoBV9ZiI5BWWkYCM4DbUqBYBjF3S2IMtnba89Geh0gDff4z-2FBbiGUR0U6-2BRsOWn6JCan1LRtJ4B9m75I4ykRENcxOeEmvOD1xgXB1J6v-2FayMF8zP1IYvYRjr4URIT-2FZWjteLZ22VSgyjziNEri1tx9vBQ1Xnl-2B58YIa4Euv-2BczZD8-2Fb8WwE8q-2FoJVJq4-2BtQC4e4jkqv-2BYCtA93yG94wv-2Fjyhr-2FIhEB9nYWKy8Uk77fV8oTaK37cTz9ChdzNASX6dBFUuunUKzUhQdLSwmZ-2BlK8uDd6kgFBsM2FEH2UouW20G0CZRJOFPOUzZI-3DvoVh_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQloQRS-2BKUxD6aHl13LSHMVAbYTlPdHgeR1XrgfGizfKcp9XVKJ3NAePtxGOSJhBsimiPFgWprmoRZMKhZqwMOdKpvX5V9XhnX-2B7tMVnPLXiVz1YTb8PuS4VBZFW-2BduIm12SPevYGGv05uvgeSD9j2uw-3D-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryc2mUCiFqnGLmeDn6zcvaZYVLhjvrWEoBV9ZiI5BWWkYCM4DbUqBYBjF3S2IMtnba89Geh0gDff4z-2FBbiGUR0U6-2BRsOWn6JCan1LRtJ4B9m75I4ykRENcxOeEmvOD1xgXB1J6v-2FayMF8zP1IYvYRjr4URIT-2FZWjteLZ22VSgyjziNEri1tx9vBQ1Xnl-2B58YIa4Euv-2BczZD8-2Fb8WwE8q-2FoJVJq4-2BtQC4e4jkqv-2BYCtA93yG94wv-2Fjyhr-2FIhEB9nYWKy8Uk77fV8oTaK37cTz9ChdzNASX6dBFUuunUKzUhQdLSwmZ-2BlK8uDd6kgFBsM2FEH2UouW20G0CZRJOFPOUzZI-3DvoVh_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQloQRS-2BKUxD6aHl13LSHMVAbYTlPdHgeR1XrgfGizfKcp9XVKJ3NAePtxGOSJhBsimiPFgWprmoRZMKhZqwMOdKpvX5V9XhnX-2B7tMVnPLXiVz1YTb8PuS4VBZFW-2BduIm12SPevYGGv05uvgeSD9j2uw-3D-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryc2mUCiFqnGLmeDn6zcvaZYVLhjvrWEoBV9ZiI5BWWkYCM4DbUqBYBjF3S2IMtnba89Geh0gDff4z-2FBbiGUR0U6OLU8jSYEwlxvLZui5XwTXKj7t77n8Vs2Cc8MpX4iIFI2YO-2FZZgFuaRqMGnXB0CK-2Fa04i5FPkI8aPjbzse3-2B0Hs-2FlRJJBCdd6G9a8TLhdU-2BxydYQW60FSy-2B1dMoSbKG-2BgJgHbvJF0HyPAMllKcYgvuIhuwWSjuYQaPNn1oxHSPxA2GkhU6KkVz23AxTjRNzN7Tg59x-2FLVbzSLDv-2BLo7gzVjlUrfL9JAXzbDuQT8Sdxy7nxRqwzyxQJRcc2lh5a8J0-3DNAXv_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQbFSLxLrU-2F9wChlRFFjNwN2cUN4mwsvw4YcMsn4koThaV3wED3isLs-2BdQ1-2FlkJzmjSPFajCOQ8DaWUUABztlQwqBK4hzSAP4FiwPfLjPucSxxZOkj-2BA9q7KOKslxLBp-2FudjrQwcPuGf-2F3idFVylkD7g-3D-3D


To further bolster the fight against COVID-19 and help stop its
spread, the government is continuing to provide access to testing
for COVID-19, Paxlovid and Evusheld therapies for treatment for
those who are eligible, with plans on expanding eligibility for
Evusheld for high-risk populations in the coming weeks.
COVID-19 and flu shots will also continue to be provided to
Ontarians so they can stay up to date with their vaccinations to
protect themselves and reduce the number of hospitalizations due
to respiratory illnesses.
Free rapid antigen tests will continue to be available to the general
public at participating grocery and pharmacy retailers throughout
the province as well as for workplaces, schools, and congregate
settings.

Providing the Right Care in the Right Place

Ontario is expanding the hugely successful 9-1-1 models of care to
include additional ailments and is now giving paramedics the
flexibility to provide better, more appropriate care. Patients diverted
from emergency departments through these models received the
care they needed up to 17 times faster with 94 per cent of patients
avoiding the emergency department in the days following
treatment.
Ontario is implementing several initiatives to help avoid
unnecessary hospitalizations, improve the process for ambulance
offloading, and reintroduce respite services in long-term care.
Ontario is introducing legislation that, if passed, will support
patients whose doctors have said they no longer need hospital
treatment and should instead be placed in a long-term care home,
while they wait for their preferred home.
Ontario continues to fund community paramedicine to provide
additional care for seniors in the comfort of their own homes before
their admission to a long-term care home. These initiatives will free
up to 400 hospital beds.

Further Reducing Surgical Waitlists

Timely access to surgery is important for keeping patients healthy
and reducing pressure on the health care system in the long-term.
That is why the government is investing over $300 million in 2022–
23 as part of the province’s surgical recovery strategy, bringing the
total investment to $880 million over the last three fiscal years.
Ontario is working with hospital partners to identify innovative
solutions to reduce wait times for surgeries and procedures,

Page 109 of 158

Page 122 of 298



including considering options for further increasing surgical capacity
by increasing the number of OHIP-covered surgical procedures
performed at independent health facilities.
Ontario is investing more to increase surgeries in paediatric
hospitals and existing private clinics covered by OHIP, as well as to
fund more than 150,000 additional operating hours for hospital-
based MRI and CT machines.

Easing Pressure on our Emergency Departments

Ontario is also launching a new provincial emergency department
peer-to-peer program to provide additional on-demand, real-time
support and coaching from experienced emergency physicians to
aid in the management of patients presenting to rural emergency
departments.
Ontario is adding 400 physician residents to support the workforce
in northern and rural Ontario.
Ontario is working with the College of Physicians and Surgeons of
Ontario to expedite the registration of doctors, including those from
out-of-province and who may want to work in rural and northern
emergency departments, so they can start working and caring for
patients sooner.

Further Expanding Ontario’s Health Workforce

Ontario is working with the College of Nurses of Ontario and
Ontario Health to expand funding for the supervised practice
experience partnership program which has already supported over
600 international nurses in getting licensed since January. The
province anticipates that by the end of the fiscal year another 400
international nurses will gain the practice and language
requirements necessary to work in Ontario.
The Ontario government is also working with the College of Nurses
of Ontario to reduce the financial barriers that may be stopping
some retired or internationally trained nurses from receiving
accreditation to resume or begin practicing by temporarily covering
the cost of examination, application, and registration fees, saving
them up to $1,500.
The province is aware that agency rates have increased
significantly, creating instability for hospitals, long-term care homes
and emergency departments. In response, Ontario will engage with
our frontline partners to better understand how we can bring
stability to hospitals and emergency departments, while protecting
quality of care.

Page 110 of 158

Page 123 of 298



As actions in this plan are implemented in the coming weeks and
months, Ontarians can expect to see faster access to health care,
including lower wait times in emergency departments, lower wait times
for surgical procedures and more care options right in their communities.
Ontario will also significantly reduce the risk of a hospital bed shortage
during a possible winter surge so that the province and economy can
stay open.

“Expanding specialized supports for people with complex needs and
supporting the transition from hospitals into long-term care, when
appropriate, are key pieces of our government’s Plan to Stay Open:
Health System Stability and Recovery,” said Paul Calandra, Minister of
Long-Term Care. “We are taking action to get Ontarians the right care in
the right setting, where they can have the best possible quality of life,
while freeing up much-needed hospital beds.”

"We are committed to working with our system partners to deliver on this
plan and support front line health care workers," said Matthew Anderson,
President & CEO of Ontario Health. “This plan provides both immediate
and long-term strategies that will allow us to respond to current
challenges and better integrate the system for the future."

Since the start of the pandemic Ontario has taken immediate action to
ensure we can continue to manage COVID-19 and prepare for the long
term.

 

Quick Facts
Ontario has processed over 25 million lab-based COVID-19 PCR
tests and distributed close to 240 million free rapid antigen tests to
date.
Ontario has administered over 34.5 million COVID-19 vaccinations
to date.
Over 36,000 doses of Paxlovid have been prescribed to protect
Ontarians against the worst effects of COVID-19, helping to reduce
hospital admissions.
Ontario has invested $880 million in surgical recovery investments
over the last three fiscal years, including increasing surgical
capacity through funding for innovative hospital projects.
To strengthen long-term care and alternate levels of care, Ontario
has invested $175.2 million to expand home care services and
$117 million for sustainability of home care services, and $1 million
to inter-facility transfer of medically stable patients in Northern
Ontario.
The Ontario government has approved new patient care models,

Page 111 of 158

Page 124 of 298



giving paramedics more flexibility to treat and refer patients when
responding to 911 calls.
Over 10,900 health care professionals (including over 7,800 nurses
and externs) have been added to the health system since Winter
2020.
The government has invested $764 million to provide Ontario’s
nurses with a retention incentive of up to $5,000 per person.
If you have questions about COVID-19 vaccine, please contact the
Provincial Vaccine Contact Centre at 1-833-943-3900 (TTY for
people who are deaf, hearing-impaired or speech-impaired: 1-866-
797-0007), which is open seven days a week from 8 a.m. to 8 p.m.
and capable of providing assistance in more than 300 languages.
For more information about treatment options, contact your primary
care provider, visit a clinical assessment centre, or call Health
Connect Ontario at 811 or 1-866-797-0007 (toll-free TTY) for more
information on treatments, assistance, or eligibility for virtual care
options.

 

Quotes
"Our health care teams – at Sunnybrook and across Ontario – have been
working very hard and effectively, under difficult conditions, and we are
very proud of them. To address the ongoing challenges we face, we join
the government in taking bold and creative actions, to ensure that we can
continue to best take care of Ontarians and their families"

- Dr. Andy Smith 
President and Chief Executive Officer of Sunnybrook Health
Sciences Centre

"Today’s announcement is great news for Ontario hospitals. These
measures address one of our biggest system challenges – the ability to
transition patients who no longer require hospitalization into appropriate
care spaces. These changes will provide faster access to care, positively
impact quality patient outcomes, and improve the patient experience."

- David Graham
CEO (interim), Scarborough Health Network

"The nursing crisis is deepening – yet there are thousands of
internationally trained nurses (IENs) residing in Canada who have been
waiting years for regulatory registration. RNAO commends the
government’s intention to accelerate the integration of IENs as one of the
urgent actions required to address the nursing crisis. We will continue to
partner on programs to retain, recruit and build careers for nurses in our
province."

Page 112 of 158

Page 125 of 298



- Dr. Doris Grinspun
CEO of the Registered Nurses’ Association of Ontario (RNAO)

"The Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) appreciates
the announcement from the Hon. Sylvia Jones, Minister of Health, and
welcomes the ongoing leadership and support from the province to
enable local public health and the health care system’s ongoing response
to the pandemic."

- Trudy Sachowski
President, alPHa

"The province has properly diagnosed the pressures on the health
system. The challenges being felt by hospitals are connected to similar
challenges in home care and long-term care as well. What we see with
today’s announcement is government beginning to build health care
capacity in the community, which is exactly what Ontarians want and
need."

- Sue VanderBent
CEO of Home Care Ontario

"The Ontario Association of Radiologists welcomes the government's
announcement to further reduce surgical and diagnostic waitlists. MRI is
central to the detection and management of diseases, including cancer,
strokes, cardiac disease, and sports injuries. By addressing MRI
infrastructure, MRI wait times worsened by the pandemic will become
more manageable. Diagnostic and Interventional Radiologists remain
committed to working alongside the government and Ministry to provide
high-quality diagnostic care to Ontario patients."

- Dr. David Jacobs, President
Ontario Association of Radiologists

"The Ontario Hospital Association (OHA) supports the strategy
announced today by the Government of Ontario for the Fall and Winter
2022/23 as it will help maintain access to health services during what is
expected to be a challenging period. It is essential that all partners
continue to work closely together with a ‘Team Ontario’ approach to
overcome the complex, underlying issues facing the healthcare system.
Hospitals are here to serve the people of Ontario and will continue to do
everything possible to meet their health service needs."

- Anthony Dale, President and CEO
Ontario Hospital Association

 

Additional Resources
Plan to Stay Open: Health System Stability and Recovery

Page 113 of 158

Page 126 of 298

https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryc2mUCiFqnGLmeDn6zcvaZYVLhjvrWEoBV9ZiI5BWWkYCM4DbUqBYBjF3S2IMtnba89Geh0gDff4z-2FBbiGUR0U6-2BRsOWn6JCan1LRtJ4B9m75I4ykRENcxOeEmvOD1xgXB1J6v-2FayMF8zP1IYvYRjr4URIT-2FZWjteLZ22VSgyjziNEri1tx9vBQ1Xnl-2B58YIa4Euv-2BczZD8-2Fb8WwE8q-2FoJVJq4-2BtQC4e4jkqv-2BYCtA93yG94wv-2Fjyhr-2FIhEB9nYWKy8Uk77fV8oTaK37cTz9ChdzNASX6dBFUuunUKzUhQdLSwmZ-2BlK8uDd6kgFBsM2FEH2UouW20G0CZRJOFPOUzZI-3DhATM_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQt-2Fx02s9xBifT926VJH-2BBj6unQnpq-2FHJzsvGtD7t34Xf2i5SmqAocOMSYNxArexph5XDlKOARD9dSNfVXzBRgZh4U47IXFAsA076Eg-2BeVfxI9-2FP4t4okdGXcpS7R9JgPuiaxuhi6NsmeHHDIym9etew-3D-3D


COVID-19 Vaccine Bookings to Open For Children Aged Six
Months to Under Five Years
Ontarians Aged 18+ Eligible for Second Booster Shot
Ontario Announces New Ontario Health Team in Windsor-Essex
How to access treatment

 

Media Contacts
Anna Miller
Communications Division
media.moh@ontario.ca
416-314-6197

Stephen Warner
Minister Jones’ Office
Stephen.Warner@ontario.ca

Jake Roseman
Minister Calandra's Office
Jake.Roseman@ontario.ca

 
We have recently updated Ontario Newsroom Subscription. You may receive additional emails. If
you would like to update your subscription preferences or unsubscribe, click the 'manage your
subscriptions' or 'unsubscribe' links down below.

 

Visit the Newsroom
Manage your subscriptions

Unsubscribe

Page 114 of 158

Page 127 of 298

https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryeDJe5ixZPtjiuF6ez553Y6ChBmTH1sCuETWv4BCR4jpgeiXBCf3bOZOXu51tOCkVPgookb6DU6ZZL-2FLEwFNPNsyAK4ywIfKVQodNfd7w-2FUjAyW7S8AuNt-2BXa5AXpVUjx5zq-2B0RfWESyc8QtaMZ-2FcD9-2BLu0VuE9TJDL6BM9epjqQ0c8hRWMQ2-2Fq-2BsOd-2FHApQmuQ9WCFtprVALeWuXqzALtYGKSu5PnNVrSl2n3R-2F020sb8PgZOeVN29IzcNZgWljlzWaHpqN0Nh-2F9Sm6X2qdBAxYGNznbuoSwuGcE6-2BFEzM0DFwYYbVlRiYT8cr5mN3Zv9RUsGbvgzb9ZePBjet5D-2FVNL6iNT9ojL1tCCq81Y4l19UwNrzBHnMiJGnaIv9moji1ScfutNMq9eRpK3-2BnLSdY-3D3iIo_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQXj5cl2hbLRRYPBPQvfI4mLh-2BJf5ndz8GXpLlVY1XDKtYNs9P0XuA5IPAhXWaJz7OxKitSzmcBsJOLHJs5uMQQ0GaP5HKk0-2BuwWsq51kqFuBJ32DzrGEKQa5A-2FW2LH3h70LHJLX95Euz7RZBEYq61Zg-3D-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryeDJe5ixZPtjiuF6ez553Y6ChBmTH1sCuETWv4BCR4jpgeiXBCf3bOZOXu51tOCkVPgookb6DU6ZZL-2FLEwFNPNsyAK4ywIfKVQodNfd7w-2FUjAyW7S8AuNt-2BXa5AXpVUjx5zq-2B0RfWESyc8QtaMZ-2FcD9-2BLu0VuE9TJDL6BM9epjqQ0c8hRWMQ2-2Fq-2BsOd-2FHApQmuQ9WCFtprVALeWuXqzALtYGKSu5PnNVrSl2n3R-2F020sb8PgZOeVN29IzcNZgWljlzWaHpqN0Nh-2F9Sm6X2qdBAxYGNznbuoSwuGcE6-2BFEzM0DFwYYbVlRiYT8cr5mN3Zv9RUsGbvgzb9ZePBjet5D-2FVNL6iNT9ojL1tCCq81Y4l19UwNrzBHnMiJGnaIv9moji1ScfutNMq9eRpK3-2BnLSdY-3D3iIo_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQXj5cl2hbLRRYPBPQvfI4mLh-2BJf5ndz8GXpLlVY1XDKtYNs9P0XuA5IPAhXWaJz7OxKitSzmcBsJOLHJs5uMQQ0GaP5HKk0-2BuwWsq51kqFuBJ32DzrGEKQa5A-2FW2LH3h70LHJLX95Euz7RZBEYq61Zg-3D-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryeDJe5ixZPtjiuF6ez553Y6ChBmTH1sCuETWv4BCR4jpXFiwyL8w-2F8gRL1mZiza7-2BjHFFJGHocW0sx25O1c7hWv8b3qEiOtLFxbj3tAcvH00-2FSNk4c-2Ft9DT-2BZZ-2BqGKhko2OLgXqaeSZB3xriJXaMbzMN4WpfWX-2FVmKPwIHe-2BnxxILztXY8fLm2YnP9-2Bt33Bk9rEizjQcaQcQpoOaRKyiLq7-2BWrczICeAQZfDdURujOpGEGnY-2ByxHrHpke8yJIGKEL3XyYDomDGUmqNmMV4touH-2B731DkTUhbRfElM8sM-2B9zN6IFF3siP52Zjh7TL-2BR00sKRDhq2Nu4BQcQjC8fStOATd9ZOlieY6QAHAOM-2FzaCOPB7Md_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQFSz-2BOeWUnN2YcgllMduIj58xKLG7Fn4Nf9hKINlVAbr3Vt2t5fZ-2BxpVpfC2J0S9q21u3Y8meEhlaoSYkz0mDwCwH3KyVsN6w6KR-2FjNIExZRsO9L8dAN4p-2BHUIfxlOrx-2FpFKvIz4SkuurWxvO-2BwGBeA-3D-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryeDJe5ixZPtjiuF6ez553Y5CPT5CpDPXSvyaI2sj8uXgu5jS4dYCmKOU4CSSRk-2BSEs56NNT28cjWepMTrJ3JQYP1A9Pi8LG12Oe0eZPlS6-2FBUq48cfz1wmznTGYh35uiu2fe6mwpS6hVi0DbvACBOUOGktkP9eB0EOZle9ZJMDiW66x4WnmCwgTI5yPsdHAjRDNNNHvynjxpAwKZkR501GF0OLFsteQKPWA315RbdqDVFLRUt9yIHmRk3SNIjag-2BPUIuCaxusbmemx8iul-2FyUfOIIxEcswsE5ozR8E7roikEnmrd59TiVMnirOjEcnjsj4X764n7WuiMhNbqXxxF9vRtfZZGvlzNdL5ixqaYOLV0p07d_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQnjqM7cBsqHmSqpJg2hRKDFKzveEOfPSTzRXIyYxKH2t6o3weKqI1mubAebR32wRcHNdcCQGAJmuCKpn41xj-2FQ7FL870uWqLfzCUkGvHdUJSEpT3kDSNIZ19AtwuJDEl8wA66T3fmPGcJWFLLlHfSWw-3D-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryRcwuUDnhx7SLvd3DFVycXNkGfnuadSZo-2FlQo4uM6XgsqAHiLRjVJy1A7RUlxV-2FoC7YtWhsQTnUIEyzIiCfvc6xGgMb4P09PsetVfjBqoKu-2FNLrC3a82pKnlfABhmxg3HXJM-2FjCvSVhl0tjDST-2FpTOleQHADUooxIx-2BEw-2FdEI03LseLThP3BPJ1hljWHUMxorfROw-2FnfRxBEk4DtojY3rzdKKY-2BbqJ0dKJicOXQK6HRBd-2BuxttUC-2FV4PrUVdTDa0ttHDuRfBaEzz6BNzuoT26ECJTroASuPpG1AuMDokpFDFhFL4_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQiSZfuKCFA2K8-2BXXvioiXFUHNDphXAUDNHDG9JsCa8HyVIlOECossW-2FNXoVnUOh3Urys16IcBt8UtzC-2FuuJhhUNOUPphvnOy3r38E7xOJ4TbZ9x5Ez0Q4usHFj8OzXc0dZRU-2Bt4qsc-2FCiK6H906nb4g-3D-3D
mailto:media.moh@ontario.ca
tel:416-314-6197
mailto:Stephen.Warner@ontario.ca
mailto:Jake.Roseman@ontario.ca
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryeDJe5ixZPtjiuF6ez553Y4f7Z9rtKqTkooE18RG64E-2BmbJUMF71Tw40qdFjsDHoRDmnPVQZqfcWGGY3DAQ3X3FykFyGnU8lOTy7k2vqNDBfUBqEzvmy0BKbFCmuNxCESET3IdxxMtOMv4l277DyRXrIlOa3-2FkLbCVMYPS2RZqZOEkFc33h8RpFkCj6S0FjGgHn4ab8xjNvIq9VadoRH0UsOPpVgk2SfKjhPbaUVwzIAplDDMtf26AiYev-2BzGo6n-2Fw-3D-3DhQNl_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQJTkS7ro3lAf-2FnA8DVbL-2FGn8nEpjc7N65gERnZVnkus7QjkqIa83iQYmGfsT8E3PFfyUaFAdfp1uxVAFzmmGM-2B127g4-2B6bVcPHhlqX-2FDmpvvzscwxw8TPdvtahMivEk-2BQpou1mjIjX3vLvPbAixLG5A-3D-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryYoX0oUSK4uLOagmuATddFeKLERnlCanJaW3p-2FSagKVtuk7mRevAVA5AzjmDRQ-2FOojwDanja35NaDvIOi8-2BMKEYTOWRZp-2FLi7TL7CKiiAOzyue3kUUljMaWj9TBBY8DvN3XDIJVN0Xh1xe2mlvx4nq7b-2Bw5oGvizavoa8tivHUzT-2BsM6-2Fv4aIlk-2FuA1RzLjV-2B4c6mtF9BBSk2gYtp-2BTjvPwPnKC8Nrq0T6UTTs8junhY3tsKo1PrmBC9WBrwRQuW64HY5v1LFX-2F3JoTCd15eYsYiSOnYoiQWPkIuBde94GyaIo2sBN6aLTlTsiuHGL4O1PybKxatKnO8RMW4M1CLntYRU8HXE7Kcfj061gthUEgG1UmETFfXTmvGWid5LsH-2BjPbo9gasAsY-2Bp7tMxHuTJiY-3DuLK2_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQbNjBNFIxA0-2BJ53RrQMggqHwwJlBeNd7TTsQIcgsEBBECRWtxZQq4pjlNskVTvC5GP1Lo1WmVjESZmhzF5E60zZiwic9wghHjnh84OOBizok5dQKGrPXcc3p3OrHWww-2BcgOk9ylOS0iruQ34r0l8hUg-3D-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryYoX0oUSK4uLOagmuATddFfBOG2pCE0KwTLIOz9d7T005Cz1-2F2hpB-2BtC2q7OzNSFKf6mGO9oTtlmws69vAqGHuTjzq-2BlnVPRoxj9K5bVlfji0aLCLaOZOIsVZ5gvP3w3hSMn77ytS-2FGoq2joz1J4YXKrW3u9KPyzdWX2tmCKD7C04X75zXl3JtAAZJoSLySm8tdl9qim56HL-2FC-2FRJwkWCeBT87aY9cB2ibKtvgJTiVhy8Y-2BgASnzxC6lZLfQI7qbjpy9tyQAAEonyNuAqsIzOGrikBazeUbSv5G-2FPa92DbOpgSDQ95doT8nxs1G7C9KO-2BfJMQeMw8ncVvS66Nvqfhrl-2BR49pHx8EcdfAtOjgbIR46iFRM9PrIHfOi0FPT4tBhg-3D-3Dvu_-_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQTnbqTsmw71MiDKlnm7DGUMT-2BHT-2BdH1c2liAcxiUtxxCZkMmmSZi45zOqK9P1qwVEJqMMS2Sv1IokNe3zpBdkvguKfSAaQyl-2F4tpIZKGCElkFIOjDJ4RpRQHoA8NhrFMT-2BzlHsLTIXCQnV2gtS1wb9A-3D-3D


From: allhealthunits on behalf of Loretta Ryan
To: "All Health Units"
Subject: [allhealthunits] Message from the BOH Chair
Date: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:04:00 PM

This email originated outside of Algoma Public Health. Do not open attachments or click links
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

PLEASE ROUTE TO:
All Board of Health Members
 
Dear Members,
 
As the 2022-2023 Chair for the Boards of Health Section of the Association of Local public Health
Agencies (alPHa),  I would like to introduce myself. I am Carmen McGregor, a second term Municipal
Councillor with Chatham-Kent and a member of the Board of the Chatham-Kent Public Health Unit. I
have represented the South Western Region PHUs at the alPHa Board since 2015 and I am a Past-
President of alPHa. If interested, my bio can be found on the alPHa website.
 
I would also like to  share with you that our alPHa Board of Directors and Executive will continue to
work on behalf of members on the key strategic initiatives to contribute to public health policy and
to effectively liaise with our partners and stakeholders. Through alPHa’s strong, unified public health
leadership voice, the 2022-2023 alPHa Board will advocate to remind Ontario’s decision makers of
local public health’s enduring value.
 
Should you wish to contact me I can be reached through Loretta Ryan, our Executive Director, at
Loretta@alphaweb.org. I look forward to representing you over the next year.
 
Sincerely,
 
Carmen McGregor
Chair
Boards of Health Section
 
 
____________________________________________
Loretta Ryan, CAE, RPP
Executive Director
Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa)
480 University Avenue, Suite 300
Toronto, ON  M5G 1V2
Tel: 416-595-0006 ext. 222
Cell: 647-325-9594
loretta@alphaweb.org
www.alphaweb.org

Page 115 of 158

Page 128 of 298

mailto:allhealthunits-bounces@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org
mailto:AllHealthUnits@lists.alphaweb.org
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fpage%2FBOH_SW&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7C75104a2b61524af115e108da5f666b71%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637927190745883956%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=W0y0VFRBd3vYUANIYxothcBA%2BAssWJizcUL3qIzQOps%3D&reserved=0
mailto:Loretta@alphaweb.org
mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org
http://www.alphaweb.org/


From: allhealthunits on behalf of Loretta Ryan
To: "All Health Units"
Cc: board@lists.alphaweb.org
Subject: [allhealthunits] Ontarians Aged 18+ Eligible for Second Booster Shot
Date: Wednesday, July 13, 2022 11:05:58 AM

This email originated outside of Algoma Public Health. Do not open attachments or click links
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hello,
 
Please see a new release: Ontarians Aged 18+ Eligible for Second Booster Shot.
 
Take Care,
 
Loretta
____________________________________________
Loretta Ryan, CAE, RPP
Executive Director
Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa)
480 University Avenue, Suite 300
Toronto, ON  M5G 1V2
Tel: 416-595-0006 ext. 222
Cell: 647-325-9594
loretta@alphaweb.org
www.alphaweb.org
 

 

From: Ontario News <newsroom@ontario.ca> 
Sent: July 13, 2022 11:03 AM
To: Loretta Ryan <loretta@alphaweb.org>
Subject: Ontarians Aged 18+ Eligible for Second Booster Shot
 

Ontario Logo

  

NEWS RELEASE

Ontarians Aged 18+ Eligible for Second
Booster Shot

Page 116 of 158

Page 129 of 298

mailto:allhealthunits-bounces@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org
mailto:AllHealthUnits@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:board@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org
http://www.alphaweb.org/
http://www.alphaweb.org/


Free rapid antigen tests extended to December 31,
2022, including for general public

July 13, 2022
Ministry of Health

 

TORONTO — The Ontario government, in consultation with the Chief
Medical Officer of Health, is expanding eligibility for second booster
doses to Ontarians aged 18 and over in order to provide an extra layer of
protection to those who may need it.

Starting on Thursday, July 14 at 8:00 a.m., eligible individuals can book
an appointment through the COVID-19 vaccination portal or by calling the
Provincial Vaccine Contact Centre at 1-833-943-3900. Eligible individuals
can also book an appointment directly through public health units that
use their own booking systems, through Indigenous-led vaccination
clinics and participating pharmacies. Appointments are based on
availability, which may vary by region.

“As we continue to manage COVID-19 for the long term, we’re expanding
second booster doses and extending the availability of free rapid antigen
tests to give people the tools they need to stay safe and to ensure
Ontario stays open,” said Sylvia Jones, Deputy Premier and Minister of
Health. “Vaccines continue to be our best defence against COVID-19 and
protecting our hospital capacity for those who need it most.”

Second booster doses are being offered at an interval of five months
after an individual receives their first booster dose. While most individuals
aged 18 to 59 years old will continue to have strong protection more than
six months after their first booster dose, expanding second booster dose
eligibility will ensure that Ontarians can make an informed decision based
on their personal circumstances. A new bivalent COVID-19 vaccine is
anticipated to be approved by Health Canada this fall, which may offer
more targeted protection against the Omicron variants. Ontarians are
encouraged to speak with their health care provider about whether
getting a second booster dose now is right for them.

High-risk individuals who should get their second booster dose as soon
as possible and many of whom have been eligible to do so for months
include:

Individuals aged 60 and over;
First Nation, Inuit and Métis individuals and their non-Indigenous
household members aged 18 and over;
Residents of a long-term care home, retirement home, or Elder
Care Lodge and older adults living in other congregate settings that
provide assisted-living and health services; and

Page 117 of 158

Page 130 of 298

https://u21120259.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=n4sOEUdnhhc0w4SJYwLHyV-2BP1rtRxUqv2pFG0HPvgfY9Nko8-2FeKdxfLKxOPE4CRuAlv-2F2c-2BVBVelFgo-2FyThzdx2cc2-2BnyloO-2B3zorn-2FBWjVfMUXp0htx2R38XGlNINtpJASanh2ZXcVL9o-2FFf7y-2FAlIk5LNNXQclZFQTwyicniP9f59lkuysdmi2lQ225W4CTDcKgSQSTywtkNW0V2ZlwG9VXDu7pINtYhazDFIVJyWfspCT9qls4qRSNb9y98i3fBsA_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VEJDQ9OpSJYFftdNjs-2BjjeHfvL9W82wP2sk6pgcdDcM0PVksgYjC3P89fGD9-2F0MYP5xlUOsBmikKR73LUS-2FESiMtRHWICPxxqiO29IsxjzpjiV5XTPjH47I0uqtnocyrijcY-2BcI73KCsL0BoA76edeC3bf7-2Bne6zf8bgUsGJNoGoA-3D-3D
https://u21120259.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=n4sOEUdnhhc0w4SJYwLHyaDJfrdvC8qsZ1TRK-2Bqxx5t5FOTfa6uoTq6Qq-2FahoEcGuf41ZrCMNZ7MspSZXyGtTlbiM-2FMFnZj-2Bw-2Faqt9GQUPN2Wn-2FtRjAu1BQhrbeYRNKvlIIsXKp4eD8hGw9fDtGYSi8pOzTXE6uyQwF687d6t3YdPEWVVvCXUZVOcQRmi55al7Rlj7ZL5n86gbBiOusrqGRe2-2Fi7GMwXCzWdwDrwTMZelV9Gcv4U2Poy6Pl-2F70IRhW5n65X20YehzSQaub0DMQ-3D-3Dt-8p_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VEJDQ9OpSJYFftdNjs-2BjjeHmd8q1VL8Tp5BvJKst2GcOju-2FYeBlgTtX-2FbvJe66D5ZQ2R8BBudL5kmVX6laBo8u5r-2BQzolxvjnsrFyX5PEIuGbu6uhhJhw6Aje1CbA0bzfyumhEIOsG4uvnQXkzpEPXEfXvSX4vOfq2BGKN5rQ1X5w-3D-3D
https://u21120259.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=n4sOEUdnhhc0w4SJYwLHyaDJfrdvC8qsZ1TRK-2Bqxx5v6pke1KUNkyLTSunha1kWgDpHTLw06pTMvTypjn7aQk7G5cd3HeBV9OuOdpQ861FeiSqUTUms6Z37-2BbB-2FHobOO0auHQabUsATyaRKJnh05xPCp-2FsgLw9J8L-2BELU0Wl-2FOcmnF21XyLru7PNjV4v7q7baV6KnLzASEuqj3zGioz93hZnuY8FaafqVzZvenS7HTv-2Bf5ihX5NTnO-2B6oOrmf34Tm1ZqWZw0LVi0S5bNY-2B4lvA-3D-3DYJYq_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VEJDQ9OpSJYFftdNjs-2BjjeHMaQf5KCbw0K6I8BDemIKglqA8Omws7pbri60NMJLYSQzi6SWy3b0BQqJAr9eMyNVVlxMlHrAZ9K5tDoDoD2b0FD2hS5fl-2FFyUtZcm8ap5pg-2Bj1-2FYzs9RW-2BUZvOL6lEh1FI631NKtCdDi1zRfMC-2FDwg-3D-3D


Individuals who are moderately to severely immunocompromised.

The Ontario government will also continue to provide free rapid antigen
tests to the general public through existing channels like grocery stores
and pharmacies, as well as to workplaces, schools, hospitals, long-term
care and retirement homes and other congregate settings until December
31, 2022.

“Expanding eligibility to second booster doses and providing continued
access to testing will empower Ontarians to make the best decisions for
their circumstances and help keep our communities safe,” said Dr. Kieran
Moore, Chief Medical Officer of Health. “Staying up to date on
vaccination is the best protection against severe outcomes from COVID-
19.”

As part of the province’s plan to stay open, Ontario is expanding
Ontario’s health care workforce, shoring-up domestic production of
critical supplies and investing more than $40 billion for over 50 major
hospital projects that will bring over 3,000 new hospital beds. Since the
start of the pandemic, the province has added over 8,600 health care
professionals to the health care system with programs in place to recruit
thousands more.

 

Quick Facts
Ontarians aged 60 and over, as well as First Nation, Inuit and Métis
individuals and their non-Indigenous household members aged 18
and over have been eligible for second boosters since April 7,
2022.
As of July 11, 2022, Ontario has administered more than 33 million
doses of the COVID-19 vaccine, with more than 93 per cent of
Ontarians aged 12 and over having received at least one dose,
more than 91 per cent having received a second dose and more
than 57 per cent having received a booster.
If you have questions about your vaccine eligibility, please contact
the Provincial Vaccine Contact Centre at 1-833-943-3900 (TTY for
people who are deaf, hearing-impaired or speech-impaired: 1-866-
797-0007), which is open seven days a week from 8 a.m. to 8 p.m.
and capable of providing assistance in more than 300 languages.
As of July 8, 2022, Ontario has distributed more than 238 million
free rapid antigen tests, with more than 140 million going to highest
risk settings, schools and licensed child care, essential industries
and small and medium-sized businesses. More than 98 million free
rapid antigen tests have been distributed to the public through
participating grocery and pharmacy retailers and targeted

Page 118 of 158

Page 131 of 298

https://u21120259.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=n4sOEUdnhhc0w4SJYwLHyaDJfrdvC8qsZ1TRK-2Bqxx5vedTsxKSUEbZ6OYj-2Fj0Ywoj4a96wF2iyAJ3XAJKDEflTQa-2Bls12RQ3wFrqzOGyLOZAsLnzffbhDVJYFpks8RspYN4fNjxwclWsaXBlgLF3VWZ7lbQn5V83CVDkvW-2FngMflJ1PG0v8nRZkVvLEuliWOlJ-2Fh-2BuRzG8lxEa6uf0ueaLGpSBzz33sfIe9X0BIN3jM607U7-2Bnoo-2B6YwDpaVt8pxyt6vhHaX2NlUa5ed83DbgePDVAjcgF2jqmEfOgTkpaQD1iBRcuKWTSlwpSj3Z1XqKM3j422BpTSVL7CKPYv4YUZ2SjNj5Dx4qnn4GeSzSGKNk-2F-2F9FZPDKxwdVSKMPjZ7Etxu_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VEJDQ9OpSJYFftdNjs-2BjjeHRcFWU06zPXabvSgSqgk7zzFYrwBWgbsiqUFizLygt5azQenqRTIbD7Sz46Uuu3CAdKIrDu3j-2BJDO-2B0G1plXVrCodiWmGOaka8IB8-2FG6UT-2BJhxISZz3lM6CL98V-2F7pIJTVFLtBzVtP635txJ0k8zQxA-3D-3D
https://u21120259.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=n4sOEUdnhhc0w4SJYwLHyTN5dUHlSWbkmua9pOpFqv8SHT9klYNvMXasiZOY6b4El7068IX9GKrvnu-2FascSw88L0HybWt-2BykkGQbZANL3u5at8stFs6qvGiSVIr4CZEhn1xVcyLeOyfQoroKQ7t-2FlZ6XFYbttGgq9cvQLhIuamt7omzYYhkW2rDLmXPDGOAHzRUtoyzvz6yGrH05mK7DCFheeP16aPBB59bCauCDjFmCmDJqWJjzB7XcnedumiBP7egL6em14jh86m5kDCO-2FYw-3D-3DzGa-_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VEJDQ9OpSJYFftdNjs-2BjjeHS-2FcEIpzfrThKaZKe209Y-2BTbfGvbFG2Er1tYUUyC4ZLpcmojxUZzS7MZJKp84jnljvARpB0cEsJxWa-2B-2FX0n9mvkSVfw6lHATsN6DsZAXZ3b3PRxAw1FFw3ZyGnLJrCzsGs7gv2CEmyJHBkXyx6BbScg-3D-3D
https://u21120259.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=n4sOEUdnhhc0w4SJYwLHyaDJfrdvC8qsZ1TRK-2Bqxx5uZpbf-2BC-2FWBhMp2XidUw3HBV-2FHY1X7e1o7wtfSQ4z-2BebiGj8lfVdkgxSC7kBgh3Y2xaZuaM-2FHqfUrRwzbgZySS9TKLI1t7rasID9Ga5VpZVMikXJIqQ4bVJZvAesQx6twX0EhmYMJniuycc68m0rKdnr-2B4TV9Xs2N8s3qu0c-2BDx2QdSxVw4oAxdy7cbJmAnGPar4YBAmp3U4cZ2faZ5KskbqQUagrzH-2B94marFgne8zRQ-3D-3DhT04_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VEJDQ9OpSJYFftdNjs-2BjjeHjQlLqEp5fjWvIpnMynQjhsV6wjWLVhWvldISGd0WoYYVFbsCE-2BLJi2v-2BWI2SMX5u5yQ5ckiJ6A69fKRMFxSp5xeDBlupYbrn-2FrJBOLY9uUUImflUAjLmEULEUgw21Z8CY5B9QB74nq440BxtdtLllQ-3D-3D
https://u21120259.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=n4sOEUdnhhc0w4SJYwLHyaDJfrdvC8qsZ1TRK-2Bqxx5uZpbf-2BC-2FWBhMp2XidUw3HBV-2FHY1X7e1o7wtfSQ4z-2BebiGj8lfVdkgxSC7kBgh3Y2xaZuaM-2FHqfUrRwzbgZySS9TKLI1t7rasID9Ga5VpZVMikXJIqQ4bVJZvAesQx6twX0EhmYMJniuycc68m0rKdnr-2B4TV9Xs2N8s3qu0c-2BDx2QdSxVw4oAxdy7cbJmAnGPar4YBAmp3U4cZ2faZ5KskbqQUagrzH-2B94marFgne8zRQ-3D-3DhT04_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VEJDQ9OpSJYFftdNjs-2BjjeHjQlLqEp5fjWvIpnMynQjhsV6wjWLVhWvldISGd0WoYYVFbsCE-2BLJi2v-2BWI2SMX5u5yQ5ckiJ6A69fKRMFxSp5xeDBlupYbrn-2FrJBOLY9uUUImflUAjLmEULEUgw21Z8CY5B9QB74nq440BxtdtLllQ-3D-3D
https://u21120259.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=n4sOEUdnhhc0w4SJYwLHyTN5dUHlSWbkmua9pOpFqv8lIbhlQngX5UkWGyZQjoX2LUt096gkRbllmTuNXk9I5mDlabHrNfMANNVtYPFtfcHbkbN6jf7Rcnf7D4VYUOy4NZYAyKh3jE6rvQdSugar78b-2BR8cgSMxvYoW7yLf4pSYZg0Jxu8xYA5p-2BC7GE-2FMzYBoV-2Fzz-2BhhHLLK0VlOKWHezHeE1W7W5oUdjz7ORHXoorxTn5W1m0Q50bv2W47cZRcxqA-2F2peoz83Ne0crPJsTyw-3D-3DvEwD_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VEJDQ9OpSJYFftdNjs-2BjjeHkfbGXHUJ7EzCssTDS7IFwlfbALK9i1h7XlBkwyMdkQVxnzkHjRL39vqfQbrAxZoP7DiAjG-2FscDxVmdpH4tRhgFGTWleZtaM2pOAgo0mzWBNsVeakfiSxuR-2F8Uw-2FdQCcBaHBU96KzkvZ4R39WAYm2QA-3D-3D


distribution to high priority communities that have been
disproportionately impacted by the virus.
Publicly-funded PCR testing remains accessible for high-risk
individuals including as a qualifier for accessing treatment such as
antivirals. Learn more about COVID-19 treatments and determine if
you are eligible by using Ontario’s antiviral screener tool or calling
811.

 

Additional Resources
Staying Up to Date with COVID-19 Vaccines: Recommended
Doses
Rapid testing for at-home use
For resources in multiple languages to help local communication
efforts in responding to COVID-19, visit Ontario’s COVID-19
communication resources webpage.
Visit Ontario’s website to learn more about how the province
continues to protect the people of Ontario from COVID-19.

 

Media Contacts
Stephen Warner
Minister Jones’ Office
Stephen.Warner@ontario.ca

Anna Miller
Communications Division
media.moh@ontario.ca
416-314-6197

 
We have recently updated Ontario Newsroom Subscription. You may receive additional emails. If
you would like to update your subscription preferences or unsubscribe, click the 'manage your
subscriptions' or 'unsubscribe' links down below.

 

Visit the Newsroom
Manage your subscriptions

Unsubscribe

Page 119 of 158

Page 132 of 298

https://u21120259.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=n4sOEUdnhhc0w4SJYwLHyaDJfrdvC8qsZ1TRK-2Bqxx5tuR1wi11IQncZxmeeWTgR-2BVSwyMyyBnhMvfW9Vwt4G5blSHGOszEyNWfPxxC1YCfPs96CLjAd5BwJ1B7U5p2H83ioqSf-2B-2BGX5JrMARxo2IcbTtVtg4uaJRXNaD3vrKpAVqj8whEsZXkjDsLXjT7e-2BYQELXYDVcCQ1txX8Tk8vcngLNjry9p3htIa-2BkahQr2jleEbnJa5X0enojftNlyzmUVp38rLSccBRRn6meXywWiCQUpfzFpu3IAvwd3M16x2w-3DT4_8_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VEJDQ9OpSJYFftdNjs-2BjjeHYU5vNCk0jmkGBR7SFwxO59hvbpYV2c6bBTq80BkwO85jC4rmIRPvJdV9jQ5Wd2Jaqm4H4prFkANa4OgCtRWmVHpXmGlALeM4qA8pIImte3OHUDa0v-2BBYw36b8FaD9e68P289nn1l6i4mTIARk-2FGevA-3D-3D
https://u21120259.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=n4sOEUdnhhc0w4SJYwLHyaDJfrdvC8qsZ1TRK-2Bqxx5tuR1wi11IQncZxmeeWTgR-2BVSwyMyyBnhMvfW9Vwt4G5blSHGOszEyNWfPxxC1YCfPs96CLjAd5BwJ1B7U5p2H83ioqSf-2B-2BGX5JrMARxo2IcbTtVtg4uaJRXNaD3vrKpAVqj8whEsZXkjDsLXjT7e-2BYQELXYDVcCQ1txX8Tk8vcngLNjry9p3htIa-2BkahQr2jleEbnJa5X0enojftNlyzmUVp38rLSccBRRn6meXywWiCQUpfzFpu3IAvwd3M16x2w-3DT4_8_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VEJDQ9OpSJYFftdNjs-2BjjeHYU5vNCk0jmkGBR7SFwxO59hvbpYV2c6bBTq80BkwO85jC4rmIRPvJdV9jQ5Wd2Jaqm4H4prFkANa4OgCtRWmVHpXmGlALeM4qA8pIImte3OHUDa0v-2BBYw36b8FaD9e68P289nn1l6i4mTIARk-2FGevA-3D-3D
https://u21120259.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=n4sOEUdnhhc0w4SJYwLHyaDJfrdvC8qsZ1TRK-2Bqxx5ujTEM76iKc2WfqBRPf1dLJw-2BuIDU-2Buy6Cn6-2FrWyhf-2B6q-2BnOMQ7Kng-2BgTVCbFpsTC3ZKTce3Sje8XT7PEp4yFKewPDw8UDgC2RuyFlNl49M9u4YNAQD6KFP4opDT1eAIMeUBQOnAVvvV4huriqog52BaG5qyD892M-2FtUZaFSUAYUSUgPlqUialT8J3eNvhKzkAGFGLqXU-2FZFIbF4rBYDTIUp5YXuB5yo2-2By-2BM9GOvsx6Q-3D-3DTwin_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VEJDQ9OpSJYFftdNjs-2BjjeHC9ao3fgX0GOLYUQ5Xz7nXndy8qJJSWUgu42Zoywrr58ZF4260gA0Rvs-2FOXqT5UjyiWLrETmEiB08ltSf9tw5zykIFcrmeNDbL-2FlvxZ2wIrHPxwERoOrrzadTWuqMmKMUol4utgP-2FYsAuQcHEohlaUQ-3D-3D
https://u21120259.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=n4sOEUdnhhc0w4SJYwLHybcXD7BPZcDfCVpunvcNo9FOYg6orY8N-2Fvl9AvCYcJarx198rZpRClpTiqtUK7GjDZTq4-2BtSh-2Bvfb9TmAGSWhxadZ4G-2BoWdmW6GGs65ea5ahyiBT8R2TewYrodFGxW3ceiGfWZezSCadesnn1dSEGbU5qNUe3s74cXA2c-2FpOMSTApOqoVHO7rwL29t7U7X-2BFT4gDo-2FIgi5hsHYamuBGC-2Bj1N3jMq9HTqkrSKdj7tcm2ZfEIT-2FcFp-2BPndPMdoNg-2BmB6Ch-2BermoKI2-2Fo4ifRqq97gdzSKHxQ97hiT2ZKOqBYYaN6mdoYyEQw6ye3Am8dm0ufBZEbv-2BFDUhVIwu4kk3Go8-3Dsd6u_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VEJDQ9OpSJYFftdNjs-2BjjeHtqODvt-2FzNEsqmeLh2Wmup1aRnORgh9Q2LafeKllxhwTQcJCT6-2BI6hlGUFc4ez97l7m9vDYsxvii63BR07aCqCA1BdDPtfk5eeUDaWXJyZvmOZcOuXmbmM-2FHbem8BmHmxtQZPl-2BLzWvxY1RL1zbB5RQ-3D-3D
https://u21120259.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=n4sOEUdnhhc0w4SJYwLHybcXD7BPZcDfCVpunvcNo9FOYg6orY8N-2Fvl9AvCYcJarx198rZpRClpTiqtUK7GjDZTq4-2BtSh-2Bvfb9TmAGSWhxadZ4G-2BoWdmW6GGs65ea5ahyiBT8R2TewYrodFGxW3ceiGfWZezSCadesnn1dSEGbU5qNUe3s74cXA2c-2FpOMSTApOqoVHO7rwL29t7U7X-2BFT4gDo-2FIgi5hsHYamuBGC-2Bj1N3jMq9HTqkrSKdj7tcm2ZfEIT-2FcFp-2BPndPMdoNg-2BmB6Ch-2BermoKI2-2Fo4ifRqq97gdzSKHxQ97hiT2ZKOqBYYaN6mdoYyEQw6ye3Am8dm0ufBZEbv-2BFDUhVIwu4kk3Go8-3Dsd6u_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VEJDQ9OpSJYFftdNjs-2BjjeHtqODvt-2FzNEsqmeLh2Wmup1aRnORgh9Q2LafeKllxhwTQcJCT6-2BI6hlGUFc4ez97l7m9vDYsxvii63BR07aCqCA1BdDPtfk5eeUDaWXJyZvmOZcOuXmbmM-2FHbem8BmHmxtQZPl-2BLzWvxY1RL1zbB5RQ-3D-3D
https://u21120259.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=n4sOEUdnhhc0w4SJYwLHyTN5dUHlSWbkmua9pOpFqv8SHT9klYNvMXasiZOY6b4El7068IX9GKrvnu-2FascSw8yW87wvOc29jl2a9IZhiATbVgbaDyrGX1-2BQQIcLRNP7aI3FW5GEO9IuL3LcdlCdZYC1L1NFN54jqlgnMmG-2BLvoME0c60rFo-2FZVlWrMG2S9IJof5rU8PlSA9UQf8Lc-2BxME-2F46xZMOCU1MJIZRTrVD6cojkxNKpMsmOVV1-2F-2F6AyjyxNGEqsoDnafDO03aQ4-2FmxTw-3D-3DqcgL_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VEJDQ9OpSJYFftdNjs-2BjjeHwb97NR8qA6DRlPjZbCaRaK7P-2Bci7KavxZgg6um-2Fp6xrZ3QJ1MNDukQh9oAC-2FOx-2FDNK6Xu1oAq5GQ1OtXo5fAiCmcoLX1mNyBqA-2BaNva5jzYyD8t6s6dcirVmGuTcjYadAUJCrSSUg-2FwVAoETsFyVqg-3D-3D
https://u21120259.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=n4sOEUdnhhc0w4SJYwLHyTN5dUHlSWbkmua9pOpFqv8iKKNaHVPgDgPOIzwRlxceGgGHchlJ0mKmO6Lo4LAeJ29QxgXOU3G8EcYgwLyEcxo6BM1kzf2g9BdVERDP4aRNedQE0JMlnRZeDuGha2T-2FTlc1b1-2FoOukktRg76K0SN1qI4RrPzV81u2T3WBe2LEjmvi2b7cgyOjxFQrnP0-2BeS6o9o5H6LW5p3-2FKRcM7SbwYmkYisG2fZZBY7-2Fu0mgfwcnON1ATNZX9uGuDXr10bes-2B-2BNJKVhKquIbgzHuWAoIVjQ-3DuKpw_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VEJDQ9OpSJYFftdNjs-2BjjeHgbHy9mwtYFySHZeawfqhxM3T1yE4G6cakQWB9p-2BGc5fDXlf55CDKPuTsLPlejsN0koG48pRPWq1iS5fj2LLV-2Bm1QZZ7tybXyEj9NV9Hax2q13yIPrE1GEq1cloIQMkVH932bCMwcZbVj57YTaSpIQw-3D-3D
https://u21120259.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=n4sOEUdnhhc0w4SJYwLHyTN5dUHlSWbkmua9pOpFqv8iKKNaHVPgDgPOIzwRlxceGgGHchlJ0mKmO6Lo4LAeJ29QxgXOU3G8EcYgwLyEcxo6BM1kzf2g9BdVERDP4aRNedQE0JMlnRZeDuGha2T-2FTlc1b1-2FoOukktRg76K0SN1qI4RrPzV81u2T3WBe2LEjmvi2b7cgyOjxFQrnP0-2BeS6o9o5H6LW5p3-2FKRcM7SbwYmkYisG2fZZBY7-2Fu0mgfwcnON1ATNZX9uGuDXr10bes-2B-2BNJKVhKquIbgzHuWAoIVjQ-3DuKpw_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VEJDQ9OpSJYFftdNjs-2BjjeHgbHy9mwtYFySHZeawfqhxM3T1yE4G6cakQWB9p-2BGc5fDXlf55CDKPuTsLPlejsN0koG48pRPWq1iS5fj2LLV-2Bm1QZZ7tybXyEj9NV9Hax2q13yIPrE1GEq1cloIQMkVH932bCMwcZbVj57YTaSpIQw-3D-3D
https://u21120259.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=n4sOEUdnhhc0w4SJYwLHyaDJfrdvC8qsZ1TRK-2Bqxx5u41DLherxyTbyORc0S9qgBWMzyROejBYDPCQ91iY7FFimDnGvqwhWaEo7N1xR346i1wV4skyqkALDtRiOpj8zy7-2BbRD50aQQaGJMhODNGl3FiEgQeCE6o-2FlHMIGdSs6O3PGw-2B1rp8OA0-2FB7f0T37BQD9VRiNqDw9mjb5svO9TKm-2F1kVjwGrAwB5-2BPCs8Eix4nJ9-2BjNdnP-2BvHvh9sRyiWzriQHg_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VEJDQ9OpSJYFftdNjs-2BjjeHHILJ7w-2BS8X2ilYw3uTl7me0O8BEngqKuyhb1pp-2B0wG0-2FS06VdU54VGjZRq3mLsFv0NpLcHOAhGvTALr5Vt-2FtBrsVbOlq4D-2BfRUr5z1hd-2F4aQxu59Xr8LhkCse8KUM9Uuo20ND9L9Hi7lT-2Bk5NbEyGg-3D-3D
mailto:Stephen.Warner@ontario.ca
mailto:media.moh@ontario.ca
tel:416-314-6197
https://u21120259.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=n4sOEUdnhhc0w4SJYwLHyV-2BP1rtRxUqv2pFG0HPvgfahxRezdiMvwPyGreIf8rhnlNhhTPFMT6eTS-2FVIfOd4LTYiL4rwPBK2tAXZ-2B-2BZWMYsKjY49jHvT6t9gzIYbJldwZtiJalCvSSNzz0DC4f93d-2F-2FW8JCtadN-2FeLhtrsl86kWP9bVTyRmOd0l2Uzg6utOyTMxKl8ExHFFvVd-2FVvOdpCJB-2FLVSbtXDyXW7u8hTWWcu9ErdG0jEdwZKNhBPNJkESGObM_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VEJDQ9OpSJYFftdNjs-2BjjeHVa3olkIp-2FnxeVLQV9-2FI-2FAUpJE3spW5NElMevSe1LKfAppW8QPOFw-2FGv12lCLVbXHVGYBMKiGyHHDGib9IamPwKsBCuEsA9UbSsUunKl7HT7JkzAdCQmIURJv6rqFf6q0zrIfN3OIh2s3ldVoEQOsGw-3D-3D
https://u21120259.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=n4sOEUdnhhc0w4SJYwLHybm0RfgKL8yO31Iz7igjDND7k1MV4yi-2Bq9ZCxLBD1uWvCfqSBe9bihVQZLB5XNw6X4A1DiWGfnXol-2FESWgOD3Tt4XA6sZjVobZIVzbboLsv0Naxto8azgNLwSFNjQy5otfvP0wpt2sRb974LvY33bQiNBM4Vpvp9yKjM9UjafxYkSV6FhIQlB-2B5uAXOhqdmLt2QPyO3oheBZURiAYsyUQjtksSVz65aDS-2B9tEN8uial9FGDbxVFm5Zi77ccI9XZcVp3f4j7-2BKev2GpHc77D81l4jRoIGh7gOxXP6wFiMWWkv7aFShUxAGgHGPVX-2B1-2Fcb6ablPl28gZkErzPOgCRGAXuubgPKsEdK5BHbU5wNCcVlaVx4_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VEJDQ9OpSJYFftdNjs-2BjjeHI4llJ3s4COXikQTw0kI1nTgvAvTYXU-2FhR3OlgwepHbvu9sNBVBkVTC69sCj8ZNuGVgp5nenDvTvuYIwcfxSzSc-2BaeJwwtUwKcoMQ4BrM07OIEbx86R4kpocdib8Ytb0FFJtcgePEIMqHEdQIj2LHMw-3D-3D
https://u21120259.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=n4sOEUdnhhc0w4SJYwLHybm0RfgKL8yO31Iz7igjDNDJkKIgxC85IGuFStNfZ45E0ofBrhIe7w31xWZicqOqKt-2Frw3Vj6q-2F3fdonDfk517huue6hyBBoKUqMVJWty4TrmYWiAIWE5tRyoXWi60ttzfEBc0SoIaCu9oAFpBSy1mExvNYLfB0JKZFT4T1QGSqcKpF2giZFfDS6oBoCN3DWvwbSihRejM9X8re6ey9Z1ylRUHbZ8-2Bp7Wnh1YV5IHUQwy1XGhZLoyr-2FRAlppzFez18oCcBQfexk6c3QUEKXkhM4W94gg6SL84s2JT19eQLWJm6qr6kM3YN-2BbID0SZyENFB1MFaFI-2Fhv6-2BPw0IWb7S4a2M3gnL3CzL-2BNhm7f5QPLvsb6t_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VEJDQ9OpSJYFftdNjs-2BjjeHd7E4Td-2FF16AK-2FmSE16FgiaUmu4EFgrO3ailxjJJIv473n3Ew77bmgKn9VryKL6WbeTp5rPpAYAxWKMHyOSa2ZJqHvCz1oNLLRymPUCAFswJNfcAUdTntzNxiSBXOsNwiVbTzVFsMYq9PayuPWgnDyQ-3D-3D


From: allhealthunits on behalf of Loretta Ryan
To: "All Health Units"
Cc: board@lists.alphaweb.org
Subject: [allhealthunits] alPHa Information Break - July 2022
Date: Tuesday, July 19, 2022 2:08:40 PM
Attachments:

This email originated outside of Algoma Public Health. Do not open attachments or click links
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

PLEASE ROUTE TO:
All Board of Health Members
All Members of Regional Health & Social Service Committees
All Senior Public Health Managers

July 19, 2022

This update is a tool that contains important information to keep alPHa's members apprised of the latest
news in public health including provincial announcements, legislation, alPHa activities, correspondence,
and events. Visit us at alphaweb.org.

Future of Public Health Letter

alPHa has sent correspondence to the new Minister of Health, Hon. Sylvia Jones, alPHa Letter - The
Future of Public Health. The July 18, 2022, letter provides several documents (including Resolution A22-
2, Public Health Restructuring/Modernization & COVID-19) that give an overview of alPHa’s positions
and principles that we hope will be carefully considered as Ontario’s public health system is reviewed
and strengthened in the wake of the emergency phase of the COVID-19 response. 

2022 alPHa Conference, AGM proceedings and Resolutions

Page 120 of 158

Page 133 of 298

mailto:allhealthunits-bounces@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org
mailto:AllHealthUnits@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:board@lists.alphaweb.org
https://www.alphaweb.org/default.aspx
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_PH_Restructuring_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_PH_Restructuring_180722.pdf

A N ‘ Assaciation of

Municipalities Ontario




Pub|_||ic Ith Santgl_
ublique
Ontg?io O'r)uari%




Dalla Lana

School of Public Health




A

_«== SRRFSS




travax













 
Thank you again to all of the alPHa members who participated in the 2022 alPHa Conference, AGM, and
Pre-Conference Workshop. The proceedings are now posted (log-in required).
 
The gift card winners for the conference are being announced. Congratulations to Jim Neil from KFL&A
who won the door prize and Dr. Larry Oehm from SMDHU who won the prize for filling out the post-
conference survey.
 
 

Leader to Leader – A Message from the alPHa President - July 2022
 

 
alPHa’s 2022-2023 Board and the alPHa Executive have indeed ‘hit the ground running’ since taking
office in mid-June.
 
On behalf of the alPHa membership, your alPHa Board has sent congratulations to the Hon. Sylvia Jones
upon her appointment and new mandate as Ontario’s Deputy Premier and Minister of Health. Most
importantly, alPHa has respectfully advised Minister Jones there is ample time for careful review and full
consultation to inform recommendations that will reinforce Ontario’s locally based public health system,
strengthen its contributions to the effectiveness of health care, and ensure better health outcomes for
all Ontarians, in both ordinary and extraordinary times. This was accompanied by supporting documents
that outline who we are, what we do and why it matters; our positions and recommendations related to
system foundations, requirements for resourcing and renewal; and a compendium of the
recommendations.
 
As the unified voice of Ontario’s local public health leadership, alPHa is pleased to share these materials
and recommendations with Minister Jones at this pivotal time for the Province of Ontario and to
welcome opportunities to meet with her and her staff.
 
Wishing you a safe, refreshing, and rejuvenating summer!
 
Trudy
 
Trudy Sachowski
 

‘A leader is one who knows the way, goes the way and shows the way.’
 
 

alPHa Correspondence

Page 121 of 158

Page 134 of 298

https://www.alphaweb.org/global_engine/download.aspx?fileid=C6233955-86B5-43B7-8A43-D9988A66FAE0


 

 
Through policy analysis, collaboration, and advocacy, alPHa’s members and staff act to promote public
health policies that form a strong foundation for the improvement of health promotion and protection,
disease prevention, and surveillance services in all of Ontario’s communities. Below are submissions that
have been sent in since the last newsletter. A complete online library is available here.
 
alPHa Letter - President & CEO, PHO 
July 18, 2022 letter from the alPHa ED welcoming Dr. Michael Sherar as the new President and CEO of
Public Health Ontario. 
 
alPHa Letter - Resolution A22-5 - Harm Reduction 
July 18, 2022 letter to the Minister of Health that introduces alPHa Resolution A22-5, Indigenous Harm
Reduction - A Wellness Journey. 
 
alPHa Letter - Resolution A22-4 - Opioids 
July 18, 2022 alPHa letter to the Minister of Health that introduces Resolution A22-4, Priorities for
Provincial Action on the Drug/Opioid Poisoning Crisis in Ontario. 
 
alPHa Letter - Resolution A22-3 - Cooling Towers 
July 18, 2022 alPHa letter to the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing that introduces Resolution
A22-3, which calls for a provincial cooling tower registry for the public health management of legionella
outbreaks. 
 
alPHa Letter - Resolution A22-1 - Racism & Health 
July 18, 2022 letter to the Minister of Health that introduces Resolution A22-1, Race-Based Inequities in
Health.
 
alPHa Letter - The Future of Public Health 
July 18, 2022 letter to the Minister of Health that provides several documents (Including Resolution
A22-2, Public Health Restructuring/Modernization & COVID-19) that give an overview of alPHa’s
positions and principles that we hope will be carefully considered as Ontario’s public health system is
reviewed and strengthened in the wake of the emergency phase of the COVID-19 response. Note: This
is a follow up to the welcome letter sent to the new Minister on June 27, 2022.
 
alPHa Letter - 2022 Resolutions 
July 18, 2022 letter from the President of the Association of Local Public Health Agencies that introduces
five resolutions that were passed by our members at the 2022 Annual General Meeting. 
 
 
 

Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) 2022 Annual General Meeting and
Conference

 
Next month, alPHa President, Trudy Sachowski, CEO, Southwestern Public Health, Cynthia St. John, Dr.

Page 122 of 158

Page 135 of 298

https://www.alphaweb.org/page/alPHa_Letters
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_PHO_CEO_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_A22-5_Indigenous_HR_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_A22-4_Opioids_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_A22-3_Legionella_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_A22-1_Racism_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_PH_Restructuring_180722.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_Welcome_Minister_270622.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_2022_Resolutions_180722.pdf


Lawrence Loh, former MOH for Peel, and Keith Egli, Chair of Ottawa Public Health Board of Health, will
be in a panel at the AMO 2022 Annual General Meeting and Conference. The session is called ‘Public
Health COVID Learnings- informing future modernization,’ and will discuss “before the government
embarks again on modernizing the public health system, we need a better understanding of what
worked well, what didn’t, and where improvements can be made. This session will contribute to the
growing local COVID learnings and insights on managing the challenges of a tenacious pandemic with
an eye on the horizon.” The moderator for the session is Monika Turner, Director of Policy, AMO.
 
Are you an alPHa member planning on going to the AMO conference, working on briefings for Board of
Health members who are attending, or participating as a municipal councillor in a delegation to a
Minister? Many alPHa members are using the following alPHa resources to help prepare their key
messages on local public health:
 

alPHa Resolution: Public Health Restructuring/Modernization & COVID-19 :A22-
2_PH_Restructuring.pdf (ymaws.com)
alPHa’s Public Health Resilience in Ontario Clearing the Backlog, Resuming Routine Programs,
and Maintaining an Effective Covid-19 Response. report and executive summary
Pre-Budget Consultations
alPHa 2022 Elections Primer
alPHa’s submissions on PH Modernization, including the Statement of Principles
“What is Public Health?”

 
 

Boards of Health: Shared Resources
 

 
A resource page is available on alPHa's website for Board of Health members to facilitate the sharing of
and access to orientation materials, best practices, by-laws, resolutions, and other resources. If you
have a best practice, by-law, or any other resource you would like to make available, please send a file
or a link with a brief description to gordon@alphaweb.org for posting in the appropriate library.
 
Resources available on the alPHa website include:
 

Orientation Manual for Board of Health (To be revised Fall 2022) 
Review of Board of Health Liability (PowerPoint presentation)
Governance Toolkit (To be revised Fall 2022) 
Risk Management for Health Units
Healthy Rural Communities Toolkit
The Ontario Public Health Standards
Public Appointee Role and Governance Overview
Ontario Boards of Health by Region
List of Units sorted by Municipality
List of Municipalities sorted by Health Unit

 
 

Public Health Ontario

Page 123 of 158

Page 136 of 298

https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F9DD68D5D-CEFD-443B-B2B5-E76AE0CC6FCB%2FA22-2_PH_Restructuring.pdf&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7Cfac5b9af95804dd8636e08da5537a298%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637915994837896542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Z2hH1qw%2FJWbgrPJXEVHyW237boEKwbmMMETA3SToP%2FY%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F9DD68D5D-CEFD-443B-B2B5-E76AE0CC6FCB%2FA22-2_PH_Restructuring.pdf&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7Cfac5b9af95804dd8636e08da5537a298%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637915994837896542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Z2hH1qw%2FJWbgrPJXEVHyW237boEKwbmMMETA3SToP%2FY%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9%2FalPHa_PH_Resilience_Report_Final_Jan2022.pdf&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7Cfac5b9af95804dd8636e08da5537a298%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637915994837896542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=sh%2BEM%2FdWT0%2BJiB12HoWnoHkAZl%2BgNWOWkjfPHXn%2FngA%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9%2FalPHa_PH_Resilience_Report_Exec_Sum_Jan2022.pdf&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7Cfac5b9af95804dd8636e08da5537a298%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637915994837896542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=7CyU%2FrnwzN%2FlZDazv5dP1Fd%2BrTg3gQlriJkCPY5v4A0%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9%2FalPHa_Deputation_SCEFA_Transcript_190122.pdf&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7Cfac5b9af95804dd8636e08da5537a298%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637915994837896542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=4yNzrCzTO%2BqR%2BOvcD5SIWqX5rMMZNU810MlqeovR9GE%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9%2FalPHa_Election_Primer_2022.pdf&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7Cfac5b9af95804dd8636e08da5537a298%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637915994837896542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=7V7xVz5AH9oolsOa%2FumcdYzLJLJMmFdjsNUTjvFtDKU%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fpage%2FPHR_Responses&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7Cfac5b9af95804dd8636e08da5537a298%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637915994837896542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=dtoZBDGsQTVuwS4TZGA25N4epRUUQCwDYJcfrGBrLQg%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9%2F2019_alPHa_Public_Health_Principles_FINAL.pdf&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7Cfac5b9af95804dd8636e08da5537a298%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637915994837896542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=EZ5olGlgbivr7fsrVoR5H14T20XwczNXo14ogAb5N3A%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F86D31666-E7EA-42F1-BDA1-A03ECA0B4E3D%2Ftrifold_brochure_alpha.pdf&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7Cfac5b9af95804dd8636e08da5537a298%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637915994837896542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=h7ayx8aBOfCJzsWkN%2B3GmDvq4G0qV31T%2BbI91pS0uXk%3D&reserved=0
https://www.alphaweb.org/page/BOH_Shared_Resources
mailto:gordon@alphaweb.org
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/resmgr/boh_file/boh_orientation_manual.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/resmgr/boh_file/board_liability_paper_2018.pdf
https://alphaweb.site-ym.com/global_engine/download.aspx?fileid=575E6376-849F-45A0-BC83-7003F04258F6
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/resmgr/boh_file/alpha_boh_governance_toolkit.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/page/RiskMgmt
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/resmgr/docs/healthy_rural_communities_to.pdf
http://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/default.aspx?/index.html
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/86D31666-E7EA-42F1-BDA1-A03ECA0B4E3D/PAS_Appointee_Orientation_090819.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/86D31666-E7EA-42F1-BDA1-A03ECA0B4E3D/Health_Unit_By_Municipality.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/86D31666-E7EA-42F1-BDA1-A03ECA0B4E3D/Municipality_By_Health_Unit.pdf


Public Health Ontario (PHO) has recently announced an open call for proposals to support research or
evaluation projects focusing on the consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic in Ontario. This year, to
facilitate timely public health unit research and evaluation activities, Locally Driven Collaborative
Projects (LDCP) funding will be used to fund two to three projects (up to $125,000 per project) that fit
within one of the three following priority areas:
 

Public health innovations
Public health programs impacted by the pandemic
Understanding pandemic impacts on mental health

 
For full application instructions, examples of project ideas and evaluation criteria, please see the Call for
Proposals.
 
Public Health Ontario Resources
 
New Routine Monkeypox Epidemiological Report

PHO’s new Monkeypox in Ontario report outlines up-to-date information on: 
·       confirmed and probable/suspected case counts

case counts broken down by public health unit, gender, and age
reported symptoms 

The report is published twice per week on Tuesdays and Fridays on PHO’s monkeypox webpage.
 
New Weekly COVID-19 Epidemiology Summary
 
Starting June 16, PHO transitioned to weekly COVID-19 surveillance reporting and released a new,
comprehensive weekly epidemiological summary: COVID-19 in Ontario with the aim of providing an
overview of key trends in COVID-19. This report is published weekly on Thursdays on PHO’s data and
surveillance webpage.
 
Variants of Concern
 

SARS-CoV-2 Omicron Variant Sub-Lineages BA.4 and BA.5: Evidence and Risk Assessment
SARS-CoV-2 Omicron Variant BA.2 and Sublineages of BA.2: Evidence and Risk Assessment
SARS-CoV-2 Genomic Surveillance in Ontario, June 17, 2022

 
Response and Recovery
 

Focus On: Response and Recovery from Public Health Emergencies: Assessment Activities
 
Upcoming Events
 

July 20: PHO Webinar: Catch-Up of Routine and School Based Immunization
 

 
 

Upcoming DLSPH Events and Webinars
 

Page 124 of 158

Page 137 of 298

https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Felink.clickdimensions.com%2Fc%2F7%%2FhMyFfR7-Dd_Qgrpy0jD-3g&data=05%7C01%7CJessica.Hopkins%40oahpp.ca%7Cc06b034154d74f7172bc08da68fe0f7f%7Ccddc1229ac2a4b97b78a0e5cacb5865c%7C0%7C0%7C637937737636442586%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=1Yc%2FIM0Cvf8A1fbCBazGftfsza0Qa%2F4gsH0yDoq%2Bcgc%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Felink.clickdimensions.com%2Fc%2F7%%2FhMyFfR7-Dd_Qgrpy0jD-3g&data=05%7C01%7CJessica.Hopkins%40oahpp.ca%7Cc06b034154d74f7172bc08da68fe0f7f%7Ccddc1229ac2a4b97b78a0e5cacb5865c%7C0%7C0%7C637937737636442586%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=1Yc%2FIM0Cvf8A1fbCBazGftfsza0Qa%2F4gsH0yDoq%2Bcgc%3D&reserved=0
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/M/2022/monkeypox-episummary.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Felink.clickdimensions.com%2Fc%2F7%2FeyJhaSI6ODE4Nzc0NDEsImUiOiJhbmRyZXcuZ3JlZW5Ab2FocHAuY2EiLCJyaSI6ImNvbnRhY3QtNWExNzMyNzZhZGMzZTYxMWI2M2EwMDUwNTY5ZTAwMDktYTMwMzk3ZGYyOTRjNDM5M2EzYjJlNmU2NDgzYTQ2YmEiLCJycSI6IjAyLWIyMjE4MS0wNzNjNThjOTg2ZDk0YWM1OGE2NjdjYTQxYmQ5OWMxNSIsInBoIjpudWxsLCJtIjpmYWxzZSwidWkiOiIxIiwidW4iOiIiLCJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly93d3cucHVibGljaGVhbHRob250YXJpby5jYS9lbi9EaXNlYXNlcy1hbmQtQ29uZGl0aW9ucy9JbmZlY3Rpb3VzLURpc2Vhc2VzL1ZlY3Rvci1Cb3JuZS1ab29ub3RpYy1EaXNlYXNlcy9Nb25rZXlwb3g_X2NsZGVlPTJVMFNVVkhDWldTRlhwblA0RnhyZ2xjODRBMWlkMGV2Ry13Z08zUW90bXlhWjZkSC1nckJaekFGdFJ4QTBnM0smcmVjaXBpZW50aWQ9Y29udGFjdC01YTE3MzI3NmFkYzNlNjExYjYzYTAwNTA1NjllMDAwOS1hMzAzOTdkZjI5NGM0MzkzYTNiMmU2ZTY0ODNhNDZiYSZlc2lkPTkxNzcxNDYyLWJjZjctZWMxMS04MTczLTAwNTA1NmFkNjFiNiJ9%2FzYitbcuSmHz08EBVF-yV2w&data=05%7C01%7Candrew.green%40oahpp.ca%7C50eb28ddaa984c6e331308da5a9ecf4a%7Ccddc1229ac2a4b97b78a0e5cacb5865c%7C0%7C0%7C637921935381747594%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=E6ODaTer1rJPQAhPJ3NQQSzF2bBzdaTQ51HXSWkehe4%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Felink.clickdimensions.com%2Fc%2F7%%2FyyIgmD86xkcLn6H2qJ9Z_A&data=05%7C01%7Candrew.green%40oahpp.ca%7C50eb28ddaa984c6e331308da5a9ecf4a%7Ccddc1229ac2a4b97b78a0e5cacb5865c%7C0%7C0%7C637921935381747594%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=c0lk70Sw7hgxA8IgvNPikaMaIfAEZuHekrf%2FERDUF8Y%3D&reserved=0
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Data-and-Analysis/Infectious-Disease/COVID-19-Data-Surveillance/COVID-19-Data-Tool?tab=summary
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Data-and-Analysis/Infectious-Disease/COVID-19-Data-Surveillance/COVID-19-Data-Tool?tab=summary
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/voc/2022/04/omicron-variant-sub-lineage-ba4-ba5.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/voc/2022/06/omicron-variant-ba2-risk-assessment-june-14.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/focus-on-response-recovery-from-public-health-emergenices.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://www.eventbrite.ca/e/pho-webinar-catch-up-of-routine-and-school-based-immunization-tickets-369241389937


 
July 27-28, 2022 10th UCG Edition on Diabetes and Endocrinology Conference

 
 
 

COVID-19 Update
 
As part of the response to COVID-19, alPHa continues to represent the public health system and work
with key stakeholders. “NOTE: In alignment with the wind-down of provincial emergency response
measures and the shift to managing COVID-19 through routine operations, the ministry’s daily COVID-
19 Situation Report will no longer be distributed after June 10 2022. COVID-19 data will continue to be
reported on the Ministry of Health website and through the Public Health Ontario’s COVID-19 data tool.”
 

Visit the Ministry of Health's page on guidance for the health sector 
View the Ministry's website on the status of COVID-19 cases
Go to Public Health Ontario's COVID-19 website
Visit the Public Health Agency of Canada's COVID-19 website
alPHa’s recent COVID-19 related submissions can be found here

 
 
 

Update on Canada’s Healthy Eating Strategy
 
 

On June 30, 2022, Health Canada announced new nutrition labelling regulations for packaged foods. By
January 2026, a new symbol featuring a magnifying glass will appear on the front of most packaged
foods that contain more than 15% of the recommended daily intake of saturated fat, sugars and/or
sodium and will complement the Nutrition Facts table displayed on the back. Front-of-package nutrition
labelling is a key part of Health Canada's Healthy Eating Strategy, which aims to improve the food
environment in Canada, make it easier for Canadians to make informed food choices, and lower the risk
of diet-related chronic diseases. alPHa has communicated its  support for the Strategy, with a focus on
the pledge to restrict marketing of unhealthy food and beverages to children as per alPHa Resolutions
A08-13 and A09-1. alPHa’s latest letter (March 4, 2022) on the subject can be viewed here.
 
 

RRFSS for summer 2022
 

Page 125 of 158

Page 138 of 298

https://www.dlsph.utoronto.ca/event/10th-ucg-edition-on-diabetes-and-endocrinology-conference/
https://covid-19.ontario.ca/data
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Data-and-Analysis/Infectious-Disease/COVID-19-Data-Surveillance/COVID-19-Data-Tool?tab=summary
http://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/coronavirus/2019_guidance.aspx
https://www.ontario.ca/page/2019-novel-coronavirus?_ga=2.178115365.1614363902.1583935912-1448909452.1583935912
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/diseases-and-conditions/infectious-diseases/respiratory-diseases/novel-coronavirus
https://www.canada.ca/en/public-health/services/diseases/2019-novel-coronavirus-infection.html
https://www.alphaweb.org/page/alPHa_Letters
https://www.newswire.ca/news-releases/government-of-canada-unveils-new-front-of-package-nutrition-symbol-800108024.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/services/health/food-nutrition/healthy-eating.html
https://alphaweb.site-ym.com/resource/collection/72641CF2-61B4-4F66-AC0F-F369797C9137/alPHa_resolution_A08-13_BanOnCommercialAdsForKids13Under.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/91C17F8A-7362-470C-813D-821BC803AA04/A09-1_Advertising_Ban_Children.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/D927A028-023E-4413-B438-86101BEFB7B7/alPHa_Letter_Healthy_Eating_Strategy_040322.pdf


 

Association of Local Public Health Agencies
480 University Avenue, Suite 300 | Toronto ON | M5G 1V2 
416-595-0006 | www.alphaweb.org | info@alphaweb.org

 

 
Data is available to HUs approximately 10 weeks after data collection –giving current local data which is
essential for HUs particularly given the delay of the CCHS data.
 
There is still opportunity to collect 2022 RRFSS data and customizable budget packages can be created.
For further information contact: Lynne Russell, RRFSS Coordinator: lynnerussell@rrfss.ca. To read more,
click here.
 
 

It is TRAVAX Renewal Time!
 

 
It is renewal time for Travax (Travel Health Information Website) subscription licenses for alPHa
members who have existing subscriptions, and it is also an opportunity for Public Health Units to sign up
and take advantage of the special rate for alPHa members. For more information, members can visit
www.shoreland.com. To obtain the alPHa member discount, please contact Maggie Liefert, Shoreland,
Inc. at 703-399-5424.
 
 

News Releases
 
The most up to date news releases from the Government of Ontario can be accessed here.

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
Take Care,
 
Loretta
____________________________________________
Loretta Ryan, CAE, RPP
Executive Director
Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa)
480 University Avenue, Suite 300

Page 126 of 158

Page 139 of 298

http://www.alphaweb.org/
mailto:info@alphaweb.org
https://twitter.com/PHAgencies
https://www.linkedin.com/company/association-of-local-public-health-agencies
mailto:lynnerussell@rrfss.ca
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/86D31666-E7EA-42F1-BDA1-A03ECA0B4E3D/RRFSS_eNEWS_Summer_2022.pdf
http://www.shoreland.com/
https://news.ontario.ca/en


Toronto, ON  M5G 1V2
Tel: 416-595-0006 ext. 222
Cell: 647-325-9594
loretta@alphaweb.org
www.alphaweb.org
 

 

Page 127 of 158

Page 140 of 298

mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org
http://www.alphaweb.org/
http://www.alphaweb.org/


From: allhealthunits on behalf of Loretta Ryan
To: "All Health Units"
Cc: board@lists.alphaweb.org
Subject: [allhealthunits] News Release: Ontario Introduces A Plan to Stay Open: Health System Stability and Recovery
Date: Thursday, August 18, 2022 10:02:41 AM

This email originated outside of Algoma Public Health. Do not open attachments or click links
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hello,
 
Please see below a news release: Ontario Introduces A Plan to Stay Open: Health System Stability
and Recovery.
 
Take Care,
 
Loretta
____________________________________________
Loretta Ryan, CAE, RPP
Executive Director
Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa)
480 University Avenue, Suite 300
Toronto, ON  M5G 1V2
Tel: 416-595-0006 ext. 222
Cell: 647-325-9594
loretta@alphaweb.org
www.alphaweb.org
 

 

From: Ontario News <newsroom@ontario.ca> 
Sent: August 18, 2022 9:07 AM
To: Loretta Ryan <loretta@alphaweb.org>
Subject: Ontario Introduces A Plan to Stay Open: Health System Stability and Recovery
 

Ontario Logo

  

NEWS RELEASE

Ontario Introduces A Plan to Stay Open:

Page 128 of 158

Page 141 of 298

mailto:allhealthunits-bounces@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org
mailto:AllHealthUnits@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:board@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org
http://www.alphaweb.org/
http://www.alphaweb.org/


Health System Stability and Recovery

Plan hires up to 6,000 additional health care workers,
frees up 2,500 more hospital beds and temporarily
covers cost of examination, application and
registration fees for retired and internationally trained
nurses

August 18, 2022
Ministry of Health

 

TORONTO — The Ontario government introduced its Plan to Stay Open:
Health System Stability and Recovery, a five-point plan to provide the
best care possible to patients and residents while ensuring the resources
and supports are in place to keep the province and economy open. The
plan further bolsters Ontario’s health care workforce, expands innovative
models of care and ensures hospital beds are there for patients when
they need them.

“When we released our first Plan to Stay Open in March 2022, we made
a promise to build an Ontario that is ready for the challenges of tomorrow
because we can no longer accept the status quo,” said Sylvia Jones,
Deputy Premier and Minister of Health. “The second phase of our plan
will provide the support our health system needs to address the urgent
pressures of today while preparing for a potential winter surge so our
province and economy can stay open.”

When fully implemented, this next phase of the Plan to Stay Open will
add up to 6,000 more health care workers. Combined with the initiatives
included in the first phase of the plan that are adding 13,000 more staff,
the two plans together are adding 19,000 more health care workers,
including nurses and personal support workers, to Ontario’s health
workforce. It will also free up over 2,500 hospital beds so that care is
there for those who need it, and expand models of care that provide
better, more appropriate care to avoid unnecessary visits to emergency
departments.

The next phase of Ontario’s Plan to Stay Open also temporarily covers
the costs of examination, application and registration fees for
internationally trained and retired nurses, so they can resume or begin
caring for patients sooner.

Some key highlights of the plan include:

Preserving our Hospital Capacity

Page 129 of 158

Page 142 of 298

https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryeDJe5ixZPtjiuF6ez553Y7Xk7EV7cB3Eg0FkTM7AJcfC2Ev3vbor5W3gvR3GZADts-2BQUhbAynjtXwetJ9kDm3KA6Omulmpf7Wmxo1biD-2BY8X7IYo5Y8eJe4uqI6tR8Zj09Zdm2gpIMW-2BHYoReZTYP66JmkQW2lzjFemP8TlCHCl7yXgFXmewc0UvT4YwJfawDkY-2BkLcAW7hCyrvQCkHajckhr7GKf1cdpEGn8-2F8EBcadFxs-2BIBhQOnZbvxm58jIQ6Od8o1DJK2cRMm-2F-2FuJDkZ4-3DSUv7_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQFykO2MB9TfF633locJkDZ-2FDERa9Dy8BeCoe7qBhGKXX-2FKmtfd-2B1YhzUTRLKxN-2FnfBLew1TZpDaJHGeaXBX-2FaRLqzQwbYtsIwf2e1S4Z3LS05dw3y4NopjacOv0KNHWn-2FyGjIhBiMdvlF3C-2BTSlat2g-3D-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryc2mUCiFqnGLmeDn6zcvaZYVLhjvrWEoBV9ZiI5BWWkYCM4DbUqBYBjF3S2IMtnba89Geh0gDff4z-2FBbiGUR0U6-2BRsOWn6JCan1LRtJ4B9m75I4ykRENcxOeEmvOD1xgXB1J6v-2FayMF8zP1IYvYRjr4URIT-2FZWjteLZ22VSgyjziNEri1tx9vBQ1Xnl-2B58YIa4Euv-2BczZD8-2Fb8WwE8q-2FoJVJq4-2BtQC4e4jkqv-2BYCtA93yG94wv-2Fjyhr-2FIhEB9nYWKy8Uk77fV8oTaK37cTz9ChdzNASX6dBFUuunUKzUhQdLSwmZ-2BlK8uDd6kgFBsM2FEH2UouW20G0CZRJOFPOUzZI-3DvoVh_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQloQRS-2BKUxD6aHl13LSHMVAbYTlPdHgeR1XrgfGizfKcp9XVKJ3NAePtxGOSJhBsimiPFgWprmoRZMKhZqwMOdKpvX5V9XhnX-2B7tMVnPLXiVz1YTb8PuS4VBZFW-2BduIm12SPevYGGv05uvgeSD9j2uw-3D-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryc2mUCiFqnGLmeDn6zcvaZYVLhjvrWEoBV9ZiI5BWWkYCM4DbUqBYBjF3S2IMtnba89Geh0gDff4z-2FBbiGUR0U6-2BRsOWn6JCan1LRtJ4B9m75I4ykRENcxOeEmvOD1xgXB1J6v-2FayMF8zP1IYvYRjr4URIT-2FZWjteLZ22VSgyjziNEri1tx9vBQ1Xnl-2B58YIa4Euv-2BczZD8-2Fb8WwE8q-2FoJVJq4-2BtQC4e4jkqv-2BYCtA93yG94wv-2Fjyhr-2FIhEB9nYWKy8Uk77fV8oTaK37cTz9ChdzNASX6dBFUuunUKzUhQdLSwmZ-2BlK8uDd6kgFBsM2FEH2UouW20G0CZRJOFPOUzZI-3DvoVh_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQloQRS-2BKUxD6aHl13LSHMVAbYTlPdHgeR1XrgfGizfKcp9XVKJ3NAePtxGOSJhBsimiPFgWprmoRZMKhZqwMOdKpvX5V9XhnX-2B7tMVnPLXiVz1YTb8PuS4VBZFW-2BduIm12SPevYGGv05uvgeSD9j2uw-3D-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryc2mUCiFqnGLmeDn6zcvaZYVLhjvrWEoBV9ZiI5BWWkYCM4DbUqBYBjF3S2IMtnba89Geh0gDff4z-2FBbiGUR0U6OLU8jSYEwlxvLZui5XwTXKj7t77n8Vs2Cc8MpX4iIFI2YO-2FZZgFuaRqMGnXB0CK-2Fa04i5FPkI8aPjbzse3-2B0Hs-2FlRJJBCdd6G9a8TLhdU-2BxydYQW60FSy-2B1dMoSbKG-2BgJgHbvJF0HyPAMllKcYgvuIhuwWSjuYQaPNn1oxHSPxA2GkhU6KkVz23AxTjRNzN7Tg59x-2FLVbzSLDv-2BLo7gzVjlUrfL9JAXzbDuQT8Sdxy7nxRqwzyxQJRcc2lh5a8J0-3DNAXv_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQbFSLxLrU-2F9wChlRFFjNwN2cUN4mwsvw4YcMsn4koThaV3wED3isLs-2BdQ1-2FlkJzmjSPFajCOQ8DaWUUABztlQwqBK4hzSAP4FiwPfLjPucSxxZOkj-2BA9q7KOKslxLBp-2FudjrQwcPuGf-2F3idFVylkD7g-3D-3D


To further bolster the fight against COVID-19 and help stop its
spread, the government is continuing to provide access to testing
for COVID-19, Paxlovid and Evusheld therapies for treatment for
those who are eligible, with plans on expanding eligibility for
Evusheld for high-risk populations in the coming weeks.
COVID-19 and flu shots will also continue to be provided to
Ontarians so they can stay up to date with their vaccinations to
protect themselves and reduce the number of hospitalizations due
to respiratory illnesses.
Free rapid antigen tests will continue to be available to the general
public at participating grocery and pharmacy retailers throughout
the province as well as for workplaces, schools, and congregate
settings.

Providing the Right Care in the Right Place

Ontario is expanding the hugely successful 9-1-1 models of care to
include additional ailments and is now giving paramedics the
flexibility to provide better, more appropriate care. Patients diverted
from emergency departments through these models received the
care they needed up to 17 times faster with 94 per cent of patients
avoiding the emergency department in the days following
treatment.
Ontario is implementing several initiatives to help avoid
unnecessary hospitalizations, improve the process for ambulance
offloading, and reintroduce respite services in long-term care.
Ontario is introducing legislation that, if passed, will support
patients whose doctors have said they no longer need hospital
treatment and should instead be placed in a long-term care home,
while they wait for their preferred home.
Ontario continues to fund community paramedicine to provide
additional care for seniors in the comfort of their own homes before
their admission to a long-term care home. These initiatives will free
up to 400 hospital beds.

Further Reducing Surgical Waitlists

Timely access to surgery is important for keeping patients healthy
and reducing pressure on the health care system in the long-term.
That is why the government is investing over $300 million in 2022–
23 as part of the province’s surgical recovery strategy, bringing the
total investment to $880 million over the last three fiscal years.
Ontario is working with hospital partners to identify innovative
solutions to reduce wait times for surgeries and procedures,

Page 130 of 158

Page 143 of 298



including considering options for further increasing surgical capacity
by increasing the number of OHIP-covered surgical procedures
performed at independent health facilities.
Ontario is investing more to increase surgeries in paediatric
hospitals and existing private clinics covered by OHIP, as well as to
fund more than 150,000 additional operating hours for hospital-
based MRI and CT machines.

Easing Pressure on our Emergency Departments

Ontario is also launching a new provincial emergency department
peer-to-peer program to provide additional on-demand, real-time
support and coaching from experienced emergency physicians to
aid in the management of patients presenting to rural emergency
departments.
Ontario is adding 400 physician residents to support the workforce
in northern and rural Ontario.
Ontario is working with the College of Physicians and Surgeons of
Ontario to expedite the registration of doctors, including those from
out-of-province and who may want to work in rural and northern
emergency departments, so they can start working and caring for
patients sooner.

Further Expanding Ontario’s Health Workforce

Ontario is working with the College of Nurses of Ontario and
Ontario Health to expand funding for the supervised practice
experience partnership program which has already supported over
600 international nurses in getting licensed since January. The
province anticipates that by the end of the fiscal year another 400
international nurses will gain the practice and language
requirements necessary to work in Ontario.
The Ontario government is also working with the College of Nurses
of Ontario to reduce the financial barriers that may be stopping
some retired or internationally trained nurses from receiving
accreditation to resume or begin practicing by temporarily covering
the cost of examination, application, and registration fees, saving
them up to $1,500.
The province is aware that agency rates have increased
significantly, creating instability for hospitals, long-term care homes
and emergency departments. In response, Ontario will engage with
our frontline partners to better understand how we can bring
stability to hospitals and emergency departments, while protecting
quality of care.

Page 131 of 158

Page 144 of 298



As actions in this plan are implemented in the coming weeks and
months, Ontarians can expect to see faster access to health care,
including lower wait times in emergency departments, lower wait times
for surgical procedures and more care options right in their communities.
Ontario will also significantly reduce the risk of a hospital bed shortage
during a possible winter surge so that the province and economy can
stay open.

“Expanding specialized supports for people with complex needs and
supporting the transition from hospitals into long-term care, when
appropriate, are key pieces of our government’s Plan to Stay Open:
Health System Stability and Recovery,” said Paul Calandra, Minister of
Long-Term Care. “We are taking action to get Ontarians the right care in
the right setting, where they can have the best possible quality of life,
while freeing up much-needed hospital beds.”

"We are committed to working with our system partners to deliver on this
plan and support front line health care workers," said Matthew Anderson,
President & CEO of Ontario Health. “This plan provides both immediate
and long-term strategies that will allow us to respond to current
challenges and better integrate the system for the future."

Since the start of the pandemic Ontario has taken immediate action to
ensure we can continue to manage COVID-19 and prepare for the long
term.

 

Quick Facts
Ontario has processed over 25 million lab-based COVID-19 PCR
tests and distributed close to 240 million free rapid antigen tests to
date.
Ontario has administered over 34.5 million COVID-19 vaccinations
to date.
Over 36,000 doses of Paxlovid have been prescribed to protect
Ontarians against the worst effects of COVID-19, helping to reduce
hospital admissions.
Ontario has invested $880 million in surgical recovery investments
over the last three fiscal years, including increasing surgical
capacity through funding for innovative hospital projects.
To strengthen long-term care and alternate levels of care, Ontario
has invested $175.2 million to expand home care services and
$117 million for sustainability of home care services, and $1 million
to inter-facility transfer of medically stable patients in Northern
Ontario.
The Ontario government has approved new patient care models,

Page 132 of 158

Page 145 of 298



giving paramedics more flexibility to treat and refer patients when
responding to 911 calls.
Over 10,900 health care professionals (including over 7,800 nurses
and externs) have been added to the health system since Winter
2020.
The government has invested $764 million to provide Ontario’s
nurses with a retention incentive of up to $5,000 per person.
If you have questions about COVID-19 vaccine, please contact the
Provincial Vaccine Contact Centre at 1-833-943-3900 (TTY for
people who are deaf, hearing-impaired or speech-impaired: 1-866-
797-0007), which is open seven days a week from 8 a.m. to 8 p.m.
and capable of providing assistance in more than 300 languages.
For more information about treatment options, contact your primary
care provider, visit a clinical assessment centre, or call Health
Connect Ontario at 811 or 1-866-797-0007 (toll-free TTY) for more
information on treatments, assistance, or eligibility for virtual care
options.

 

Quotes
"Our health care teams – at Sunnybrook and across Ontario – have been
working very hard and effectively, under difficult conditions, and we are
very proud of them. To address the ongoing challenges we face, we join
the government in taking bold and creative actions, to ensure that we can
continue to best take care of Ontarians and their families"

- Dr. Andy Smith 
President and Chief Executive Officer of Sunnybrook Health
Sciences Centre

"Today’s announcement is great news for Ontario hospitals. These
measures address one of our biggest system challenges – the ability to
transition patients who no longer require hospitalization into appropriate
care spaces. These changes will provide faster access to care, positively
impact quality patient outcomes, and improve the patient experience."

- David Graham
CEO (interim), Scarborough Health Network

"The nursing crisis is deepening – yet there are thousands of
internationally trained nurses (IENs) residing in Canada who have been
waiting years for regulatory registration. RNAO commends the
government’s intention to accelerate the integration of IENs as one of the
urgent actions required to address the nursing crisis. We will continue to
partner on programs to retain, recruit and build careers for nurses in our
province."

Page 133 of 158

Page 146 of 298



- Dr. Doris Grinspun
CEO of the Registered Nurses’ Association of Ontario (RNAO)

"The Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) appreciates
the announcement from the Hon. Sylvia Jones, Minister of Health, and
welcomes the ongoing leadership and support from the province to
enable local public health and the health care system’s ongoing response
to the pandemic."

- Trudy Sachowski
President, alPHa

"The province has properly diagnosed the pressures on the health
system. The challenges being felt by hospitals are connected to similar
challenges in home care and long-term care as well. What we see with
today’s announcement is government beginning to build health care
capacity in the community, which is exactly what Ontarians want and
need."

- Sue VanderBent
CEO of Home Care Ontario

"The Ontario Association of Radiologists welcomes the government's
announcement to further reduce surgical and diagnostic waitlists. MRI is
central to the detection and management of diseases, including cancer,
strokes, cardiac disease, and sports injuries. By addressing MRI
infrastructure, MRI wait times worsened by the pandemic will become
more manageable. Diagnostic and Interventional Radiologists remain
committed to working alongside the government and Ministry to provide
high-quality diagnostic care to Ontario patients."

- Dr. David Jacobs, President
Ontario Association of Radiologists

"The Ontario Hospital Association (OHA) supports the strategy
announced today by the Government of Ontario for the Fall and Winter
2022/23 as it will help maintain access to health services during what is
expected to be a challenging period. It is essential that all partners
continue to work closely together with a ‘Team Ontario’ approach to
overcome the complex, underlying issues facing the healthcare system.
Hospitals are here to serve the people of Ontario and will continue to do
everything possible to meet their health service needs."

- Anthony Dale, President and CEO
Ontario Hospital Association

 

Additional Resources
Plan to Stay Open: Health System Stability and Recovery

Page 134 of 158

Page 147 of 298

https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryc2mUCiFqnGLmeDn6zcvaZYVLhjvrWEoBV9ZiI5BWWkYCM4DbUqBYBjF3S2IMtnba89Geh0gDff4z-2FBbiGUR0U6-2BRsOWn6JCan1LRtJ4B9m75I4ykRENcxOeEmvOD1xgXB1J6v-2FayMF8zP1IYvYRjr4URIT-2FZWjteLZ22VSgyjziNEri1tx9vBQ1Xnl-2B58YIa4Euv-2BczZD8-2Fb8WwE8q-2FoJVJq4-2BtQC4e4jkqv-2BYCtA93yG94wv-2Fjyhr-2FIhEB9nYWKy8Uk77fV8oTaK37cTz9ChdzNASX6dBFUuunUKzUhQdLSwmZ-2BlK8uDd6kgFBsM2FEH2UouW20G0CZRJOFPOUzZI-3DhATM_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQt-2Fx02s9xBifT926VJH-2BBj6unQnpq-2FHJzsvGtD7t34Xf2i5SmqAocOMSYNxArexph5XDlKOARD9dSNfVXzBRgZh4U47IXFAsA076Eg-2BeVfxI9-2FP4t4okdGXcpS7R9JgPuiaxuhi6NsmeHHDIym9etew-3D-3D


COVID-19 Vaccine Bookings to Open For Children Aged Six
Months to Under Five Years
Ontarians Aged 18+ Eligible for Second Booster Shot
Ontario Announces New Ontario Health Team in Windsor-Essex
How to access treatment

 

Media Contacts
Anna Miller
Communications Division
media.moh@ontario.ca
416-314-6197

Stephen Warner
Minister Jones’ Office
Stephen.Warner@ontario.ca

Jake Roseman
Minister Calandra's Office
Jake.Roseman@ontario.ca

 
We have recently updated Ontario Newsroom Subscription. You may receive additional emails. If
you would like to update your subscription preferences or unsubscribe, click the 'manage your
subscriptions' or 'unsubscribe' links down below.

 

Visit the Newsroom
Manage your subscriptions

Unsubscribe

Page 135 of 158

Page 148 of 298

https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryeDJe5ixZPtjiuF6ez553Y6ChBmTH1sCuETWv4BCR4jpgeiXBCf3bOZOXu51tOCkVPgookb6DU6ZZL-2FLEwFNPNsyAK4ywIfKVQodNfd7w-2FUjAyW7S8AuNt-2BXa5AXpVUjx5zq-2B0RfWESyc8QtaMZ-2FcD9-2BLu0VuE9TJDL6BM9epjqQ0c8hRWMQ2-2Fq-2BsOd-2FHApQmuQ9WCFtprVALeWuXqzALtYGKSu5PnNVrSl2n3R-2F020sb8PgZOeVN29IzcNZgWljlzWaHpqN0Nh-2F9Sm6X2qdBAxYGNznbuoSwuGcE6-2BFEzM0DFwYYbVlRiYT8cr5mN3Zv9RUsGbvgzb9ZePBjet5D-2FVNL6iNT9ojL1tCCq81Y4l19UwNrzBHnMiJGnaIv9moji1ScfutNMq9eRpK3-2BnLSdY-3D3iIo_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQXj5cl2hbLRRYPBPQvfI4mLh-2BJf5ndz8GXpLlVY1XDKtYNs9P0XuA5IPAhXWaJz7OxKitSzmcBsJOLHJs5uMQQ0GaP5HKk0-2BuwWsq51kqFuBJ32DzrGEKQa5A-2FW2LH3h70LHJLX95Euz7RZBEYq61Zg-3D-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryeDJe5ixZPtjiuF6ez553Y6ChBmTH1sCuETWv4BCR4jpgeiXBCf3bOZOXu51tOCkVPgookb6DU6ZZL-2FLEwFNPNsyAK4ywIfKVQodNfd7w-2FUjAyW7S8AuNt-2BXa5AXpVUjx5zq-2B0RfWESyc8QtaMZ-2FcD9-2BLu0VuE9TJDL6BM9epjqQ0c8hRWMQ2-2Fq-2BsOd-2FHApQmuQ9WCFtprVALeWuXqzALtYGKSu5PnNVrSl2n3R-2F020sb8PgZOeVN29IzcNZgWljlzWaHpqN0Nh-2F9Sm6X2qdBAxYGNznbuoSwuGcE6-2BFEzM0DFwYYbVlRiYT8cr5mN3Zv9RUsGbvgzb9ZePBjet5D-2FVNL6iNT9ojL1tCCq81Y4l19UwNrzBHnMiJGnaIv9moji1ScfutNMq9eRpK3-2BnLSdY-3D3iIo_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQXj5cl2hbLRRYPBPQvfI4mLh-2BJf5ndz8GXpLlVY1XDKtYNs9P0XuA5IPAhXWaJz7OxKitSzmcBsJOLHJs5uMQQ0GaP5HKk0-2BuwWsq51kqFuBJ32DzrGEKQa5A-2FW2LH3h70LHJLX95Euz7RZBEYq61Zg-3D-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryeDJe5ixZPtjiuF6ez553Y6ChBmTH1sCuETWv4BCR4jpXFiwyL8w-2F8gRL1mZiza7-2BjHFFJGHocW0sx25O1c7hWv8b3qEiOtLFxbj3tAcvH00-2FSNk4c-2Ft9DT-2BZZ-2BqGKhko2OLgXqaeSZB3xriJXaMbzMN4WpfWX-2FVmKPwIHe-2BnxxILztXY8fLm2YnP9-2Bt33Bk9rEizjQcaQcQpoOaRKyiLq7-2BWrczICeAQZfDdURujOpGEGnY-2ByxHrHpke8yJIGKEL3XyYDomDGUmqNmMV4touH-2B731DkTUhbRfElM8sM-2B9zN6IFF3siP52Zjh7TL-2BR00sKRDhq2Nu4BQcQjC8fStOATd9ZOlieY6QAHAOM-2FzaCOPB7Md_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQFSz-2BOeWUnN2YcgllMduIj58xKLG7Fn4Nf9hKINlVAbr3Vt2t5fZ-2BxpVpfC2J0S9q21u3Y8meEhlaoSYkz0mDwCwH3KyVsN6w6KR-2FjNIExZRsO9L8dAN4p-2BHUIfxlOrx-2FpFKvIz4SkuurWxvO-2BwGBeA-3D-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryeDJe5ixZPtjiuF6ez553Y5CPT5CpDPXSvyaI2sj8uXgu5jS4dYCmKOU4CSSRk-2BSEs56NNT28cjWepMTrJ3JQYP1A9Pi8LG12Oe0eZPlS6-2FBUq48cfz1wmznTGYh35uiu2fe6mwpS6hVi0DbvACBOUOGktkP9eB0EOZle9ZJMDiW66x4WnmCwgTI5yPsdHAjRDNNNHvynjxpAwKZkR501GF0OLFsteQKPWA315RbdqDVFLRUt9yIHmRk3SNIjag-2BPUIuCaxusbmemx8iul-2FyUfOIIxEcswsE5ozR8E7roikEnmrd59TiVMnirOjEcnjsj4X764n7WuiMhNbqXxxF9vRtfZZGvlzNdL5ixqaYOLV0p07d_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQnjqM7cBsqHmSqpJg2hRKDFKzveEOfPSTzRXIyYxKH2t6o3weKqI1mubAebR32wRcHNdcCQGAJmuCKpn41xj-2FQ7FL870uWqLfzCUkGvHdUJSEpT3kDSNIZ19AtwuJDEl8wA66T3fmPGcJWFLLlHfSWw-3D-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryRcwuUDnhx7SLvd3DFVycXNkGfnuadSZo-2FlQo4uM6XgsqAHiLRjVJy1A7RUlxV-2FoC7YtWhsQTnUIEyzIiCfvc6xGgMb4P09PsetVfjBqoKu-2FNLrC3a82pKnlfABhmxg3HXJM-2FjCvSVhl0tjDST-2FpTOleQHADUooxIx-2BEw-2FdEI03LseLThP3BPJ1hljWHUMxorfROw-2FnfRxBEk4DtojY3rzdKKY-2BbqJ0dKJicOXQK6HRBd-2BuxttUC-2FV4PrUVdTDa0ttHDuRfBaEzz6BNzuoT26ECJTroASuPpG1AuMDokpFDFhFL4_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQiSZfuKCFA2K8-2BXXvioiXFUHNDphXAUDNHDG9JsCa8HyVIlOECossW-2FNXoVnUOh3Urys16IcBt8UtzC-2FuuJhhUNOUPphvnOy3r38E7xOJ4TbZ9x5Ez0Q4usHFj8OzXc0dZRU-2Bt4qsc-2FCiK6H906nb4g-3D-3D
mailto:media.moh@ontario.ca
tel:416-314-6197
mailto:Stephen.Warner@ontario.ca
mailto:Jake.Roseman@ontario.ca
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryeDJe5ixZPtjiuF6ez553Y4f7Z9rtKqTkooE18RG64E-2BmbJUMF71Tw40qdFjsDHoRDmnPVQZqfcWGGY3DAQ3X3FykFyGnU8lOTy7k2vqNDBfUBqEzvmy0BKbFCmuNxCESET3IdxxMtOMv4l277DyRXrIlOa3-2FkLbCVMYPS2RZqZOEkFc33h8RpFkCj6S0FjGgHn4ab8xjNvIq9VadoRH0UsOPpVgk2SfKjhPbaUVwzIAplDDMtf26AiYev-2BzGo6n-2Fw-3D-3DhQNl_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQJTkS7ro3lAf-2FnA8DVbL-2FGn8nEpjc7N65gERnZVnkus7QjkqIa83iQYmGfsT8E3PFfyUaFAdfp1uxVAFzmmGM-2B127g4-2B6bVcPHhlqX-2FDmpvvzscwxw8TPdvtahMivEk-2BQpou1mjIjX3vLvPbAixLG5A-3D-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryYoX0oUSK4uLOagmuATddFeKLERnlCanJaW3p-2FSagKVtuk7mRevAVA5AzjmDRQ-2FOojwDanja35NaDvIOi8-2BMKEYTOWRZp-2FLi7TL7CKiiAOzyue3kUUljMaWj9TBBY8DvN3XDIJVN0Xh1xe2mlvx4nq7b-2Bw5oGvizavoa8tivHUzT-2BsM6-2Fv4aIlk-2FuA1RzLjV-2B4c6mtF9BBSk2gYtp-2BTjvPwPnKC8Nrq0T6UTTs8junhY3tsKo1PrmBC9WBrwRQuW64HY5v1LFX-2F3JoTCd15eYsYiSOnYoiQWPkIuBde94GyaIo2sBN6aLTlTsiuHGL4O1PybKxatKnO8RMW4M1CLntYRU8HXE7Kcfj061gthUEgG1UmETFfXTmvGWid5LsH-2BjPbo9gasAsY-2Bp7tMxHuTJiY-3DuLK2_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQbNjBNFIxA0-2BJ53RrQMggqHwwJlBeNd7TTsQIcgsEBBECRWtxZQq4pjlNskVTvC5GP1Lo1WmVjESZmhzF5E60zZiwic9wghHjnh84OOBizok5dQKGrPXcc3p3OrHWww-2BcgOk9ylOS0iruQ34r0l8hUg-3D-3D
https://u22040672.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=nW6WfPO4Bjg1VsnalDVryYoX0oUSK4uLOagmuATddFfBOG2pCE0KwTLIOz9d7T005Cz1-2F2hpB-2BtC2q7OzNSFKf6mGO9oTtlmws69vAqGHuTjzq-2BlnVPRoxj9K5bVlfji0aLCLaOZOIsVZ5gvP3w3hSMn77ytS-2FGoq2joz1J4YXKrW3u9KPyzdWX2tmCKD7C04X75zXl3JtAAZJoSLySm8tdl9qim56HL-2FC-2FRJwkWCeBT87aY9cB2ibKtvgJTiVhy8Y-2BgASnzxC6lZLfQI7qbjpy9tyQAAEonyNuAqsIzOGrikBazeUbSv5G-2FPa92DbOpgSDQ95doT8nxs1G7C9KO-2BfJMQeMw8ncVvS66Nvqfhrl-2BR49pHx8EcdfAtOjgbIR46iFRM9PrIHfOi0FPT4tBhg-3D-3Dvu_-_Oca9KZ0MiXBrx5-2BbjyRviFze-2FGWxs8lHvqucG0zT8VHamr-2BQyPS6e7KaKjP1OzDQTnbqTsmw71MiDKlnm7DGUMT-2BHT-2BdH1c2liAcxiUtxxCZkMmmSZi45zOqK9P1qwVEJqMMS2Sv1IokNe3zpBdkvguKfSAaQyl-2F4tpIZKGCElkFIOjDJ4RpRQHoA8NhrFMT-2BzlHsLTIXCQnV2gtS1wb9A-3D-3D


PLEASE ROUTE TO: 

All Board of Health Members 
All Members of Regional Health & Social Service Committees 
All Senior Public Health Managers 

 

 
 
August 19, 2022 

 
This update is a tool to keep alPHa's members apprised of the latest news in public health including 
provincial announcements, legislation, alPHa activities, correspondence, and events. Visit us 
at alphaweb.org. 

 
  
Leader to Leader – A Message from the alPHa President – August 2022  

 

 

The recently held Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) AGM and conference 
had over 2,000 attendees in Ottawa from August 14th to the 17th and presented a 
tremendous opportunity to profile alPHa, the importance of local public health and 

Page 136 of 158

Page 149 of 298

https://www.alphaweb.org/default.aspx


our association’s public policy positions. As your President, I participated along with 
Cynthia St. John, CEO, Southwestern Public Health, Dr. Lawrence Loh, former MOH 
for Peel, and Keith Egli, Chair of Ottawa Public Health Board of Health as part of a 
panel at the conference - ‘Public Health COVID Learnings- informing future 
modernization.’ The moderator was Monika Turner, Director of Policy, AMO. The 
panel discussed the need to have a better understanding of what worked well, what 
did not, and where improvements can be made, before embarking on any type of 
public health transformation. The goal was to have the session contribute to the 
growing local COVID learnings and insights to better manage the challenges ahead. 
The room was filled with many attendees, actively engaging. Thank you to all who 
attended the session. You can read access available speaking notes and slides here.  

These events were also a time to reacquaint with and meet municipal leadership who 
support the work of public health, including those who serve on their local boards of 
health. Thank you to the members who let us know they used alPHa resources to 
help prepare their key messages on the importance of local public health during 
encounters with delegates, meetings with colleagues, and delegations with Ministers. 
(See July Issue of Information Break for a list of resources.) Thank you to Loretta 
Ryan, alPHa’s Executive Director, for her work in ensuring that alPHa representatives 
and members had the information they needed to make the most out of the 
conference. 

While at the AMO events, I had the opportunity to speak to several board of health 
members who want to ensure good governance, due diligence and that the important 
work of public health carries on during and post-election. This is done by establishing 
provisions and ensuring these are in place until new board of health members are 
appointed. Given that Ontario’s boards of health can be autonomous, semi-
autonomous or regional and that each board has their own by-laws and policies, as 
expected, I heard variations on how they will make this happen. Some boards will put 
in place an ‘acting’ chair if the current chair or vice-chair are elected municipal 
councillors, since their current term is expiring. This would be a short-term position 
during the transition period. It would be a board member whose term continues 
throughout this time. For example, they may have been appointed provincially under 
an Order in Council or as a local representative by their board of health. While some 
boards will provide limited delegation powers to their MOH/CEO to manage any 
emergencies between October 24th, 2022, and the first meeting of the appointed 
municipal members to the board of health. This second scenario is what municipal 
councils do to get through the same time-period for other municipal related boards. A 
resolution delegating these powers can be clear on matters that can not be dealt with 
during the interim period without the board in place, such as spending limits and 
budgetary matters etc. With no legislative tools per se on this, alPHa’s goal is to 
support its membership and is interested in collecting best practices, protocols, and 
policies on such procedures during the municipal election process and leading up to 

Page 137 of 158

Page 150 of 298

https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/9221E880-473D-46C9-A428-F4F1A67305F8/AMO_PH_Panel_Materials_150822.pdf


until the new municipal board of health members are in place. If you would like to 
share, please contact Loretta Ryan, alPHa’s Executive Director loretta@alphaweb.org. 

Looking forward to touching base in September! 

Trudy 

Trudy Sachowski 

‘The leadership role is to build the riverbanks and let the water flow freely.’ 

 

Government Announcement at the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) 2022 
Annual General Meeting and Conference 

 

 

At the AMO Conference, the provincial government announced Working with Municipalities to Move 
Ontario Forward. To read more about the government’s announcement, click here.  

Additionally, on August 18th, the government issued a news release Ontario Introduces A Plan to Stay 
Open: Health System Stability and Recovery. The government webpage also includes a quote from 
Trudy Sachowski, alPHa’s President:  

"The Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) appreciates the announcement from the Hon. 
Sylvia Jones, Minister of Health, and welcomes the ongoing leadership and support from the province 
to enable local public health and the health care system’s ongoing response to the pandemic." 

 
 

 
Hold the Date: Upcoming alPHa Events 

 

Page 138 of 158

Page 151 of 298

mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org
https://news.ontario.ca/en/release/1002243/working-with-municipalities-to-move-ontario-forward
https://news.ontario.ca/en/release/1002246/ontario-introduces-a-plan-to-stay-open-health-system-stability-and-recovery


 
 

Please hold the date for our Winter Symposium that is taking place on Friday, February 24th, 2023. If 
you are a Board of Health or Affiliate member, please also hold the date for a Pre-Symposium 
Workshop happening in the afternoon on Thursday, February 23rd, 2023.  

The Conference and AGM (in person) will be from Sunday, June 11th-Tuesday, June 13th, 2023.  

If you are a COMOH member, please hold the date for a Section meeting and workshop that is being 
held on Friday, November 18th, 2022. 

 

alPHa Correspondence 

 

 
 

Through policy analysis, collaboration, and advocacy, alPHa’s members and staff act to promote public 
health policies that form a strong foundation for the improvement of health promotion and protection, 

disease prevention, and surveillance services in all of Ontario’s communities. Below are submissions 
that have been sent in since the last newsletter. A complete online library is available here. 

 

alPHa Letter - President & CEO, PHO  
July 18, 2022 letter from the alPHa ED welcoming Dr. Michael Sherar as the new President and CEO of 

Public Health Ontario.  
 

alPHa Letter - Resolution A22-5 - Harm Reduction  

July 18, 2022 letter to the Minister of Health that introduces alPHa Resolution A22-5, Indigenous Harm 
Reduction - A Wellness Journey.  

 
alPHa Letter - Resolution A22-4 - Opioids  

July 18, 2022 alPHa letter to the Minister of Health that introduces Resolution A22-4, Priorities for 
Provincial Action on the Drug/Opioid Poisoning Crisis in Ontario.  

 

alPHa Letter - Resolution A22-3 - Cooling Towers  

Page 139 of 158

Page 152 of 298

https://www.alphaweb.org/page/alPHa_Letters
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_PHO_CEO_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_A22-5_Indigenous_HR_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_A22-4_Opioids_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_A22-3_Legionella_180722.pdf


July 18, 2022 alPHa letter to the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing that introduces Resolution 
A22-3, which calls for a provincial cooling tower registry for the public health management of 

legionella outbreaks.  
 

alPHa Letter - Resolution A22-1 - Racism & Health  

July 18, 2022 letter to the Minister of Health that introduces Resolution A22-1, Race-Based Inequities 
in Health. 

 
alPHa Letter - The Future of Public Health  

July 18, 2022 letter to the Minister of Health that provides several documents (Including Resolution 
A22-2, Public Health Restructuring/Modernization & COVID-19) that give an overview of alPHa’s 

positions and principles that we hope will be carefully considered as Ontario’s public health system is 

reviewed and strengthened in the wake of the emergency phase of the COVID-19 response. Note: This 
is a follow up to the welcome letter sent to the new Minister on June 27, 2022. 

 
alPHa Letter - 2022 Resolutions  

July 18, 2022 letter from the President of the Association of Local Public Health Agencies that 

introduces five resolutions that were passed by our members at the 2022 Annual General Meeting.  
 

 
 

Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) 2022 Annual General Meeting and 
Conference 

 
 
Next month, alPHa President, Trudy Sachowski, CEO, Southwestern Public Health, Cynthia St. John, 

Dr. Lawrence Loh, former MOH for Peel, and Keith Egli, Chair of Ottawa Public Health Board of Health, 
will be in a panel at the AMO 2022 Annual General Meeting and Conference. The session is called 

‘Public Health COVID Learnings- informing future modernization,’ and will discuss “before the 
government embarks again on modernizing the public health system, we need a better understanding 

of what worked well, what didn’t, and where improvements can be made. This session will contribute 

to the growing local COVID learnings and insights on managing the challenges of a tenacious 
pandemic with an eye on the horizon.” The moderator for the session is Monika Turner, Director of 

Policy, Association of Municipalities of Ontario, AMO.  
 

 

Boards of Health: Shared Resources 
 

 
 

Page 140 of 158

Page 153 of 298

https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_A22-1_Racism_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_PH_Restructuring_180722.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_Welcome_Minister_270622.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_2022_Resolutions_180722.pdf


A resource page is available on alPHa's website for Board of Health members to facilitate the sharing 
of and access to orientation materials, best practices, by-laws, resolutions, and other resources. If you 

have a best practice, by-law, or any other resource you would like to make available, please send a file 
or a link with a brief description to gordon@alphaweb.org for posting in the appropriate library. 

 

Resources available on the alPHa website include: 
 

• Orientation Manual for Board of Health (To be revised Fall 2022)  
• Review of Board of Health Liability (PowerPoint presentation) 

• Governance Toolkit (To be revised Fall 2022)  
• Risk Management for Health Units 

• Healthy Rural Communities Toolkit 

• The Ontario Public Health Standards 

• Public Appointee Role and Governance Overview 

• Ontario Boards of Health by Region 

• List of Units sorted by Municipality 

• List of Municipalities sorted by Health Unit 

 
 

Public Health Ontario 

 

Reminder! Public Health Ontario Call for Proposals: Consequences of COVID-19 (up to 

$125,000) 

PHO is still accepting applications for its call for proposals to support research or evaluation projects 
focusing on the consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic in Ontario. This year, to facilitate timely 

public health unit research and evaluation activities, LDCP funding will be used to fund two to three 
projects (up to $125,000 per project) that fit within one of the three following priority areas: 

1. Public health innovations: Projects may focus on the evaluation of a COVID-19 innovation, 
continuous quality improvement, or research to scale up existing innovations. 

2. Public health programs impacted by the pandemic: Projects may focus on understanding the 
impact of reduced public health services, programs or strategies. 

3. Understanding pandemic impacts on mental health: Projects may focus on understanding 

pandemic impacts on mental health, including harm reduction and prevention in substance use, and 
may consider specific populations. Project may also focus on understanding and/or strategies related 
to pandemic mental health impacts for the public health workforce. 

Funding Eligibility 

• Applications are open to all public health units that meet the following criteria: 

• be led by a PHU, in cooperation with at least one other PHU as a co-applicant 

Page 141 of 158

Page 154 of 298

https://www.alphaweb.org/page/BOH_Shared_Resources
mailto:gordon@alphaweb.org
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/resmgr/boh_file/boh_orientation_manual.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/resmgr/boh_file/board_liability_paper_2018.pdf
https://alphaweb.site-ym.com/global_engine/download.aspx?fileid=575E6376-849F-45A0-BC83-7003F04258F6
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/resmgr/boh_file/alpha_boh_governance_toolkit.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/page/RiskMgmt
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/resmgr/docs/healthy_rural_communities_to.pdf
http://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/default.aspx?/index.html
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/86D31666-E7EA-42F1-BDA1-A03ECA0B4E3D/PAS_Appointee_Orientation_090819.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/86D31666-E7EA-42F1-BDA1-A03ECA0B4E3D/Health_Unit_By_Municipality.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/86D31666-E7EA-42F1-BDA1-A03ECA0B4E3D/Municipality_By_Health_Unit.pdf


• work in meaningful collaboration with local academic and/or community organizations 

• meaningfully engage at least one student 

• promote health equity 

• address a public health issue within the identified priority areas of COVID-19 consequences 

• involve research and/or program evaluation activities 

• create knowledge that is transferable across the public health system, and share that 
knowledge by developing and implementing a knowledge exchange plan 

For full application instructions, examples of project ideas and evaluation criteria, please download the 
complete application package and refer to the full Call for Proposals document. 

How to Apply 

1. Download the complete application package, which includes: 

• Project Charter 

• Guidance resources to support filling out your application: 

◦ Project Teams and Knowledge Users (Section 1.0) 

◦ Project Information and Plan (Section 2.0) 

◦ Knowledge Exchange and Dissemination Plan (Section 3.0) 
◦ Acceptable Use of Funding (Section 6.0) 

2. Complete the Project Charter document. Please ensure all sections off the application are filled out. 

3. Submit your Project Charter, as your funding application, in Word format by emailing it to 
LDCP@oahpp.ca by September 19, 2022. 

If you have any questions about the program or application process, contact LDCP@oahpp.ca. 

 

PHO Events 

PHO Webinar: Blastomycosis in Ontario: Public health and clinical considerations (Aug. 22) 

PHO Rounds: Coronavirus in the Urban Built Environment (CUBE) (Aug. 23) 
PHO Rounds: Opioid Toxicity Among Ontarians Who Worked in the Construction Industry (Aug. 30) 

 

TOPHC 2023  

Please stay tuned for news about Spring 2023 TOPHC.  

 
Public Health Ontario Resources 

Variants of Concern 

Page 142 of 158

Page 155 of 298

https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/L/2022/ldcp-proposals-conseqences-covid19.zip?sc_lang=en
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/L/2022/ldcp-proposals-conseqences-covid19.zip?sc_lang=en
mailto:LDCP@oahpp.ca
mailto:LDCP@oahpp.ca
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Education-and-Events/Events-and-Presentations/2022/PHO-Webinar-Blastomycosis-in-Ontario-Public-health-and-clinical-considerations
https://www.eventbrite.ca/e/pho-rounds-coronavirus-in-the-urban-built-environment-cube-tickets-401369235187?_cldee=FMZsH4w5_AlBvb31uZPSj4BSK0rm51qbqQztex5mtRwDPJc6bm8fJrUN20vP7lT9&recipientid=contact-77149fabb163ea1182fd0050569e118f-a8a8cd1c9d764f4b95e632eedd271204&esid=ec312fea-5a0f-ed11-8174-005056ad61b6
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Education-and-Events/Events-and-Presentations/2022/PHO-Rounds-Opioid-Toxicity-Among-Ontarians-Who-Worked-in-the-Construction-Industry


SARS-CoV-2 Omicron Variant Sub-Lineage BA.4 and BA.5 
Impact of SARS-CoV-2 main Protease Mutations on Nirmatrelvir/Ritonavir (Paxlovid) Resistance 
SARS-CoV-2 Omicron Variant Sub-Lineage BA.2.75 

Check out PHO’s Variants of Concern web page for the most up-to-date resources. 

Data and Surveillance 

Vaccine coverage estimates now available for the newly eligible population of adults aged 18 to 59 
years old. 

Infection Prevention and Control 

COVID-19: Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) and Non-Medical Masks in Congregate Living Settings 
(2nd Edition) 

COVID-19: Infection Prevention and Control Checklist for Long-Term Care and Retirement Homes 
Use of Portable Air Cleaners and Transmission of COVID-19 

Check out PHO’s COVID-19 webpage for a comprehensive list of all COVID-19 resources. 

Additional Resources - New 

Monkeypox Resources 
Report on live lost to opioid toxicity among Ontarians who worked in the construction industry 

 

 
 

Upcoming DLSPH Events and Webinars 
 

 
 

• The 13th International Conference on Maternal and Child Health (MCH) Handbook (Aug 24-25) 

• CVPD Fall Symposium: Healthy Aging and Immunization (Sept. 16) 

 
 

 
COVID-19 Update 

 
As part of the response to COVID-19, alPHa continues to represent the public health system and work 

with key stakeholders. “NOTE: In alignment with the wind-down of provincial emergency response 

measures and the shift to managing COVID-19 through routine operations, the ministry’s daily COVID-
19 Situation Report will no longer be distributed after June 10 2022. COVID-19 data will continue to be 

reported on the Ministry of Health website and through the Public Health Ontario’s COVID-19 data 
tool.” 

 

Visit the Ministry of Health's page on guidance for the health sector  
View the Ministry's website on the status of COVID-19 cases 

Page 143 of 158

Page 156 of 298

https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/voc/2022/07/evidence-brief-ba4-ba5-risk-assessment-jul-8.pdf?sc_lang=en&_cldee=3zsqkiCmozBDoSTUbsElgPzi0P3KKE1svyWCLzAZHpJ1hxT7aBNfZyM1VZIW2VK6&recipientid=contact-5a173276adc3e611b63a0050569e0009-358df8cd266448059536d9e84bbeb8a5&esid=6c54f762-220c-ed11-8174-005056ad61b6
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/ipac/2022/06/sars-cov2-protease-mutations-paxlovid-resistance.pdf?sc_lang=en&_cldee=3zsqkiCmozBDoSTUbsElgPzi0P3KKE1svyWCLzAZHpJ1hxT7aBNfZyM1VZIW2VK6&recipientid=contact-5a173276adc3e611b63a0050569e0009-358df8cd266448059536d9e84bbeb8a5&esid=6c54f762-220c-ed11-8174-005056ad61b6
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/voc/2022/07/eb-omicron-variant-sub-lineage-BA-275-jul-15.pdf?sc_lang=en&_cldee=3zsqkiCmozBDoSTUbsElgPzi0P3KKE1svyWCLzAZHpJ1hxT7aBNfZyM1VZIW2VK6&recipientid=contact-5a173276adc3e611b63a0050569e0009-358df8cd266448059536d9e84bbeb8a5&esid=6c54f762-220c-ed11-8174-005056ad61b6
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/diseases-and-conditions/infectious-diseases/respiratory-diseases/novel-coronavirus/variants
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/coronavirus/docs/vaccine/COVID-19_vaccine_third_dose_recommendations.pdf?_cldee=3zsqkiCmozBDoSTUbsElgPzi0P3KKE1svyWCLzAZHpJ1hxT7aBNfZyM1VZIW2VK6&recipientid=contact-5a173276adc3e611b63a0050569e0009-358df8cd266448059536d9e84bbeb8a5&esid=6c54f762-220c-ed11-8174-005056ad61b6
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/coronavirus/docs/vaccine/COVID-19_vaccine_third_dose_recommendations.pdf?_cldee=3zsqkiCmozBDoSTUbsElgPzi0P3KKE1svyWCLzAZHpJ1hxT7aBNfZyM1VZIW2VK6&recipientid=contact-5a173276adc3e611b63a0050569e0009-358df8cd266448059536d9e84bbeb8a5&esid=6c54f762-220c-ed11-8174-005056ad61b6
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/documents/nCoV/cong/2020/06/covid-19-ppe-non-medical-masks-congregate-living-settings?la=en&_cldee=3zsqkiCmozBDoSTUbsElgPzi0P3KKE1svyWCLzAZHpJ1hxT7aBNfZyM1VZIW2VK6&recipientid=contact-5a173276adc3e611b63a0050569e0009-358df8cd266448059536d9e84bbeb8a5&esid=6c54f762-220c-ed11-8174-005056ad61b6https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/documents/nCoV/cong/2020/06/covid-19-ppe-non-medical-masks-congregate-living-settings?la=en&_cldee=3zsqkiCmozBDoSTUbsElgPzi0P3KKE1svyWCLzAZHpJ1hxT7aBNfZyM1VZIW2VK6&recipientid=contact-5a173276adc3e611b63a0050569e0009-358df8cd266448059536d9e84bbeb8a5&esid=6c54f762-220c-ed11-8174-005056ad61b6
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/documents/nCoV/cong/2020/06/covid-19-ppe-non-medical-masks-congregate-living-settings?la=en&_cldee=3zsqkiCmozBDoSTUbsElgPzi0P3KKE1svyWCLzAZHpJ1hxT7aBNfZyM1VZIW2VK6&recipientid=contact-5a173276adc3e611b63a0050569e0009-358df8cd266448059536d9e84bbeb8a5&esid=6c54f762-220c-ed11-8174-005056ad61b6https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/documents/nCoV/cong/2020/06/covid-19-ppe-non-medical-masks-congregate-living-settings?la=en&_cldee=3zsqkiCmozBDoSTUbsElgPzi0P3KKE1svyWCLzAZHpJ1hxT7aBNfZyM1VZIW2VK6&recipientid=contact-5a173276adc3e611b63a0050569e0009-358df8cd266448059536d9e84bbeb8a5&esid=6c54f762-220c-ed11-8174-005056ad61b6
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/ipac/covid-19-ipack-checklist-ltcrh.pdf?sc_lang=en&_cldee=3zsqkiCmozBDoSTUbsElgPzi0P3KKE1svyWCLzAZHpJ1hxT7aBNfZyM1VZIW2VK6&recipientid=contact-5a173276adc3e611b63a0050569e0009-358df8cd266448059536d9e84bbeb8a5&esid=6c54f762-220c-ed11-8174-005056ad61b6
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/documents/ncov/ipac/2021/01/faq-covid-19-portable-air-cleaners.pdf?la=en&_cldee=3zsqkiCmozBDoSTUbsElgPzi0P3KKE1svyWCLzAZHpJ1hxT7aBNfZyM1VZIW2VK6&recipientid=contact-5a173276adc3e611b63a0050569e0009-358df8cd266448059536d9e84bbeb8a5&esid=6c54f762-220c-ed11-8174-005056ad61b6
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Diseases-and-Conditions/Infectious-Diseases/Respiratory-Diseases/Novel-Coronavirus
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Diseases-and-Conditions/Infectious-Diseases/Vector-Borne-Zoonotic-Diseases/Monkeypox
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/O/2022/opioid-toxicity-ontario-construction-lives-lost-report.pdf?sc_lang=en&_cldee=3zsqkiCmozBDoSTUbsElgPzi0P3KKE1svyWCLzAZHpJ1hxT7aBNfZyM1VZIW2VK6&recipientid=contact-5a173276adc3e611b63a0050569e0009-358df8cd266448059536d9e84bbeb8a5&esid=6c54f762-220c-ed11-8174-005056ad61b6
https://www.dlsph.utoronto.ca/event/the-13th-international-conference-on-maternal-and-child-health-mch-handbook/
https://www.dlsph.utoronto.ca/event/cvpd-fall-symposium-healthy-aging-and-immunization/
https://covid-19.ontario.ca/data
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Data-and-Analysis/Infectious-Disease/COVID-19-Data-Surveillance/COVID-19-Data-Tool?tab=summary
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Data-and-Analysis/Infectious-Disease/COVID-19-Data-Surveillance/COVID-19-Data-Tool?tab=summary
http://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/coronavirus/2019_guidance.aspx
https://www.ontario.ca/page/2019-novel-coronavirus?_ga=2.178115365.1614363902.1583935912-1448909452.1583935912


Go to Public Health Ontario's COVID-19 website 
Visit the Public Health Agency of Canada's COVID-19 website 

alPHa’s recent COVID-19 related submissions can be found here 
 

 

 
 

RRFSS for Aug. 2022  

 
There has never been a greater need for Health Units (HUs) to collect RRFSS data! HUs will be 

undertaking pandemic recovery planning and will need to have data for this purpose including data on 

the success of the vaccination roll-out, concerns about the vaccine and improving uptake. In addition, 
data will be necessary on other health conditions, attitudes and behaviours that were de-prioritised 

during the pandemic as the direct and indirect effects of COVID-19 on the population’s longer-term 
health become apparent. 

RRFSS data is available to HUs approximately 10 weeks after data collection –giving current local data 

which is essential for HUs particularly given the delay of the CCHS data. Data collection is also 

available in a variety of modes: telephone (dual-frame landline and cell phone) and online (panel and 
convenience samples). There are data collection options to meet most budgets and customizable 

budget packages can be created. For further information contact: Lynne Russell, RRFSS Coordinator: 
lynnerussell@rrfss.ca 

 
 

News Releases 

 
The most up to date news releases from the Government of Ontario can be accessed here. 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
480 University Avenue, Suite 300 | Toronto ON | M5G 1V2  

416-595-0006 | www.alphaweb.org | info@alphaweb.org 
 

 

 

 

Page 144 of 158

Page 157 of 298

https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/diseases-and-conditions/infectious-diseases/respiratory-diseases/novel-coronavirus
https://www.canada.ca/en/public-health/services/diseases/2019-novel-coronavirus-infection.html
https://www.alphaweb.org/page/alPHa_Letters
mailto:lynnerussell@rrfss.ca
https://news.ontario.ca/en
http://www.alphaweb.org/
mailto:info@alphaweb.org
https://twitter.com/PHAgencies
https://www.linkedin.com/company/association-of-local-public-health-agencies


From: allhealthunits on behalf of alPHa communications
To: AllHealthUnits@lists.alphaweb.org
Cc: board@lists.alphaweb.org
Subject: [allhealthunits] September 2022 InfoBreak
Date: Friday, September 16, 2022 12:49:36 PM

This email originated outside of Algoma Public Health. Do not open attachments or click links unless
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

 

View this email in your browser

PLEASE ROUTE TO:

All Board of Health Members
All Members of Regional Health & Social Service Committees
All Senior Public Health Managers

September 16, 2022

Logo

September 2022 InfoBreak
This update is a tool to keep alPHa's members apprised of the latest news in public

health including provincial announcements, legislation, alPHa activities,
correspondence, and events. Visit us at alphaweb.org.

Leader to Leader – A Message from the alPHa President -
September 2022

Page 145 of 158

Page 158 of 298

mailto:allhealthunits-bounces@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:communications@alphaweb.org
mailto:AllHealthUnits@lists.alphaweb.org
mailto:board@lists.alphaweb.org
https://us8.campaign-archive.com/?e=__test_email__&u=278a9d27d90128dae8fa9ea28&id=c3712d49d9
http://alphaweb.org/


“We cannot be mere consumers of good governance, we must be participants, we
must be co-creators.” – Rohini Nilekani

This speaks true for alPHa members. That is why I am pleased to tell you that the
alPHa Board ensures a focus on good governance and the goals as set out by alPHa’s
Strategic Plan, its principles, and policies and procedures.

Good governance is the hallmark of integrity and with that in mind, and at the risk of
being repetitious, I feel it is important to reiterate some key points from the August
2022 issue of Information Break. Recently, at the Association of Municipalities of
Ontario Conference, I had the opportunity to speak to attendees, many of them board
of health members from across Ontario, who want to ensure good governance, due
diligence and that the important work of public health carries on during and post-
election. Establishing provisions and ensuring these are in place until new board of
health members are appointed is key to achieving this. Given that Ontario’s boards of
health can be autonomous, semi-autonomous or regional, and that each board has
their own by-laws and policies, there are variations on how boards will make this
happen.

Some boards will put in place an ‘acting’ chair if the current chair or vice-chair are
elected municipal councillors since their current term is expiring. This would be a
short-term position during the transition period. It would be a board member whose
term continues throughout this time. For example, they may have been appointed
provincially, under an Order in Council, or as a local representative by their board of
health. Some boards will give limited delegation powers to their MOH/CEO to manage
any emergencies before the first meeting of the appointed municipal members to the
board of health. This second scenario is what municipal councils do to get through the
same time-period for other municipal related boards. A resolution delegating these
powers can be clear on matters that cannot be dealt with during the interim period
without the board in place such as spending limits and budgetary matters etc.

Here is a call to action to share your best practices in this regard so alPHa can share
with others. Your contributions will be attributed to your health unit and board of
health. alPHa’s goal is to support its membership and is interested in collecting best
practices, protocols, and policies on such procedures deployed during the municipal
election process and leading up to and until the new municipal board of health
members are in place. Send your submissions to Loretta Ryan, alPHa’s Executive
Director loretta@alphaweb.org.

Page 146 of 158

Page 159 of 298

mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org


Risk management, ethics, compliance, administrative policies, and procedures are all
aspects of good governance and its accountable mechanisms encompass the entire
organization. As such, alPHa’s 2023 Winter Symposium will be offering orientation and
governance training to its membership. So, stay tuned for details!

Trudy Sachowski
President

“The quality of a leader is reflected in the standards they set for themselves.”

AMO - Strengthening Public Health in Ontario: Now and for the
Future

The Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) has submitted to the government,
“Strengthening Public Health in Ontario: Now and for the Future.” The submission
notes that Ontario’s municipal governments have a vested interest in strengthening
the public health system for the residents they serve given their role as governors, co-
funders, and employers. AMO states their goal is to work with the Province of Ontario
to strengthen public health, help end hallway health care, and reduce overall health
care costs while strengthening the public health system in Ontario now and in the
future.

The municipal elections are fast approaching!

Page 147 of 158

Page 160 of 298

https://www.amo.on.ca/sites/default/files/assets/DOCUMENTS/Submissions/Strengthening_Public%20Health_in_Ontario_Now_an_for_the_Future_AMO_Submision_20220826_RPT.pdf


Many alPHa members are using the following resources to help prepare their key
messages on local public health:

1. The Future of Public Health in Ontario
alPHa_Letter_PH_Restructuring_180722.pdf (ymaws.com) (Includes alPHa
Resolution: Public Health Restructuring/Modernization & COVID-19 :A22-
2_PH_Restructuring.pdf (ymaws.com)

2. alPHa’s Public Health Resilience in Ontario Clearing the Backlog, Resuming
Routine Programs, and Maintaining an Effective Covid-19 Response. report and
executive summary

3. Pre-Budget Consultations
4. alPHa 2022 Elections Primer
5. alPHa’s submissions on PH Modernization, including the Statement of Principles
6. “What is Public Health?”
7. alPHa Resource Page on Public Health Modernization
8. Public Health Matters video

Thank you to PHUs

Page 148 of 158

Page 161 of 298

https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278%2FalPHa_Letter_PH_Restructuring_180722.pdf&data=05%7C01%7CMichael.Sherar%40oahpp.ca%7C01c8f3782f2d4aba725108da906bd758%7Ccddc1229ac2a4b97b78a0e5cacb5865c%7C0%7C0%7C637981091752992025%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ak8alHMz2DIslbWcxCnG7XME52PPQrKiKLHXXZTyDmQ%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F9DD68D5D-CEFD-443B-B2B5-E76AE0CC6FCB%2FA22-2_PH_Restructuring.pdf&data=05%7C01%7CMichael.Sherar%40oahpp.ca%7C01c8f3782f2d4aba725108da906bd758%7Ccddc1229ac2a4b97b78a0e5cacb5865c%7C0%7C0%7C637981091752992025%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=eiPO%2FC5oU%2B4ZNfzXG7qA%2Fh4Kzsm%2FJM5T0gyuPGjnCHo%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F9DD68D5D-CEFD-443B-B2B5-E76AE0CC6FCB%2FA22-2_PH_Restructuring.pdf&data=05%7C01%7CMichael.Sherar%40oahpp.ca%7C01c8f3782f2d4aba725108da906bd758%7Ccddc1229ac2a4b97b78a0e5cacb5865c%7C0%7C0%7C637981091752992025%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=eiPO%2FC5oU%2B4ZNfzXG7qA%2Fh4Kzsm%2FJM5T0gyuPGjnCHo%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9%2FalPHa_PH_Resilience_Report_Final_Jan2022.pdf&data=05%7C01%7CMichael.Sherar%40oahpp.ca%7C01c8f3782f2d4aba725108da906bd758%7Ccddc1229ac2a4b97b78a0e5cacb5865c%7C0%7C0%7C637981091752992025%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=FEGy1x5%2BlifQT4qEHdWaWa7RXqhVqkdXzhi%2BQIRpskM%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9%2FalPHa_PH_Resilience_Report_Exec_Sum_Jan2022.pdf&data=05%7C01%7CMichael.Sherar%40oahpp.ca%7C01c8f3782f2d4aba725108da906bd758%7Ccddc1229ac2a4b97b78a0e5cacb5865c%7C0%7C0%7C637981091752992025%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=eRxTvno3dUR8RI%2FTEnfpcARnAH9YSq7UTQnw4hPkP0Y%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9%2FalPHa_Deputation_SCEFA_Transcript_190122.pdf&data=05%7C01%7CMichael.Sherar%40oahpp.ca%7C01c8f3782f2d4aba725108da906bd758%7Ccddc1229ac2a4b97b78a0e5cacb5865c%7C0%7C0%7C637981091752992025%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Lk8syIYPSFYlr3AlApMibc0NW%2FEX2GJjdO1U4tbmWQA%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9%2FalPHa_Election_Primer_2022.pdf&data=05%7C01%7CMichael.Sherar%40oahpp.ca%7C01c8f3782f2d4aba725108da906bd758%7Ccddc1229ac2a4b97b78a0e5cacb5865c%7C0%7C0%7C637981091753148683%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=VQxhF9XV4B6lPxEyF2BntyRY91yNQtSwPS4Ccj0HvNU%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fpage%2FPHR_Responses&data=05%7C01%7CMichael.Sherar%40oahpp.ca%7C01c8f3782f2d4aba725108da906bd758%7Ccddc1229ac2a4b97b78a0e5cacb5865c%7C0%7C0%7C637981091753148683%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=s7yjrqCKwO8oBJY5PFco16zvicwJUEC3lXuHvwSX07I%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9%2F2019_alPHa_Public_Health_Principles_FINAL.pdf&data=05%7C01%7CMichael.Sherar%40oahpp.ca%7C01c8f3782f2d4aba725108da906bd758%7Ccddc1229ac2a4b97b78a0e5cacb5865c%7C0%7C0%7C637981091753148683%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=sa0RhVJBrI2IeH2XMWJFK9hKJaOSAkdExiQRmcCcHmQ%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.ymaws.com%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fresource%2Fcollection%2F86D31666-E7EA-42F1-BDA1-A03ECA0B4E3D%2Ftrifold_brochure_alpha.pdf&data=05%7C01%7CMichael.Sherar%40oahpp.ca%7C01c8f3782f2d4aba725108da906bd758%7Ccddc1229ac2a4b97b78a0e5cacb5865c%7C0%7C0%7C637981091753148683%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=7Fb5kfCIhmITRvVW2Ud6KD1gqcmQo%2FeDTfbl6GfEADc%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fpage%2FPHR_Responses&data=05%7C01%7CMichael.Sherar%40oahpp.ca%7C01c8f3782f2d4aba725108da906bd758%7Ccddc1229ac2a4b97b78a0e5cacb5865c%7C0%7C0%7C637981091753148683%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=s7yjrqCKwO8oBJY5PFco16zvicwJUEC3lXuHvwSX07I%3D&reserved=0
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lRN9g4a0iNU


As we head into the fall season, I would like to give a shout out to alPHa’s many
volunteers, particularly our Board members and those who participate on our many
committees and working groups. If you have not yet had a chance to see who is on
the 2022-2023 alPHa Board, you can view a list with their bios on the alPHa website.
Thank you to all of these public health leaders who are taking time out of their busy
schedules to represent the public health system and to contribute to the work of the
association.

On behalf of alPHa, I would also like to thank the Public Health Units who have
directly partnered with us to support alPHa during the pandemic response. We quite
literally could not have done what we did over the past two and a half years without
the dedicated efforts of staff from the PHUs who assisted with public policy reports,
communication products, alPHa educational events, and other association activities. In
particular, I would like to thank the following:

Eastern Ontario Health Unit
Halton Region Health Department
Haliburton, Kawartha, Pine Ridge District Health Unit
Northwestern Health Unit
Public Health Sudbury & Districts
Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit
Toronto Public Health

 
Thank you again to all of alPHa’s volunteers! #PublicHealthLeaders

Loretta Ryan
Executive Director

alPHa Correspondence

Page 149 of 158

Page 162 of 298

https://www.alphaweb.org/page/BOD


Through policy analysis, collaboration, and advocacy, alPHa’s members and staff act
to promote public health policies that form a strong foundation for the improvement
of health promotion and protection, disease prevention, and surveillance services in all
of Ontario’s communities. Below are submissions that have been sent in since the last
newsletter. A complete online library is available here.

MMAH Response - Resolution A22-3 - Cooling Towers 
August 24, 2022 letter from the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing to the
President of the Association of Local Public Health Agencies.

alPHa Letter - Chief of Nursing/ADM
September 6, 2022 letter from the Association of Local Public Health Agencies
congratulating the new Chief of Nursing & Professional Practice & Assistant Deputy
Minister of Health.

alPHa Letter - President & CEO, PHO
July 18, 2022 letter from the alPHa ED welcoming Dr. Michael Sherar as the new
President and CEO of Public Health Ontario.

alPHa Letter - Resolution A22-5 - Harm Reduction
July 18, 2022 letter to the Minister of Health that introduces alPHa Resolution A22-5,
Indigenous Harm Reduction - A Wellness Journey.

alPHa Letter - Resolution A22-4 - Opioids
July 18, 2022 alPHa letter to the Minister of Health that introduces Resolution A22-4,
Priorities for Provincial Action on the Drug/Opioid Poisoning Crisis in Ontario.

alPHa Letter - Resolution A22-3 - Cooling Towers
July 18, 2022 alPHa letter to the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing that
introduces Resolution A22-3, which calls for a provincial cooling tower registry for the
public health management of legionella outbreaks.

alPHa Letter - Resolution A22-1 - Racism & Health
July 18, 2022 letter to the Minister of Health that introduces Resolution A22-1, Race-
Based Inequities in Health.

alPHa Letter - The Future of Public Health

Page 150 of 158

Page 163 of 298

https://www.alphaweb.org/page/alPHa_Letters
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/MMAH__Reply_A22-3_Legionella_240822.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_CNO_060922.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_PHO_CEO_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_A22-5_Indigenous_HR_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_A22-4_Opioids_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_A22-3_Legionella_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_A22-1_Racism_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_PH_Restructuring_180722.pdf


July 18, 2022 letter to the Minister of Health that provides several documents
(Including Resolution A22-2, Public Health Restructuring/Modernization & COVID-19)
that give an overview of alPHa’s positions and principles that we hope will be carefully
considered as Ontario’s public health system is reviewed and strengthened in the
wake of the emergency phase of the COVID-19 response. Note: This is a follow up to
the welcome letter sent to the new Minister on June 27, 2022.

alPHa Letter - 2022 Resolutions
July 18, 2022 letter from the President of the Association of Local Public Health
Agencies that introduces five resolutions that were passed by our members at the
2022 Annual General Meeting.

Boards of Health: Shared Resources

A resource page is available on alPHa's website for Board of Health members to
facilitate the sharing of and access to orientation materials, best practices, by-laws,
resolutions, and other resources. If you have a best practice, by-law or any other
resource that you would like to make available, please send a file or a link with a brief
description to gordon@alphaweb.org and for posting in the appropriate library.

Resources available on the alPHa website include:

Orientation Manual for Board of
Health
Review of Board of Health Liability
(PowerPoint presentation
Governance Toolkit
Risk Management for Health Units
Healthy Rural Communities Toolkit

The Ontario Public Health Standards
Public Appointee Role and
Governance Overview
Ontario Boards of Health by Region
List of Units sorted by Municipality
List of Municipalities sorted by
Health Unit

Public Health Ontario

Page 151 of 158

Page 164 of 298

https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_Welcome_Minister_270622.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/8732D26A-679B-4AB9-9C50-532E0CC3A278/alPHa_Letter_2022_Resolutions_180722.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/page/BOH_Shared_Resources
mailto:gordon@alphaweb.org
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/resmgr/boh_file/boh_orientation_manual.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/resmgr/boh_file/boh_orientation_manual.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/resmgr/boh_file/board_liability_paper_2018.pdf
https://alphaweb.site-ym.com/global_engine/download.aspx?fileid=575E6376-849F-45A0-BC83-7003F04258F6
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/resmgr/boh_file/alpha_boh_governance_toolkit.pdf
https://www.alphaweb.org/page/RiskMgmt
https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/resmgr/docs/healthy_rural_communities_to.pdf
http://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/default.aspx?/index.html
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/86D31666-E7EA-42F1-BDA1-A03ECA0B4E3D/PAS_Appointee_Orientation_090819.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/86D31666-E7EA-42F1-BDA1-A03ECA0B4E3D/PAS_Appointee_Orientation_090819.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/86D31666-E7EA-42F1-BDA1-A03ECA0B4E3D/Health_Unit_By_Municipality.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/86D31666-E7EA-42F1-BDA1-A03ECA0B4E3D/Municipality_By_Health_Unit.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/86D31666-E7EA-42F1-BDA1-A03ECA0B4E3D/Municipality_By_Health_Unit.pdf


PHO offers online educational courses in a variety of topics – from health promotion
to infection prevention and control. They’re convenient, too - you can access these
courses anytime, anywhere. Visit the course catalogue, where you’ll find enrolment
information and a list of courses along with their descriptions and system
requirements, as well as information for downloading courses.

Variants of Concern 
COVID-19 in Ontario: Focus on August 28, 2022 to September 3, 2022
Estimates of Omicron BA.2 Lineage Severity in an Ontario-based Matched Cohort
Study of Cases: March 1-April 30, 2022

 
Check out PHO’s Variants of Concern web page for the most up-to-date resources.

Immunizations

Management of Anaphylaxis Following Immunization in the Community
 
Infection Prevention and Control

Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC) Systems in Buildings and
COVID-19

 
Check out PHO’s COVID-19 webpage for a comprehensive list of all COVID-19
resources.

Additional Resources - New

Monkeypox Resources
Public Health Actions from Wastewater Surveillance on Poliovirus
Hepatitis B Vaccines and Schedules
Activities to Support Infection Prevention and Control Practices in Congregate
Living Settings

Open Call for Members | Ontario Public Health Emergencies
Science Advisory Committee

The Ontario Public Health Emergencies Science Advisory Committee (OPHESAC) is
currently recruiting members. Check out the full call for members for more details and
requirements. Interested candidates should send their expression of interest, with a
curriculum vitae and complete contact details to secretariat@oahpp.ca by Friday,
September 23, 2022 at 11:59 p.m. ET.

Page 152 of 158

Page 165 of 298

https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/education-and-events/online-learning
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/epi/covid-19-weekly-epi-summary-report.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/epi/2022/08/omicron-ba2-severity-ontario-cohort-study.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/epi/2022/08/omicron-ba2-severity-ontario-cohort-study.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/diseases-and-conditions/infectious-diseases/respiratory-diseases/novel-coronavirus/variants
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/Vaccines/2021/03/managing-anaphalaxis-following-immunization.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/ipac/2020/09/covid-19-hvac-systems-in-buildings.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/ipac/2020/09/covid-19-hvac-systems-in-buildings.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Diseases-and-Conditions/Infectious-Diseases/Respiratory-Diseases/Novel-Coronavirus
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Diseases-and-Conditions/Infectious-Diseases/Vector-Borne-Zoonotic-Diseases/Monkeypox
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/P/2021/public-health-actions-wastewater-surveillance-poliovirus.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/H/2022/hepatitis-b-vaccines-schedules-faq.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/cong/2022/08/ipac-activities-support-practices-congregate-living-settings.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/cong/2022/08/ipac-activities-support-practices-congregate-living-settings.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/About/External-Advisory-Committees/OPHESAC/Call-for-Members
mailto:secretariat@oahpp.ca


PHO Events
In case you missed these sessions last month, here are the Presentations PHO posted
on their website:

PHO Rounds: Opioid Toxicity Among Ontarians Who Worked in the Construction
Industry
PHO Rounds: Building Climate Resilient Health Systems: Lessons from Health of
Canadians in a Changing Climate - Science Assessment 2022

Upcoming DLSPH Events and Webinars

CVPD Fall Symposium: Healthy Aging and Immunization (Sept. 16)
One on One with Steini Brown: Towards a Sustainable Recovery (Sept. 21)
Indigenizing Health Symposium: Rethinking with Spirit (Sept. 28-29)

COVID-19 Update
The digital team at the Ministry of Health has launched a new landing page and new
streamlined content pages for COVID-19 content.

The new landing page, which replaces covid-19.ontario.ca, can now be found at:
https://www.ontario.ca/page/covid-19-coronavirus (English)
https://www.ontario.ca/fr/page/covid-19-le-coronavirus (French)

As well, the ministry has overhauled the previous versions of the public health
measures pages, six vaccine pages, and testing and treatment pages, which can now
be found at:
https://www.ontario.ca/page/public-health-measures-and-advice
https://www.ontario.ca/page/covid-19-vaccines
https://www.ontario.ca/page/covid-19-testing-and-treatment

As part of the response to COVID-19, alPHa continues to represent the public health
system and work with key stakeholders. “NOTE: In alignment with the wind-down of
provincial emergency response measures and the shift to managing COVID-19
through routine operations, the ministry’s daily COVID-19 Situation Report will no
longer be distributed after June 10 2022. COVID-19 data will continue to be reported
on the Ministry of Health website and through the Public Health Ontario’s COVID-19
data tool.”

Visit the Ministry of Health’s page on guidance for the health sector

Page 153 of 158

Page 166 of 298

https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Event-Presentations/2022/opioid-toxicity-ontario-construction-workers.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Event-Presentations/2022/opioid-toxicity-ontario-construction-workers.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Event-Presentations/2022/building-climate-resilient-health-systems.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Event-Presentations/2022/building-climate-resilient-health-systems.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://www.dlsph.utoronto.ca/event/cvpd-fall-symposium-healthy-aging-and-immunization/
https://www.dlsph.utoronto.ca/event/one-on-one-with-steini-brown-towards-a-sustainable-recovery/
https://www.dlsph.utoronto.ca/event/indigenizing-health-symposium-rethinking-with-spirit/
https://www.ontario.ca/page/covid-19-coronavirus
https://www.ontario.ca/fr/page/covid-19-le-coronavirus
https://www.ontario.ca/page/public-health-measures-and-advice
https://www.ontario.ca/page/covid-19-vaccines
https://www.ontario.ca/page/covid-19-testing-and-treatment
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcovid-19.ontario.ca%2Fdata&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7C8b44d4f28ac045024a7708da815035ba%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637964479358076281%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=pAatW7KGCwG%2FPFmdU3kZ6DfUKtXLYb8%2BCZs%2B0S9dhb4%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.publichealthontario.ca%2Fen%2FData-and-Analysis%2FInfectious-Disease%2FCOVID-19-Data-Surveillance%2FCOVID-19-Data-Tool%3Ftab%3Dsummary&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7C8b44d4f28ac045024a7708da815035ba%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637964479358076281%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=KNSDUKklH%2BmwPYQWh3eGJLka2FnaPI6WrfbWVAzd6lQ%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.publichealthontario.ca%2Fen%2FData-and-Analysis%2FInfectious-Disease%2FCOVID-19-Data-Surveillance%2FCOVID-19-Data-Tool%3Ftab%3Dsummary&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7C8b44d4f28ac045024a7708da815035ba%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637964479358076281%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=KNSDUKklH%2BmwPYQWh3eGJLka2FnaPI6WrfbWVAzd6lQ%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.health.gov.on.ca%2Fen%2Fpro%2Fprograms%2Fpublichealth%2Fcoronavirus%2F2019_guidance.aspx&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7C8b44d4f28ac045024a7708da815035ba%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637964479358076281%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=hzZaxbrRAWZFcENfVcqr4wbZf1lBnEPLPQTKE4Tb66k%3D&reserved=0


View the Ministry’s website on the status of COVID-19 cases
Go to Public Health Ontario’s COVID-19 website
Visit the Public Health Agency of Canada’s COVID-19 website
alPHa’s recent COVID-19 related submissions can be found here

Hold the date for the Winter Symposium and Annual Conference &
AGM

alPHa’s Winter Symposium is being held on February 24, 2023.

The Annual Conference and AGM is being held from June 11-13, 2023. Please stay
tuned for further information.

News Releases
The most up to date news releases from the Government of Ontario can be accessed
here.

Copyright (C) *|2022|* *|Association of Local Public Health Agencies|*. All rights reserved.

Our mailing address is:
*|480 University Ave. Suite 300 Toronto, Ont. M5G 1V2|*

Want to change how you receive these emails?

Page 154 of 158

Page 167 of 298

https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Fpage%2F2019-novel-coronavirus%3F_ga%3D2.178115365.1614363902.1583935912-1448909452.1583935912&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7C8b44d4f28ac045024a7708da815035ba%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637964479358076281%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=wO7pa3XO8k55TazCm0C0sAUQkk3U%2B%2F6XWRH1XGx%2BS8Q%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.publichealthontario.ca%2Fen%2Fdiseases-and-conditions%2Finfectious-diseases%2Frespiratory-diseases%2Fnovel-coronavirus&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7C8b44d4f28ac045024a7708da815035ba%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637964479358076281%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=RgDnqPnTMCY1LugPwXA1F4QLP3Mab9ThTiFtjagVX9g%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.canada.ca%2Fen%2Fpublic-health%2Fservices%2Fdiseases%2F2019-novel-coronavirus-infection.html&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7C8b44d4f28ac045024a7708da815035ba%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637964479358076281%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=mg5261ZS7NHUzuz8GWhcZJOVDwUS8kPBll3aJhDtjSo%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.alphaweb.org%2Fpage%2FalPHa_Letters&data=05%7C01%7Ctsachowski%40nwhu.on.ca%7C8b44d4f28ac045024a7708da815035ba%7C5378a419c9a348bda99e18a7cae49890%7C0%7C0%7C637964479358076281%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=HfAFKA08OYV6UwVQ595kc%2Bd6TmfLp6J6nXJw%2B6Gfq2g%3D&reserved=0
https://news.ontario.ca/en
https://linkedin.com/company/association-of-local-public-health-agencies
https://twitter.com/https:/twitter.com/PHAgencies


You can update your preferences or unsubscribe

Email Marketing Powered by Mailchimp

 

Page 155 of 158

Page 168 of 298

http://eepurl.com/h0Lhcn


 
 
              

 
September 1, 2022 

 
Hon. Jean-Yves Duclos                              via email: jean-yves.duclos@parl.gc.ca 
Minister of Health  
House of Commons  
Ottawa, ON K1A 0A6  
   
Dear Minister Duclos, 
 
Re: Federal Dental Care Program – Northern Perspectives 
 
With the launch of the federal dental care program looming, we- northern Ontario boards of health- 
wish to communicate our northern concerns and recommendations with you as you plan the structure 
of the new Canadian dental care program.   
 
In Ontario, provincial dental programs such as Healthy Smiles Ontario (HSO) and the Ontario Seniors 
Dental Care Program (OSDCP) have positioned boards of health to work in tandem with local dental 
service providers.  Through this experience, we have gained rich insight and compiled lessons learned 
from the lens of both the public and private sectors.   
 
Our message is clear- health disparities in northern communities are greater than in southern 
communities.  This truth will have implications for thousands of eligible children and adults across the 
country seeking dental care under the new program.  We foresee challenges such as inequities in dental 
care service delivery (i.e. access to care), and a demand that will outpace service provider capacity in the 
north (i.e. volume of eligible people in the north will increase, with not enough service providers).   
 
Poor health outcomes in the north are influenced by limitations to social and economic opportunities- 
income, housing, childhood development, social supports, and access to services in general, to name a 
few.1  Social and health structures significantly impact how services are delivered in the north; a fact 
that cannot be ignored when thousands of eligible northerners are awaiting much needed dental care.  
 
The following recommendations stem from our experience working with service providers in the north 
to implement HSO and the OSDCP.  We feel that the new federal dental care program can only be 
successful if existing gaps in the system are addressed, including disparities that northern communities 
experience.  
 
General system recommendations 
We support the recent letter submitted by the Ontario Association of Public Health Dentistry (OAPHD),2 
and wish to elaborate on, and add to, their set of recommendations:  
 
• Establish a technical advisory committee to guide planning and implementation  

o Establish a dental consultant/officer to provide consistent technical advice to program 
implementers; the need is especially great in the north, where there are fewer salaried 
dentists at public health units, making navigation of the OSDCP difficult  

                                                 
1 Health Quality Ontario (2018). Northern Ontario Health Equity Strategy: A plan for achieving health equity in the 
North, by the North, for the North.  Retrieved from https://www.hqontario.ca/Portals/0/documents/health-
quality/health-equity-strategy-report-en.pdf  
2 Ontario Association of Public Health Dentistry (OAPHD). June 2022. Federal Dental Care Program Letter.  

Page 156 of 158

Page 169 of 298

mailto:jean-yves.duclos@parl.gc.ca
https://www.hqontario.ca/Portals/0/documents/health-quality/health-equity-strategy-report-en.pdf
https://www.hqontario.ca/Portals/0/documents/health-quality/health-equity-strategy-report-en.pdf


 
• Create a national oral health strategy, and/or encourage the provinces to do so 

o Identify metrics that are important to collect and standardize data collection 
 
• Implement robust surveillance data 

o Consider cloud-based EMR so that clients have one record; easier for clients accessing care 
across districts and for surveillance (i.e. identification of health needs, trends) 

o Mandate the collection of oral health indicators across the province and report on findings 
to establish appropriate baseline data  

 
• Review and adjust remuneration rates for service providers to 75% of the current Ontario Dental 

Association Suggested Fee Guide for General Practitioners3 
o Existing payments do not reflect the rising cost of living, COVID-19 requirements for 

businesses, and the cost of running a dental clinic 
o The Ontario government has not raised fees paid to dental practitioners for their care since 

1998, other than an inflation adjustment in 2009-10, and currently pays fees at 
approximately 37% of the current Ontario Dental Association Suggested Fee Guide while 
overheads approximate 65-70%3 

Northern recommendations 
Northern communities will experience the new federal dental care program differently, due to 
accessibility challenges in the north, the ongoing challenge of service provider recruitment and 
retention, and the unique disparities experienced by northern clients and service providers, whose 
collective voice is sometimes not heard while planning large-scale programs.  
• Plan for accessibility challenges in the north 

o Consider the cost of delivering care in rural and remote communities in the funding formula 
(i.e. greater outreach costs for providers who must travel to provide care) 

o Continue to include provincial programs such as northern health travel grants; include this 
for all dental public health programs (i.e. children and adults)  

 
• Work with qualifying Universities and Colleges to strategically promote living and working in 

northern communities 
o Recruit new and future dental professionals to the north to help respond to a high demand 

for services (i.e. address the problem of not having enough dentists, especially those that 
value health equity) 

o There is great risk that this program may mirror family medicine challenges currently 
experienced in the north:  
 Service providers may not accept new clients due to full practices 
 Clients may be forced to wait months until an appointment is available; this is 

especially true for specialists (e.g. surgeons) 
 

• Engage northern voices from the start 
o Create an opportunity for northern residents and service providers to voice their 

thoughts/share experiences 

                                                 
3 Ottawa City Council- carried motion. Wednesday, June 22 2022. Retrieved from: 
https://app05.ottawa.ca/sirepub/mtgviewer.aspx?meetid=8584&doctype=SUMMARY  

Page 157 of 158

Page 170 of 298

https://app05.ottawa.ca/sirepub/mtgviewer.aspx?meetid=8584&doctype=SUMMARY


o Data indicates that northern disparities are real,1 however first-hand stories from residents 
and service providers can help meaningfully address northern-specific issues  

 

Thank you for recognizing the importance of oral health care for those who need it the most.  Public 
policy that prioritizes health equity by offering low-income residents the opportunity to live healthier, 
happier lives, inspires us.  We hope that you consider these recommendations as you plan the structure 
of the new federal dental care program.  We are available for any future collaboration opportunities, 
especially as they pertain to equitable planning for northern communities.  
 
 
Sincerely,  
Northern Ontario Medical Officers of Health  
 
Cc: (via email) Algoma Public Health – Dr. John Tuinema 

North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit – Dr. Jim Chirico 

Northwestern Health Unit – Dr. Kit Young Hoon 

Porcupine Health Unit – Dr. Lianne Catton 

Public Health Sudbury & Districts – Dr. Penny Sutcliffe 

Thunder Bay District Health Unit – Dr. Janet DeMille  

Timiskaming Health Unit – Dr. Glenn Corneil 

 
 

Page 158 of 158

Page 171 of 298



October 26, 2022

BOARD OF HEALTH MEETING

Algoma Community Room / Videoconference

www.algomapublichealth.com

1Page 172 of 298



11.. Call to OrderCall to Order

22.. Adoption of AgendaAdoption of Agenda

33.. Delegation/PresentationsDelegation/Presentations

44.. Adoption of MinutesAdoption of Minutes

a. Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive
Officer Report

i. Finance and Audit Committee Chair Report -
October 2022

37

ii. APH Unaudited Financial Statements ending
August 31, 2022

38

iii. 2023 Recommended Capital and Operating
Budget Report

46

iv. Briefing Note - Reimbursement of Funds to
Garden River Wellness Centre (GRWC) for
Services Not Rendered

80

b. Finance and Audit

i. Report of MOH CEO - October 2022 33

v. Briefing Note - Options for 2021 Public Health
Surplus

82

66.. Reports to BoardReports to Board

77.. New BusinessNew Business

a. Declaration of Conflict of Interest

a. October 26, 2022, Board of Health Meeting Agenda 4

a. Substance Use Program Update: A holistic
approach to addressing and preventing opioid-related
harms

7

a. September 28, 2022, Board of Health Meeting
Minutes

27

55.. Business ArisingBusiness Arising

c. Governance

Meeting Book - October 26, 2022, Board of Health MeetingMeeting Book - October 26, 2022, Board of Health Meeting

Table of ContentsTable of Contents

2Page 173 of 298



a. Increase in Provincial Base Funding for Local
Public Health

85

b. Northern Public Health Human Resource
Requirement Strategy

87

c. Review Base-Funding Needs for the Healthy
Babies Healthy Children Program

89

88.. CorrespondenceCorrespondence

99.. Items for InformationItems for Information

1414.. AnnouncementsAnnouncements

d. - Appendix GBHU BOH Motion 2022-49 Support for
a Local Board of Health

91

a. Letter to the Minister of Health from Peterborough
Public Health regarding AMO Submission -
Strengthening Public Health In Ontario: Now and For
the Future dated October 4, 2022.

94

a. alPHa October 2022 InfoBreak 96

1010.. AddendumAddendum

1111.. In-CameraIn-Camera

1212.. Open MeetingOpen Meeting

1313.. Resolutions Resulting From In-CameraResolutions Resulting From In-Camera

a. Next Meeting Dates

1515.. AdjournmentAdjournment

3Page 174 of 298



BOARD MEMBERS APH MEMBERS
PRESENSally Hagman - Chair

Lee Mason - 1st Vice-Chair
Deborah Graystone - 2nd Vice-Chair

Leo Vecchio - Manager of Communications
Micheline Hatfield Leslie Dunseath - Manager of Accounting Services
Musa Onyuna Liliana Bressan - Manager of Effective Public Health Practice
Ed Pearce Kimberly Aslett - Research Policy Advisor
Brent Rankin
Matthew Scott Tania Caputo - Board Secretary

Tanya Storozuk - Executive Assistant

1.0 Meeting Called to Order S. Hagman

a. 
b.

2.0 Adoption of Agenda S. Hagman

Moved: L. Mason 

3.0 Delegations / Presentations

a.

4.0 Adoption of Minutes of Previous Meeting S. Hagman

Moved: L. Caicco Tett

5.0 Business Arising from Minutes S. Hagman

Declaration of Conflict of Interest

RESOLUTION
THAT the Board of Health agenda dated October 26, 2022 be approved as presented.

Dr. John Tuinema - Acting Medical Officer of Health & CEO

RESOLUTION
THAT the Board of Health minutes dated September 28, 2022 be approved as presented.

H. Cutler, K.Godson,
L. O'Brien, A. Perri,Substance Use Program Update: A holistic approach to addressing and preventing 

opioid-related harms 

Antoniette Tomie - Director of Corporate Services
Laurie Zeppa - Director of Programs

Louise Caicco Tett

GUESTS 
Hilary Cutler, Manager of Community Wellness & Oral Health, Lisa O'Brien - Health Promotion Specialist, 
Kelly Godson - Public Health Nurse, Amanda Perri - Epidemiologist
Michael Meraglia & Mackenzie Wood-Salomon - BScN Consolidation Students

Land Acknowledgment 

Dr. Emma Pillsworth - PH and Preventive Medicine Resident

Board of Health Meeting 
AGENDA

October 26, 2022 at 5:00 pm
SSM Algoma Community Room & Videoconference 

4Page 175 of 298



6.0 Reports to the Board

a. Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer Reports J. Tuinema

i. 

Moved: B. Rankin

ii. J. Tuinema

b. Finance and Audit

i.
Moved: L. Mason

ii.

Moved: E. Pearce

iii. 2023 Recommended Capital and Operating Budget Report L. Mason

Moved:

iv. L. Mason

Moved:

v. L. Mason

Moved:

7.0 New Business/General Business

a. J. Tuinema

Moved: E. Pearce
THAT the Board of Health of Algoma Public Health write to the Ontario Minister of Health to 
request that the provincial government commit to increased base funding to local public health 
units, such that public health units are able to sustain and routinize COVID-19 response  and 
immunization, while simultaneously restoring the delivery of mandated public health programs 
and services, addressing the backlog of services suspended during the pandemic, and rebuilding 
local public health for resilience to protect the wellbeing of residents in Northern Ontario.   

Increase in Provincial Base Funding for Local Public Health

RESOLUTION

Unaudited Financial Statements for the period ending August 31, 2022.

RESOLUTION
THAT the Board of Health approves the Unaudited Financial Statements for the period ending 
August 31, 2022,  as presented.

RESOLUTION

RESOLUTION

Briefing Note - Options for 2021 Public Health Surplus

RESOLUTION

THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and accepts the recommendation of the Finance and 
Audit Committee to approve the 2023 Public Health Capital and Operating Budget Report.

THAT the Board of Health approve full reimbursement to the GRWC for services billed but not 
rendered during the COVID 19 pandemic.

Briefing Note - Reimbursement of Funds to Garden River Wellness Centre (GRWC) for 
Services Not Rendered

THAT the Board of Health approve Option 1 as outlined in the briefing note, to leave a portion of 
the 2021 surplus in the business account.  

RESOLUTION
THAT the report of the Medical Officer of Health and CEO for October 2022 be accepted as 
presented.

Algoma Ontario Health Team (AOHT) - Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
(posted in addendum)

L. Mason

MOH Report - October 2022

L. Mason

Finance and Audit Committee Chair Report
RESOLUTION

THAT the Finance and Audit Committee Chair Report for October 2022 be accepted as presented.

5Page 176 of 298



b. Northern Public Health Human Resource Requirement Strategy J. Tuinema

Moved: E. Pearce

c. Review Base-Funding Needs for the Healthy Babies Healthy Children Program J. Tuinema

Moved: E. Pearce

d. S. Hagman

8.0 Correspondence S. Hagman

a.

b.

9.0 Items for Information S. Hagman

a.

10.0 S. Hagman

11.0 S. Hagman

12.0 S. Hagman

Resolutions resulting from the in-camera meeting.

13.0 Announcements / Next Committee Meetings: S. Hagman

Finance and Audit Committee Meeting - Tentative

Wednesday, November 9, 2022 @ 5:00 pm
Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

Open Meeting

RESOLUTION

Addendum

In-Camera

For discussion of labour relations and employee negotiations, matters about identifiable 
individuals, adoption of in-camera minutes, security of the property of the board, litigation or 
potential litigation.

THAT the Board of Health of Algoma Public Health write to the Ontario Minister of Health to 
request that the provincial government commit to developing and supporting the implementation 
of a northern public health human resource strategy, with specific attention to public health 
inspectors, in collaboration with northern public health units, to address the longstanding public 
health human resource challenges in the north. 

alPHa Information Break - October 2022

RESOLUTION
THAT the Board of Health of Algoma Public Health endorse the letter from Public Health Sudbury 
& Districts to the Ontario Ministry of Children, Community and Social Services (Appendix) urging a 
review and increase of base-funding for the Healthy Babies Healthy Children program to ensure 
this critical program is sufficiently resourced to meet the current and growing needs of children 
and a healthy start in life.  

Letter to the Minister of Health from Peterborough Public Health regarding AMO Submission - 
Strengthening Public Health In Ontario: Now and For the Future dated October 4, 2022.

Letter to the Minister of Health from Algoma Public Health regarding Response to the Opioid 
Poisoning Crisis: A Comprehensive Public Health Approach for Substance Use Prevention 
and Harm Reduction dated October 24, 2022. 
(posted in addendum)

Pandemic Restrictions Take a Toll on Kids’ Physical Fitness
(posted in addendum )

6Page 177 of 298



Governance Committee Meeting - Tentative

Wednesday, November 16, 2022 @ 5:00 pm
Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

BOH Reconciliation Training - Tentative

Board of Health Meeting - Tentative

14.0 Monthly Evaluation S. Hagman

15.0 Adjournment S. Hagman

Moved: M. Hatfield
THAT the Board of Health meeting adjourns.

RESOLUTION

Wednesday, November 23, 2022 @ 4:30 pm
Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

Wednesday, November 23, 2022 @ 5:00 pm
Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

7Page 178 of 298



Substance Use Program Update:
A holistic approach to addressing & preventing opioid-related harms 

Hilary Cutler, Program Manager, Community Wellness

Dr. Amanda Perri, Epidemiologist

Lisa O’Brien, Health Promotion Specialist

Kelly Godson, Public Health Nurse

October 26, 2022

8Page 179 of 298



• Opioids – a complex public health issue

• Surveillance update

• Local response plan

• Next steps

Overview

9Page 180 of 298



Ontario Public Health Standards

• Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care. (2018). Substance use prevention and harm reduction guideline, 2018.
• Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care. (2021). Ontario public health standards: Requirements for programs, services, and accountability.

10Page 181 of 298

https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Substance_Use_Prevention_and_Harm_Reduction_Guideline_2018_en.pdf
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf


APH Strategic Plan

• Algoma Public Health. (2020). 2020-2025 strategic plan. Internal document. 

• Program activities underway align
with our 3 strategic directions

• Direction 1c: Working with
priority populations to develop a
shared, holistic understand of
community needs is at the core
of this work

11Page 182 of 298



Opioids: A complex public health issue

• Canadian Public Health Association. (2017). Position statement: Decriminalization of personal use of psychoactive substances.
• CATIE. (2021). Safe supply: What is it and what is happening in Canada? 
• Government of Canada. (2019). Canadian drugs and substances strategy. 

12Page 183 of 298

https://www.cpha.ca/decriminalization-personal-use-psychoactive-substances
https://www.catie.ca/prevention-in-focus/safe-supply-what-is-it-and-what-is-happening-in-canada
https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/substance-use/canadian-drugs-substances-strategy.html


Opioid Surveillance Update 
Northern and Local Data 

13Page 184 of 298



• Opioid-Related Deaths During COVID-19 North, 2021; date retrieved: July 20, 2021.

Northern Ontario: Distribution of Opioid Related 
Deaths by Age

0

50

100

150

200

250

<25 25 to 44 45 to 64 65 +

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

O
p

io
id

-R
e

la
te

d
 D

e
a

th
s

Age Group
Pre-Pandemic Cohort

Pre-pandemic Cohort (n=185): 
Mar 16, 2019- Mar 15, 2020 

Pandemic Cohort (n=365): 
Mar 16, 2020 - Mar 15, 2021 

14Page 185 of 298



*Preliminary data, including up until March 31, 2022

• Public Health Ontario. Interactive opioid tool: Opioid-related morbidity and mortality in Ontario. 

Local Snapshot: Algoma

*

15Page 186 of 298

https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/data-and-analysis/substance-use/interactive-opioid-tool#/maps


*Preliminary data, including up until March 31, 2022

• Public Health Ontario. Interactive opioid tool: Opioid-related morbidity and mortality in Ontario. 

Local Snapshot: Algoma

*

16Page 187 of 298

https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/data-and-analysis/substance-use/interactive-opioid-tool#/maps


• Public Health Ontario. Interactive opioid tool: Opioid-related morbidity and mortality in Ontario. 

Local Snapshot: Algoma

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

R
a

te
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
, 

0
0

0

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

ca
se

s

Year

Opioid-related deaths by sex, 2005-2021

Male cases Female cases Male rates Female rates

*Data for 2021 should be considered preliminary and subject to change.

*

*

17Page 188 of 298

https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/data-and-analysis/substance-use/interactive-opioid-tool#/maps


Local Response Plan & 
Community Engagement

18Page 189 of 298



Local Response Plan

• To get a better understanding of the current opioid climate in Algoma, in order to
provide accurate information and useful recommendations to influence change

Why?

• The following data is being gathered:

• Local surveillance data

• Early warning systems

• Community engagement*

• Best-practice evidence

How? 

• Findings will be summarized in a community report to help inform community
partners, as well as the general public, about the current opioid situation in
Algoma and how to effectively move forward to improve health for all, together

What?

19Page 190 of 298



Community Partner Interviews (Jan-Feb 2020)

• 15 interviews with people working in a variety of settings within the pillars of harm reduction,
enforcement, treatment and recovery and prevention and education

• Questions aim to understand their role, the clients they work with, substances used, barriers
to accessing services, ideas for overcoming barriers, and how empowered they feel to
influence change

• Interview transcripts are being analyzed and themed by the Research and Policy Advisor (RPA)
and Health Promotion Specialist (HPS)

Local Response Plan

20Page 191 of 298



Client Interviews (Aug 2022 – Present)

• Interviewing clients who are using or have used substances in the past

• All APH district offices participating

• Aim to understand barriers to treatment and recovery and stigma in Algoma

Family & Friend Interviews (Sept 2022 - Present)

• Client interview questions revised for family and/or friends of people who

are using or have used substances, or have lost somebody who had a

substance use disorder

• Similar aim as client interviews, with the addition of trying to understand

how to support mental health of family/friends

Community Engagement

21Page 192 of 298



Barriers identified:

• System Navigation

• Wait lists and time to access services

• Staffing and burnout

• SDOH (housing, food, transportation, access to HCP)

• Stigma (health care, non-health care, community)

• Communication between agencies

• Limited hours of operation for services

• Policies

“… it [stigma] is out there where it 
really shouldn’t be. We should be past 

that point by now.”

“How can anyone get better – how 
can we expect them to get better –

when there is no housing, no shelter, 
no food, limited access to support?”

“We could reach so many more 
people, but there is not enough time 
in the day/enough people – you can 
only work so many hours in a week 

before you burn yourself out.”

What are we hearing? 
Emerging themes from community partners

22Page 193 of 298



What are we hearing? 
Emerging themes from client interviews

Contributing factors 
leading to substance 
use:

• Homelessness

• Trauma

What is helping?

• Services are being
accessed (e.g. Narcotics
Anonymous)

What is needed?

• Stigma reduction (all
people are important)

• Not enough services
available (e.g.
counselling)

23Page 194 of 298



Our Way Forward…

24Page 195 of 298



Community Report
• Theme, analyze, and summarize all interview responses

• Share results with partners and the general public

2022-2023 Program Goals
• Influence community dialogue re: the importance of prevention and harm reduction

• Continue to collaborate with partners to integrate community intel and knowledge into
planning processes

• Reduce stigma associated with substance use

• Continue to advocate for local needs

• Continue to advocate for health, social, and economic policies

Next Steps

25Page 196 of 298



• Conrad N. Hilton Foundation’s Youth Substance Use Prevention and Early Intervention Strategic Initiative. (n.d.) Moving upstream: Addressing youth substance use. 

Thinking Upstream

26Page 197 of 298

https://sbirt.webs.com/Hilton_Foundation_Youth_Substance_Use_Prevention_Infographic.pdf


Thank you. Questions?

27Page 198 of 298



Prepared by:   
Dr. John Tuinema and the 
Leadership Team 

Presented to:  
Algoma Public Health Board of Health 

 

Report of the 

Medical Officer of Health / CEO 

October 26, 2022 

34Page 199 of 298



Report of the Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
October 26, 2022 
Page 1 of 3 

Program Highlights Pages 3-10 Program Highlights Pages  5 - 11 APH At-a-Glance Page   2 APH At-a-Glance Page   2 - 3 TABLE OF CONTENTS

APH At-a-Glance Page   2-3 

35Page 200 of 298



Report of the Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
October 26, 2022 
Page 2 of 3 

COVID-19 Pandemic in Algoma: An Update 

In late September and early October 2022, we began to see a rise in high-risk COVID-19 cases and in other 
pandemic indicators (e.g. hospitalizations, outbreaks). This was not unexpected, as COVID-19 infections are 
predicted to increase in the fall with colder weather and more time spent indoors. In response, public messaging 
was sent out via a news release1 on October 6th and social media messaging to inform the public of the situation 
and provide information on how to stay safe during respiratory season (e.g. self-screening and staying home if ill, 
staying up to date on vaccinations, wearing a mask when in indoor or crowded spaces, etc.).  

A further surge of cases occurred following the Thanksgiving weekend. This further increase in high-risk COVID-19 
cases seems to be reducing, but case rates have not fallen to pre-October levels. So far, this increase in cases has 
been manageable for the Infectious Diseases team from a case management standpoint. Outbreaks in high-risk 
settings have also increased, and our public health inspectors and facility liaisons are working diligently with 
partners to keep residents of and staff in these settings as safe as possible.  

We continue to strongly recommend that all Algoma residents stay up to date on their COVID-19 vaccinations this 
fall. Staying up to date means receiving all recommended vaccine doses, including any booster doses, when 
eligible. Appointments remain available at public health clinics, Indigenous community clinics, select primary care 
offices, and participating pharmacies. 

As of October 12th, Ontarians aged 12+ are eligible to receive a bivalent booster dose of COVID-19 vaccine at a 
recommended 6 months since their last dose. Booster doses remain most important for high-risk individuals (i.e. 
those aged 65+) in Algoma, who should receive a booster dose at the minimum 3-month interval after their last 
dose. 

We continue to monitor the ongoing pandemic and will adjust our response as it develops. 

Flu Shots Become Available  

In early October, APH, pharmacies, and participating health care providers opened booking for annual influenza 
immunizations. Many appointments remain available, and we encourage residents to receive an annual flu shot to 
protect themselves and others in our community. 

Residents of Algoma aged 5+ are able to safely receive their annual flu shot at the same time or at any time before 
or after the COVID-19 vaccine. Children under 5 are recommended to receive their COVID-19 vaccine 14 days 
before or after receiving any other immunization to allow for differentiation of any adverse effects.  

Although a separate vaccine is needed to protect ourselves from the flu, many of the measures we use daily to 
protect ourselves against COVID-19 are effective in protecting us against influenza (masking, distancing, etc.).  

COVID-19 Pandemic Recovery and Strategic Plan 

The Recovery Taskforce continues to meet regularly to plan for recovery through the use of our Recovery Action 
Plan to routinize COVID-19 response, restore core programs, and rebuild public health, all centred in the 

1 Algoma Public Health. COVID numbers on the rise: residents are reminded to take necessary precautions. Published October 6, 2022. Accessed October 20, 2022. 
https://www.algomapublichealth.com/news/covid-numbers-on-the-rise-residents-are-reminded-to-take-necessary-precautions/ 

APH AT-A-GLANCE 

36Page 201 of 298



Report of the Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
October 26, 2022 
Page 3 of 3 

revitalization of our public health teams. We have begun introducing staff to the plan through various means and 
continue work to ensure it guides and informs all aspects of our work. 

As part of recovery, I have sent out bi-weekly MOH e-mail updates to all employees. In a recent update to staff on 
the National Day for Truth and Reconciliation/Orange Shirt Day, it was discussed how we can entrench the values 
of reconciliation into our work through the strategic plan. The following is an excerpt from this update as an 
example of how our strategic plan can be used to advance health equity in Algoma and our work towards the 
shared goal of Reconciliation: 

“Wearing an orange shirt to honour residential school survivors, those who died, as well as their families and 
communities sends an important message, but it’s not sufficient. We have to be careful to ensure that outward 
expressions of support don’t become empty gestures. It’s important to take action, but even that may not be 
enough as sometimes these actions fall to the wayside as competing priorities come up. To prevent that from 
happening, organizations need to entrench these values and directions into the very core of their guiding 
documents and plans.  

As mentioned at the town hall, we plan on launching our strategic plan that was approved just prior to the 
pandemic. I brought it to the board Wednesday night [September 22nd, 2022], and they were in favour of moving 
forward. I’d like to introduce the plan and hopefully show some ways in which we can entrench reconciliation into 
our work.  

Review the APH Strategic Plan: Vision, Mission and Strategic Directions 

I’d like to start with our Vision: “Health for all. Together.” It’s important to note that “Health for all.” means health 
for All. It doesn’t mean improving health where it is easiest to do so or improving health at the expense of others, 
it means that everyone’s health is important.  

How can we ensure that? Moving down the plan, we see that our mission states, “We promote and protect health 
and advance health equity in Algoma”. Advancing health equity can happen at all levels of our strategic directions 
but most notable in 1(c) Work with priority populations to develop a shared, holistic understanding of community 
health needs, 2(d) Meaningfully engage clients, partners, and communities based on shared goals and 
accountabilities, and 3(c) Recognize and share the stories of our people and partners.  

Entrenching this in our guiding plan is crucial, but it’s really just the beginning. Now it’s time for action, and this is 
where you [employees of APH] come in. Today is a great day to begin recognizing and really listening to the stories 
of Indigenous partners and Peoples. This is one of many steps towards developing that shared understanding of 
their communities’ health needs in a way that originates from the communities themselves. With that 
understanding, we can help advance health equity in a way that respects the needs, preferences, and self-
determination of Indigenous communities to help ensure health for All. It won’t always be easy, but it is critical to 
do so. Much work has already been done, but we must continue the momentum and make strides towards our 
shared goal of Reconciliation.” 

37Page 202 of 298

https://algomapublichealth.us19.list-manage.com/track/click?u=b00f6b444f89f435836021383&id=5d335a25bd&e=62ea8851df


MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Partnership Agreement (“Agreement”) 

This Agreement is made as of the  day of , 2022 
BETWEEN:  

Algoma Ontario Health Team 

 (hereinafter referred to as “Algoma OHT”) 

-and-

Algoma Public Health 

(hereinafter referred to as “Member Organization”) 

WITNESSETH that: 

WHEREAS Algoma OHT is an integrated team that jointly plans and delivers health, social 
and health promotion services; 

AND WHEREAS Algoma OHT was designated by the Minister of Health under the 
Connecting Care Act, 2019; 

AND WHEREAS Member Organization would like to participate as a partner or an advisor 
as part of the Algoma OHT; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual covenants and agreements between the 
parties hereto, it is agreed as follows: 

1. Term of Agreement

The term of this Agreement will be effective on the date set above and will expire on March 
31, 2023 (the “Term”) or if during the Term, such time as the Ministry of Health requests a 
review, revision or termination of the Agreement.  

2. Withdraw/ Termination

This Agreement may be terminated by the Algoma OHT by providing thirty (30) days 
written notice to the Member Organization. 

A Member Organization may withdraw from the Algoma OHT or terminate its membership 
at any time by providing a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice to the Algoma OHT’s 
Leadership Council.  Such withdraw and/or termination shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

38Page 203 of 298



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Partnership Agreement (“Agreement”) 

3. Algoma OHT Background

The Algoma OHT was designated on 23rd day of July, 2020 by the Minister of Health under 
the Connecting Care Act, 2019 with the intention to work together to achieve their shared 
vision of providing a continuum of integrated health, social and health promotion services 
to the persons to whom they provide care and services for the people of Algoma. 

Integrated health care represents a fundamental shift in the way that health, social and 
health promotion services are provided. It involves putting people and communities; not 
diseases, providers or organizations, at the center of the health care system and empowering 
people to take charge of their own health rather than being passive recipients of services. 
When health, social and health promotion services are integrated, it means they are 
delivered in a way that people receive the continuum of services as part of a coordinated 
team, no matter where care is provided.  

4. Algoma OHT Program

In order for the Algoma OHT to be successful, it will be important to focus on learning 
together as an integrated local health system to better serve the people of Algoma. This 
will require embracing ambiguity as we learn to work together across health and social 
sectors; including home and community care, hospital services, housing, long-term care, 
mental health and addictions, palliative, primary care services, public health and specialty 
care among others.   

Through this engagement the Algoma OHT is seeking to put in place this partnership 
agreement to enable partners and advisors to improve care experiences and outcomes. 
Each Member Partner and Member Advisor who are part of the Algoma OHT will retain 
its own independence, with an independent board and oversight. Any decisions made by 
the Algoma OHT are recommendations. Member Organizations are highly encouraged to 
support greater alignment between the Algoma OHT and their respective organizations in 
order to improve service delivery within the Algoma district. 

The partnership agreement, and the Algoma OHT, should in no way be a barrier or 
impede decisions to serve people, families and communities and should facilitate the 
coming together of people at all levels of respective organizations to work towards the 
mission and vision of the Algoma OHT outlined in Appendix 1. 

5. Role / Responsibilities of Algoma OHT

The Algoma OHT is working on meeting the Year 1 expectations of the Ontario Health Team 
(OHT) and eventually at maturity with respect to the 8 OHT building blocks which 
responsibilities include: 

● Defining patient population
● In-scope services
● Patient partnership and community engagement 39Page 204 of 298



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Partnership Agreement (“Agreement”) 

 
 

● Patient care and experience  
● Digital health  
● Leadership, accountability and governance 
● Funding and incentive structure 
● Performance measurement, quality improvement and continuous learning  

 
6. Role / Responsibilities of Member Organization 

 
Member Organizations will participate as a partner or an advisor with the current focus on 
being inclusive in contributing to the Algoma OHT objectives.  Member organization, 
whether participating as a Member Partner or a Member Advisor agrees to the Algoma 
OHT mission and vision outlined in Appendix 1. 
 
Member Partners will: 

● Work jointly for the delivery of health, social and health promotion services (i.e. 
project implementation) which includes a commitment to aligning initiatives and 
resources towards the work of the Algoma OHT.  

● Partners are eligible to be on the Leadership Council as voting members. 
 
Member Advisors will: 

● Advisors agree with the mission / vision, and may still be ‘exploring’ full 
partnership or contributing towards the OHT in a different capacity other than the 
delivery of services.  

● Advisors are non-voting on the Leadership Council. 
 
All Member Partners and Member Advisors will review the Algoma OHT Terms of 
Reference outlined in Appendix 2.  
 
In participating in this Agreement Member Organizations agree that their respective 
Member Organization Board of Directors have been made aware of the partnership 
agreement.  Where required, Member Organizations shall seek their Member Organization 
Board of Directors approval and/or endorsement, as the case may be, should their 
respective policies and procedures require such.  

 
7. Funding Arrangements 

 
It is recognized that Sault Area Hospital (“SAH”) is the designated fund holder, acting on 
behalf of the Algoma OHT in accordance with the conditions set out in the SAH Fund Holder 
Agreement.  SAH is responsible to ensure that financial reports related to the Algoma OHT 
funding is reported back to the Algoma OHT Leadership Council on a regular basis. 
 
Beyond utilizing the earmarked Algoma OHT funding, it is further expected and intended 
that Algoma OHT Member Partners will leverage this funding by aligning their strategies, 
work and resources in a way that is consistent with the vision and mission of the Algoma 
OHT where possible. 

 
 40Page 205 of 298



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Partnership Agreement (“Agreement”) 

 
 
8. Privacy and Confidentiality 

 
Through the Term of this agreement the Parties may transmit and exchange private and 
confidential information that may include; documents, materials, research and/or personal 
health information of patients which collectively herein is referred to as (“Confidential 
Information”). It is agreed that appropriate administrative, technical and physical safeguards 
will be established and maintained by all Parties to protect the Confidential Information and 
to prevent unauthorized access to it. The protection of all Confidential Information under 
this Agreement shall survive the Term of this Agreement. 

 
 
9. No Conflict of Interest 

 

The Member Organization shall: (a) avoid any Conflict of Interest in the performance of its 
contractual obligations; (b) disclose to the Algoma OHT Chair without delay any actual or 
potential Conflict of Interest that arises during the performance of its contractual obligations; 
and (c) comply with any requirements prescribed by Algoma OHT to resolve any Conflict 
of Interest. In addition to all other contractual rights or rights available at law or in equity, 
Algoma OHT may immediately terminate the Agreement upon giving notice to the Member 
Organization where: (a) the Member Organization fails to disclose an actual or potential 
Conflict of Interest; (b) the Member Organization fails to comply with any requirements 
prescribed by the Algoma OHT to resolve a Conflict of Interest; or (c) the Member 
Organization’s Conflict of Interest cannot be resolved. This paragraph shall survive any 
termination or expiry of the Agreement.  
 
10. Intellectual Property 

 
The Member Organization agrees that any intellectual, industrial or other proprietary right 
of any type in any form protected or protectable under the laws of Canada, any foreign 
country, or any political subdivision of any country, including, without limitation, any 
intellectual, industrial or proprietary rights protected or protectable by legislation, by 
common law or at equity Intellectual Property and every other right, title and interest in and 
to all concepts, techniques, ideas, information and materials, however recorded, (including 
images and data) (“Intellectual Property”) provided by  Member Partner shall remain the sole 
and exclusive property of the Member Partner. Furthermore, Algoma OHT shall be the sole 
owner of any Intellectual Property created by the Supplier in the course of performance of 
its obligations under the Agreement (“Newly Created Intellectual Property”).  

 
11. Dispute Resolution 
 
Any dispute, controversy, or claim arising out of, or in connection with this Agreement or 
the failure of the Parties to agree on any matters requiring or contemplating their Agreement 
hereunder (a “Dispute”) shall be dealt with as hereafter set out.  
● Meeting to Negotiate Resolution, A meeting shall be held between the parties hereto (the 

“Parties) promptly after a Dispute has arisen. The meeting will be attended by 
representatives of the Parties with decision-making authority to settle the Dispute. At the 
meeting, the Parties will attempt in good faith to negotiate a resolution of the Dispute. 
The parties will make all attempts reasonable to obtain resolution.  In the event a 
resolution cannot be met, the Dispute will move to arbitration. 

41Page 206 of 298



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Partnership Agreement (“Agreement”) 

 
 

 
12. Notice 

 
Any notice or communication required to be given under the terms of this Agreement shall 
be in writing and shall be served personally, delivered by courier or sent by certified or 
registered mail, postage prepaid with return receipt requested, addressed to the other party 
at the address set forth or at such other address as either party shall hereafter designate to the 
other in writing. All notices shall be in writing and set by regular postage paid mail, 
registered mail, or electronic mail, addressed as follows: 

 
To Algoma OHT: 
750 Great Northern Rd. 
Sault Ste. Marie, ON P6B0A8 
Name: Victoria Aceti Chlebus 
Title: Director, Integrated Care 
Email: victoria.aceti@algomaoht.ca 
 
To Member Organization: 
294 Willow Ave.  
Sault Ste. Marie, ON P6B 0A9 
Name: Dr. John Tuinema 
Title: Acting Medical Officer of Health & CEO 
Email: jtuinema@algomapublichealth.com 

 
All notices shall be effective when personally served, one (1) day following the date sent by 
electronic mail, or five (5) days after deposited in the mail. 
 
13. Amendment of Agreement 

 
In the event that any changes to this agreement are deemed necessary, either an amendment 
shall be prepared an executed by the Parties hereto or a new Agreement will be prepared 
and executed.  An amendment will have no force or effect until compliance with the terms 
of this section. 

 
14. Assignment 

 
This Agreement is not assignable by either Party without the consent of the other Party.  
Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement continues to the benefit of and is binding upon the 
Parties, their successors and assigns. 

 
15. Entire Agreement 

 
This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties and except as herein 
written, there are no oral representations or warranties between the Parties of any kind. 

 
16. Applicable Law 

 
42Page 207 of 298



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Partnership Agreement (“Agreement”) 

 
 
This agreement will be interpreted exclusively in accordance with the laws of the Province 
of Ontario and the federal laws of Canada as applicable therein. 

 
17. Counterparts 

 
This Agreement may be executed by the Parties in counterpart, who together shall be 
deemed to constitute one agreement, and delivery of the counterparts may be affected by 
means of a telecopier (followed immediately by delivery of the original copies by an 
overnight carrier). 
 
IN WITNESS OF WHICH the Parties have signed and delivered this Agreement. 
 
 
Algoma OHT: 
 
Per:        
 
 
Name: Victoria Aceti Chlebus  
      
 
Title: Director, Integrated Care  
 
 
Algoma Public Health 
 
Pursuant to Section 6 ‘Role of Member/ Partner Organization’ we hereby sign this MOU 
acknowledging and committing to the role of:  
(Complete one of the following checkboxes in alignment with Section 6 Role/ 
Responsibilities of Organization) 
 
☐  Member Partner 
 
- Or -  
 
☐  Member Advisor 
 
 
Per:  _______________________________     Per:  _______________________________ 
 
 
Name:  Name:     
      
 
Title:   Title:    
 
 

I have authority to bind the company.  I have authority to bind the company 43Page 208 of 298



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Partnership Agreement (“Agreement”) 

 
 

Appendix 1 – Vision, Mission, Collaboration 
 

 
Background on Collaborative Decision Making Arrangements 
 
The CDMA is intended to have an established process to use the implementation funding; 
that is meant to build the necessary infrastructure for the Algoma OHT.  
 
Shared Vision, Guiding Principles and Commitments 
 
Vision 
An integrated health system focused on the unique needs of Algoma residents; where 
people receive seamless, excellent care where and when they need it. 
 
Mission 
The Algoma Ontario Health Team will collaborate in a model of care that is person-
centered, efficient and simplified for both patient and provider. 
 
 

  

44Page 209 of 298



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Partnership Agreement (“Agreement”) 

 
 

Appendix 2 – Algoma Ontario Health Team 
Terms of Reference (ToR) 

 
MANDATE 
The Algoma Ontario Health Team (AOHT) has a vision for an integrated health system 
focused on the unique needs of Algoma residents; where people receive seamless, excellent 
care where and when they need it. The Leadership Council’s role is to provide a forum for 
its Members to plan, design, implement and oversee the AOHT. 
 
ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Planning and Project Implementation 
● establish an overall strategic plan for the AOHT and develop an annual work plan 

consistent with the strategic plan; 
● identify and measure the priority populations for the AOHT and the impact of decisions 

on them; 
● develop the name and central brand for the AOHT; 
● identify, implement, and oversee Projects and Project Agreements; and 
● ensure there is a commitment to share information, set joint performance targets, align 

service delivery and quality improvement for identified projects. 
 
Quality and Risk 
● review, collaborate on, and monitor safety and quality standards and performance and 

quality improvement for the AOHT; 
● identify risk issues and consider risk allocation, mitigation, and corrective actions for 

AOHT activities; 
● develop a complaints and significant event process for issues that impact more than one 

Member; and 
● develop a risk management process for issues that could negatively impact the AOHT. 

 
Resources and Accountability 
● develop guidelines for the allocation and sharing of costs and resources, including 

funding earmarked for the AOHT as well as human resources, capital, and facilities and 
costs related to supporting the work of the AOHT; 

● review and collaborate on financial performance, resource allocation and use, best 
practice, and innovation; 

● develop clinical and financial accountability standards; 
● determine Membership fees to be paid by Members, if any; and 
● facilitate and oversee the development of a digital health strategy. 
 
Engagement and Reporting 
● develop and implement a joint communications strategy, including communication to 

stakeholders and the community; 
● engage people, families and communities to ensure meaningful partnership and co-

design across all OHT initiatives; 
● engage with and seek input from Members and Networks; 
● ensure engagement at a board to board level among Members; and 
● report from time to time to Members on the work of the Leadership Council and any 

subcommittees and working groups. 
 45Page 210 of 298



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Partnership Agreement (“Agreement”) 

 
 
Governance and Compliance 
● evaluate and identify areas of improvement in the integrated leadership and governance 

structure of the AOHT on an ongoing basis, including the establishment of a 
standardized process to identify and admit additional Members to the AOHT; 

● as part of efforts to set up a long-term governance structure for the OHT, engage the 
boards of each respective Partner organization to: 

o understand what it means to have a duty to an integrated local health system that 
serves the residents of Algoma 

o prioritise steps towards collaborative governance in the first year of operation 
o consider possible long-term options for collaborative governance; 

● discuss compliance with, and amendments to, these Terms of Reference, the 
Framework, or a Project Agreement; 

● facilitate dispute resolution; and 
● ensure compliance with all reporting requirements. 
 
Integration 
● act as a forum for the defined geographic area to support any potential voluntary or 

involuntary integration initiatives ordered by the Ministry of Health and 
● develop recommendations vis-à-vis proposed integrations. 
 
Other 
● Perform the roles assigned to the Leadership Council under the Framework. 
 
SUBCOMMITTEES AND WORKING GROUPS 
The Leadership Council has an Executive Committee that is comprised of the Tri-Chairs. 

The Leadership Council may establish one or more subcommittees or working groups / 
action teams to assist it in fulfilling its role. The Leadership Council shall determine the 
mandate and composition of any such subcommittee or working group.  

MEMBERSHIP 
The Leadership Council shall be a representative group across Algoma, that includes both 
organizational and independent-level representation. At minimum, the Leadership Council 
shall be comprised of 7 voting members; however, must include the following 
representation: 
● Organizational: community health and social services, long-term care, primary care and 

hospital services 
● Independent: Patient Partner and Physician Lead  
 
Organizational voting members are referred to as Partners and are identified as 
organizations that have signed a Memorandum of Understanding (Partnership Agreement) 
identified a commitment to work jointly for the delivery of health, social and health 
promotion services as part of the AOHT. Each Partner is eligible to have a senior-level 
representative on Leadership Council and may identify an alternate in case of absence. 
Independent voting members are appointed by Leadership Council and typically include 
patient and clinical representation without any organizational affiliation. 
 
Non-voting members are referred to as Advisors and are identified as organizations that 
have signed a Memorandum of Understanding identifying alignment with the mission and 
vision of the AOHT, however may not be directly involved in the delivery of health and 

46Page 211 of 298



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Partnership Agreement (“Agreement”) 

 
 
social services related to the identified projects. Advisors may also be exploring full Partner 
status. 
 
TRI-CHAIRS 
The Leadership Council shall have a Tri-Chair model, which is elected for a two-year term 
by the majority vote of the Leadership Council. It should strike a balance representing 
administrative, clinical and patient leadership for the AOHT. The Tri-Chairs may alternate 
the meeting chair responsibilities, at their discretion and fully participate in deliberations as 
well as decision-making. 

In addition to chairing responsibilities; the Tri-Chairs are responsible for: 
● Acting on behalf of the Leadership Council (as the Executive Committee) in-between 

regularly scheduled meetings, including bringing those decisions (as information items) 
to the Leadership Council 

● Preparing meeting agendas, including a governance calendar for future items 
● Ensuring appropriate engagement of members and the regular evaluation of the 

governance model for the AOHT 
● Providing day-to-day guidance, management and mentorship to the Administrative 

Director of the AOHT (Director, Integrated Care) 

FUND MANAGER 
The Leadership Council shall, by majority vote, select a Member Organization to be a 
“Fund Manager” (for a term to be agreed) to, as directed by the Leadership Council receive, 
manage, distribute and keep accurate accounts of, pooled resources, including funding 
earmarked for the AOHT. The Administrative Director of the AOHT will be responsible for 
managing the funds, in accordance with the Fund Manager’s policies and procedures, as 
well as ensuring that any funds are in accordance with the strategic priorities set out by the 
Leadership Council. The Fund Manager will submit financial reports and retain financial 
records for at least seven years. 

MEETINGS 
Meetings shall be held at a minimum quarterly, and where possible be scheduled in 
advanced according to a governance calendar. Ad hoc meetings may be called by the Tri-
Chairs or at the request of a minimum of 3 Members. Agendas will be sent in advance and 
indicate whether items are for information, discussion or approval. In an effort to foster 
transparency, guests are welcome to participate in all meetings, except for in-camera 
portions, but may not vote. 

QUORUM 
Quorum will be a majority of Members, who may be present in-person or virtually. If a 
Member is not able to attend, the Member may send an alternate (who may count for 
quorum and vote). If quorum is not present, the Members present may meet for discussion 
purposes only and no decisions shall be made. 
 
DECISIONS 
UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED APPROVAL OF THE LEADERSHIP COUNCIL, 
DECISIONS WILL BE MADE BY CONSENSUS. CONSENSUS MEANS THAT EACH 
MEMBER IS PREPARED TO SUPPORT THE DECISION OR, IF APPLICABLE, 
RECOMMEND IT TO THEIR BOARD OF DIRECTORS, ORGANIZATION, OR 
RESPECTIVE MEMBERS, AS THE CASE MAY BE, EVEN IF THEY DO NOT AGREE 47Page 212 of 298



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Partnership Agreement (“Agreement”) 

 
 
WITH THE DECISION/RECOMMENDATION. IN THE EVENT OF A TIE, A 
MAJORITY VOTE BY THE TRI-CHAIRS WILL CONSTITUTE THE TIE BREAKER. 
MOREOVER, ALL PROJECTS AND INITIATIVES MOVING FORWARD REQUIRE 
APPROVAL VIA VOTE OF THE LEAD (SPONSOR) ORGANIZATION. AS SUCH, 
LEADERSHIP COUNCIL CANNOT COMPEL AN ORGANIZATION TO LEAD OR 
ACT AS THE SPONSORING ORGANIZATION OF AN INITIATIVE WITHOUT ITS 
APPROVAL. 
 
THE LEADERSHIP COUNCIL IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PUTTING A PROCESS IN 
PLACE FOR DISPUTE RESOLUTION, AS PART OF A PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 
APPLICABLE TO ALL ITS VOTING MEMBERS.  
 
MINUTES 
Meeting minutes will document deliberations and recommendations. All minutes will be 
available as part of the AOHT repository that may be accessed by the public, except for any 
confidential or in-camera discussions. Discussion during meetings shall be open, frank, and 
free-flowing, and while contents of minutes will be shared, they will not include attribution 
of individual contributions. 

CONFIDENTIALITY 
THE LEADERSHIP COUNCIL MEMBERS SHALL RECOGNIZE THAT FROM TIME-
TO-TIME ITS MEMBERS MAY HAVE ACCESS TO CONFIDENTIAL 
INFORMATION. ALL MEMBERS ARE TO RESPECT THE CONFIDENTIALITY OF 
INFORMATION RECEIVED BY, AND DISCUSSIONS OF, THE COLLABORATION 
COUNCIL THAT ARE IDENTIFIED AS CONFIDENTIAL OR AS PART OF IN-
CAMERA DISCUSSIONS. 
 
POLICIES 
The Leadership Council may adopt policies, protocols and procedures to support the work 
of the Leadership Council and its subcommittees and working groups. 

REVIEW AND AMENDMENT 
These Terms of Reference will be reviewed annually by the Leadership Council and may be 
amended with written agreement of the Leadership Council. 

 

48Page 213 of 298



Algoma Public Health
(Unaudited) Financial Statements

Index Page

 Statement of Operations 1

 Statement of Revenues - Public Health 2

 Statement of Expenses - Public Health 3

 Notes to the Financial Statements 4-6

 Statement of Financial Position 7

August 31, 2022

50Page 214 of 298



Algoma Public Health
Statement of Operations 
August 2022
(Unaudited)

Actual Budget Variance Annual Variance % YTD Actual/
YTD YTD Act. to Bgt. Budget Act. to Bgt. YTD Budget
2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022

Public Health Programs (Calendar)
Revenue
Municipal Levy - Public Health 3,141,912$         3,141,912$       (0)$  4,189,216$     0% 100%
Provincial Grants - Cost Shared Funding 5,841,695 5,841,692 3 8,773,425 0% 100%
Provincial Grants - Public Health 100% Prov. Funded 2,781,416 2,824,628 (43,212)           4,259,650 -2% 98%
Provincial Grants - Mitigation Funding 674,571 691,864 (17,293)           1,037,800 -2% 98%
Fees, other grants and recovery of expenditures 248,316 239,866 8,451              379,075 4% 104%
Total Public Health Revenue 12,687,910$       12,739,961$     (52,051)$        18,639,166$   0% 100%

Expenditures
Public Health Cost Shared 10,466,364$       11,154,088$     687,724$        16,648,021$   -6% 94%
Public Health 100% Prov. Funded Programs 1,233,100 1,312,291 79,191            1,991,145 -6% 94%
Total Public Health Programs Expenditures 11,699,464$       12,466,379$     766,915$        18,639,166$   -6% 94%

Total Rev. over Exp. Public Health 988,447$            273,583$          714,864$        1$  

Healthy Babies Healthy Children (Fiscal)
Provincial Grants and Recoveries 445,011$            445,005            (6) 1,068,011 0% 100%
Expenditures 466,366              446,288            20,078            1,068,011 4% 104%
Excess of Rev. over Exp. (21,355)               (1,283) (20,072)           0 

Public Health Programs (Fiscal)
Provincial Grants and Recoveries 1,267,996$         1,271,222 3,226              2,176,700       0% 100%
Expenditures 414,498              590,536            (176,038)        2,176,700       -30% 70%
Excess of Rev. over Fiscal Funded 853,498              680,686            172,812          - 

Community Health Programs (Non Public Health)
Calendar Programs
Revenue
Provincial Grants - Community Health -$  -$  -$  -$  
Municipal, Federal, and Other Funding 0 0 - 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
Total Community Health Revenue -$  -$  -$  -$  #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Expenditures
Child Benefits Ontario Works 0 - - - #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
Algoma CADAP programs 0 0 - - #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
Total Calendar Community Health Programs -$  -$  -$  -$  #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Total Rev. over Exp. Calendar Community Health -$  -$  -$  -$  

Fiscal Programs
Revenue
Provincial Grants - Community Health 124,823$            92,564$            32,259$          320,308$        35% 135%
Municipal, Federal, and Other Funding 85,836 47,684 38,152            114,447 80% 180%
Other Bill for Service Programs 0 0 - - #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
Total Community Health Revenue 210,659$            140,248$          70,411$          434,755$        50% 150%

Expenditures
Brighter Futures for Children 33,091 47,686 14,596            114,447 -31% 69%

Infant Development 23,481 0 (23,481)           0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Preschool Speech and Languages 3,913 53,655 49,742            58,155 -93% 7%

Nurse Practitioner 67,092 68,730 1,638              162,153 -2% 98%
Stay on Your Feet 28,188 41,667 13,479            100,000 -32% 68%
Rent Supplements CMH 32,258 0 (32,258)           0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
Bill for Service Programs 0 0 - (0) #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Misc Fiscal - - - - #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
Total Fiscal Community Health Programs 188,022$            211,738$          23,716$          434,755$        -11% 89%

Total Rev. over Exp. Fiscal Community Health 22,637$              (71,491)$           94,127$          (0)$  

Explanations will be provided for variances of 15% and $15,000 occurring in the first 6 months
and variances of 10% and $10,000 occurring in the final 6 months

1 51Page 215 of 298



Algoma Public Health
Revenue Statement
For Eight Months Ending August 31, 2022 Comparison Prior Year:
(Unaudited) Actual Budget Variance Annual Variance % YTD Actual/

YTD YTD Bgt. to Act. Budget Act. to Bgt. Annual Budget YTD Actual YTD BGT
2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2021 2021

Levies Sault Ste Marie 2,213,793 2,213,793 0 2,951,725 0% 75% 2,012,541 2,012,541 0
Levies District 928,119 928,119 0 1,237,491 0% 75% 843,744 843,744 0
Total Levies 3,141,912 3,141,912 0 4,189,216 0% 75% 2,856,285 2,856,285 0

MOH Public Health Funding 5,841,695 5,841,692 3 8,773,425 0% 67% 5,805,408 5,805,408 0
MOH Funding Needle Exchange 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
MOH Funding Haines Food Safety 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
MOH Funding Healthy Smiles 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
MOH Funding - Social Determinants of Health 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
MOH Funding Chief Nursing Officer 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
MOH Enhanced Funding Safe Water 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
MOH Funding Infection Control 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
MOH Funding Diabetes 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
Funding Ontario Tobacco Strategy 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
MOH Funding Harm Reduction 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
MOH Funding Vector Borne Disease 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
MOH Funding Small Drinking Water Systems 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0
Total Public Health Cost Shared Funding 5,841,695 5,841,692 3 8,773,425 0% 67% 5,805,408 5,805,408 0

MOH Funding - MOH / AMOH Top Up 121,055 126,200 (5,145) 189,300 -4% 64% 147,913 101,390 46,523
MOH Funding Northern Ontario Fruits & Veg. 78,270 78,267 3 117,400 0% 67% 78,270 78,267 3
MOH Funding Unorganized 353,600 353,600 0 530,400 0% 67% 353,600 353,600 0
MOH Senior Dental 696,515 727,628 (31,113) 1,114,150 -4% 63% 465,265 465,267 (2)
MOH Funding Indigenous Communities 65,330 65,333 (3) 98,000 0% 67% 65,330 65,328 2
One Time Funding (Pandemic Pay) 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0% 0
OTF COVID-19 Extraordinary Costs 1,466,646 1,473,600 (6,954) 2,210,400 0% 66% 2,054,400 2,054,400 0
Total Public Health 100% Prov. Funded 2,781,416 2,824,628 (43,212) 4,259,650 -2% 65% 3,164,778 3,118,251 46,527

Total Public Health Mitigation Funding 674,571 691,864 (17,293) 1,037,800 -2% 65% 691,870 691,872 (2)

Recoveries from Programs (27,803) 24,117 (51,920) 11,625 -215% -239% 24,539 24,170 369
Program Fees 40,049 34,419 5,630 50,000 16% 80% 79,640 84,618 (4,978)
Land Control Fees 182,195 130,000 52,195 183,000 40% 100% 187,565 95,000 92,565
Program Fees Immunization 13,337 33,328 (19,991) 50,000 -60% 27% 3,167 33,328 (30,161)
HPV Vaccine Program 0 0 0 9,500 #DIV/0! 0% 0 0 0
Influenza Program 0 0 0 23,500 #DIV/0! 0% 0 0 0
Meningococcal C Program 0 0 0 7,000 #DIV/0! 0% 0 0 0
Interest Revenue 28,539 13,336 15,203 20,000 114% 143% 8,770 13,200 (4,430)
Other Revenues 12,000 4,667 7,333 24,450 157% 49% 0 10,000 (10,000)
Total Fees and Recoveries 248,317 239,866 8,451 379,075 4% 66% 303,681 260,316 43,365

Total Public Health Revenue Annual 12,687,911 12,739,962 (52,051) 18,639,166 0% 68% 12,822,022 12,732,133 89,892

Public Health Fiscal April 2022 - March 2023
Needle Exchange Supplies 13,127 13,125 2 31,500 0% 42%

Infection Prevention and Control Hub 806,144 808,333 (2,189) 1,240,000 0% 65%

Practicum 12,500 12,500 0 30,000 0% 42%

School Nurses Initiative 289,340 290,389 (1,049) 522,700 0% 55%

Fire System Upgrade 36,632 36,625 7 87,900 0% 42%

Smoke Free Ontario Tablets 4,918 4,917 1 11,800 0% 42%

Temporary Retention Incentive for Nurses 79,880 79,875 5 191,700 0% 42%
Upgrade Network Switches 25,455 25,458 (3) 61,100 0% 42%

Total Provincial Grants Fiscal 1,267,996 1,271,222 (3,226) 2,176,700 0% 58% 0 0 0

Variance  2021

2

52Page 216 of 298



Algoma Public Health
Expense Statement- Public Health
For Eight Months Ending August 31, 2022
(Unaudited)

Comparison Prior Year:
Actual Budget Variance Annual Variance % YTD Actual/
YTD YTD Act. to Bgt. Budget Act. to Bgt.  Budget YTD Actual YTD BGT
2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2021 2021

.
Salaries & Wages 6,891,052 7,474,356 583,304 11,220,407 -8% 61% 6,847,770$   6,960,663$   112,893$   
Benefits 1,674,465 1,746,380 71,915 2,621,584 -4% 64% 1,678,282 1,590,246 (88,036)
Travel 84,324 125,803 41,479 188,705 -33% 45% 95,094 115,273 20,178
Program 687,891 865,488 177,597 1,320,941 -21% 52% 970,331 798,039 (172,292)
Office 32,717 44,933 12,216 67,400 -27% 49% 39,288 38,027 (1,261)
Computer Services 572,022 568,276 (3,746) 852,416 1% 67% 559,702 632,284 72,582
Telecommunications 228,131 218,352 (9,779) 327,528 4% 70% 254,829 247,467 (7,362)
Program Promotion 30,455 56,621 26,166 84,932 -46% 36% 48,348 55,182 6,834
Professional Development 21,453 57,428 35,974 86,141 -63% 25% 16,493 50,333 33,840
Facilities Expenses 864,253 737,594 (126,659) 1,106,391 17% 78% 857,803 697,577 (160,226)
Fees & Insurance 314,505 284,200 (30,305) 332,300 11% 95% 267,047 245,200 (21,847)
Debt Management 304,947 304,947 0 457,421 0% 67% 308,091 307,267 (824)
Recoveries (6,750) (18,000) (11,250) (27,000) -63% 25% (72,613) (66,306) 6,307

11,699,465$    12,466,378$  766,913$   18,639,166$  -6% 63% 11,870,464$    11,671,251$  ( 199,213 )$   

Variance  2021

3 53Page 217 of 298



Notes to Financial Statements – August 2022 

Reporting Period 

The August 2022 financial reports include eight months of financial results for Public Health. All other 
non-funded public health programs are reporting five months of results from operations year ending 
March 31, 2023.  

Statement of Operations (see page 1) 

Summary – Public Health and Non Public Health Programs 

APH received the 2022 Amending Agreement from the province identifying the approved funding from 
the province for 2022 for public health.  The Ministry of Health has approved one-time funding to 
support approximately 65% of estimated eligible COVID-19 extraordinary costs at this time for the 2022 
calendar year (currently allocated $2.2M versus our original ask of $3.4M). Details regarding further 
allocations of one time funding to support ongoing response to the COVID 19 pandemic will be 
determined by review of in-year financial reports of detailed spending and forecasted needs. 
Management took the conservative approach and adjusted the 2022 budget to reflect the change in 
approved funding.  Approved funding allocations has resulted in a reduction to the overall 2022 public 
health calendar budget of $988K. 

As of August 31, 2022, Public Health calendar programs are reporting a $714K positive variance driven 
by a $767K positive variance in expenditures and a $52K negative variance in revenues.   

Public Health Revenue (see page 2) 

Overall, our Public Health revenues are on budget for 2022 (within less than 1% of budget year to date). 
YTD we have received funding payments totaling $1.5M for our COVID programs versus total annual 
approval of $2.2M. The province has confirmed that one time extraordinary cost reimbursement for the 
COVID 19 programs will continue through 2022, with approval and on-going funding to be based off of 
our Annual Service Plan and quarterly submissions to the province. Our second quarter submission to 
the Ministry was submitted on July 31, 2022. 

Mitigation funding from the province will continue for the 2022-2023 fiscal year. 

Fiscal funding has been approved totaling $2.2M for one time projects and initiatives. This includes 
$191,700 to support the Temporary Retention Incentive for Nurses for the 2022-23 fiscal year. This 
funding will support the second installment of two bonus payments due to eligible nurses which will 
occur in September 2022.  

No funding has been approved to date for COVID Recovery initiatives ($650K was requested for 2022). 

The COVID-19: School-Focused Nurses Initiative has been extended to December 31, 2022. 

4 54Page 218 of 298



Notes Continued… 

Public Health Expenses (see page 3) 

Salary, Wages & Benefits 
There is a $655K positive variance associated with Salary, Wages & Benefits driven by ongoing position 
vacancies. Recruitment efforts are ongoing.   

Travel 
There is a $41K positive variance associated with Travel expenses.  This is a result of APH employees 
working virtually as opposed to travelling throughout the district or attending meetings outside of the 
district for the greater part of the current calendar year. We are starting to see this gap close as staff 
begin travelling throughout the district again to support regular program work.    

Programs 
There is a $177K positive variance associated with Programs. This is largely driven by our continued 
focus on COVID 19 programs and recovery planning for the majority of the calendar year thus far, which 
has prevented us from concentrating on our regular mandatory programming and getting these 
programs back to operating a regular capacity. We expect to see this gap start to close as regular 
mandatory programming continues to resume. Also contributing to the variance in program expenses is 
the fact that we have not required support from our community partners for COVID immunizations in 
near the capacity we expected to year to date.  

Office 
There is a $12K positive variance associated with Office expenses. This is driven by the majority of our 
staff working from home thus far in 2022. As of September 2022, all APH leadership are required to 
work in office full time, with front line staff being required to be in office at least 50% of the time.  

Program Promotion 
There is a $26K positive variance associated with Program Promotion as reduced spend on media and 
promotion has been realized while we work through our COVID Recovery plan and work to develop 
plans to get our regular mandatory programming back to normal operational levels.   

Professional Development 
There is a $36K positive variance for Professional Development.  At this time there has been limited 
spending for professional development, as staff availability is extremely tight. Professional development 
will be a focus for 2023 as we work to re-build our workforce centered on recovery of mandatory public 
health programs.  

Facilities Expense 
There is a $127K negative variance associated with facilities expenses which is driven by increased 
security and janitorial requirements associated with COVID 19 response and increasing utility costs year 
to date. Needs for increased security and janitorial continues to be regularly assessed as we enter into 
the recovery phase of the COVID 19 pandemic and, for the most part, have returned to pre-pandemic 
levels. Also noteable that the general rates for security services district wide have drastically increased 
over the course of the pandemic due to lack of supply/availability and, in some case, the need for guards 
to travel in order to attend posts.    

5 55Page 219 of 298



Notes Continued… 

COVID-19 Expenses 

COVID-19 Response 
This program includes case and contact management as well as supporting the information phone lines.  
August YTD expenses were $1,818K (versus $3,154K this time last year).  The majority of this consists of 
salaries and benefits costs of APH staff that under normal circumstances would be working in their 
assigned public health programs.   

COVID-19 Mass Immunization 
This program includes the planning, support, documentation, and actual needles in arms of the various 
COVID-19 vaccines. August YTD expenses were $879K (versus $2,661K this time last year).     

Financial Position - Balance Sheet (see page 7) 

APH’s liquidity position continues to be stable and the bank has been reconciled as of August 31, 2022.  
Cash includes $1.40M in short-term investments.  

Long-term debt of $4.1 million is held by TD Bank @ 1.80% for a 60-month term (amortization period of 
120 months) and matures on September 1, 2026.  $239k of the loan relates to the financing of the Elliot 
Lake office renovations, which occurred in 2015 with the balance, related to the financing of the 294 
Willow Avenue facility located in Sault Ste. Marie.  There are no material accounts receivable collection 
concerns.  

6 56Page 220 of 298



(Unaudited)
August December
2022 2021

Assets

Current
Cash & Investments $ 6,873,325 $ 5,968,595
Accounts Receivable 56,268 623,372 
Receivable from Municipalities 33,726 35,481 
Receivable from Province of Ontario

Subtotal Current Assets 6,963,319        6,627,448           

Financial Liabilities:
   Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities 1,106,369 1,837,339
   Payable to Gov't of Ont/Municipalities 432,349 1,414,828
   Deferred Revenue 321,408 550,066
   Employee  Future Benefit Obligations 2,829,539 2,829,539

   Term Loan 4,089,091 4,089,091

Subtotal Current Liabilities 8,778,757 10,720,863         

Net Debt (1,815,438) (4,093,415)

Non-Financial Assets:
   Building 22,934,750 22,934,750
   Furniture & Fixtures 2,026,666 2,026,666
   Leasehold Improvements 1,583,166 1,583,166
   IT 3,252,107 3,252,107
   Automobile 40,113 40,113
   Accumulated Depreciation -11,879,577 -11,879,577

Subtotal Non-Financial Assets 17,957,225 17,957,225

Accumulated Surplus 16,141,787 13,863,810

Algoma Public Health
Statement of Financial Position

Date:  As of August 2022

7 57Page 221 of 298



2023 
Recommended 
Capital and Operating 
Budget Report

To: Finance and Audit Committee of the 
Board of Health for the District of Algoma 
Health Unit

From: Dr. John Tuinema, Acting Medical 
O�cer of Health & Chief Executive O�cer

October 12, 2022
For Decision

58Page 222 of 298



Contents 

1. Budget Summary 1 

2. 2023 Budget Background 4 

2.1 Status of Local Public Health in Pandemic Response 4 

2.1.1 Shift in our COVID-19 Response Strategy 4 

2.1.2 Snapshot of Response and Immunization Efforts in 2022 5 

2.2 Start to COVID-19 Pandemic Recovery 6 

2.2.1 Revitalizing the Public Health Workforce 7 

2.2.2 Routinizing COVID-19 Response and Immunization 8 

2.2.3 Restoring Public Health Programs 9 

2.2.4 Rebuilding Local Public Health 11 

2.3 Cost of Response and Recovery Efforts 12 

2.4 Challenges with Public Health Human Resource Recruitment in the North 14 

2.4.1 Summary of APH Recruitment in 2022 14 

2.4.2 Focused Recruitment Efforts for Public Health Inspectors 15 

3. 2023 Budget Financial Assumptions 16 

4. 2022 Grant Approval 17 

5. Reserve Funds 18 

6. Recommended 2023 Budget 18 

6.1 Operating Revenue 18 

6.1.1 Provincial 18 

6.1.2 Municipal 18 

6.2 Expenditures 20 

6.2.1 Salary and Benefit Changes 20 

6.2.2 Operating Expenditure Changes 20 

7. Capital Budget 21 

8. Conclusions 22 

Appendix A 23 

Appendix B 24 

59Page 223 of 298



Issue 

Approval is being sought for the recommended 2023 Capital & Operating Budget for Algoma 
Public Health (APH). The draft budget was developed by the Executive Team and is 
recommended by the Acting Medical Officer of Health. It is to be reviewed at the October 12, 2022 
meeting of the Board of Health Finance & Audit Committee. 

Recommended Action 

THAT the Finance & Audit Committee of the Board of Health for the District of Algoma 
Health Unit approve the 2023 Capital & Operating Budget for Algoma Public Health in the 
amount of $17,740,689. 

Alignment to the Ontario Public Health Standards (2021)1

 As part of the Organizational Requirements: Fiduciary Requirements Domain, boards of health
are accountable for using Ministry of Health (Ministry) funding efficiently and for its intended
purpose, and ensuring that resources are used efficiently and in line with local and provincial
requirements.

 As part of the Organizational Requirements: Good Governance and Management Practices
Domain, the board of health shall ensure that the administration establishes a human
resources strategy, which considers the competencies, composition and size of the workforce,
as well as community composition, and includes initiatives for the recruitment, retention,
professional development, and leadership development of the public health unit workforce.

 As part of the Foundational Standard: Emergency Management, the board of health shall
effectively prepare for emergencies to ensure timely, integrated, safe, and effective response
to, and recovery from emergencies with public health impacts.

 The board of health shall ensure that administration implements appropriate financial
management by ensuring that expenditure forecasts are as accurate as possible.

 To support municipal budget planning, APH attempts to advise contributing municipalities of
their respective levies as early as possible.

1. Budget Summary

As context, the 2022 approved budget was $19,627,191 .This included $3.4M in anticipated one-
time COVID-19 extraordinary costs, based on the province’s commitment to reimburse APH for 
further extraordinary COVID-19 expenses that could not be recovered by mandatory programs. As 
of June 30th, 2022, it was forecasted that anticipated needs for COVID-19 extraordinary costs 
were $2.9M versus the original ask of $3.4M. 

The recommended 2023 budget for public health programs and services is $17,740,689. 
This represents a decrease of $898,477 from the 2022-forecast budget.  

The recommended budget is driven by a significant decrease in anticipated requirements in both 
COVID-19 Response and Immunization programs, as public health routinizes this work into 
mandatory program delivery. The recommendation for 2023 includes an ask of $1.1M from the 
Ministry to fund anticipated COVID-19 extraordinary costs that are not expected to be recovered 
via mandatory programs. 

The Executive Team has worked diligently in the current dynamic fiscal environment to balance 
pressures and ensure the maintenance and restoration of quality public health programs, as 
aligned with agency values of excellence, respect, accountability and transparency, and 
collaboration.2  

1 Ministry of Health. (2021). Ontario public health standards: Requirements for programs, services and accountability: Protecting and promoting the health of Ontarians. Retrieved 
from https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/ 
2 Algoma Public Health. (n.d.). About us. Retrieved from https://www.algomapublichealth.com/

60Page 224 of 298



The recommended budget is the minimum required to maintain COVID-19 response and 
immunization programming, as is expected by the Ministry, and begin the process of restoring 
public health programs and services as mandated by the Ontario Public Health Standards 
(OPHS).1 The breakdown of the recommended 2023 operating budget of $17,740,689 is provided 
in Table 1.0. 

As a comparison of pre-pandemic (2019) to pandemic period budgets (2020, 2021, 2022 budget 
and forecast), a Budget Analysis is also provided in Table 1.0. Comparisons can made between 
the recommended 2023 budget ($17,740,689) and the 2022-forecast budget ($18,639,166). The 
2022-forecast budget presented is conservatively based on current funding allocations confirmed 
by the province.  

As evident in Table 1.0, and as a result of the province’s transition to the cost-sharing funding 
model of 70% provincially funded and 30% municipal funded for all programs except those 100% 
provincially funded for 2023, APH’s budget recommendation is built assuming there will be no 
increase to the total municipal levy rate applied as a district.   

The following sections provide details on key 2023 budget factors. 

61Page 225 of 298



Table 1.0: Budget Analysis, 2019 – Recommended 2023 

62Page 226 of 298



2. 2023 Budget Background

To provide context for the recommended 2023 budget and retention of the same total municipal levy 
rate applied to the district of Algoma Health Unit in 2022, despite a forecasted surplus for 2022, a 
background is being shared to demonstrate the: 

 Status of local public health in the emergency management framework and COVID-19 response;

 Work ahead to recover from the pandemic, including revitalizing the workforce, routinizing
COVID-19 response and immunization, addressing the backlog and restoring public health
programs, and rebuilding local public health in 2023 and beyond; and

 Costs of response and recovery, including financial expenses acquired from COVID-19 response
and immunization programs, those projected for recovery, and those associated with longstanding
challenges in recruitment and retention.

The work in COVID-19 response and recovery, and cost, collectively demonstrate the value of public 
health services and programs to Algoma residents and municipalities in helping to continue achieve 
pandemic goals and population health and wellbeing.  

This summary reinforces the minimum financial requirements needed to sustain and routinize COVID-19 
response and immunization programming, alongside the initiation of pandemic recovery to revitalize the 
public health workforce, restore mandatory programs and services, and rebuild local public health.   

2.1 Status of Local Public Health in Pandemic Response 

Emergency management occurs through five interdependent, risk-based functions, including: 
prevention, mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery.3 The COVID-19 pandemic response has 
been situated within the emergency management framework, and due to its persistence, has required 
local public health to perform multiple functions at the same time through 2022, including primarily 
response and recovery. The simultaneous response and recovery efforts create significant novel 
challenges.  

2.1.1 Shift in our COVID-19 Response Strategy 

In April 2020, the Ministry directed boards of health to take all necessary measures to respond to 
COVID-19 in their catchment areas while continuing to maintain critical public health programs and 
services as identified in pandemic plans. 

Since activation in March 2020, APH has continued to operate within an Incident Management System 
structure to respond to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Throughout 2022, the work of APH has continued to focus on the two pandemic goals: 

 Minimize serious illness and death, and

 Minimize societal disruption (and preserve health care services).

However, the activities of our response shifted from 2021 to 2022, as the severity of COVID-19 changed 
with the Omicron variant (as opposed to the more severe Delta variant) and novel technologies such as 
COVID-19 vaccines and treatments helped significantly reduce the burden of hospitalization and death.  

As presented in detail in the 2022 Recommended Operating & Capital Budget report4, efforts in COVID-
19 response in 2020 and 2021 focused on containment – preventing transmission of the virus5 in the 
community through large scale testing, thorough case and contact management, quarantine 

3 Ministry of the Solicitor General. (2021). Emergency management framework for Ontario. https://files.ontario.ca/books/solgen-emo-emergency-management-framework-2021-en-2021-12-
30.pdf 
4 Algoma Public Health. (2021). 2022 Recommended public health operating & capital budget report. Retrieved from https://www.algomapublichealth.com/media/4972/meeting-book-
november-24-2021-board-of-health-meeting-website.pdf 
5 Walensky, R. P & del Rio, C. (2020). From mitigation to containment of the COVID-19 pandemic: Putting the SARS-CoV-2 genie back in the bottle. JAMA, 323(10), 1889-1890. 
https://doi.org/10.1001/jama.2020.6572 

63Page 227 of 298



requirements, risk communication, broad pandemic measures, comprehensive health promotion, and 
enforcement related to the Reopening Ontario Act6. Containment was a necessity to keep us safe and 
gain time to develop COVID-19 vaccines. Once Health Canada approved vaccines arrived, efforts 
began immediately to administer them at rapid pace across Algoma to provide protection against 
COVID-19. APH teams worked with community partners to take preventive measures against COVID-19 
in municipal offices and facilities, long-term care and retirement homes, health facilities, congregate 
settings, schools and day cares, and a variety of other workplaces. 

Teams not directly involved in COVID-19 response ensured the maintenance of high-risk 
programming, as outlined by APH’s Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP), which gave highest priority 
to programs that worked to decrease health inequities for those most affected by COVID-19 (e.g. needle 
exchange program, tobacco cessation services, sexual health information line, 48-hour blended model 
home visits for new parents, etc. continued at reduced capacity).  

In late 2021, the approach to COVID-19 response shifted from containment to mitigation – a less 
invasive approach implemented out of necessity when the virus outpaced our ability to contain it,5 and 
there was a need to focus efforts to reduce the risk of COVID-19 in highest risk settings and among 
those most vulnerable (e.g. long term care, retirement homes, elder lodges, hospitals, etc.).  

With this shift to a mitigation approach, testing, case management, and facility management efforts 
focused in on highest risk settings and groups, as opposed to the broader public. In addition, provincial 
guidance changed. This included, for example, the removal of vaccination requirements in public 
settings, removal of mandatory masking in public settings, revoking of regulations and orders under the 
Reopening Ontario Act6, and adjustment of sector-specific guidance based on dominant presence of the 
Omicron variant. 

However, basic public health measures, infection prevention and control (IPAC), and risk 
communication have continued to encourage actions that reduce transmission in the community, 
workplaces, schools, and high risk settings (i.e. staying home when sick, masking, hand hygiene, etc.). 

The above was done in tandem with the expansions of the COVID-19 vaccine rollout. In 2022, 
vaccination focused on newly eligible groups (i.e. children under 5 years) for primary series 
administration, and booster doses for eligible groups to combat waning immunity over time. Uptake for 
boosters up until September 2022 had been less than a primary series, changing the pace of vaccine 
administration from 2021, despite signs of increasing uptake in early October 2022 as the bivalent 
booster was approved.  

Despite these changes in approach, it is evident that the pandemic response continues to involve a level 
of case management, outbreak management in high risk settings, immunization for new eligible groups, 
and knowledge translation for the general public, partners, and vulnerable populations.  

The pandemic and related response and immunizations work have certainly not ended and uncertainty 
remains, as is reflected in the snapshot of 2022 efforts below and recommended 2023 budget.   

2.1.2 Snapshot of Response and Immunization Efforts in 2022 

APH’s efforts in COVID-19 response and immunization and maintenance of high-risk programming, with 
the support of community partners and residents of Algoma, continued to achieve pandemic goals and 
benefit community health and safety throughout 2022.  

For perspective on response work: 

 From January to September 24, 2022, there were 7464 positive high-risk cases of COVID-19 in
Algoma, with APH conducting limited case management for those associated with highest risk
settings, and reporting for surveillance among general community cases. No contact management
has been conducted in 2022.

As a comparison, 79 cases were followed in 2020 with thorough case and contact management, and
2164 cases were followed in 2021 with thorough case and contact management until changes in

6 Government of Ontario. (2020). Reopening Ontario (a flexible response to COVID-19) act, 2020, S.O. 2020, c. 17. Retrieved from https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/20r17

64Page 228 of 298

https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/20r17


December 2021 that shifted testing and case management to highest risk groups. 7,8 

 From January 2020 to September 24, 2022, there have been 98 outbreaks within long-term care
homes, retirement homes, hospitals and congregate living settings, where APH conducted outbreak
management and provided guidance.7,8

Within the context of the vaccine rollout, local public health has continued to lead the coordination of the 
vaccine rollout in Algoma by working with partners, planning, managing operations, and facilitating 
vaccine communication.  

As a snapshot of COVID-19 vaccination efforts from January to September 30, 20229,10: 

 60,280 doses of COVID-19 vaccine were administered to Algoma residents (including all doses)
across all channels, regardless of residence, of which APH has either hosted, coordinated,
administered vaccine, supplied vaccine, or supported in some capacity.

 280 vaccine clinics occurred through GFL mass immunization clinics, district mass immunization
clinics, and pop-up clinics in Algoma. Pop-up clinics were strategically set-up in Algoma areas to
enhance access to vaccine by populations with lower vaccine uptake or facing health inequities.

 2,774 first doses, 5,751 second doses, 27,766 third doses, and 22,756 fourth doses were
administered to Algoma residents across all vaccine channels.

Overall, response and immunization efforts with municipalities, health sector partners, community 
organizations, Indigenous community partners, and Algoma residents have ensured our pandemic 
response goal continued to be met in 2022. 

Serious illness and death from COVID-19 remained limited in Algoma. From January 15, 2020 to 
September 24, 2022, Algoma’s COVID-19-related hospitalizations and deaths were as follows11: 

 Cumulative rates of COVID-19 hospitalizations (for or with COVID-19) were 346.2 hospitalizations
per 100,000 population for Algoma, as compared to 379.3 hospitalizations per 100,000 population
for Ontario.

 Cumulative rates of COVID-19-related deaths were 67.9 deaths per 100,000 population for Algoma,
as compared to 97.3 deaths per 100,000 population for Ontario.

To continue achieving pandemic goals, work in COVID-19 response and immunization will remain 
throughout 2023. Uncertainties around persistent transmission of COVID-19 in the community, potential 
for new variants of concern and the need to revert to a resource-intensive containment strategy 
remains, new COVID-19 vaccines to be approved by Health Canada (e.g. Bivalent booster doses), and 
new groups to become eligible for booster doses will influence ongoing work related to COVID-19.  

2.2 Start to COVID-19 Pandemic Recovery 

Recovery planning efforts were paused in October 2021 to sustain COVID-19 response, immunization, 
and high-risk programming amid a surge in the Delta variant. However, changes to provincial guidance 
in late 2021 and the shift to a mitigation strategy redistributed the work of local public health and allowed 
for the deployment of almost all public health staff back to home programs in spring of 2022. As of 
September 2022, few staff remain reassigned to support highest risk case and outbreak management.  

With most staff returned to home programs, our focus was redirected to COVID-19 recovery planning. 

The goal of recovery planning at APH is to effectively recover from the COVID-19 pandemic using a 
collaborative, evidence-informed approach founded in principles of equity, sustainability, and unity.  

APH’s Pandemic Recovery Framework (Figure 1.0) was developed to provide four directions, aligned 

7 Public Health Ontario. (2022). Ontario COVID-19 data tool. Retrieved from https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/data-and-analysis/infectious-disease/covid-19-data-surveillance/covid-19-
data-tool?tab=overview 
8 Note that changes to guidance in December 2021 limited testing and case management to highest risk groups and facilities, resulting in an underrepresentation of COVID-19 in the broader 
community within case counts. Data cleaning initiatives with the Ministry have also occurred, resulting in a change in counts of cases and outbreaks that met definition.  
9 Algoma Public Health. (2022). Data by COVID-19 vaccine event. Internal summary. Extracted: [Sep/29/2022]. Note: Clinics include vaccine events where 10+ doses were administered.  
10 Ontario Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care. (2022). COVaxON. Date Extracted: [Sep/29/2022]
11 Public Health Ontario. (2022). Ontario COVID-19 data tool. Retrieved from https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/data-and-analysis/infectious-disease/covid-19-data-surveillance/covid-19-
data-tool?tab=overview 

65Page 229 of 298



with APH’s strategic plan, to guide recovery planning and the work of public health in 2023 and beyond. 

Figure 1.0: Algoma Public Health’s Pandemic Recovery Framework  

To effectively recovery from the pandemic, there is need to: 

 Revitalize the public health workforce through employee engagement and excellence, focusing on
employees’ lived experience, lessons learned, employee wellness (including mental health), and
organizational capacity development;

 Routinize COVID-19 work for sustainable prevention, mitigation, preparedness, and response to
COVID-19;

 Restore mandatory public health programs and services to pre-pandemic levels, considering
lessons learned from COVID-19, alignment with OPHS1, and post-pandemic public health priorities
in Algoma; and

 Rebuild and strengthen public health, with a focus on strategic advocacy, policy, and evidence to
engage in change at local, provincial, and federal levels.

Recovery, as a public health agency and community, will be complicated and unpredictable given the 
potential for COVID-19 transmission to continue beyond 2022 and new emergencies to arise. To 
demonstrate the work to come in recovery and required resourcing, the following section outlines some 
of the necessary steps for public health, which will require collaboration with partners and the public.  

2.2.1 Revitalizing the Public Health Workforce 

The COVID-19 pandemic has placed unprecedented pressure on the public health system12, as was 
highlighted in the 2022 Recommended Operating & Capital Budget report4 that detailed the volume work 
and dedication by APH employees as part of COVID-19 response, immunization, and the delivery of 
highest priority programs.  

As a result of this pressure from 2020 to present, the pandemic has had a negative impact on the 
mental health and wellness of the healthcare and public health workforce.12  

Adequate supports are critical to protecting and improving the public health workforce’s health and 
resilience, and organization-level strategies are considered beneficial for supporting staff mental 
health.12  

At the core of APH’s recovery framework is revitalizing the public health workforce through employee 
engagement and excellence. This includes focusing on employees’ lived experience, lessons learned, 

12 Public Health Ontario. (2021). COVID-19 – strategies adaptable form healthcare to public health settings to support the mental health and resilience of the workforce during the COVID-19 
pandemic recovery. Retrieved from https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/documents/ncov/ipac/2021/08/covid-19-public-health-workforce-recovery.pdf?sc_lang=en  

66Page 230 of 298

https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/documents/ncov/ipac/2021/08/covid-19-public-health-workforce-recovery.pdf?sc_lang=en


employee wellness (including mental health), and organizational capacity development. 

Employee engagement and excellence has been the focus of initial recovery efforts in 2022, and will 
continue alongside response for the remainder of the year.  

Engagement and Wellness 

As a start to this process, APH initiated two programs that will continue throughout 2023 and require 
resourcing to support the sustained implementation of recommendations. With the support of the Board 
of Health, APH has contracted support from Cense Ltd. and Phelps Group for the development of: 

• A workforce wellness and workplace development strategy, to provide opportunities for staff to
reflect and learn from experiences, support growth, support health and personal care, inform
innovation, and identify opportunities ahead of future threats and challenges, with a focus on
actionable lessons, healing and organizational development.

• A leadership development program, to better understand the strengths, challenges, and needs of
leadership, which will underpin recommendations and planning for enhancing cohesion and
consistency in practice. For leaders to mentor, inspire, and engage, there is a need to be well, form
relationships, and have a baseline understanding of strategic directions and management practices.

Capacity Development 

In addition to wellness and engagement, due to the long-term redeployment of public health employees 
to COVID-19 response and immunization, some for nearly two full years, there is need to support 
opportunities for internal training, professional development, and knowledge sharing to effectively return 
to routine public health work. Thus, part of workforce revitalization includes promoting and supporting 
excellence, through the refreshing of knowledge and skills and opportunities to catch up on evidence 
and resources related to core work, to support best practice and effective program and service delivery.  

As a start, employees will complete OnCore training to refresh core skills for public health practice, while 
agency- and program-specific opportunities for professional education are being reviewed and/or 
planned (e.g. Internal National Day for Truth and Reconciliation session; Rainbow Health LGBTQ2S+ 
training; Education Program for Immunization Competencies; Incident Management System 200 and 
300, etc.). In addition, employees are beginning to re-engage in virtual and in-person conferences and 
webinars for knowledge exchange in public health, to resituate themselves in core work and understand 
the changing landscape of population health post-pandemic.  

Return to In-Office Work 

Finally, one of the most recent steps has included the implementation of our return to the workplace 
program, where as of September 26th, all employees are working in-office at least 50% of their time. 
This shift from primarily remote work for most staff has required time and logistics support to adjust 
workspaces across all public health programs to align with current team structure and needs.  

Recovering and revitalizing our workforce will evidently require dedicated time and resources within 
public health programs and across the agency, which will have to be balanced with requirements for 
continued COVID-19 response and restoring public health programs.  

2.2.2 Routinizing COVID-19 Response and Immunization  

COVID-19 has not and will not go away indefinitely, but instead become a disease of public health 
significance that will require ongoing attention by public health. Therefore, public health will need to 
routinize COVID-19 related guidance, programs, and services into existing work mandated by the 
OPHS.1 

Response 

For response, this means that there will be ongoing need for COVID-19 activities within existing 
functions, primarily of the Infectious Diseases and Environmental Health programs. This includes 
continued high-risk case and facility outbreak management led by APH, and IPAC support for facilities. 

67Page 231 of 298



The Algoma IPAC hub is currently focused on enhancing IPAC practices in community-based 
congregate living settings through education, guidance and direct support on IPAC prevention and 
response.13,14 However, this initiative is one-time funded until March 2023, and requires advocacy for 
provincial integration into public health base funding to sustain and advance efforts in IPAC in Algoma. 

The routinization of COVID-19 response will also require continued surge planning, to provide APH with 
operational contingency guidance for two scenarios, including: 

 Where APH can maintain routine COVID-19 operations in the context of Omicron or similar variants
with minimal disruption to other programs; and

 Where APH is required to mobilize and revert to a containment strategy in the context of emerging
variants of concern or changing provincial guidance.

Planning is underway to ensure preparedness for both scenarios, and continued communication and 
collaboration will be required for emergency preparedness and response with community partners within 
and outside of the health sector.   

Immunization 

Similar to COVID-19 response, there will be need to integrate COVID-19 immunization into the 
Immunization Program. Routinization of this work will need to be balanced with the delivery of school-
based immunizations, publically funded and travel vaccines, routine immunizations, and the Universal 
Influenza Immunization program, as well as program logistics (i.e. fridge inspections, investigation of 
adverse events following immunization, etc.) and health promotion efforts to boost vaccine confidence. 

For perspective on continued demand for COVID-19 vaccines, a fall planning template from the 
Ministry15 projected that Algoma could see an estimated demand of 51,739 doses of COVID-19 vaccine 
among eligible persons from September to December 2022 in a baseline scenario, alongside 8,513 
doses of influenza vaccine.  

The routinization of COVID-19 vaccines will require surge planning as well to quickly ramp up COVID-19 
vaccine capacity in light of several factors (e.g. a new variant of concern, greater need to administer 
bivalent vaccine, etc.). In addition, there will be a need to further establish community partnerships (i.e. 
primary care, hospitals, paramedics, pharmacies, etc.) to support ongoing administration of COVID-19 
vaccines in the community, similar to delivery of the Universal Influenza Immunization Program. 
Discussion with community partners also continue, to identify opportunities for collaborative community 
vaccination, an approach for rapidly expanding capacity for vaccine administration in Algoma.  

Overall, routinization will allow for continued efforts in prevention, mitigation, preparedness, and 
response to COVID-19, as well as immunization, however, requires dedicated resources to conduct 
these functions in addition to routine work.  

At this time, mandatory program cannot support the costs associated with COVID-19 related activities, 
and all activities are being charged to one-time COVID-19 extraordinary costs. Although one-time 
funding has been appreciated to support response and immunization, there is need to advocate to the 
province to increase base funding for public health units to routinize COVID-19 for the long-term.   

2.2.3 Restoring Public Health Programs 

The pandemic has had impacts to population health and public health service delivery, as a result of the 
province-wide prioritization and deployment of program staff to COVID-19 response and immunization 
efforts. This prioritization of response and highest risk core programming, and subsequent suspension 
of non-highest risk programs, has led to a service backlog and population health outcomes requiring 
health system attention, as outlined in detail in the 2022 Capital & Operating Budget report4 (e.g. 
backlogs in smoking cessation, inspections, oral health preventative clinics, routine immunizations, 
sexual health promotion, mental health promotion, local opioid surveillance, etc.).  

Across Ontario’s 34 local public health units, self-reported completion of OPHS in the context of the 

13 Algoma Public Health. (2022). Algoma IPAC hub. Retrieved from https://www.algomapublichealth.com/disease-and-illness/infection-prevention-and-control-hub/ 
14 Ministry of Health. (2020). Infection prevention and control hubs. Retrieved from  https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/coronavirus/docs/2019_guidance_ipac.pdf 
15 Ministry of Health. (2022). Ontario 2022 fall implementation planning template (Algoma). Internal document.

68Page 232 of 298



COVID-19 pandemic indicated that across nearly all standards, less than 50% of pre-pandemic 
routine work was conducted, aside from in emergency management and infectious and 
communicable disease prevention and control where COVID-19 response work and immunization fit.16 

Many of the backlogs detailed in the 2022 Recommended Operating and Capital Budget report4 still 
remain due to setbacks from the Delta and Omicron variants, though program efforts have begun to 
address this necessary work.  

As for population health outcomes, the pandemic has affected the community in significant ways, and 
the direct and indirect impacts to health and wellbeing will likely extend years into the future. There is 
growing concern over public health issues requiring attention to mitigate further population health risk. 

In Algoma, some of these health implications are already being observed, such as17,18: 

 Increase in vaccine preventable disease:

o The rate of influenza cases in Algoma (51.9 per 100,000 people) as of October 5th, 2022 is
approximately 4.7 times higher than the rate of cases in Ontario (11.1 per 100,000 people).

o The rate of Hepatitis C infections in Algoma (29.9 per 100,000 people) for 2022, as of
October 5th, 2022, is approximately 2.3 times higher than the rate of infections for Ontario
(13.0 per 100,000 people in Ontario).

 Increase in sexually transmitted infections in Algoma:

o The incidence rate of gonorrhoeal infections in 2022 (63.3 out of 100,000 people), as of
October 5th, 2022, is 4 times higher when compared 2020 (15.7 per 100,000 people).

o The incidence rate for infectious syphilis cases in Algoma in 2022 (7 per 100,000 people), as
of October 5th, 2022, was 2.7 times higher when compared 2020 (2.6 per 100,000 people).

o The incidence rate for early congenital syphilis cases in Algoma in 2022, as of October 5th,
2022, is 1.8 per 100,000 people. This compares to no cases for the last ten years (as of
2012) in Algoma. In Ontario, the incidence rate of early congenital syphilis was 0.1 per
100,000, as October 5th, 2022.

 Increase in mental health conditions and substance-related harms, such as opioid-related harms
(e.g. increased rate of opioid-related deaths in Algoma from 45.6 per 100,000 people in 2020 to 52.9
per 100,000 people in 2021).

COVID-19 also magnified existing health inequities that will place additional demands on public health 
resources to address them in the future. 18   

To respond to this backlog and the many population health outcomes requiring attention, the third spoke 
of recovery includes the restoration of public health programs and services to pre-pandemic levels, 
considering lessons learned from COVID-19, post-pandemic priorities in Algoma, and the mandate of 
public health within the OPHS.1  

Some of this work is already underway, as health promotion and protection divisions work to revive pre-
pandemic services and programs, while balancing work to be done on the backlog. However, 
addressing the backlog with existing resources, limited by base funding for mandatory programs and 
existing position vacancies, is hindering the ability of most programs to efficiently and fully restore pre-
pandemic functions.    

As a high-level snapshot of current efforts to address the backlog and restore programs: 

 The immunization team continues to prioritize the coordination and administration of COVID-19
vaccines, while capacity building within the team, preparing for influenza vaccine administration, and
delivering routine vaccination clinics, which is causing delays in the ability to address the full backlog

16 Association of Local Public Health Agencies. (2022).Public health resilience in Ontario: Executive summary. Retrieved from 
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9/alPHa_PH_Resilience_Report_Exec_Sum_Jan2022.pdf  
17 Public Health Ontario. (2022, July 14). Query: Counts by disease and year. Toronto, ON: Ontario Agency for Health Protection and Promotion. Available from: 
http://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/DataAndAnalytics/Query/Pages/default.aspx
18 Association of Local Public Health Agencies. (2022). Public health matters: A public health primer for 2022 election candidates. Retrieved from 
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9/alPHa_Election_Primer_2022.pdf 

69Page 233 of 298

https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9/alPHa_PH_Resilience_Report_Exec_Sum_Jan2022.pdf


in routine and school-based immunizations and needs for health promotion. 

 The environmental health team continues COVID-19 outbreak management and IPAC support for
highest risk settings, which along with long-standing program vacancies is delaying the completion
of inspections that are backlogged and required.

 The infectious diseases team is continuing to conduct COVID-19 case management and provide
IPAC support, and has ramped up case management for the increase in sexually transmitted
infections reported in Algoma.

 The school health team is working to tackle the backlog of school-age immunization by facilitating
school-based clinics and administration 3-4 days/week throughout the 2022-2023 school year, which
is delaying the restoration and implementation of a comprehensive approach to school health
required to address priorities such as youth vaping, mental health, etc.

 The healthy growth and development team is working to revisit community outreach and re-connect
with partners, assessing readiness for collaboration, rebuilding areas that were paused such as
preconception and prenatal health and healthy parenting, and working to build capacity to
incorporate new priorities (i.e. COVID impacts on early years).

 The oral health team is working to resume oral health school screenings in October 2022 following a
2 year backlog, and looking to begin the Children’s Oral Health Initiative with Garden River Wellness
Centre, also after a two year absence.

 The community wellness team is prioritizing APH’s local opioid response through harm reduction
and the integration/amplification of personal narratives of people with lived experience, and the
voices of families and friends, as well as working to reduce stigma and reinforce a focus on
prevention in the community. The team is also doing catch-up on smoking cessation clinic wait lists,
and work continues to re-integrate with municipal partners on healthy environments, healthy eating
and active living, food security, and community safety and wellbeing.

With limited time for robust review of evidence and planning of new initiatives in summer 2022, while 
deployed staff reoriented to home programs, program standard implementation plans developed for 
2020 were updated with consideration of current needs and priorities to form the basis of public health 
programming to be considered for implementation in 2023.  

However, without (a) Ministry commitment to increase base funding and/or provide COVID-19 recovery 
funding to resource the added needs to recover the backlog and restore programs, (b) Ministry 
commitment and support for a Northern Ontario public health human resource strategy to address 
longstanding vacancies and challenges in recruitment in the north, and (c) a readiness by partners for 
resuming collaborative pre-pandemic work, public health will likely be unable to implement all proposed 
plans to fully meet the mandate set by the OPHS1 in 2023. 

2.2.4 Rebuilding Local Public Health 

Rebuilding public health requires a focus on strategic policy and evidence to engage in change at local, 

provincial, and federal levels to improve health for all, together, in Algoma.  

Pandemic recovery offers an opportunity for public health to identify lessons learned and improve 
resilience against future emergencies at system-, community-, and individual-levels.19 Community or 
population-level recovery is the focus of public health.  

To rebuild, three leading actions include: implementing our strategic plan, updating the Algoma 
community health profile, and conducting evaluation to integrate lessons learned for the future. 

Strategic Plan Implementation 

In February 2020, the Board of Health approved APH’s new strategic plan for 2021-2025. While the 
official launch was paused as a result of COVID-19 efforts, APH revisited the plan and re-presented it to 

19
Public Health Ontario. (2022). Disaster recovery frameworks: Common themes to inform COVID-19 recovery efforts. Retrieved from Disaster Recovery Frameworks: Common Themes to 

Inform COVID-19 Recovery Efforts (publichealthontario.ca) 

70Page 234 of 298

https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/Evidence-Brief/2022/covid-19-recovery-frameworks-common-themes.pdf?sc_lang=en#:~:text=The%20themes%20identified%20from%20the,cultural%2C%20historical%20and%20gender%20issues
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/nCoV/Evidence-Brief/2022/covid-19-recovery-frameworks-common-themes.pdf?sc_lang=en#:~:text=The%20themes%20identified%20from%20the,cultural%2C%20historical%20and%20gender%20issues


the Board of Health in September 2022, and is in the early stages of launching and implementing the 
three strategic directions to: 

 Advance the priority population health needs of Algoma’s diverse communities, through population
health assessment, knowledge exchange with partners, and working with priority populations.

 Improve the impact and effectiveness of public health programs, by aligning programs to priorities
and the role of public health, using evidence and data to plan and evaluate programs, supporting
integrated strategies for health, and engaging clients, partners, and communities.

 Grow and celebrate an organizational culture of learning, innovation, and continuous improvement,
by investing in our people and developing capacity, engaging staff and partners in the role of public
health, and recognizing the shared stories of our people and partners.

Revisiting the strategic plan provides a foundation for recovery and the rebuild of local public health. 
Actions within APH’s recovery action plan, as highlighted in Section 2.2, are aligned to strategic 
directions, and as program plans evolve in 2023, they too will be further connected to the strategic plan. 

Identification of Public Health Priorities 

A step in population recovery includes conducting population health assessments, to inform the 
planning and implementation of population health interventions (e.g. healthy public policy) and 
partnerships, and embed a health equity lens into recovery.19 

Understanding the adverse impacts of the pandemic and how they are experienced differently and 
unequally across our communities will be critical to informing how APH and partners can contribute to 
health for all.   

APH has begun updating Algoma’s Community Health Profile with a projected completion in 2023 (last 
updated in 2018) to provide a snapshot of community wellness and identify post-pandemic population 
health priorities in Algoma. These priorities will guide the selection of agency-wide priorities and direct 
resourcing cross-programs, as well as individual program standard implementation planning for 2024.  

Rebuild of Emergency Management 

In addition, to support a resilient rebuild of local public health and population health, there is need to: 

 Conduct evaluations and an after action review of the pandemic response and COVID-19 vaccine
rollout to inform lessons learned and future planning (e.g. mass immunization plans, emergency
response plans, COOP updates, hazard specific plans, etc.); and

 Support the ongoing professional development and training of all staff in emergency management,
to retain the skills necessary for pandemic response, should a future surge scenario arise for
COVID-19 or a new infectious disease (i.e. case management), or other emergencies projected to
increase with climate change.

Rebuilding local public health starts as part of recovery, and will support population health for the long-
term. However, appropriate investment in public health for the effective recovery of programs and 
services is needed. This investment in public health and recovery has the potential to generate 
significant returns, including better health, lower health care costs and a stronger economy.18,20 

2.3 Cost of Response and Recovery Efforts  

APH’s robust COVID-19 response and immunization efforts have had benefit to community health and 
safety throughout the pandemic. However, the work associated with COVID-19 has required an 
unprecedented quantity of resources, including expenses reported to the Ministry for reimbursement as 
COVID-19 response and COVID-19 vaccine extraordinary cost.  

Table 2.0 and Table 3.0 provide an overview of COVID-19 response and immunization hours, labour 
costs, and third party expenses.  

20 Masters, R., Anwar, E., Collins, B., Cookson, R., & Capewell, S. (2017). Return on investment of public health interventions: A systematic review. Journal of epidemiology and community 
health, 71(8), 827–834. https://doi.org/10.1136/jech-2016-208141  

71Page 235 of 298



Table 2.0: COVID-19 Response Hours and Labour Costs, 2021 – 2022 

Table 3.0: COVID-19 Immunization Hours, Labour Costs and Third Party Health Service Costs, 
2021 – 2022  

As is evident through a comparison between years, labour costs for COVID-19 response and 
immunization overall have decreased from 2021 to 2022. As described in Section 2.1, this is due to a 
shift in our approach to the pandemic response and the associated change in work.  

COVID-19 will continue to challenge our communities and the work of public health moving forward, 
requiring resources for response and immunization that exceed current mandatory program funding. 

However, resources are also needed to minimize further disruption to core public health programs to 
respond to the many community health priorities that have arisen due to the pandemic and prolonged 
suspension of non-highest risk health promotion and protection efforts.   

Recovery from the pandemic, as a public health unit and broader community, is a complex process19 
and will take several years.21 As per APH’s recovery framework and aligned priorities described above, 

21 Baird, M. (2010). The recovery phase of emergency management: Background paper. Retrieved from https://www.memphis.edu/ifti/pdfs/cait_recovery_phase.pdf

Hours
APH Labour 

Cost
Hours

APH Labour 

Cost

Jan 7,601      $340,894.00 9,896      $567,351.00

Feb 7,601      $342,892.00 7,405      $316,194.00

Mar 7,601      $359,817.00 7,403      $320,355.00

Apr 7,601      $454,941.00 4,867      $144,023.00

May 7,338      $400,642.00 3,370      $126,776.00

Jun 8,479      $470,916.48 1,594      $62,340.00

Jul 6,258      $299,481.52 950         $41,126.00

Aug 6,191      $256,509.00 1,223      $49,167.00

Sep 7,221      $421,482.00

Oct 6,778      $406,587.00

Nov 9,135      $332,955.00

Dec 9,939      $696,744.00

Total 90,409    $4,783,861.00 36,708 $1,627,332.00

COVID-19 Response

2021

Month

2022

Hours
APH Labour 

Cost

3rd Party Health 

Services
Hours

APH Labour 

Cost

3rd Party Health 

Services

Jan 1,259      $75,125.00 $0.00 6,197      $249,835.00 $0.00

Feb 2,081      $166,318.00 $0.00 3,001      $62,269.00 $5,938.00

Mar 5,562      $203,397.00 $0.00 2,066      $85,381.00 $24,007.00

Apr 4,844      $224,404.00 $63,163.42 1,501      $46,452.00 $0.00

May 6,056      $275,344.00 $61,299.00 1,648      $71,100.00 $0.00

Jun 9,301      $423,353.98 $62,843.00 816 $50,957.00 $15,601.00

Jul 7,329      $270,897.02 $101,523.00 613 $34,432.00 $0.00

Aug 5,390      $262,129.00 $83,277.00 725 $41,114.00 $0.00

Sep 4,589      $183,729.00 $39,947.00

Oct 4,220      $152,943.00 $34,986.00

Nov 4,933      $327,424.00 $38,055.00

Dec 7,050      $314,061.00 $21,161.00

Total 62,615    $2,879,125.00 $506,254.42 16,567    $641,540.00 $45,546.00

COVID-19 Immunization

Month

2021 2022

72Page 236 of 298

https://www.memphis.edu/ifti/pdfs/cait_recovery_phase.pdf


recovery will also require appropriate resourcing to address the impacts of the pandemic on our agency 
and population health.  

Due to direction by the Ministry that prohibits the expensing of COVID-19 recovery work to COVID-19 
response and COVID-19 vaccine extraordinary cost, and lack of commitment to dollars for COVID-19 
recovery, the costs to revitalize, routinize, restore, and rebuild as part of recovery must be absorbed by 
mandatory program budgets, limiting our ability to efficiently recover from the pandemic.  

As such, response and recovery considerations have influenced 2023 budget assumptions. 

2.4 Challenges with Public Health Human Resource 
Recruitment in the North 

Significant and longstanding challenges with recruitment of skilled public health professionals in 
Northern Ontario remain, similar to the unique human resource challenges of the health care sector in 
the north. These challenges are visible in a summary of APH recruitment for 2022, and were reflected in 
the recommended 2023 budget that assumes a corresponding vacancy rate and the minimum finances 
required to sustain our local public health workforce.    

2.4.1 Summary of APH Recruitment in 2022 

A snapshot of 2022 health human resource recruitment indicators is provided below. 

From January – October 5, 2022:  

 Five (5) new permanent full-time and nine (9) new temporary employees have filled vacant positions.

 Nine (9) temporary staff hired in 2020/2021 were awarded permanent full time positions.

 Fourteen (14) permanent full time employees were successful candidate for other permanent full-
time positions (e.g. in another program, leadership, or new position).

 Nine (9) permanent and nine (9) temporary positions remain vacant, for a total of 18 position
vacancies.

Persistent challenges to recruitment in public health have included: 

 The unknowns associated with and undesirability of temporary, time-limited positions among highly
skilled public health professionals.

 Competition for health human resources across the district and beyond; and

 Lack of qualified candidates with certifications or the skill level required for specific positions.

The 18 positions remaining vacant as of October 5, 2022 demonstrate the challenge with recruitment of 
highly skilled health professionals in local public health in the north. The total vacancies (18) at APH 
result in an 11.04% vacancy rate.22 

Limitations to One-Time Funding 

One-time funding provided by the provincial government has been appreciated and critical to supporting 
COVID-19 response and immunization, as well as other pandemic needs (i.e., school support, infection 
prevention and control). However, one-time funding has been geared towards curtailing the pandemic, 
as opposed to annual funding for the hiring of permanent staff to build long-term public health capacity 
to manage the emergency of today, and prepare for the public health emergencies of tomorrow. 23   

For example, one-time funding is only able to support temporary positions, which are challenging to fill 
as they do not provide the job security needed for a highly skilled public health professional to relocate 
to Northern Ontario.    

22 Based on the total employee FTE budgeted for 2022 (n=163).  
23 Queen, et al. (2021). Threats, resignations and 100 new laws: Why public health is in crisis. New York Times. Retrieved from https://www.nytimes.com/2021/10/18/us/coronavirus-public-
health.html 

73Page 237 of 298

https://www.nytimes.com/2021/10/18/us/coronavirus-public-health.html


As a result of ongoing vacancies and challenges with recruitment, recruiting for existing vacancies in 
these necessary positions is a priority to ensure adequate, sustainable FTE to routinize COVID-19 
response and immunization, as well as restore mandatory public health programs and services.  

Strengthening Local Public Health Human Resources and Building Capacity for the Long-Term 

In addition to combatting the COVID-19 pandemic and other public health emergencies (e.g. St. Marys 
River oil spill in June 2022), a strong local public health unit protects health and prevents illness every 
day.24 To recover and be prepared for future public health crises, strategic and sustainable investment to 
recruit a full complement of qualified, permanent public health employees is needed.24   

Without sustainable increases to provincial base funding to strengthen the local public health workforce 
for the long-term, with strategies for recruitment that align to Northern Ontario, APH will be unable to 
sustain COVID-19 response and immunization while simultaneously restoring mandated public health 
programming to meet the needs of our communities and prepare for future health crises in a timely 
manner.  

Therefore, investment and advocacy are needed by the Board of Health for sustainable, annual 
provincial base funding for public health and a Northern Ontario public health human resource strategy. 

2.4.2 Focused Recruitment Efforts for Public Health Inspectors 

APH has experienced the greatest challenges with recruitment of certified public health inspectors 
(PHIs), an issue shared among northern public health units. A scan on September 29th, 2022 indicated 
that 18 PHI postings were published across APH, North Bay, Sudbury, Timiskaming, North Western, 
and Porcupine health units.  

PHIs working within the Infectious Diseases and Environmental Health programs have had a leading 
role in COVID-19 response, specifically with IPAC, outbreak management and application and 
enforcement of the Reopening Ontario Act.6 Outside of COVID-19, PHIs routinely evaluate and monitor 
health and safety hazards and implement progressive and innovative approaches to control risks and 
ensure compliance with government regulations that keep us safe.25, 26 

For context, Jobs Canada had 40 positions for inspectors in public and environmental health and 
occupational health and safety posted in Q1 for 2022 for the north region of Ontario, with the region 
over-represented in the total number of postings.25 

At APH, from 2020 to 2022, the number of PHI vacancies has increased, as shown in Table 4.0. 

Table 4: APH Public Health Inspector Recruitment Summary, 2019 – 2022  

24 Ontario Medical Association. (2021). Prescription for Ontario: Doctors’ 5-point plan for better health care. Retrieved from https://www.oma.org/uploadedfiles/oma/media/public/prescription-
for-ontario-doctors-5-point-plan-for-better-health-care.pdf  
25 Ministry of Labour, Immigration, Training and Skills Development. (2019). Inspectors in public and environmental health and occupational health and safety, NOC 2263.  
26 Algoma Public Health. (2022). Public health inspector. Internal job posting. 

APH Office

Public Health 

Inspector 

Postings/Vacancies 2019 2020 2021 2022

Temporary Full-Time 1 (0) - 3 (2) 2 (2)

Permanent Full-Time 2 (0) 3 - 2 (1)

Temporary Full-Time - - - -

Permanent Full-Time - - 1(1) 1 (1)

Temporary Full-Time - - - -

Permanent Full-Time 1 (0) 2 (1) 1 (1) 1 (1)

Temporary Full-Time - - - -

Permanent Full-Time 1 (0) - - -

5 (0) 5 (1) 5(4) 6(5)

Note: 

- The values in brackets indicate the number of PHI positions  remaining unfilled at 

end of year.

- Postings for vacancies have been reposted, or remained posted until filled. In

2021, there were a total of 8 PHI postings, including the 3 SSM positions and multiple

reposting of 2 district PHI positions.

Sault Ste. Marie

Blind River

Elliot Lake

Wawa

Total Positions (Total Remaining Vacant)

74Page 238 of 298

https://www.services.labour.gov.on.ca/labourmarket/jobProfile/jobProfileFullView.xhtml?nocCode=2263


Barriers to recruitment of PHIs have included: 

 Increased available positions in private industry, government, and IPAC during the pandemic;

 Limited practicum opportunities across PHUs during the pandemic due staff workloads and reduced
mentorship, a requirement as part of the certification process, resulting in a backlog of graduates
without practicum completion; and

 Geographic barriers, such as proximity to amenities, proximity to family, and lack of suitable
employment for their partners.

APH will be developing a short and long-term local recruitment strategy, which includes: 

 Posting available positions to professional association pages (e.g. alPHA, CIPHI), public career
pages (e.g. SooToday, Indeed), and university career pages for graduating students and alumni
(e.g. Toronto Metropolitan University, Conestoga),

 Attending job/career fairs and hosting information sessions for graduating classes (high school and
post-secondary), and

 Directly forwarding information to current students through professors at universities with an
accredited program.

Longstanding vacancies, despite recruitment efforts, have supported the need for local public health 
investment in PHI recruitment efforts, and advocacy for a broader PHI-recruitment strategy for the north. 

3. 2023 Budget Financial Assumptions

Given the unknowns, a number of assumptions were required to base the 2023 estimated expenses. 
They are as follows:  

 The Ministry will continue to apply a 70:30 funding formula to jointly funded programs. The
province’s portion or base provincial funding for these programs is assumed to remain status quo
from 2022, with 0% growth in base funding for mandatory programs. The 1.0% increase over
2022 budget applied to the province’s portion of jointly funded programs is based on the funding
increase allocated for the 2022 operating year, which was applied pro-rated for the months of April
through December in 2022.

 Continuation of one-time mitigation funding of $1,037,800 is also assumed, which is consistent with
approved funding for 2020 through 2022.

 As per the 2022 funding and accountability agreement, the Ministry will continue to support the
Northern Ontario Fruit and Vegetable and Indigenous Communities programs at 100%, in addition to
Mandatory Programs for Unorganized Territories, MOH/AMOH Compensation Initiative, and the
Ontario Senior Dental Care Program (OSDCP).

Of particular note, for the 2022 funding year, APH was allocated 100% funding for the OSDCP
program in the amount of $1,252,900 to support ongoing pressures identified in this program
(increased from $697,900 in 2021). For the 2023 budget, the Executive Team assumed that 100%
provincial funding for the OSDCP program will remain to meet program needs in the coming year.

 No increase to the total municipal levy rate applied by the District of Algoma Health Unit.

 COVID-19 response and immunization incremental costs are estimated at $1,078,089 for 2023. As
the Ministry has indicated a commitment to fund COVID-19 extraordinary expenses in 2023, it is
assumed these costs will be reimbursed by the province.

For comparison, 2022 allocations from the Ministry include $2,210,400 in funding for COVID-19
extraordinary expenses. As of June 30, 2022, 2022 forecasted incremental costs are $2,945,487,
which the Ministry has indicated will be eligible for reimbursement based on ongoing quarterly
submissions.

75Page 239 of 298



 No additional funding will be provided by the Ministry to fund COVID-19 Recovery initiatives. These
anticipated costs will be managed within mandatory program base funding, impacting the restoration
of programs and services as public health continues with pandemic response, addresses the
backlog of programs and services suspended during the pandemic, and works to rebuild public
health to identify and address population health priorities.

 Assumptions related to staffing are as follows:

o A vacancy factor of 3% has been incorporated into overall salaries, wages and benefits
($446,000).

For comparison purposes, and as driven largely by competitive labour markets and small
labour pools, the actual vacancy rate in 2021 and year to date in 2022 is estimated to range
between 7% and 11%.

o A 1.5% wage increase for all staff.

 Fixed non-salary budgeted costs related to facilities, such as utilities and service contracts, have
been estimated based on historical data, current contract rates, and assumed inflationary rates with
a combined year over year increase of 2% over the 2022 approved budget. A contingency
representing 6% of the fixed cost budget has been factored to support unforeseen necessary costs.

 Algoma Public Health’s debt payment plan will continue to be managed with existing resources.

 COVID-19 has resulted in significant program and service interruptions, resulting in backlogs and
impacts to service deliverables for 2022, and foreseeably those planned for 2023.

 Notwithstanding the need to prioritize programming in the context of the COVID-19 pandemic, the
requirements of boards of health remain the same, as articulated in the Health Protection and
Promotion Act, related regulations, and the OPHS1, and related protocols and guidelines.

 There are many unknowns, and APH must have the capacity and competencies to assess and react
quickly to evolving needs (e.g., challenging fall respiratory season coupled with COVID-19, surge of
COVID-19, new variants of concern, expanded eligibility for booster doses, etc.), while planning for
ongoing and future public health challenges, as part of COVID-19 recovery and rebuilding.

4. 2022 Grant Approval

The 2022 Ministry Program Based Grant approval was received and last revised as of May 2022. 

 APH was allocated a 1% increase to the Mandatory Cost-Shared Program base funding for total
2022 funding of $8,795,200, increased from $8,708,100 in 2021. The 1% increase for 2022 was pro-
rated for the months of April through December, resulting in the true funding allocation for 2022 to be
$8,773,425.

 The grant allocation for the 100% provincial funding for Unorganized Territories/Mandatory
Programs ($530,400), Unorganized Territories/ Indigenous Communities Program ($98,000) and the
Unorganized Territories/Northern Fruit and Vegetable Program ($117,400) remained unchanged.

 The OSDCP was allocated an additional $555,000 above 2021 funding levels based on current and
ongoing pressures identified in this program. 2022 funding levels are allocated at $1,252,900,
increased from $697,900 in 2021.

 The MOH/AMOH compensation initiative will continue to be based on the actual status of current
MOH and AMOH positions.

76Page 240 of 298



18 

5. Reserve Funds

As part of fiscally sound management, the Board of Health has long-established reserve funds for the 
agency since 2017. Financial reserves are a prudent and expedient way to provide the agency with 
resources for unforeseen emergencies, known future infrastructure investments and future planned 
projects that support the mission, vision, and strategic goals of APH.  

The reserve funds balance totals $1.4M, which could support approximately one month of operations. 

The COVID-19 pandemic is a public health emergency that has required significant, unforeseen 
financial and human resourcing, which will continue for several years to sustain response and transition 
to recovery. 

6. Recommended 2023 Budget

6.1 Operating Revenue 

The 2023 operating revenues include Ministry funding for mandatory programs (historically cost shared), 
Ministry funding for other related programs (historically 100% provincially funded), Ministry Unorganized 
Territories funding, municipal funding by 21 municipalities, and interest and user fees. The 
recommended municipal funding has remained unchanged from 2022. There is also no change in 
Unorganized Territories funding. 

6.1.1 Provincial 

Pursuant to section 76 of the Health Protection & Promotion Act, the Minister may make grants for the 
purposes of this Act on such conditions as he or she considers appropriate.27   

6.1.2 Municipal 

Pursuant to section 72 of the Health Protection & Promotion Act, obligated municipalities in a health unit 
shall pay, 

(a) The expenses incurred by or on behalf of the board of health of the health unit in the performance of
its functions and duties under the HPPA or any other act; and

(b) The expenses incurred by or on behalf of the MOH of the board of health in the performance of his
or her functions and duties under the HPPA or any other Act. 27

As part of the recommended 2023 Operating & Capital Budget, the Executive Team is recommending 
no change in the total municipal levy from obligated municipalities within the District of Algoma Health 
Unit. Although total municipal funding will remain unchanged from 2022, rates apportioned among the 
21 municipalities within Algoma have been updated to reflect current population counts per the 2021 
Census Profile issued by Statistics Canada28 (see Appendix A). 

For context, Table 5.0 illustrates historical changes in municipal levy rates from 2012 – 2023 
(recommended). 

27 Government of Ontario. (2021). Health protection and promotion act, R.S.O. 1990, c.H7. Retrieved from https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h07 
28 Statistics Canada. (2022). Census profile, 2021 census of population. Retrieved from https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2021/dp-pd/prof/index.cfm?Lang=E 

77Page 241 of 298



Table 5.0: APH Historical Approved Levy Increase, 2012 – 2023 (Recommended)  

As evidenced through ‘the work,’ or programs and services provided by public health, municipalities and 
social sectors across Algoma receive robust support for effective COVID-19 response, health protection, 
health promotion, and disease prevention among residents.     

Value for Money: Per Capita Rate 

When looking at the value for public health, as of 2022, the cost per capita in Algoma for public health 
services and programs was $35.58/person, when converted to 2018 MPAC (or $40.23 when using 
2016 Census). 

For the recommended 2023 budget, cost per capita was updated based on population counts from the 
2021 Census Profile by Statistics Canada.28 Incorporating the updated population counts results in a 
slight increase to the forecasted 2023 cost per capita, estimated at $40.44 per person. Health Units 
within the province either use the most recent Census or MPAC population figures when calculating the 
per capita rate. 

When compared to northern health units, as of 2022, APH’s per capita rate ranked in the middle when 
using MPAC figures. Northern health unit per capita rates ranged from $28.65/person to $51.65/person 
in 2021, for those PHUs that responded to an APH inquiry on per capita rates conducted in fall 2021. 
Due to the early presentation of the 2023 recommended budget to the Board of Health, updated per 
capita rates for 2022/2023 were unable to be collected from northern PHUs.  

For context, the Board of Health has experienced the historical growth shown in Table 6.0 from 2018 – 
2023 (recommended) with respect to the rate of public health per capita in Algoma.  

Table 6.0: APH Historical Approved per Capita Rates, 2018 – 2023 

The recommended levy rate for 2023 correlates to a per capita rate of $40.44/person, which continues 
to rank in the middle of northern health units when compared to northern per capita rates shared in fall 
2021.  

Therefore, when reviewing the cost of public health per capital, alongside the work by public health and 
projected work to recover from the pandemic and support community health and wellbeing, the 21 

Year Levy Increase

2012 2.00%

2013 1.00%

2014 2.00%

2015 4.16%

2016 4.50%

2017 2.50%

2018 0.50%

2019 0.50%

2020 1.12%

2021 7.00%

2022 10.00%

2023 0.00% (Budgeted)

Year Approved Rate

2018 $33.63

2019 $33.80

2020 $34.18

2021 $36.57

2022 $40.23

2023 40.44 (Budgeted)

78Page 242 of 298



municipalities within Algoma continue to receive exceptional value for local public health programs 
and services. 

6.2 Expenditures 

As compared to the 2022 forecast, the 4.82% overall budget decrease is comprised of the following: 

In other words, of the 4.82% or $898,477 decrease in the 2023 budget, salaries and benefits represent 
about 70% of the decrease (2.80% and 0.58% respectively of the 4.82% decrease), while operating cost 
decreases make up about 30% of the overall decrease (1.44% of the 4.82% decrease). 

6.2.1 Salary and Benefit Changes 

The 2023 expenditure comparisons with 2022 were made using the 2022 forecasted values (see Table 
1.0). As compared with 2022, the salary and benefit budget lines reflect a decrease of 4.65% and a 
decrease of 4.18%, respectively:  

 Salary: As compared to 2022, salaries show a decrease of $521,323 or 4.65%. The decrease
represents staffing that was identified in the 2022 operating budget for COVID-19 response and
immunization that is not anticipated to be needed in 2023 (e.g. dedicated COVID-19 phone line
staffing support, significant roster of casual immunizers for COVID-19 mass immunization clinics).

The recommended operating revenue for cost shared public health programs for 2023 would support
filling all current vacant permanent positions and temporary replacement for approved unpaid leave
of absences (e.g. temporary filling of a permanent FTE’s leave for pregnancy/parental leave).

The salary amount includes a nominal annual increase, staff movement along salary grid, and an
assumed 3% vacancy factor.

 Benefits: As compared to 2022, benefits show a decrease of $109,582 or 4.18%. Historical
utilization is factored heavily in the projection of the rates, in addition to the normal market
fluctuations.

6.2.2 Operating Expenditure Changes 

As compared with the restated 2022 budget or 2022 forecast, the 2023 recommended budget reflects 
an overall decrease of 4.82% ($898,477).  

Operating expenditures have been budgeted by the Executive Team with consideration of both historical 
pre-pandemic and pandemic spend levels, with the assumption that regular program activities will be 
recovering in 2023, albeit not yet at full capacity as we continue to plan for population health recovery 
and address the backlog of services resulting from the suspension of non-highest risk programs to 
prioritize pandemic response.  

Expenditure lines with significant changes are detailed below, following the order of appearance in the 
budget summary (Table 1.0): 

 Travel: The decrease in travel relates to the expectation that there will be reduced travel throughout
the district to support the staffing of COVID-19 initiatives and clinics. Although travel will be required
for routine program work, it will remain at reduced capacity when compared to pre-pandemic levels,
recognizing the continued use of virtual platforms for distance meetings and that routine program
work is not expected to be fully restored to pre-pandemic levels in 2023.

 Program expenses: Program expenses for 2023 are budgeted at a nominal decrease from 2022.
Although there is anticipated significant savings with regard to program spend for the COVID-19

Salary cost decrease 2.80%

Benefit cost decrease 0.58%

Operating cost decrease 1.44%

Overall Decrease 4.82%

79Page 243 of 298



Response and Immunization programs, these savings are directly offset by increased program 
spend driven by increase funding in our OSDCP program.  

Program expenses include general program materials and supplies, purchased services, and 
professional fees (e.g. physician and/or denture service fees). 

 Office: The projected increase in office expenses in 2023 is based on the expectation that the
majority of staff will have returned to in-office work for the duration of the year, as per the return-to-
office-work program, therefore increase purchasing of general office supplies.

 Telecommunications: The decrease in telecommunications expenses is driven by efficiencies to be
introduced with migration to a new phone system.

 Program promotion: The decrease in program promotion is largely driven by a reduction of media
spend budgeted to the COVID-19 response and immunization programs. As we enter the recovery
phase of the pandemic, it is anticipated that COVID-19 will be routinized into mandatory public
health programming and will no longer require public promotion or communication at the levels
experienced during the height of the pandemic.

In addition, with work to first address the backlog of public health programs and services, it is
unlikely the programs will fully recover in 2023 based on limited resources and readiness, internally
and externally. Hence, program promotion and related expenses will not yet reflect pre-pandemic
periods.

 Facilities Leases: The increase in facilities leases is driven by lease renewals at one of our district
offices, as well as a term renewals at our remaining two district offices.

 Building maintenance: The decrease in building maintenance relates to significantly reduced
needs for security and janitorial services related to the COVID-19 pandemic for APH facilities and
clinics. Needs for these services continue to decline as the demand for external immunization clinics
reduces and community restrictions loosen.

 Fees and insurance: The increase in fees and insurance is due to increased general liability and
property coverage, as well as the addition of a cyber-risk protection policy.

 Expense recoveries: Expense recoveries are administrative allocations from community health
programs to public health programs. An example includes public health charging a community health
program for administrative services support.

To more accurately reflect the work public health is supporting with respect to community health
programs, management is ensuring adequate administrative charges for community health
programs, in line with the Board’s strategy to ensure it is accountable for the dollars it receives and
spends, by not subsidizing community health programs. The decrease in expense recoveries for
2023 is due to the divestment of the Infant Child Development Program and Preschool Speech and
Language community programs at March 31, 2022.

7. Capital Budget

In accordance with APH’s 2018-2030 Capital Asset Funding Plan (Appendix B), the 2023 capital 
budget was forecasted to include $25,000 for computer replacements and $50,000 for a new truck for 
use in the land control program.  

Due to significant investment in computer equipment necessary during the COVID 19 pandemic and 
assessment of the current condition of the APH truck, these needs are no longer considered necessary. 

Instead, the Executive Team is recommending a 2023 capital budget estimated at $265,000, which 
includes the following expenditures:  

 Upgrade of network servers that house and run agency applications and store data. This expense
was originally forecasted to be completed in 2022, however due to supply chain issues has not yet

80Page 244 of 298



been completed ($200,000). 

 Upgrade of the tape backup, which is used to ensure backup of agency wide applications and data
in the event of a hardware failure or data corruption on the servers ($65,000).

Both of the above mentioned items are out of warranty and are no longer supported for the latest 
security and software updates that are required to ensure systems are as secure as possible and able 
to efficiently and effectively turn around any down time experienced.  

8. Conclusions

The recommended 2023 budget for public health programs and services is $17,740,689, representing a 
decrease of $898,477 over 2022 anticipated funding. At a 4.82% decrease over previous, the 
recommended budget is the minimum required to maintain COVID-19 response and immunization 
programming, as is expected by the Ministry, alongside early efforts in COVID-19 recovery to revitalize 
the public health workforce, restore public health programs and services as mandated by the Ontario 
Public Health Standards1, and rebuild public health.  

81Page 245 of 298



Appendix A   

Annual Municipal Levy Comparison, 2018 to Proposed 2023 

2023 Municipal Levy
POP 2016 

Census 

2018 

Approved 

Rate

2018 

Approved 

Levy

2019 

Approved 

Rate

2019 

Approved 

Levy

2020 

Approved 

Rate

2020 

Approved 

Levy

2020 

Approved 

Rate (After 

Refund)

2020 

Approved 

Levy (After 

Refund)

2021 

Approved 

Rate

2021 

Approved 

Levy 

2022 

Approved 

Rate

2022 

Approved 

Levy

POP 2021 

Census*

Net Change 

to Census 

Population

2023 

Proposed 

Rate

2023 

Proposed 

Levy

Appointmen

t of Costs

Proposed 

Net Change

CITIES

Sault Ste. Marie 73,368        33.63 2,467,640    33.80 2,479,978 36.38 2,669,377    34.18 2,507,836    36.57 2,683,386    40.23 2,951,725    72,051        (1,317)         40.44 2,913,655    69.55% (38,069)       

Elliot Lake 10,741        33.63 361,260      33.80 363,066 36.38 390,795      34.18 367,146      36.57 392,852      40.23 432,137      11,372        631 40.44 459,870      10.98% 27,733        

- 

TOWNS - 

- 

Blind River 3,472 33.63 116,776      33.80 117,360 36.38 126,324      34.18 118,679      36.57 126,986      40.23 139,685      3,422 (50) 40.44 138,382      3.30% (1,303)         

Bruce Mines 582 33.63 19,575        33.80 19,673 36.38 21,175        34.18 19,894        36.57 21,286        40.23 23,415        582 - 40.44 23,535        0.56% 121 

Thessalon 1,286 33.63 43,253        33.80 43,469 36.38 46,789        34.18 43,958        36.57 47,034        40.23 51,737        1,260 (26) 40.44 50,953        1.22% (785) 

- 

VILLAGES/MUNICIPALITY - 

- 

Hilton Beach 171 33.63 5,751 33.80 5,780 36.38 6,222 34.18 5,845 36.57 6,254 40.23 6,879 198 27 40.44 8,007 0.19% 1,127 

Huron Shores 1,664 33.63 55,967        33.80 56,246 36.38 60,542        34.18 56,878        36.57 60,859        40.23 66,945        1,860 196 40.44 75,216        1.80% 8,271 

- 

TOWNSHIPS - 

- 

Dubreuilville 613 33.63 20,617        33.80 20,721 36.38 22,303        34.18 20,953        36.57 22,420        40.23 24,662        576 (37) 40.44 23,293        0.56% (1,369)         

Jocelyn 313 33.63 10,527        33.80 10,580 36.38 11,388        34.18 10,699        36.57 11,448        40.23 12,593        314 1 40.44 12,698        0.30% 105 

Johnson 751 33.63 25,259        33.80 25,385 36.38 27,324        34.18 25,670        36.57 27,467        40.23 30,214        749 (2) 40.44 30,289        0.72% 75 

Hilton 307 33.63 10,326        33.80 10,377 36.38 11,170        34.18 10,494        36.57 11,228        40.23 12,351        382 75 40.44 15,448        0.37% 3,097 

Laird 1,047 33.63 35,215        33.80 35,391 36.38 38,094        34.18 35,788        36.57 38,293        40.23 42,122        1,121 74 40.44 45,332        1.08% 3,210 

MacDonald, Meredith
and Aberdeen Add'l 1,609 33.63 54,117        33.80 54,387 36.38 58,541        34.18 54,998        36.57 58,848        40.23 64,733        1,513 (96) 40.44 61,184        1.46% (3,549)         

Wawa (formerly Michipicoten) 2,905 33.63 97,706        33.80 98,195 36.38 105,694      34.18 99,298        36.57 106,247      40.23 116,872      2,705 (200) 40.44 109,387      2.61% (7,485)         

The North Shore 497 33.63 16,716        33.80 16,800 36.38 18,083        34.18 16,988        36.57 18,177        40.23 19,995        531 34 40.44 21,473        0.51% 1,478 

Plummer Add'l 660 33.63 22,198        33.80 22,309 36.38 24,013        34.18 22,560        36.57 24,139        40.23 26,553        757 97 40.44 30,612        0.73% 4,059 

Prince 1,010 33.63 33,970        33.80 34,140 36.38 36,747        34.18 34,524        36.57 36,940        40.23 40,634        975 (35) 40.44 39,428        0.94% (1,206)         

St. Joseph 1,240 33.63 41,706        33.80 41,914 36.38 45,116        34.18 42,385        36.57 45,352        40.23 49,887        1,426 186 40.44 57,666        1.38% 7,779 

Spanish 712 33.63 23,947        33.80 24,067 36.38 25,905        34.18 24,337        36.57 26,041        40.23 28,645        670 (42) 40.44 27,094        0.65% (1,551)         

Tarbutt & Tarbutt Add'l 534 33.63 17,960        33.80 18,050 36.38 19,429        34.18 18,253        36.57 19,531        40.23 21,484        573 39 40.44 23,171        0.55% 1,687 

White River 645 33.63 21,694        33.80 21,802 36.38 23,467        34.18 22,047        36.57 23,590        40.23 25,949        557 (88) 40.44 22,524        0.54% (3,425)         

Total 104,127 3,502,180 3,519,691 3,788,497 3,559,232 3,808,378    4,189,216    103,594      (533) 4,189,216    100% 0 

YOY % Increase 0.50% 0.50% 7.64% 1.12% 7.00% 10.00% 0.00%

Notes: 

* For Budget 2023, population rates have been updated from the 2021 CENSUS.

Statistics Canada. (2022). Census profile, 2021 census of population. Retrieved from https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2021/dp-pd/prof/index.cfm?Lang=E

82Page 246 of 298



Appendix B 

2018-2030 APH Capital Asset Funding Plan 

See subsequent document. 

83Page 247 of 298



Appendix H

84Page 248 of 298



85Page 249 of 298



86Page 250 of 298



87Page 251 of 298



88Page 252 of 298



89Page 253 of 298



90Page 254 of 298



Blind River
9 Lawton Street

Elliot Lake
302 - 31 Nova Scotia Walk 
(ELNOS Building)

Sault Ste. Marie
294 Willow Avenue

Wawa
18 Ganley St.

www.algomapublichealth.com

@algomahealth

91Page 255 of 298



Briefing Note

Strategic Directions: Improve Health Equity  Collaborate Effectively  Be Accountable  Enhance Employee Engagement 

To: Finance and Audit Committee 

From: Leslie Dunseath – Manager of Accounting Services 

Date: October 12, 2022 

Re:        Reimbursement of Funds to Garden River Wellness Centre for Services Not Rendered 

 For Information  for Discussion  for a Decision 

ISSUE: 

Algoma Public Health (APH) has been delivering and billing public health services to 
Garden River Wellness Centre (GRWC) under a long-standing Purchased Services 
Agreement. In 2020 and 2021, while responding to the COVID-19 pandemic, APH 
delivered program services using the continuity of operations plan. This plan focused on 
the delivery of the highest priority programs and impacted the work delivered under the 
aforementioned agreement, which per the service schedule, continued to be billed on a 
fixed quarterly basis. As we begin to recover the work to be done under this agreement 
and review/update the applicable service schedule, GRWC has requested a refund for the 
services billed but not rendered over the course of the pandemic. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Relationship with Indigenous Communities Guideline, 2018 emphasizes the 
importance of engaging with Indigenous communities to create meaningful relationships 
and collaborative partnerships and to work towards decreasing health inequities. 

Last updated in 2019, APH has had a long-standing Purchased Services Agreement with 
GRWC. Schedule B of this service agreement outlines the delivery of services to be 
rendered as part of the Family Health Services Agreement; which includes the delivery of 
the Healthy Babies Healthy Children 48 Hour Postpartum follow-up, as well as prenatal 
and parenting educational and promotional services. During 2020-2021, the program 
maintained the Healthy Babies Healthy Children 48 Hour Postpartum follow-up, in line 
with priorities outlined in the APH continuity of operations plan. All other services were 
put on hold due to the COVID 19 pandemic response.  

92Page 256 of 298



Briefing Note Page 2 of 2 

As outlined in Schedule B of this agreement, GRWC was billed $11,565.31 on a quarterly 
basis in 2020 and 2021 for total billed services of $92,522.48. 

As reviewed and estimated by program management, the actual value of services 
rendered over the course of 2020 and 2021 is approximately $2000 – consisting of billable 
hours associated with direct client care and planning activities. Total billed services 
requested to be reimbursed is to be reduced by this amount resulting in a net requested 
reimbursement of $90,522.48. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF RECOMMENDED ACTION AND MITIGATION OF RISKS: 

Funds requested for reimbursement will be recognized as an expense to the Healthy Growth and 
Development programs under our public health cost shared budget for 2022. As of August 31, 2022, 
our public health cost shared programs are reporting a year to date surplus of $988K – this 
reimbursement of funds will act as a reduction to APH’s year to date surplus.  

As part of recovery planning, GRWC and APH will be renewing the Purchased Services Agreement with 
changes to invoicing processes for services to be delivered. Going forward, services will be billed on a 
monthly basis as delivered. This will prevent any billing overages or shortfalls associated with actual 
program work delivered.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

Management recommends full reimbursement to GRWC for services billed but not rendered during 
the COVID 19 pandemic in the amount of $90,522.48. 

CONTACT: 

Leslie Dunseath, Manager of Accounting Services 

93Page 257 of 298



Briefing Note

Strategic Directions: Improve Health Equity  Collaborate Effectively  Be Accountable  Enhance Employee Engagement 

To:       Finance and Audit Committee 

From:  Leslie Dunseath – Manager of Accounting Services 

Date:  October 12, 2022 

Re:        Options for 2021 Public Health Surplus 

 For Information  for Discussion  for a Decision 

ISSUE: 

The 2021 Audited Financial Statements are complete, and management believes that there 
will not be any material changes from the 2021 Settlement that has been submitted to the 
Ministry (however, not yet reviewed).  

Algoma Public Health (APH) reported a surplus in Public Health mandatory cost shared 
programs in the amount of $1,175,697 in 2021. Currently, the surplus dollars are in APH’s 
business account. 

In accordance with Board of Health Policy 02-05-065, Reserve Fund, “the Board of Health 
in each year may provide in its estimates for a reasonable amount to be paid into the reserve 
funds provided that no amount shall be included in the estimates which is to be paid into 
the reserve funds when the cumulative balance of all the reserve funds in the given year 
exceeds 15 percent of the regular operating revenues for the Board of Health approved 
budget for the mandatory cost shared programs and services”.  

In 2021, total mandatory cost shared revenues derived by APH was $13,743,766, 15% of 
which equates to $2,061,565. 

BACKGROUND: 

APH’s Board of Health established a Reserve Fund Policy in June of 2015. The purpose 
of the establishment of a Reserve Fund is to be better prepared to:  

• meet any unexpected costs that may arise in the future;
• help offset one-time or capital expenditures;
• help offset any revenue shortfalls;

94Page 258 of 298



Briefing Note Page 2 of 3 

• minimize fluctuations in funding;
• help manage cash flows and;
• avoid application of additional levies to municipalities in the event of any cash

shortfalls.

APH has contributed to the reserve fund based on recommendations by the Board. APH 
has not required using any of the reserve fund since the development of the policy. As of 
September 30, 2022, the current amount of funds in the reserve fund is $1,411,366, which 
represents approximately one month of operations.  

Based on APH’s 2021 audited financial statements, management believes the 2021 
municipal surplus to be approximately $1.2M. APH’s lowest daily liquidity position within 
the past six months was $2.7M. Details regarding current interest rates are as follows 
(subject to change and last updated in September 2022 per adjusted Royal Bank Prime 
Rate): 

• Reserve Fund – Royal Bank of Canada Premium Investment Account currently
earning interest at 1.75% on balances between $1.0M - $5.0M

• Business Account - currently earning interest on balances over $1.0M at the Royal
Bank Prime Rate less 2.0% - or currently 3.45%

OPTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION: 

That the Finance & Audit Committee for the District of Algoma Health Unit recommends 
one of the following options to the Board of Health: 

Option 1: Contribute up to $650,000 into APH’s Reserve Fund  

Pros:  
• Consistent with the Board of Health’s risk management strategy over the past

number of years.
• Improved Reserve Fund balance for Board of Health.

Cons: 
• Forfeiture of higher interest rates currently being earned on APH’s business

account.
• Lower cash flow availability to support unforeseen cash outlays associated with

unexpected costs such as those associated with COVID-19 response, immunization
and/or recovery initiatives.

Option 2: 100% of 2021 Surplus Dollars Remain in APH’s Business Account  

Pros:  
• Surplus dollars will help offset 2022/2023 expenditures more expeditiously (Board

approval is required for any transfers from the Board’s Reserve Fund in excess of
$50,000 per transaction).

95Page 259 of 298



Briefing Note Page 3 of 3 

• Funds can be used for any additional cash outlays that may be necessary, such as
unexpected costs for COVID-19 response, immunization and/or recovery initiatives.

• Current interest earned at 3.45% for balances over $1M – or 1.7% higher than that rate
which is currently earned on the reserve fund.

Cons: 
• The reserve fund will remain static with no increase.

 RECOMMENDATION: 

Management recommends to leave a portion of the 2021 surplus in the business account. 
This will help to cover any shortfall that may occur due to COVID-19, as funding from the 
province is still uncertain, particularly regarding recovery initiatives. At this point in time, 
the business account is also receiving a significantly higher interest rate than the reserve 
fund. Considering the currently volatile markets, management will continue to monitor 
interest rate levels of the reserve fund and business account. If interest rates change, a 
review will be done at such time to determine if our contributions to the reserve fund are 
considered appropriate. Management will also re-assess at such a time in 2022/2023, 
should we receive confirmation of any material impacts to funding specifically related to 
the cost shared mandatory programs.  

CONTACT: 

Leslie Dunseath, Manager of Accounting Services 

96Page 260 of 298



Board of Health 
R E S O L U T I O N

Date: October 26, 2022 Resolution No: 

Moved: Seconded: 

Subject: Request for Increase in Provincial Base Funding for Local Public Health 

Whereas, Algoma Public Health (APH) has provided a robust pandemic response to contain and mitigate the spread of 
COVID-19 since the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a global pandemic in March 20201; and  

Whereas, APH has coordinated, implemented, and supported COVID-19 vaccine clinics across the district to administer over 
291,000 doses of COVID-19 vaccine to eligible persons in Algoma2; and 

Whereas, to resource pandemic response and immunization programming needs, APH diverted resources from pre-existing 
public health programs and services to ensure timely response to COVID-19 and maintenance of highest risk programming; 
and 

Whereas, the diversion of resources resulted in the scale down or suspension of moderate to low risk public health 
programs and services, similar to other areas of the health sector, as well as a significant service backlog and new 
community health priorities; and  

Whereas, to effectively recover from the COVID-19 pandemic using a collaborative, evidence-informed approach, local 
public health will need to revitalize the public health workforce, routinize COVID-19 response and immunization, restore 
public health services and programs, and rebuild public health to respond to new community health priorities; and 

Whereas, to date, for 2023, the Ontario Ministry of Health has committed to continue both one-time reimbursement to 
local public health units for extraordinary COVID-19 expenses, as well as one-time mitigation funding to offset the impacts of 
the cost-sharing formula change to municipalities; and 

Whereas, to date, the Ontario Ministry of Health has not committed to one-time recovery funding or an increase in 
provincial base funding to adjust for recovery-related activities and has specified that recovery-related activities cannot be 
charged as extraordinary COVID-19 expenses, requiring use of provincial base funding; and 

Whereas, local public health agencies have received only two increases to provincial base funding in the past five years, 
most recently 1% in 2022, despite the introduction of several new programs within the Ontario Public Health Standards3, 
added work associated with pandemic recovery, and inflation resulting in wage, benefit, and operating cost increases; and 

Whereas, no increase to provincial base funding for the restoration of mandatory cost-shared public health programs and 
services hinders the ability of local public health to fully deliver the Ontario Public Health Standards3 and address new public 
health priorities that, unless addressed in the short-term and resourced appropriately, will continue to grow and result in 
negative community health impacts; and 

Whereas, communities in Algoma require enhanced program and service delivery to respond to the threat of newly 
emerging infectious diseases and public health issues (e.g. Monkeypox), and to recover from the collateral harms that have 
resulted from prioritization of the pandemic response (e.g.., opioid poisoning crisis, increase in sexually transmitted 
infections, mental health complications, etc.); and  

1 World Health Organization. WHO Director-General’s opening remarks at the media briefing on COVID-19 – 11 March 2020. Published March 11, 2020. Accessed October 17, 2022. https://www.who.int/director-
general/speeches/detail/who-director-general-s-opening-remarks-at-the-media-briefing-on-covid-19---11-march-2020   
2 Ontario Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care. COVaxON. Updated October 20, 2022. Accessed October 20, 2022. Internal report.  
3 Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care. Ontario Public Health Standards: Requirements for programs, services and accountability. Protecting and promoting the health of Ontarians. Published June 2021. Accessed October 17, 2022. 
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf

97Page 261 of 298

https://www.who.int/director-general/speeches/detail/who-director-general-s-opening-remarks-at-the-media-briefing-on-covid-19---11-march-2020
https://www.who.int/director-general/speeches/detail/who-director-general-s-opening-remarks-at-the-media-briefing-on-covid-19---11-march-2020


Board of Health 
R E S O L U T I O N

Whereas, because local public health remains a very small part of total health spending, relatively modest investments in 
provincial base funding could have a transformative impact on population health and wellbeing.4  

Therefore be it resolved, that the Board of Health of Algoma Public Health write to the Ontario Minister of Health to request 
that the provincial government commit to increased base funding to local public health units, such that public health units 
are able to sustain and routinize COVID-19 response  and immunization, while simultaneously restoring the delivery of 
mandated public health programs and services, addressing the backlog of services suspended during the pandemic, and 
rebuilding local public health for resilience to protect the wellbeing of residents in Northern Ontario.  

 CARRIED: Chair's Signature ________________________________________________ 

Louise Caicco Tett Micheline Hatfield Musa Onyuna Brent Rankin 

Deborah Graystone Lee Mason Ed Pearce Matthew Scott 

Sally Hagman 

4 Health Canada. Learning from SARS: Renewal of public health in Canada. Published 2003. Accessed October 18, 2022. https://www.canada.ca/content/dam/phac-aspc/migration/phac-aspc/publicat/sars-sras/pdf/sars-e.pdf
98Page 262 of 298



Board of Health 
R E S O L U T I O N

 

1 Health Quality Ontario. Northern Ontario health equity strategy. Published 2018. Accessed October 18, 2022. https://www.hqontario.ca/Portals/0/documents/health-quality/health-equity-strategy-report-en.pdf 
2 Health Canada. Learning from SARS: Renewal of public health in Canada. Published 2003. Accessed October 18, 2022. https://www.canada.ca/content/dam/phac-aspc/migration/phac-aspc/publicat/sars-sras/pdf/sars-e.pdf 
3 Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care. Ontario Public Health Standards: Requirements for programs, services and accountability. Protecting and promoting the health of Ontarians. Published June 2021. Accessed October 17, 2022. 
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/ 

Date: October 26, 2022 Resolution No: 

Moved: Seconded: 

Subject: Request for a Northern Public Health Human Resource Strategy 

Whereas, people living in Northern Ontario experience poorer health outcomes and greater health inequities compared to 
the rest of the province, and these health outcomes are influenced by social determinants of health, including lack of access 
to high-quality health services based on where they live1,2; and 

Whereas, the recruitment and retention of skilled public health professionals in Northern Ontario has faced significant and 
longstanding challenges, similar to the unique human resource challenges of the health care sector in the north; and  

Whereas, Algoma Public Health (APH) had an 11.04% vacancy rate as of October 5, 2022, demonstrating the challenge with 
recruitment and need for a strategy that will ensure adequate, sustainable full-time equivalents (FTEs) to routinize COVID-19 
response and immunization, while simultaneously recovering from the pandemic and fulfilling the provincial mandate within 
the Ontario Public Health Standards3; and 

Whereas, persistent challenges in recruitment for APH have included (a) the unknowns associated with and undesirability of 
temporary, time-limited positions among highly skilled public health professionals, (b) competition for health human 
resources across the Algoma district and beyond, and (c) lack of qualified candidates with the certification or skill level 
required for specific positions; and  

Whereas, one-time funding provided by the province, though appreciated, has been inadequate to sustainably recruit highly 
skilled public health professionals, as it is only able to support temporary positions that do not provide the job security 
needed to relocate to Northern Ontario; and 

Whereas, APH has experienced the greatest challenge with recruitment of certified public health inspectors (PHIs), an issue 
shared among northern public health units, and demonstrated by an increased number of vacancies year over year from 
2019 to 2022 at APH; and 

Whereas, for context, Jobs Canada4 had 40 positions for inspectors in public and environmental health and occupational 
health and safety posted in Q1 for 2022 for the north region of Ontario, with the region over-represented in the total 
number of postings demonstrating the high demand for these professionals in the north; and  

Whereas, the status quo on public health human resources is insufficient and will leave communities vulnerable to a range 
of health hazards and infectious diseases in the future, in addition to preventable morbidity and mortality from chronic 
diseases and injuries2 that have the potential to be addressed by skilled public health professionals who fill vacant roles; and 

Whereas, without evidence- and northern context-informed strategies for recruitment that align to Northern Ontario, local 
public health will be unable to sustain COVID-19 response and immunization, while restoring public health programs and 
services mandated within the OPHS1 to meet the needs of our communities and prepare for future health crises in a timely 
manner; and 

99Page 263 of 298



Board of Health 
R E S O L U T I O N

 CARRIED: Chair's Signature ________________________________________________ 

Louise Caicco Tett Micheline Hatfield Musa Onyuna Brent Rankin 

Deborah Graystone Lee Mason Ed Pearce Matthew Scott 

Sally Hagman 

4 Ministry of Labour, Immigration, Training and Skills Development. Inspectors in public and environmental health and occupational health and safety, NOC 2263. Updated 2022. Accessed September 28, 2022.  
https://www.services.labour.gov.on.ca/labourmarket/jobProfile/jobProfileFullView.xhtml?nocCode=2263 
5 Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care. Health human resource strategy. Updated December 7, 2018. Accessed October 17, 2022. https://health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/hhrsd/about/

Whereas, although the Ministry of Health and Ministry of Long-Term Care’s current health resource strategy recognizes the 
importance of a strong workforce to the health care system, northern health programs focus largely on recruitment of 
healthcare providers in primary care (e.g. physicians, specialists) and the opportunity to conduct a community assessment 
visit in a select northern community, and do not include programs to sustainably recruit and retain northern public health 
human resources, including PHIs5; and 

Whereas, to strengthen the public health system, recover, and prepare for future public health crises, strategic and 
sustainable investment is needed to recruit a full complement of qualified, permanent public health employees.  

Therefore be it resolved, the Board of Health of Algoma Public Health write to the Ontario Minister of Health to request that 
the provincial government commit to developing and supporting the implementation of a northern public health human 
resource strategy, with specific attention to public health inspectors, in collaboration with northern public health units to 
address the longstanding public health human resource challenges in the north.  

100Page 264 of 298



Board of Health 
R E S O L U T I O N

Date: October 26, 2022 Resolution No: 

Moved: Seconded: 

Subject: Request to Review and Increase Base Funding for the Healthy Babies Healthy Children Program 

Whereas, Healthy Babies Healthy Children (HBHC) is a mandatory program within the Healthy Growth and Development 
program standard of the Ontario Public Health Standards (OPHS),1 and is funded 100% by the Ministry of Children, 
Community and Social Services (MCCSS); and  

Whereas, HBHC works upstream to ensure children from birth to school-entry age have a healthy start in life, recognizing 
that early childhood development is a critical period for establishing conditions for health and wellbeing throughout the 
lifespan2; and  

Whereas, HBHC works to optimize newborn and child healthy growth and development and reduce health inequities, and 
has resulted in approximately 900 families being screened for risk and offered the program and 140 or more registering for 
the blended-model home visiting services each year in Algoma3; and  

Whereas, this important work with at-risk families requires significant human and material resources, such as the time to 
conduct at-home visits, travel for visits across the Algoma district, and increase in time and training required to respond to 
growing caseload complexity, as families are being seen with compounding issues such as mental health, housing insecurity, 
substance use, and domestic violence, among others, that need to be addressed; and 

Whereas, HBHC funding has been a longstanding concerns for many boards of health in Ontario, including Algoma Public 
Health (APH), despite efforts to mitigate the effects of funding shortfalls over the years; and 

Whereas, APH has experienced recurring program funding deficits and required unsustainable, in-kind contributions from 
mandatory cost-shared public health programs funded by the Ministry of Health and local municipalities, that may result in 
service reductions over time without MCCSS increases to funding; and  

Whereas, MCCSS has not increased funding for the HBHC program since 2015, despite increases in costs associated with 
staff wages and benefits, and general program delivery, and existing funding not adequately supporting the OPHS1 mandate 
and MCCSS expectation for service provision; and  

Whereas, pre-pandemic, HBHC clients reported increased mental health challenges exacerbated by limited community 
resources, substance use concerns, food insecurity, housing insecurity, increased reports of domestic violence, increased 
involvement with child protection agencies, and decline in ability to learn and apply positive parenting strategies; and  

Whereas, pre-pandemic, HBHC clients reported that babies and children were experiencing significant delays in growth and 
development milestones and receiving assessments for Autism, increasingly challenging behaviours, and delayed speech, 
language, and social development; and  

Whereas, to resource urgent pandemic response and immunization program needs, several partnering agencies, including 
APH, suspended or reduced available HBHC services and established waitlists for necessary services, creating a backlog of 
services to address the expressed issues affecting guardians, children, and babies; and 

1 Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care. Ontario public health standards: Requirements for programs, services and accountability. Protecting and promoting the health of Ontarians. Published June 2021. Accessed October 17, 2022. 
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf 
2 McIsaac JD, Lamptey DL, Harley J, et al. Early pandemic impacts on family environments that shape childhood development and health: A Canadian study. Child Care Health Dev. 2022;48(6):1122-1133. doi:10.1111/cch.13046 
3 Integrated system for children information system. Updated October 20, 2022. Accessed October 20, 2022. Internal data from reporting sub-system.  

101Page 265 of 298



Board of Health 
R E S O L U T I O N

Whereas, the COVID-19 pandemic, associated measures and implications (e.g. changes to family income, employment, 
access to supports, child care, school and recreation, etc.) affected the priority population served by HBHC in unique ways 
(e.g. mental health, wellbeing, and social and emotional development of infants and children), and although not yet fully 
understood, it is expected that some pre-pandemic issues and inequities have exacerbated; 2,4,5 and 

Whereas, the impacts of the pandemic on this priority population is increasing demand in the program that we will not be 
able to address without the appropriate program funding to resource services mandated by the HBHC protocol.6 

Therefore be it resolved, that the Board of Health of Algoma Public Health endorse the letter from Public Health Sudbury & 
Districts to the Ontario Ministry of Children, Community and Social Services (Appendix) urging a review and increase of base 
funding for the Healthy Babies Healthy Children program to ensure this critical program is sufficiently resourced to meet the 
current and growing needs of children for a healthy start in life.   

CARRIED: Chair's Signature ________________________________________________ 

Louise Caicco Tett Micheline Hatfield Musa Onyuna Brent Rankin 

Deborah Graystone Lee Mason Ed Pearce Matthew Scott 

Sally Hagman 

4 Mental Health Commission of Canada. COVID-19 and early childhood mental health: Fostering systems change and resilience – policy brief highlights. Published September 3, 2021. Accessed October 19, 2022. 
https://mentalhealthcommission.ca/resource/covid-19-and-early-childhood-mental-health-fostering-systems-change-and-resilience-policy-brief-
highlights/#:~:text=But%20when%20parents%20are%20under,affect%20early%20childhood%20mental%20health. 
5 Public Health Ontario. Negative impacts of community-based public health measures during a pandemic (e.g. COVID-19) on children and families. Published August 6, 2020. Accessed October 18, 2022. 
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/documents/ncov/cong/2020/06/covid-19-negative-impacts-public-health-pandemic-families.pdf?la=en 
6 Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care. Healthy babies healthy children program protocol, 2018. Published January 1, 2018. Accessed October 18, 2022. 
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/HBHC_Protocol_2018_en.pdf 

102Page 266 of 298



Pandemic restrictions take a toll on kids’
physical fitness

Len Gillis 
Oct 22, 2022 8:44 AM

| Pexels/Kampus Production

103Page 267 of 298

https://www.sootoday.com/
https://www.sootoday.com/writers/len%20gillis
https://www.sootoday.com/writers/len%20gillis
https://www.vmcdn.ca/files/texttospeech/5992652-408bccc7-3ad1-447c-8206-5df94d73357d.mp3


10/24/22, 5:05 PM Pandemic restrictions take a toll on kids’ physical fitness - Sault Ste. Marie News

https://www.sootoday.com/local-news/pandemic-restrictions-take-a-toll-on-kids-physical-fitness-5992652

That is one of the "unintended consequences” of the various lockdowns connected to the COVID-

19 pandemic according to Dr. Penny Sutcliffe, the Medical Officer of Health for Public Health

Sudbury and Districts (PHSD).

Sutcliffe's position was outlined in a briefing note (see page 59) that is to be presented this week to

the regular monthly meeting of the PHSD Board of Health. 

In her report, Sutcliffe wrote that the stay-at-home orders and restrictions placed on indoor and

outdoor spaces resulted in a reduction of physical activity levels in all age groups. She said the

percentage of young people meeting physical activity recommendations fell from roughly 51 per

cent in 2018 to 37 per cent in 2020.

"Although the development of physical literacy in children and youth was a growing concern prior

to the COVID-19 pandemic, the issue has become more pressing given the long-term health

implications of physical inactivity and sedentary behaviours," she said. 

Sutcliffe's brief to the board of health also quoted a ParticipACTION’s Report Card on Physical

Activity for children and youth (2021), which reported that only 36 per cent of children aged 8-12

years met or exceeded the minimum level recommended for physical literacy.

Sutcliffe is recommending that all local school boards, sports organizations and even early learning

centres to step up all physical activity programs for children and youth within their care.

Sutcliffe said this would include "collaboration with Sport for Life Society, Active Sudbury and

Public Health Sudbury & Districts, agencies that provide comprehensive physical literacy training to

teachers, coaches, recreation providers and early childhood educators."

The board of health will be asked to vote on Sutcliffe’s recommendation. 

It was also noted that increasing physical activity can have a positive impact on one's mental

health. This was based on a report from the Ontario Science Table published in June of 2022.

"Increasing physical activity and decreasing sedentary behaviour have positive effects on mental

well-being and are associated with reduced symptoms of depression and anxiety. These effects

were well-established prior to the COVID-19 pandemic," said the Science Table document. 

The report also noted that Public Health Sudbury is a founding member of the Active Sudbury

organization. 

"Public Health Sudbury & Districts’ partnership with Active Sudbury is an integral part of providing

best practices, tools, and support that will foster physical literacy in the communities that we

serve," said Sutcliffe's report. 
104Page 268 of 298

https://www.phsd.ca/wp-content/uploads/2022/10/22-05__Full_BoardEffect_BOH_Meeting_Package_2022-10-20.pdf?utm_source=sootoday.com&utm_campaign=sootoday.com%3A%20outbound&utm_medium=referral
https://www.participaction.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/10/2022-Children-and-Youth-Report-Card.pdf?utm_source=sootoday.com&utm_campaign=sootoday.com%3A%20outbound&utm_medium=referral
https://covid19-sciencetable.ca/sciencebrief/the-impact-of-physical-activity-on-mental-health-outcomes-during-the-covid-19-pandemic/?utm_source=sootoday.com&utm_campaign=sootoday.com%3A%20outbound&utm_medium=referral
https://activesudbury.ca/?utm_source=sootoday.com&utm_campaign=sootoday.com%3A%20outbound&utm_medium=referral


A healthier future for all. 
101 17th Street East, Owen Sound, Ontario  N4K 0A5  www.publichealthgreybruce.on.ca 

519-376-9420 1-800-263-3456 Fax 519-376-0605 

July 20, 2022 

Ministry of Children, Community and Social Serives 
Government of Ontario 
438 University Avenue, 7th Floor 
Toronto, ON  M5G 2K8 

Dear Honourable Minister: 

Re:  Support for a Local Board of Health 

On June 24, 2022 at a regular meeting of the Board for the Grey Bruce Health Unit, the Board 
considered the attached letter from Public Health Sudbury & Districts regarding Healthy Babies Health 
Children funding. The following motion was passed: 

Motion No:  2022-49 

Moved by:  Alan Barfoot Seconded by:  Luke Charbonneau 

“THAT, the Board of Health endorse the correspondence from Sudbury & Districts Public Health 
regarding Healthy Babies Healthy Children Funding.” 

Carried. 
Sincerely, 

Sue Paterson 
Chair, Board of Health 
Grey Bruce Health Unit 

cc: Dr. Kieran Moore, Ontario Chief Medical Officer of Health 
Honourable Rick Byers, MPP for Bruce-Grey-Owen Sound 
Honourable Brian Saunderson, MPP for Simcoe-Grey 
Honourable Lisa Thompson, MPP for Huron-Bruce 
Warden for Bruce, Warden Janice Jackson 
Warden for Grey, Warden Selwyn Hicks 
Sanober Diaz, Executive Director of Provincial Council for Maternal and Child Health 
Dr. Jackie Schleifer Taylor, Chair, Governing Council of Provincial Council for Maternal and 
Child Health 
Loretta Ryan, Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
Ontario Boards of Health 

Encl. 
/mh 

105Page 269 of 298



June 21, 2022 

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 

Ministry of Children, Community and Social Services 
Government of Ontario 
438 University Avenue, 7th Floor 
Toronto, ON M5G 2K8 

Dear Honourable Minister: 

Re:  Healthy Babies Healthy Children Funding 

The Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury & Districts remains wholly 
committed to the critical Healthy Babies Healthy Children program, 
however, has longstanding and increasing concerns about the Board’s 
ability to meet clients’ growing needs with current program funding. Please 
be advised that at it’s meeting on June 16, 2022, the Board of Health for 
Public Health Sudbury & Districts carried the following resolution #19-22: 

THAT the Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury & Districts 
request the Ministry of Children, Community and Social Services 
(MCCSS) to review base-funding needs for the Healthy Babies 
Healthy Children Program to ensure this essential program is 
sufficiently resourced to meet the current and growing needs of 
children and a healthy start in life. 

The Board of Health recognizes that the Healthy Babies Healthy Children 
(HBHC) program provides a critical prevention/early intervention program 
and is designed to ensure that all Ontario families with children (prenatal to 
age six) who are at risk of physical, cognitive, communicative, and/or 
psychosocial problems have access to effective, consistent, early 
intervention services. Since 1997 the province has committed to resourcing 
the Healthy Babies Healthy Children program at 100%. Unfortunately, the 
HBHC budget has not been increased since 2015, resulting in significant 
erosion in capacity due to fixed cost increases such as collective 
agreement commitments and steps on salary grids, travel and 
accommodation costs, and operational and administrative costs.  

106Page 270 of 298



Letter Re: Healthy Babies Healthy Children Funding 
June 21, 2022 
Page 2 

This has been further compounded by the increased intensity of need in our 
communities pre-dating but further exacerbated by the COVID-19 pandemic. 

The HBHC program has made every effort to mitigate the effects of the funding 
shortfalls over the years and to protect programming. The program, however, is not 
sustainable and significant service reductions will be required without increased to base 
funding.  

It remains our priority to ensure that the HBHC program can effectively identify and 
support children and families most in need throughout the Sudbury/Manitoulin District. 
To this effect, we are submitting a revised 2022/23 HBHC program budget based on 
current needs and requesting consideration by the Ministry staff.  

The Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury & Districts is respectfully requesting the 
Minister’s commitment to carefully review base-funding needs for the HBHC program to 
ensure this essential program is sufficiently resourced to meet the current and growing 
needs of children and a healthy start in life. 

Thank you for your attention to this important public health issue. 

Sincerely, 

Penny Sutcliffe, MD, MHSc, FRCPC 
Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 

cc: Dr. Kieran Moore, Chief Medical Officer of Health, Ministry of Health 
Loretta Ryan, Executive Director, Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
Ontario Boards of Health  
Dr. Jackie Schleifer Taylor, Chair, Governing Council of Provincial Council for 

Maternal and Child Health 
Sanober Diaz, Executive Director of Provincial Council for Maternal and Child 

Health 

107Page 271 of 298



Serving the residents of Curve Lake and Hiawatha First Nations, and the County and City of Peterborough 

Jackson Square, 185 King Street, Peterborough, ON K9J 2R8 
P: 705-743-1000 or 1-877-743-0101 

F: 705-743-2897 
peterboroughpublichealth.ca

October 4, 2022 

Hon. Sylvia Jones 
Minister of Health 
Government of Ontario 
sylvia.jones@ontario.ca 

Dear Minister Jones, 

Re:  AMO Submission - Strengthening Public Health In Ontario: Now and For the Future 

At its meeting on September 14, 2022, the Board of Health for Peterborough Public Health (PPH) received and 
endorsed the submission from the Association of Municipalities to the Ministry of Health, dated August 26, 
2022, entitled Strengthening Public Health In Ontario: Now and For the Future. 

Peterborough Public Health supports the recommendations outlined in the submission which include: 

• The government must not make significant structural changes to public health during the COVID-19
pandemic, but rather promote stability in the system.

• The government must establish an independent inquiry as soon as possible to determine the lessons
learned from COVID-19, at the local and provincial levels, and resume consultations, once the
pandemic waves subside, about how to appropriately modernize and strengthen public health in
Ontario.

• The government must immediately act to address the full scope of health human resource challenges
with a strategy for the public health and the health care systems.

• The government must provide mitigation funding in 2022 to offset the financial impact to municipal
governments from the cost-sharing changes in 2019 for 2020 and reverse the decision to restore the
cost–share arrangement that existed prior to 2020. Further, the Health Protection and Promotion Act
must be amended to enshrine the appropriate cost-sharing arrangement in legislation, rather than as a
matter of provincial policy.

• The government must continue funding COVID-19 costs, including vaccine roll-out, and incorporate as
a distinct line item in ongoing base budgets for as long as there is a pandemic and epidemic situation
that requires prevention and containment activities.

• The government must provide new funding, starting in 2022, as required to address the backlog of
non-pandemic related public health services.

These recommendations complement those recently supported by the Association of Local Public Health 
Agencies (alPHa) which call for a continuation of the consultation process on the future of the public health 
system, as well as outline principles alPHa sees as critical to proceeding with changes to the public health 
system. 

108Page 272 of 298

mailto:sylvia.jones@ontario.ca
https://www.amo.on.ca/sites/default/files/assets/DOCUMENTS/Submissions/Strengthening_Public%20Health_in_Ontario_Now_an_for_the_Future_AMO_Submision_20220826_RPT.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/9DD68D5D-CEFD-443B-B2B5-E76AE0CC6FCB/A22-2_PH_Restructuring.pdf


Serving the residents of Curve Lake and Hiawatha First Nations, and the County and City of Peterborough 

Local public health collaboration with the Province, municipalities, First Nations, and other partners has been 
the backbone of Ontario’s successful response to the pandemic. Continuing this collaboration, while stabilizing 
and strengthening the public health system and structures, is essential to the health and economic recovery  
of the Province, our communities and residents. 

Respectfully, 

Original signed by 

Mayor Andy Mitchell 
Chair, Board of Health 

/ag 

cc: Association of Municipalities of Ontario 
Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
Local MPPs 
Local Councils 
Ontario Boards of Health 

109Page 273 of 298



 www.algomapublichealth.com 

October 24, 2022 

Via Email 

Hon. Sylvia Jones 
Deputy Premier and Minister of Health 
Ministry of Health, 5th Floor 
777 Bay Street Toronto, ON M7A 2J3 

Dear Minister Jones: 

RE: Response to the Opioid Poisoning Crisis: A Comprehensive Public Health Approach for 
Substance Use Prevention and Harm Reduction 

On September 28th, 2022 the Board of Health for Algoma Public Health (APH) endorsed a letter from 
the Simcoe-Muskoka District Health Unit (SMDHU) with regards to the escalating opioid poisoning 
crisis, and confirmed support for SMDHU’s set of diverse recommendations that cross multiple 
sectors and encourages the provincial government to consider stronger investments in health 
promotion, prevention, and harm reduction initiatives.  

Motion 2022-73 included: 

The Board of Health for Algoma Public Health endorse the recommended actions (#1-7) from 
the letter from Simcoe-Muskoka District Health Unit to the Ontario Minister of Health, and 
write a letter to the Ontario Minister of Health urging for commitment to a more fulsome, 
comprehensive public health approach for substance use prevention and harm reduction in 
Ontario; 

And that the Board of Health for Algoma Public Health advocate to the Ontario Minister of 
Health the need for fulltime, sustained funding to support a Coordinator for the Sault Ste. Marie 
and Area Drug Strategy. 

Residents in Northern Ontario experience higher rates of poverty and poor health, elevated rates of 
many health-harming behaviours, and inadequate access to high-quality health care and social 
services, when compared to Southern Ontario. These inequities are reflected in the harms and 
suffering from the opioid poisoning crisis. Data from the Office of the Chief Coroner demonstrated 
that APH ranked third in the province for the highest rate of opioid-related deaths from April 2021 to 
March 2022. 

The opioid poisoning crisis is a complex public health issue that requires comprehensive, multi-

110Page 274 of 298



Blind River 
P.O. Box 194 
9B Lawton Street 
Blind River, ON  P0R 1B0 
Tel: 705-356-2551 
TF:  1 (888) 356-2551 
Fax: 705-356-2494 

Elliot Lake 
ELNOS Building 
302-31 Nova Scotia Walk 
Elliot Lake, ON  P5A 1Y9 
Tel: 705-848-2314 
TF: 1 (877) 748-2314 
Fax: 705-848-1911 
 

Sault Ste. Marie 
294 Willow Avenue 
Sault Ste. Marie, ON  P6B 0A9 
Tel: 705-942-4646 
TF: 1 (866) 892-0172 
Fax:  705-759-1534 
 

Wawa 
18 Ganley Street 
Wawa, ON  P0S 1K0 
Tel: 705-856-7208 
TF: 1 (888) 211-8074 
Fax: 705-856-1752 

 

sectoral approaches to address the social determinants of health, prevention and education, harm 
reduction, treatment and recovery, and enforcement interventions.  
 
While community agencies are working diligently to respond to the opioid poisoning crisis, there is 
urgent need for sustainable funding for this community-led work. For example, the Sault Ste. Marie 
and Area Drug Strategy includes many partners who are committed to responding to the opioid 
poisoning crisis, however there is currently no funding for a dedicated, fulltime coordinator to 
oversee the planning and implementation of a comprehensive strategy.  
 
Coordinated action between the federal and provincial governments, public health agencies, and 
local community partners is necessary to ensure that individuals living with substance use disorders 
receive the right care, at the right time, and in the right place based on their level of need. This action 
includes expanding evidence-informed substance use prevention, mental health promotion, and 
harm reduction programs, exploring revisions to the current Consumption Treatment Services Model, 
expanding access to therapy, instituting healthy public policy and long-term financial commitment for 
basic needs (e.g. affordable housing), and addressing stigma, among others, as outlined in the 
recommendations.  

 
APH joins colleagues across the province to urge holistic attention and sustained funding to support 
the recommendations to respond to the escalating opioid poisoning crisis, especially in the north.  

 
Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

 

Sally Hagman 
Board of Health Chair 
District of Algoma Health Unit 
 

Enclosure  

 

cc:     Dr. K. Moore, Chief Medical Officer of Health  
Dr. J. Tuinema, Acting Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer, Algoma Public Health 
Ross Romano, MPP, Sault Ste. Marie 
Michael Mantha, MPP, Algoma-Manitoulin 
Association of Local Public Health Agencies  
Canadian Mental Health Association 
Mayors and Municipal Councils in the Algoma District  
Northern Public Health Boards of Health  
 

111Page 275 of 298



 

 

March 16, 2022 
 
The Honourable Christine Elliott  
Minister of Health         
House of Commons 
Ottawa, ON K1A 0A6 
 
Dear Minister Elliott:  
 
Re: Response to the Opioid Crisis in Simcoe Muskoka and Ontario-wide 
 
On March 16, 2022, the Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit (SMDHU) Board of Health endorsed a set 
of provincial recommendations to help address the ongoing and escalating opioid crisis experienced 
within Simcoe Muskoka and province-wide. Despite regional activities in response to the opioid crisis, 
there remains an urgent need for heightened provincial attention and action to promptly and 
adequately address the extensive burden of opioid-related deaths being experienced by those who use 
substances.  
 
In the 19 months of available data since the start of the pandemic (March 2020 to September 2021) 
there have been 245 opioid-related deaths in Simcoe Muskoka. This is nearly 70% higher than the 145 
opioid-related deaths in the 19 months prior to the start of the pandemic (August 2018 to February 
2020), when our communities were already struggling in the face of this crisis. The first nine months of 
2021 saw an opioid-related death rate more than 33% higher than the first nine months of 2020, 
suggesting the situation has not yet stabilized.  
 
As such, the SMDHU Board of Health urges your government to take the following actions: 
 

1. Create a multisectoral task force to guide the development of a robust provincial opioid 
response plan that will ensure necessary resourcing, policy change, and health and social system 
coordination.  

2. Expand access to evidence informed harm reduction programs and practices including lifting the 
provincial cap of 21 Consumption and Treatment Service (CTS) Sites, funding Urgent Public 
Health Needs Sites (UPHNS) and scaling up safer opioid supply options.  

3. Explore revisions to the current CTS model to address the growing trends of opioid poisoning 
amongst those who are using inhalation methods. 

4. Expand access to opioid agonist therapy for opioid use disorder through a range of settings (e.g. 
mobile outreach, primary care, emergency departments), and a variety of medication options. 

5. Provide a long-term financial commitment to create more affordable and supportive housing for 
people in need, including people with substance use disorders. 

6. Address the structural stigma and harms that discriminate against people who use drugs, 
through provincial support and advocacy to the Federal government to decriminalize personal 
use and possession of substances and ensure increased investments in health and social services 
at all levels. 

112Page 276 of 298



7. Increase investments in evidence-informed substance use prevention and mental health 
promotion initiatives, that provide foundational support for the health, safety and well-being of 
individuals, families, and neighbourhoods, beginning from early childhood. 

8. Fund a fulltime position of a Drug Strategy Coordinator/Lead for the Simcoe Muskoka Opioid 
Strategy. 

 
The SMDHU Board of Health has endorsed these recommendations based on the well-demonstrated 
need for a coordinated, multi-sectoral approach that addresses the social determinants of health and 
recognizes the value of harm reduction strategies alongside substance use disorder treatment 
strategies, as part of the larger opioid crisis response. Evidence has shown that harm reduction 
strategies can prevent overdoses, save lives, and connect people with treatment and social services. 
Further, there is an urgent need to change the current Canadian drug policy to allow a public health 
response to substance use, through decriminalization of personal use and possession paired with 
avenues towards health and social services, as our Board called for in 2018. These recommendations 
collectively promote effective public health and safety measures to address the social and health harms 
associated with substance use. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
ORIGINAL Signed By: 
 
Anita Dubeau 
Board of Health Chair 
Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit 
 
cc: Associate Minister of Mental Health and Addictions 

Attorney General of Ontario 
Chief Medical Officer of Health  
Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
Ontario Health 
Ontario Boards of Health 
Members of Parliament in Simcoe Muskoka 
Members of Provincial Parliament in Simcoe Muskoka 
Mayors and Municipal Councils in Simcoe Muskoka 

113Page 277 of 298



Tania Caputo

From: allhealthunits <allhealthunits-bounces@lists.alphaweb.org> on behalf of alPHa 
communications <communications@alphaweb.org>

Sent: Tuesday, October 18, 2022 2:01 PM
To: AllHealthUnits@lists.alphaweb.org
Cc: board@lists.alphaweb.org
Subject: [allhealthunits] October 2022 InfoBreak

This email originated outside of Algoma Public Health. Do not open attachments or click links unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

View this email in your browser 

PLEASE ROUTE TO: 

All Board of Health Members 
All Members of Regional Health & Social Service Committees 
All Senior Public Health Managers 

October 18, 2022 

October 2022 InfoBreak 
This update is a tool to keep alPHa's members apprised of the latest news in public 

health including provincial announcements, legislation, alPHa activities, 
correspondence, and events. Visit us at alphaweb.org. 

114Page 278 of 298



Leader to Leader – A Message from the alPHa President - October 
2022 

“Ultimately, leadership is not about glorious crowning acts. It’s about keeping your 
team focused on a goal and motivated to do their best to achieve it, especially when 
the stakes are high and the consequences really matter, it is about laying the 
groundwork for others’ success and then standing back and letting them shine.” – 
Chris Hadfield, Canadian Astronaut 

Your 2022-2023 alPHa Board of Directors is motivated to do their best to achieve 
alPHa’s strategic goals as a governance board. September’s inaugural, quarterly 
meeting of the alPHa Board kicked-off with an orientation on good governance – 
guided by alPHa’s Strategic Plan. 

alPHa continues to provide strategic leadership in building collaborations and 
partnerships across stakeholder groups focussing on strengthening Ontario’s local 
public health system. The alPHa Board receives regular updates from its Sections and 
from the Affiliate member organizations of the Board, and Loretta Ryan, alPHa’s 
Executive Director, works with her leadership counterparts from key partner 
organizations. Key information for members is sent out via the monthly Information 
Break with links to the alPHa website, and if time is of the essence, through email 
notifications. 

In June, alPHa surveyed and received a response from each health unit in Ontario 
regarding base budget requirements now and moving forward. Thank you to everyone 
for their input. The feedback is currently being consolidated and reviewed strategically 
for next steps. We will be back in touch in the next newsletter with updates.  

The Ontario Not-for-Profit Corporations Act (ONCA) was launched in October 2021, 
with a three-year window for compliance. alPHa is currently working on a review to 

115Page 279 of 298



ensure obligations are met within the timeframe. The process and results will be 
reported on and presented to alPHa membership at an upcoming AGM for ratification. 
It is to be noted that this is not a restructuring of the organization nor is it an 
extensive process. The goal currently, is to ensure compliance with ONCA. 

Risk management, due diligence, compliance, administrative policies, and procedures 
are all aspects of good governance and its accountable mechanisms which encompass 
an entire organization. alPHa’s 2023 Winter Symposium will be an opportunity to 
refresh these skills in the offering of governance training to its membership. This is 
timely as local boards of health will experience a turn-over in appointments post 
municipal election. Stay tuned for more information on this event! 

It is a time of thoughtful and appreciative reflection as the November 14th end of 
term date draws closer for the municipally appointed local board of health members. 
While some will be reappointed, effective November 15th, some will be stepping 
aside. Whatever the situation may be, the unwavering governance leadership of board 
of health members during the past four years and particularly during the height of the 
COVID-19 pandemic has been absolutely essential. On behalf of the alPHa Board of 
Directors and the alPHa staff – thanks to each and every one of you for your 
volunteerism for local public health! 

Hazel McCallion said, “Do you want to be a follower, or do you want to take 
advantage of opportunities to be a leader?” Thank you, to ALL alPHa members and to 
alPHa’s Board of Directors for taking the opportunity to be a public health leader. 

Trudy Sachowski 
President 

“The quality of a leader is reflected in the standards they set for 
themselves.” 

alPHa Correspondence 

116Page 280 of 298



Through policy analysis, collaboration, and advocacy, alPHa’s members and staff act 
to promote public health policies that form a strong foundation for the improvement 
of health promotion and protection, disease prevention, and surveillance services in all 
of Ontario’s communities. Below are submissions that have been sent in since the last 
newsletter. A complete online library is available here.  

alPHa Letter 2 - Resolution A22-2 - Cooling Towers 
October 14, 2022 letter from the President of the Association of Local Public Health 
Agencies (alPHa), which reintroduces our call on the ministry to create province-wide 
mandatory cooling tower registration system to facilitate the investigation and 
management of legionella outbreaks such as the one that is now being investigated in 
the town of Orillia.  

alPHa Letter - DSNO, Resolution A22-4 - Opioids 
October 14 letter from alPHa that communicates our endorsement in principle of the 
Drug Strategy Network of Ontario (DSNO) Solutions to End the Drug Poisoning Crisis 
in Ontario: Choosing a New Direction as it aligns with alPHa’s related and previously 
communicated resolution (A22-4).  

alPHa Letter - Collection of Sociodemographic Data 
October 14, 2022 letter to the Minister of Health urging the incorporation of 
sociodemographic data (SDD) in all database systems, including the Case Contact 
Management expansion (which is replacing iPHIS) for reporting of diseases of public 
health significance (DoPHS). 

MMAH Response - Resolution A22-3 - Cooling Towers 
August 24, 2022 letter from the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing to the 
President of the Association of Local Public Health Agencies.  

117Page 281 of 298



alPHa Letter - Chief of Nursing/ADM 
September 6, 2022 letter from the Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
congratulating the new Chief of Nursing & Professional Practice & Assistant Deputy 
Minister of Health. 

alPHa Letter - President & CEO, PHO  
July 18, 2022 letter from the alPHa ED welcoming Dr. Michael Sherar as the new 
President and CEO of Public Health Ontario. 

alPHa Letter - Resolution A22-5 - Harm Reduction 
July 18, 2022 letter to the Minister of Health that introduces alPHa Resolution A22-5, 
Indigenous Harm Reduction - A Wellness Journey. 

alPHa Letter - Resolution A22-4 - Opioids 
July 18, 2022 alPHa letter to the Minister of Health that introduces Resolution A22-4, 
Priorities for Provincial Action on the Drug/Opioid Poisoning Crisis in Ontario.  

alPHa Letter - Resolution A22-3 - Cooling Towers 
July 18, 2022 alPHa letter to the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing that 
introduces Resolution A22-3, which calls for a provincial cooling tower registry for the 
public health management of legionella outbreaks.  

alPHa Letter - Resolution A22-1 - Racism & Health 
July 18, 2022 letter to the Minister of Health that introduces Resolution A22-1, Race-
Based Inequities in Health.  

alPHa Letter - The Future of Public Health 
July 18, 2022 letter to the Minister of Health that provides several documents 
(Including Resolution A22-2, Public Health Restructuring/Modernization & COVID-19) 
that give an overview of alPHa’s positions and principles that we hope will be carefully 
considered as Ontario’s public health system is reviewed and strengthened in the 
wake of the emergency phase of the COVID-19 response. Note: This is a follow up to 
the welcome letter sent to the new Minister on June 27, 2022.  

alPHa Letter - 2022 Resolutions 
July 18, 2022 letter from the President of the Association of Local Public Health 
Agencies that introduces five resolutions that were passed by our members at the 
2022 Annual General Meeting.  

Call for Abstracts now open: TOPHC 2023 

118Page 282 of 298



A call for abstracts for TOPHC 2023 is now out.  

The Ontario Public Health Convention (TOPHC) is a chance to learn from each other, 
get inspired, and move forward to make a difference in the practice of public health. 
It is an excellent opportunity to engage with a variety of public health professionals 
from various settings. TOPHC offers a combination of research and practice-based 
presentations to share knowledge in public health, and educational workshops that 
help build and refine your relevant skills. alPHa is a key partner with alPHa volunteers 
and staff actively engaged in the creation of TOPHC 2023.  

Goals and objectives  

 Describe implementation and impact of evidence-based and evidence-informed
strategies, programs, and policies to promote and protect the public’s health.

 Identify considerations and approaches for enhancing collaboration and
partnerships to address current and emerging public health issues.

 Recognize gaps in and challenges to current public health practice and policy
and discuss opportunities and potential solutions to address these gaps.

 Applying new/enhanced skills to questions and concerns facing public health
professionals and our clients.

You are all welcome to submit your abstracts.  

Please note that TOPHC 2023 will be a two-day event, with a virtual program on 
March 27, 2023 and in-person workshops on March 30, 2023. Abstracts are only being 
accepted for virtual presentations that will take place on March 27, 2023.  

Boards of Health: Shared Resources 

119Page 283 of 298



A resource page is available on alPHa's website for Board of Health members to 
facilitate the sharing of and access to orientation materials, best practices, by-laws, 
resolutions, and other resources. If you have a best practice, by-law or any other 
resource that you would like to make available, please send a file or a link with a brief 
description to gordon@alphaweb.org and for posting in the appropriate library. 

Resources available on the alPHa website include: 

 Orientation Manual for Board of
Health

 Review of Board of Health Liability
(PowerPoint presentation 

 Governance Toolkit
 Risk Management for Health Units
 Healthy Rural Communities Toolkit

 The Ontario Public Health
Standards

 Public Appointee Role and
Governance Overview

 Ontario Boards of Health by Region
 List of Units sorted by Municipality
 List of Municipalities sorted by

Health Unit

Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) New Head of Council 
and New Councillor Training 

120Page 284 of 298



AMO is offering training for New Heads of Councillors and New Councillors. The 
training will feature subject matter experts, helping participants “managing diverse 
aspects and expectations on issues [they] will find before [their] term.” You can 
register for the New Head of Councillor Training here and register for New Councillor 
training here.  

Public Health Ontario 

Variants of Concern 

 Reinfection with SARS-CoV-2 Omicron Variant of Concern
 Risk Assessment for Omicron BA.4 and BA.4 Variant Sub-Lineages (as of Sept

23, 2022) 
 SARS-CoV-2 Omicron Variant Sub-Lineage BA.2.75 (updated)
 SARS-CoV-2 Genomic Surveillance in Ontario Weekly Epidemiological Summary

Check out PHO’s Variants of Concern web page for the most up-to-date resources.  

Surveillance  

 COVID-19 in Ontario: Weekly Epidemiological Summary

Check out PHO’s COVID-19 webpage for a comprehensive list of all COVID-19 
resources.  

In Case You Missed It 

 Catch-Up of Routine and School-Based Immunizations for School-Aged Children
and Adolescents  

Additional Resources - New 

 Monkeypox Resources
 COVID-19 Wastewater Surveillance in Ontario
 Respiratory Virus Overview in Ontario from September 25, 2022 to October 1,

2022 (Week 39) 

121Page 285 of 298



 

PHO Events 

Upcoming PHO Webinar:  

 PHO Webinar: Centering Indigenous Ways, Un-learning Mainstream Approaches
in Substance Use (Oct. 26) 

In case you missed these sessions last month, here are the Presentations PHO posted 
on their website:  

 PHO Microbiology Rounds: Fishing for Antimicrobial Resistance (AMR): A
Metagenomic Platform for Antimicrobial Surveillance (Sept. 8)  

 

What’s Next for Public Health?: Looking to the Future 

The Dalla Lana School of Public Health presents the 15th Annual Student-Led 
Conference, What’s Next for Public Health?: Looking to the Future, a hybrid in-
person and virtual conference on November 17 to 19, 2022.  

COVID-19 has brought a future of public health much different from the one we once 
knew, and as public health professionals, we must work together to navigate changed 
principles and our new and developing roles. This conference will include discussions 
considering the aftermath of COVID-19, knowledge translation, new and upcoming 
methods, and the impacts of the ever changing environment on public health practice.  

Upcoming DLSPH Events 
 Quality Control for ATMPs and Biologics Masterclass (Oct. 17)
 Breast Reconstruction Awareness (BRA) Day (Oct. 19)

 

OPHA Fall Forum 2022 

122Page 286 of 298



The Ontario Public Health Association’s Conference is being held from November 8, 
2022-November 9, 2022. The Conference is called The Next Chapter: Building Upon 
Our Capacity and Resilience in Community and Public Health and will “highlight 
creative ways of addressing preventative health across sections and within 
communities.” For more information, click here.  

COVID-19 Update 

The digital team at the Ministry of Health has launched a new landing page and new 
streamlined content pages for COVID-19 content.  

The new landing page, which replaces covid-19.ontario.ca, can now be found at:  

https://www.ontario.ca/page/covid-19-coronavirus (English) 
https://www.ontario.ca/fr/page/covid-19-le-coronavirus (French) 

As well, the ministry has overhauled the previous versions of the public health measures 
pages, six vaccine pages, and testing and treatment pages, which can now be found 
at:  

https://www.ontario.ca/page/public-health-measures-and-advice 
https://www.ontario.ca/page/covid-19-vaccines 
https://www.ontario.ca/page/covid-19-testing-and-treatment 

As part of the response to COVID-19, alPHa continues to represent the public health 
system and work with key stakeholders. “NOTE: In alignment with the wind-down of 
provincial emergency response measures and the shift to managing COVID-19 through 
routine operations, the ministry’s daily COVID-19 Situation Report will no longer be 
distributed after June 10 2022. COVID-19 data will continue to be reported on the 
Ministry of Health website and through the Public Health Ontario’s COVID-19 data tool.” 

Visit the Ministry of Health's page on guidance for the health sector  
View the Ministry's website on the status of COVID-19 cases 
Go to Public Health Ontario's COVID-19 website 
Visit the Public Health Agency of Canada's COVID-19 website 
alPHa’s recent COVID-19 related submissions can be found here 

Hold the date for the Winter Symposium and Annual Conference & 
AGM 

123Page 287 of 298



alPHa’s Winter Symposium is being held on February 24, 2023.  

The Annual Conference and AGM is being held from June 11-13, 2023. Please stay 
tuned for further information.  

News Releases 
The most up to date news releases from the Government of Ontario can be accessed 
here. 

Copyright (C) *|2022|* *|Association of Local Public Health Agencies|*. All rights reserved. 

Our mailing address is: 
*|480 University Ave. Suite 300 Toronto, Ont. M5G 1V2|* 

Want to change how you receive these emails? 
You can update your preferences or unsubscribe 

124Page 288 of 298



 

 

Public 

September 12, 2022 
  
  
Sent via email  
  
  
Dear Mr. Malcolm White:  
  
I hope this letter finds you, your family and your community doing well.  
 
I am writing to let you know that OLG is working with the Ontario government and our casino service 
providers to facilitate the addition of Sportsbooks at Ontario casinos, which could offer sports and 
other betting. Service providers will make decisions regarding which casino locations will have a 
Sportsbook. Service providers are expected to begin adding Sportsbooks using a phased approach, 
rolled out over a number of months, with timing subject to necessary Ontario government approvals. 
This would be implemented in compliance with provincial regulations.  
 
OLG is committed to working with our partners, including our host municipalities, to give players more 
diverse and complete entertainment experiences, in a safe and responsible manner.  PlaySmart, 
OLG’s award-winning responsible gambling program, would be incorporated into all casino-based 
sports and other betting offerings. 
 
Revenue generated from the introduction of Sportsbooks would be shared with host municipalities 
pursuant to an amending agreement to the Municipality Contribution Agreement (MCA), with the 
formula remaining fair and equitable across all host communities.  
 
Once plans for casinos Sportsbooks have been finalized and requisite Ontario government approvals 
are received, we will be providing host municipalities with an Amending Agreement to the MCA for 
signature. This will enable OLG to share revenue if a Sportsbook is added as a gaming offering at 
Gateway Casinos Sault Ste Marie. At this time, we will also confirm the revenue share percentage, 
which we expect will align with the current formula for live table games. 
 
We look forward to providing further updates as plans are finalized, which can be expected in fall 
2022.  
 
To provide more background on Sportsbooks, we have attached a Fact Sheet. Should you have any 
questions or wish to discuss, please feel free to reach out to Kathleen Devine, OLG’s Senior Municipal 
Relations Manager, at 416-726-6079 or kdevine@olg.ca.   
  
OLG remains proud to deliver great lottery and gaming entertainment in a socially responsible 
manner, while contributing to communities and the people of Ontario.   

Page 289 of 298



 

 

Public 

  
Yours truly, 

   
Originally Signed  
 

  
R. Brian Calalang  
Vice President – Casino Gaming Relationship Management 
  
 
Cc:  Christian Provenzano, Mayor, City of Sault Ste. Marie  

Josh Cogan, Senior Director, Government & Stakeholder Relations |OLG 
 
 
 
  
 
  
  
 
  
 

Page 290 of 298



 

  
Public 

FACT SHEET 
 

CASINO SPORTSBOOKS IN ONTARIO 
 

The Ontario Lottery and Gaming Corporation (OLG) is currently working with the Ontario government and 
our service providers to facilitate the addition of sports and other betting (“Sportsbooks”) at Ontario 
casinos. 

What is a Sportsbook? 
 

A Sportsbook is an offering through which a person can place singe event and parlay wagers on sporting 
and other events and includes all of the betting options and features that are offered by the specific 
provider. 
 
Sports and other betting – via a Sportsbook – can take place in either a digital format or a retail format.  

• A retail wagering transaction is processed in a dedicated physical space at a land-based casino, 
including through a terminal at the site (this is what is coming to Ontario casinos). 

• A digital wagering transaction is processed through an online account with an iGaming operator. 
 
The introduction of Casino Sportsbooks would enable customers to place bets on-site, with Ontario casino 
operators. The Service Providers would determine the betting options and features of their sports and other 
betting offerings subject to applicable laws, regulations, standards and policies. 

Types of Casino Sportsbooks Venues 
 

There are two potential styles of Casino Sportsbooks that could be introduced in Ontario casinos. Both 
would offer a customer the same wagering options and transaction process, however they would provide a 
different customer experience. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Opportunities and Impacts 
 

Casino Sportsbooks would be regulated by the AGCO through a specific casino sportsbook standard in the 
Registrar’s Standards for Gaming and Minimum Technical Standards. Casino Sportsbooks would allow 
casinos to attract new customers and broaden the appeal of casinos as an entertainment option. Casino 
service providers would decide where and when to introduce sportsbooks at their sites. 
 
If introduced, Casino Sportsbooks are expected to drive incremental jobs, capital investment, and revenue. 
Increased casino revenues would also translate to increased payments to host municipalities through 
Municipality Contribution Agreements and host First Nations communities through their revenue share 
agreements.  
 
 
 

Some casinos may introduce Sportsbooks in a themed lounge with odds screens, 
TV screens, lounge seating, food and beverage service and betting windows with 
personnel to support the operations of the Sportsbook. 
 
Whereas other casinos may choose to provide a simpler dedicated area for 
Sportsbooks with kiosks for a customer to place sports bets. 

 

 

Page 291 of 298



 

  
Public 

Responsible Gambling 
 

OLG continues to be a leader in responsible gambling, offering player tools, information, and resources 
both online and on site at casinos across Ontario. OLG’s award-winning responsible gambling program, 
PlaySmart, would be incorporated into all casino sports and other betting offerings, and further supported 
through service provider training for casino staff who interact with bettors. This would help ensure customers 
play in a safe and responsible manner. In addition, all 29 casinos in Ontario have onsite PlaySmart Centres 
operated by the Responsible Gambling Council. PlaySmart Centres offer information, assistance, and 
referrals to customers. 

Page 292 of 298



1 | P a g e  
 

 

 
 2021 Division Road North  

Kingsville, Ontario  N9Y 2Y9 
Phone:  (519) 733-2305 

www.kingsville.ca 
kingsvilleworks@kingsville.ca 

 
 

 COPY VIA EMAIL (Premier@ontario.ca)     September 1, 2022 
 

   
The Hon. Doug Ford,  Premier of Ontario 
Legislative Building 
1 Queen’s Park 
Toronto, ON M7A 1A1 

 

 
 
Dear Premier Ford: 
  

RE: Town of Kingsville Council Resolution #336-08292022 in opposition to  

 Bill 3, Strong Mayors, Building Homes Act, 2022 

 
 
At its Special Meeting held August 29, 2022 Council of The Corporation of the Town of 
Kingsville passed a Resolution against Bill 3 as follows: 

 
Resolution #336-08292022 

Moved by Councillor Kimberly DeYong 

Seconded by Councillor Laura Lucier 

“WHEREAS the Government of Ontario, through the Minister of Municipal Affairs 

and Housing, has introduced Bill 3 which is described as "An Act to amend 

various statutes with respect to special powers and duties of heads of council";  

AND WHEREAS this Bill, if enacted, will initially apply to the City of Toronto and 

City of Ottawa, but will later be expanded to include other municipalities according 

to a statement made by the Premier at the 2022 AMO annual conference; 

AND WHEREAS this Bill, if enacted, will give Mayors additional authority and 

powers, and correspondingly take away authority and powers from Councils and 

professional staff, and will include giving the Mayor the authority to propose and 

adopt the Municipal budget and to veto some decisions of Council; 

AND WHEREAS this Bill, if enacted, will give authority over professional staff to 

the Mayor, including that of the Chief Administrative Officer; 

Page 293 of 298

mailto:Premier@ontario.ca


2 | P a g e  
 

 

AND WHEREAS these changes will result in a reduction of independence for 

professional staff including the CAO, who currently provide objective information 

to the Council and public and will now take direction from the Mayor alone when 

the Mayor so directs; 

AND WHEREAS these are surprising and unnecessary changes to the historical 

balance of power between a Mayor and Council, and which historically gave the 

final say in all matters to the will of the majority of the elected Council. 

THEREFORE, this Council of the Town of Kingsville, passes this resolution to 

petition the Government of Ontario that: 

1. These changes to the Municipal Act, 2001, are unnecessary and will 

negatively affect the Town of Kingsville; 

2. That if the Ontario Government deems these changes necessary in large 

single-tier municipalities such as Toronto and Ottawa, that such changes 

should not be implemented in smaller municipalities; 

3. That the Ontario Government should enact legislation clarifying the role of 

Mayor, Council and Chief Administrative Officer, similar to those 

recommended by the Ontario Municipal Administrator's Association and 

those recommended by Justice Marrocco in the Collingwood judicial inquiry 

of 2020; and 

4. That if the stated goal of this legislation is to construct more housing in 

Ontario that this can be accomplished through other means including 

amendment of the Planning Act and funding of more affordable housing.  

Council further directs the Clerk to ensure that a copy of this resolution be 

provided to the Premier of Ontario, the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing, 

the "Standing Committee on Heritage, Infrastructure and Cultural Policy", 

Kingsville's MPP, the Association of Municipalities of Ontario, and other 

Municipalities in Ontario.” 

  

Page 294 of 298



3 | P a g e  
 

RECORDED VOTE – Carried Unanimously 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions or comments please contact Paula Parker at pparker@kingsville.ca.  

 
 
Yours very truly, 

 

       
   

Paula Parker  
Town Clerk, on behalf of Kingsville Council 

 
 

cc: The Honourable Steve Clark, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing 
(Steve.Clark@pc.ola.org)  

 Standing Committee on Heritage, Infrastructure and Cultural Policy; Attn.: Committee Clerk 
Isaiah Thorning (schicp@ola.org)  

 Anthony Leardi, MPP – Essex (Anthony.Leardi@pc.ola.org)  
Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) (amo@amo.on.ca)  
All Ontario Municipalities 

 

  YEA NAY    

Deputy Mayor Gord Queen X    

Councillor Kimberly DeYong X    

Councillor Tony Gaffan X    

Councillor Laura Lucier X    

Councillor Thomas Neufeld X    

Councillor Larry Patterson X    

Results 6 0 
 
 

    

Page 295 of 298

mailto:pparker@kingsville.ca
mailto:Steve.Clark@pc.ola.org
mailto:schicp@ola.org
mailto:Anthony.Leardi@pc.ola.org
mailto:amo@amo.on.ca


Page 296 of 298



Office of the Chief Administrative Officer 
50 Colborne St., S. · Simcoe ON N3Y 4H3 · T: 519.426.5870 · F: 519.426.8573 · 
norfolkcounty.ca 

 

Clerks and Bylaw 
 
 
 
 
September 26, 2022 
 
SENT VIA E-MAIL TO: 
 
The Honourable Doug Ford 
Premier of the Province of Ontario  
doug.fordco@pc.ola.org   
 
Dear Premier Ford: 
 
Re: Draven Alert 
 
On behalf of the Council of the Corporation of Norfolk County, please be advised that Council 
passed the following resolution at the September 20, 2022 Council meeting: 

 
Resolution No. 2 

Moved By: Councillor Rabbitts 
Seconded By: Councillor Vandendriessche 

THAT the Information Memo regarding the Draven Alert be received as 
information; 

AND THAT Council approve forwarding the following resolution to the Premier, 
the Solicitor General, the Commissioner of Ontario Provincial Police, the local 
MPP and the Association of Municipalities of Ontario: 

AND THAT the Council of the Corporation of Norfolk County directs staff to 
circulate a letter to the Minister of the Solicitor General, the Commissioner of 
the Ontario Provincial Police and the Premier 's Office, to request necessary 
changes be made to the Amber Alert system and / or the creation of a new alert 
called the Draven Alert, which will protect vulnerable persons who have not 
been abducted but are at high risk of danger, injury or death and alert the public 
that they are missing; 

AND FURTHER THAT this motion be sent to all municipalities across Ontario 
and the Association of the Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) for endorsement. 

Carried. 
 
 

Page 297 of 298

mailto:doug.fordco@pc.ola.org


Office of the Chief Administrative Officer 
50 Colborne St., S. · Simcoe ON N3Y 4H3 · T: 519.426.5870 · F: 519.426.8573 · 
norfolkcounty.ca 

Should you have any questions regarding this matter or should you require additional 
information, please contact the Office of the County Clerk at 519-426-5870 x. 1261, or email: 
Clerks@norfolkcounty.ca. 

Sincerely, 

Teresa Olsen 
County Clerk 
Norfolk County 

CC: 

• Honourable Michael Kerzner, Solicitor General 
Michael.Kerzner@pc.ola.org

• Thomas Carrique, Commissioner, Ontario Provincial Police 
Thomas.Carrique@opp.ca

• Bobbi Ann Brady, M.P.P., Haldimand-Norfolk 
BABrady-CO@ola.org

• All Ontario municipalities

• Association of Ontario Municipalites
resolutions@amo.on.ca

Page 298 of 298

tel:519-426-5870,1228
mailto:Clerks@norfolkcounty.ca
mailto:Michael.Kerzner@pc.ola.org
mailto:Thomas.Carrique@opp.ca
mailto:BABrady-CO@ola.org

	Agenda
	1. CA Agenda for Sept 27 2022 Meeting.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	1. CA Notice regarding Proposed 2023 Fee Policy Schedules.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	1. SSMRCA 2023 Proposed Fee Schedule and Policy FINAL.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	2. APH Minutes May 25 2022.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	2. APH Agenda Package September 28 2022.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	2. APH Agenda Package Octboer 26 2022.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	3. OLG Notice Letter.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	3. OLG Factsheet.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4. Lt Premier 2022 09 01.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4. Township of McGarry regarding Office of the Integrity Commissioner recommendation.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4. Norfolk County Supporting Resolution regarding Draven Alert.pdf
	Back to Agenda


